Keeping Your Future Bright!

Woodstock
Hydro

An I1SO 9001:2008 Registered Comtpany

October 28, 2010

Delivered by Courier

Ms. Kirsten Walli

Board Secretary

Ontario Energy Board

2300 Yonge Street, Suite 2700
Toronto, Ontario

M4P 1E4

Dear Ms. Walli:

Re:  Woodstock Hydro Services Inc., 2011 Electricity Distribution Rate Application

License No. ED-2003-0011
OEB File No. EB-2010-0145

Please find accompanying this letter two hard copies of Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.
Application for its Electricity Distribution Rates and Charges effective May 1, 2011, together
with an electronic version of same. This Application has also been filed through the Ontario
Energy Board’s Regulatory Electronic Submission System (RESS). A copy of the filing
confirmation is attached to this correspondence.

Please note that there are items being filed in confidence with respect to costs and vendor
information related to smart meters. These are designated as Exhibit 9, Tab 5 Appendix G. The
items being filed in confidence include a spreadsheet setting out detailed information with
respect to costs related to smart meters, and vendor agreements or contracts pertaining to
WHSI’s smart meter initiative.

In the OEB’s combined proceeding EB-2007-0063 the OEB discussed the issue of confidentiality
with respect to pricing information at pages 4 and 5 of its August 28, 2007 Decision.

The OEB determined (at page 5) that:

16 Graham Street, PO Box 1598, Woodstock, ON N4S 0A8
Telephone: (519) 537-3488  Fax: (619) 537-5081
www.woodstockhydro.com



“... the competitive positions of the suppliers would be eroded if the prices charged ...
were disclosed. The Board accepts this position.”, and, that “the Board finds that it is in
the public interest that the prices charged to the applicants, including unit prices,
installation costs, and the contractual terms, be kept confidential. However, the

aggregated per unit installed prices will be part of the Decisions”.

Pursuant to the OEB’s Practice Direction on Confidential Filings (the “Practice Direction”), two
copies of this confidential item is being filed separately from the Application, in a sealed
envelope. They are not to be placed on the public record.

Should you require any further information or clarification, please contact myself, or Ross
McMillan, President and CEQ at 519-537-7172 ext 230. or via email at
rossmem@woodstockhydro.com

Respectfully Submitted,

foted

Patricia Eitel CGA

Manager of Accounting and Regulatory Affairs
Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.

519-537-7172 ext 230
peitel@woodstockhydro.com
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IN THE MATTER OF the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, being
Schedule B to the Energy Competition Act, 1998, S.0. 1998,

c.15;

AND IN THE MATTER OF an Application by Woodstock Hydro
Services Inc. to the Ontario Energy Board for an Order or
Orders approving or fixing just and reasonable rates and other
service charges for the distribution of electricity as of May 1,

2011.

Title of Proceeding:

Applicant’s Name:

Applicant’s Address for Service:

Applicant’s Counsel:

An application by Woodstock Hydro Services Inc. for an
Order or Orders approving or fixing just and reasonable
distribution rates and other charges, effective May 1,

2011.

Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.

Box 1598

16 Graham Street

Woodstock, Ontario N4S 0A8

Attention Ross McMillan, President and CEO
Telephone: (519)-537-3488

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP
Suite 4100

40 King Street West
Toronto ON

M5H 3Y4

James C. Sidlofsky

Telephone: (416) 367-6277

Fax: (416) 361-2751

E-mail jsidlofsky@blgcanada.com
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APPLICATION

Introduction

The Applicant is Woodstock Hydro Services Inc. (referred to in this Application as the
“Applicant” or “WHSI”). The Applicant is a corporation incorporated pursuant to
the Ontario Business Corporations Act with its head office in the City of
Woodstock. The Applicant carries on the business of distributing electricity

within the City of Woodstock.

The Applicant hereby applies to the Ontario Energy Board (the “OEB”) pursuant to
Section 78 of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998 (the “OEB Act”) for approval of
its revenue requirement and proposed distribution rates and other charges,
effective May 1, 2011. A list of requested approvals is set out in Exhibit 1, Tab 1,

Schedule 5 of this application.

Except where specifically identified in the Application, the Applicant followed Chapter 2
of the OEB’s Filing Requirements for Transmission and Distribution Applications
updated June 28, 2010 (the “Filing Requirements”) in order to prepare this

application.

Proposed Distribution Rates and Other Charges

(a) The Schedule of Rates and Charges proposed in this Application is identified in
Appendix A attached to this application and Exhibit 8, Tab 8, and Schedule 3,
and the material being filed in support of this Application sets out WHSI’s

approach to its distribution rates and charges.
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Proposed Effective Date of Rate Order

(a)

The Applicant requests that the OEB make its Rate Order effective May 1, 2011

in accordance with the Filing Requirements.

The Proposed Distribution Rates and Other Charges are Just and Reasonable

(a)

WHSI submits the proposed distribution rates contained in this Application are

just and reasonable on the following grounds:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

the proposed rates for the distribution of electricity have been prepared
in accordance with the Filing Requirements and reflect traditional rate

making and cost of service principles;

the proposed adjusted rates are necessary to meet the Applicant’s
Market Based Rate of Return (“MBRR”) and Payments in Lieu of Taxes

(“PILs”) requirements;

there are no impacts to any of the customer classes or consumption level
subgroups that are so significant as to warrant the deferral of any
adjustments being requested by the Applicant or the implementation of

any other mitigation measures;

the other service charges proposed by the Applicant are the same as
those previously approved by the OEB with the exception of the
Notification Charge, the Disconnect/Reconnect at Meter — After Regular
Hours Charge, and the Install/Remove Load Control Device — After

Regular Hours Charge;

such other grounds as may be set out in the material accompanying this

Application Summary.
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Relief Sought

The Applicant applies for an Order or Orders approving the proposed distribution rates
and other charges set out in Exhibit 1, Tab 1, and Schedule 5, Appendix A to this
Application as just and reasonable rates and charges pursuant to Section 78 of

the OEB Act, to be effective May 1, 2011, or as soon as possible thereafter; and

The Applicant requests that the existing rates be made interim commencing May 1,
2011 in the event that there is insufficient time for WHSI to prepare a draft rate
order and the Board to issue a final Decision and Order in this application for the

implementation of the proposed rates and charges as of May 1, 2011.

Form of Hearing Requested

The Applicant requests that this Application be disposed of by way of a written hearing.

DATED at Woodstock, Ontario, this 28th day of October 2010.

All of which is respectfully submitted,

WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INCORPORATED

Ross McMillan B.A., CM.A,, F.C.I
President and CE
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CONTACT INFORMATION:

WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC:
16 GRAHAM STREET

PO BOX 1598

WOODSTOCK, ONTARIO N4S 0A8

PRESIDENT and CEO

Ross McMillan B.A., CM.A,, F.C.I
Telephone: 519-537-7172 Ext. 230
Facsimile :519-537-5081

Email : rossmcm@woodstockhydro.com

MANAGER, ACCOUNTING AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS
Patricia Eitel CGA

Telephone : 519-537-7172 Ext. 240

Facsimile :519-537-5081

Email : peitel@woodstockhydro.com

Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.
EB-2010-0145

Exhibit 1
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SPECIFIC APPROVALS REQUESTED:

In this proceeding, WHSI is requesting the following approvals:

>

Approval to charge rates effective May 1, 2011 to recover a revenue requirement of
$8,232,474 which includes a revenue deficiency before tax of $1,756,617 as set out in
Exhibit 1, Tab 2, Schedule 4 and Exhibit 6, Tab 1, Schedule 1. The schedule of proposed
rates to support this revenue requirement is set out in Exhibit 1, Tab 1, Schedule 5

Appendix A and Exhibit 8 Tab 8 Schedule 3;

Approval of the Applicant’s proposed change in capital structure to decrease the
Applicant’s deemed common equity component from 43.3% to 40.0% and increase the
deemed debt component from 56.7% to a combination of 56% long term debt plus 4%
unfunded short term debt, as set out in Exhibit 5, Tab 1, Schedule 2, and consistent with
Report of the Board on Cost of Capital and 2nd Generation Incentive Regulation for

Ontario’s Electricity Distributors dated December 20, 2006;

Approval to remove the current approved Large Use Customer rate class and to sub-
divide the current General Service >50 kW rate class into two separate rate classes,
namely, a General Service >50 — 999 kW rate class, and a General Service > 1000 kW

rate class, as set out in Exhibit 8, Tab 1, Schedule 2.

Approval to remove the current approved Embedded Rate Class and Low Voltage

Wheeling Charge rate, as set out in Exhibit 8, Tab 3, Schedule 1;

Approval to adjust the current Retail Transmission Service Rate — Network, and the
Retail Transmission Service Rate — Connection for all current and proposed classes as

set out in Exhibit 8, Tab 4, Schedule 1;

Approval of the proposed loss factor as set out in Exhibit 8, Tab 5, Schedule 1;
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Approval of the proposed Lost Revenue Adjustment Mechanism (LRAM) and Shared
Service Mechanism (SSM) rate riders as set out in Exhibit 8, Tab 6, Schedule 1 and
based on the OEB Report EB-2007-0037 — Guidelines for Electricity Distributor
Conservation and Demand Management, issued March 28, 2008. This rate rider is

proposed for a three year recovery period.

Approval to continue to charge Retail Wholesale Market and Rural Rate Protection
Charges approved in the OEB Decision and Order in the matter of WHSI’s 2010
Distribution Rates (EB-2009-0211) subject to the Guideline Electricity Distribution Retail
Transmission Service (G-2008-0001) issued October 22, 2008, Revision 1.0 issued July
22,2010, and;

Any modifications as a result of the OEB’s decision on Hydro One Networks’ 2011
Uniform Transmission Rate Adjustment Application (OEB File EB-2008-072) effective July
1, 2010;

Approval to continue to charge the Transformer Allowance rate approved in the OEB

Decision and Order in the matter of WHSI’s 2010 Distribution Rates (EB-2009-0211);

Approval of the proposed changes to certain Specific Service Charges as set out in
Exhibit 8, Tab 7, Schedule 1, namely to charge the OEB standardized rates for the
Notification Charge, Collection of Account — No Disconnection charge, the
Disconnect/Reconnect at Meter — After Hours and During Regular Hours charges, and
the Install/Remove Load Control Device — After Hours charges; to remove the Prepaid
Meter Monthly Service Charge, and to continue the remaining approved Specific
Service Charges in the OEB Decision and Order in the matter of WHSI’s 2010
Distribution Rates (EB-2009-0211);
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Approval to add certain Specific Service Charges to WHSI’s Schedule of Rates, as set out
in Exhibit 8, Tab 7, Schedule 1, namely, to add the Statement of Account charge, the

Account History charge and the Special Meter Read charge.

Approval to amend to the 2010 Approved Rate Rider for Deferral/Variance Account
Disposition (2010) to exclude the 1588 Power - Global Adjustment sub-account balance,
approval add a separate Non-RPP Customer Rate Rider for the recovery of 1588 Global
Adjustment sub-account balances to December 31, 2008; and approval to maintain the
original 4-year disposition period as approved in the EB-2009-0211 for both rate riders
and the sunset date of April 30, 2014.; as set out in Exhibit 9. Tab 1, Schedule 2.

Approval of the proposed Smart Meter Recovery Rate Rider as set out in Exhibit 9, Tab
4, and based on the OEB’s Guideline G-2008-00037 — Smart Meter Funding and Cost

Recovery, issued October 2, 2008.

Approval to amend the current Smart Meter Rate Adder as set out in Exhibit 9, Tab 4,
and based on the OEB’s Guideline G-2008-00037 — Smart Meter Funding and Cost

Recovery, issued October 2, 2008.

Approval of Smart Meter capital and operating costs to December 31, 2009, as set out in

Exhibit 9, Tab 4;

Approval to dispose of the Deferral and Variance Account Balance for Account 1588
Power — Sub account Global Adjustment as at April 30, 2011 as a separate rate rider,

over a one-year period using the methods of recovery described in Exhibit 9, Tab 3;

Approval to dispose of the following Deferral and Variance Account Balances as at April
30, 2011 over a one-year period using the methods of recovery described in Exhibit 9,

Tab 3:
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1508 Other Regulatory Assets - Sub-account OEB Cost Assessments

1508 Other Regulatory Assets — Sub-account Pension Contributions

1580 Wholesale Market Service Charges Variance
1584 Transmission Network Variance

1586 Transmission Connection Variance

1588 Power (Excluding Global Adjustment)

1590 Regulatory Asset Recovery

Approval to establish a deferral account for recovery of late payment penalty litigation
costs pertaining to the Municipal Electrical Utilities Late Payment Class Action

proceeding

Approval to establish deferral account to record costs for the Ontario Smart Metering

System Meter Data Management and Repository (MDM/R)

Approval to continue the Deferral Account 1508, IFRS Transition Costs
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Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.

PROPOSED TARIFF OF RATES AND CHARGES

Effective Date May 1, 2011

RESIDENTIAL SERVICE CLASSIFICATION

This classification applies to an account taking electricity at 750 volts or less where the electricity is used exclusively in a separate
metered living accommodation. Customers shall be residing in single-dwelling units that consist of a detached house or one unit of a
semi-detached, duplex, triplex or quadruplex house, with a residential zoning. Separately metered dwellings within a town house
complex or apartment building also qualify as residential customers. Further servicing details are available in the distributor’s
Conditions of Service.

APPLICATION

The application of these rates and charges shall be in accordance with the Licence of the Distributor and any Code or Order of the
Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, which may be applicable to the administration of this schedule.

No rates and charges for the distribution of electricity and charges to meet the costs of any work or service done or furnished for the
purpose of the distribution of electricity shall be made except as permitted by this schedule, unless required by the Distributor’s
Licence or a Code or Order of the Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, or as specified herein.

Unless specifically noted, this schedule does not contain any charges for the electricity commodity, be it under the Regulated Price
Plan, a contract with a retailer or the wholesale market price, as applicable.

It should be noted that this schedule does not list any charges or assessments that are required by law to be charged by a

distributor and that are not subject to Board approval, such as the Debt Retirement Charge, charges for Ministry of Energy and
Infrastructure Conservation and Renewable Energy Program, the Provincial Benefit and any applicable taxes.

MONTHLY RATES AND CHARGES

Service Charge $ 13.74
Smart Meter Adder $ 0.47
Smart Meter Rate Rider $ 1.20
Distribution Volumetric Rate $/kWh 0.0235
Distribution Volumetric Deferral Account Rate Rider(2010) — effective until April 30, 2014 $/kWh (0.0014)
Distribution Volumetric Deferral Account Rate Rider(2011) — effective until April 30, 2012 $/kWh 0.0008
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider (2010)- effective until April 30, 2014 $/kwh 0.0004
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider (2011)- effective until April 30, 2012 $/kWh 0.0001
LRAM/SSM Rate Rider — effective until April 30, 2014 $/kWh 0.0010
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate $/kWh 0.0058
Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate $/kWh 0.0049
Wholesale Market Service Rate $/kwh 0.0052
Rural Rate Protection Charge $/kwWh 0.0013

Standard Supply Service — Administrative Charge (if applicable) $ 0.25



Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.

PROPOSED TARIFF OF RATES AND CHARGES

Effective Date May 1, 2011

GENERAL SERVICE LESS THAN 50 kW SERVICE CLASSIFICATION

This classification applies to a non residential account taking electricity at 750 volts or less whose average monthly maximum
demand is less than, or is forecast to be less than, 50 kW. Further servicing details are available in the distributor's Conditions of
Service.

APPLICATION

The application of these rates and charges shall be in accordance with the Licence of the Distributor and any Code or Order of the
Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, which may be applicable to the administration of this schedule.

No rates and charges for the distribution of electricity and charges to meet the costs of any work or service done or furnished for the
purpose of the distribution of electricity shall be made except as permitted by this schedule, unless required by the Distributor’s
Licence or a Code or Order of the Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, or as specified herein.

Unless specifically noted, this schedule does not contain any charges for the electricity commodity, be it under the Regulated Price
Plan, a contract with a retailer or the wholesale market price, as applicable.

It should be noted that this schedule does not list any charges or assessments that are required by law to be charged by a

distributor and that are not subject to Board approval, such as the Debt Retirement Charge, charges for Ministry of Energy and
Infrastructure Conservation and Renewable Energy Program, the Provincial Benefit and any applicable taxes.

MONTHLY RATES AND CHARGES

Service Charge $ 28.42

Smart Meter Adder $ 0.47

Smart Meter Rate Rider $ 1.20

Distribution Volumetric Rate $/kwh 0.0163
Distribution Volumetric Deferral Account Rate Rider(2010) — effective until April 30, 2014 $/kwh (0.0014)
Distribution Volumetric Deferral Account Rate Rider(2011) — effective until April 30, 2012 $/kWh 0.0002
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider (2010)- effective until April 30, 2014 $/kWh 0.0004
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider (2011)- effective until April 30, 2012 $/kWh 0.0001
LRAM/SSM Rate Rider — effective until April 30, 2014 $/kWh 0.0003
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate $/kwWh 0.0050
Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate $/kWh 0.0042
Wholesale Market Service Rate $/kwh 0.0052
Rural Rate Protection Charge $/kWh 0.0013

Standard Supply Service — Administrative Charge (if applicable) $ 0.25



Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.

PROPOSED TARIFF OF RATES AND CHARGES

Effective Date May 1, 2011

GENERAL SERVICE 50 to 999 kW SERVICE CLASSIFICATION

This classification applies to a non residential account whose average monthly maximum demand used for billing purposes is equal
to or greater than, or is forecast to be equal to or greater than, 50 kW but less than 1,000 kW. Further servicing details are
available in the distributor's Conditions of Service.

APPLICATION

The application of these rates and charges shall be in accordance with the Licence of the Distributor and any Code or Order of the
Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, which may be applicable to the administration of this schedule.

No rates and charges for the distribution of electricity and charges to meet the costs of any work or service done or furnished for the
purpose of the distribution of electricity shall be made except as permitted by this schedule, unless required by the Distributor’s
Licence or a Code or Order of the Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, or as specified herein.

Unless specifically noted, this schedule does not contain any charges for the electricity commaodity, be it under the Regulated Price
Plan, a contract with a retailer or the wholesale market price, as applicable.

It should be noted that this schedule does not list any charges or assessments that are required by law to be charged by a

distributor and that are not subject to Board approval, such as the Debt Retirement Charge, charges for Ministry of Energy and
Infrastructure Conservation and Renewable Energy Program, the Provincial Benefit and any applicable taxes.

MONTHLY RATES AND CHARGES

Service Charge $ 360.69
Smart Meter Adder $ 0.47
Smart Meter Rate Rider $ 1.20
Distribution Volumetric Rate $kwW 2.1129
Distribution Volumetric Deferral Account Rate Rider(2010) — effective until April 30, 2014 $kwW (0.5422)
Distribution Volumetric Deferral Account Rate Rider(2011) — effective until April 30, 2012 $kW (0.0487)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider (2010)- effective until April 30, 2014 $/kW 0.1471
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider (2011)- effective until April 30, 2012 $kW 0.0301
LRAM/SSM Rate Rider — effective until April 30, 2014 $/kW 0.0863
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate $/kW 1.5790
Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate $/kW 1.3255
Wholesale Market Service Rate $/kWh 0.0052
Rural Rate Protection Charge $/kWh 0.0013

Standard Supply Service — Administrative Charge (if applicable) $ 0.25



Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.

PROPOSED TARIFF OF RATES AND CHARGES

Effective Date May 1, 2011

GENERAL SERVICE GREATER THAN 1,000 kW SERVICE
CLASSIFICATION

This classification applies to a non residential account whose average monthly maximum demand used for billing purposes is equal
to or greater than, or is forecast to be equal to or greater than 1,000 kW. Further servicing details are available in the distributor’s
Conditions of Service.

APPLICATION

The application of these rates and charges shall be in accordance with the Licence of the Distributor and any Code or Order of the
Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, which may be applicable to the administration of this schedule.

No rates and charges for the distribution of electricity and charges to meet the costs of any work or service done or furnished for the
purpose of the distribution of electricity shall be made except as permitted by this schedule, unless required by the Distributor’s
Licence or a Code or Order of the Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, or as specified herein.

Unless specifically noted, this schedule does not contain any charges for the electricity commodity, be it under the Regulated Price
Plan, a contract with a retailer or the wholesale market price, as applicable.

It should be noted that this schedule does not list any charges or assessments that are required by law to be charged by a

distributor and that are not subject to Board approval, such as the Debt Retirement Charge, charges for Ministry of Energy and
Infrastructure Conservation and Renewable Energy Program, the Provincial Benefit and any applicable taxes.

MONTHLY RATES AND CHARGES

Service Charge $ 2,335.85

Smart Meter Adder $ 0.47

Smart Meter Rate Rider $ 1.20

Distribution Volumetric Rate $/kW 1.4400
Distribution Volumetric Deferral Account Rate Rider(2010) — effective until April 30, 2014 $/kW (0.6522)
Distribution Volumetric Deferral Account Rate Rider(2011) — effective until April 30, 2012 $/kW (0.2040)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider (2010)- effective until April 30, 2014 $kwW 0.1771
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider (2011)- effective until April 30, 2012 $/kW 0.0499
LRAM/SSM Rate Rider — effective until April 30, 2014 $/kwW 0.0863
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate $/kW 2.7585
Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate $/kW 2.3156
Wholesale Market Service Rate $/kWh 0.0052
Rural Rate Protection Charge $/kWh 0.0013

Standard Supply Service — Administrative Charge (if applicable) $ 0.25



Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.

PROPOSED TARIFF OF RATES AND CHARGES

Effective Date May 1, 2011

UNMETERED SCATTERED LOAD SERVICE CLASSIFICATION

This classification applies to an account taking electricity at 750 volts or less whose average monthly maximum demand is less than,
or is forecast to be less than, 50 kW and the consumption is unmetered. Such connections include cable TV power packs, bus
shelters, telephone booths, traffic lights, railway crossings, etc. The level of the consumption will be agreed to by the distributor and
the customer, based on detailed manufacturer information/ documentation with regard to electrical consumption of the unmetered
load or periodic monitoring of actual consumption. Further servicing details are available in the distributor’'s Conditions of Service.

APPLICATION

The application of these rates and charges shall be in accordance with the Licence of the Distributor and any Code or Order of the
Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, which may be applicable to the administration of this schedule.

No rates and charges for the distribution of electricity and charges to meet the costs of any work or service done or furnished for the
purpose of the distribution of electricity shall be made except as permitted by this schedule, unless required by the Distributor’s
Licence or a Code or Order of the Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, or as specified herein.

Unless specifically noted, this schedule does not contain any charges for the electricity commaodity, be it under the Regulated Price
Plan, a contract with a retailer or the wholesale market price, as applicable.

It should be noted that this schedule does not list any charges or assessments that are required by law to be charged by a

distributor and that are not subject to Board approval, such as the Debt Retirement Charge, charges for Ministry of Energy and
Infrastructure Conservation and Renewable Energy Program, the Provincial Benefit and any applicable taxes.

MONTHLY RATES AND CHARGES

Service Charge $ 13.27
Distribution Volumetric Rate $/kwh 0.0152
Distribution Volumetric Deferral Account Rate Rider(2010) — effective until April 30, 2014 $/kwh (0.0014)
Distribution Volumetric Deferral Account Rate Rider(2011) — effective until April 30, 2012 $/kWh 0.0002
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider (2010)- effective until April 30, 2014 $/kWh 0.0004
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider (2011)- effective until April 30, 2012 $/kwh 0.0001
LRAM/SSM Rate Rider — effective until April 30, 2014 $/kWh 0.0122
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate $/kwh 0.0039
Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate $/kWh 0.0033
Wholesale Market Service Rate $/kWh 0.0052
Rural Rate Protection Charge $/kWh 0.0013

Standard Supply Service — Administrative Charge (if applicable) $ 0.25



Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.

PROPOSED TARIFF OF RATES AND CHARGES

Effective Date May 1, 2011

STREET LIGHTING SERVICE CLASSIFICATION

This classification applies to an account for roadway lighting with a Municipality, Regional Municipality, Ministry of Transportation
and private roadway lighting, controlled by photo cells. The consumption for these customers will be based on the calculated
connected load times the required lighting times established in the approved OEB street lighting load shape template. Further
servicing details are available in the distributor’'s Conditions of Service.

APPLICATION

The application of these rates and charges shall be in accordance with the Licence of the Distributor and any Code or Order of the
Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, which may be applicable to the administration of this schedule.

No rates and charges for the distribution of electricity and charges to meet the costs of any work or service done or furnished for the
purpose of the distribution of electricity shall be made except as permitted by this schedule, unless required by the Distributor’s
Licence or a Code or Order of the Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, or as specified herein.

Unless specifically noted, this schedule does not contain any charges for the electricity commaodity, be it under the Regulated Price
Plan, a contract with a retailer or the wholesale market price, as applicable.

It should be noted that this schedule does not list any charges or assessments that are required by law to be charged by a

distributor and that are not subject to Board approval, such as the Debt Retirement Charge, charges for Ministry of Energy and
Infrastructure Conservation and Renewable Energy Program, the Provincial Benefit and any applicable taxes.

MONTHLY RATES AND CHARGES

Service Charge (per connection) $ 2.20

Distribution Volumetric Rate $/kwW 8.8266
Distribution Volumetric Deferral Account Rate Rider(2010) — effective until April 30, 2014 $/KW (0.5227)
Distribution Volumetric Deferral Account Rate Rider(2011) — effective until April 30, 2012 $/kwW 0.1658
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider (2010)- effective until April 30, 2014 $/kwW 0.1417
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider (2011)- effective until April 30, 2012 $/kW 0.0416
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate $kwW 1.1496
Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate $kwW 0.9650
Wholesale Market Service Rate $/kwh 0.0052
Rural Rate Protection Charge $/kWh 0.0013

Standard Supply Service — Administrative Charge (if applicable) $ 0.25



Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.

PROPOSED TARIFF OF RATES AND CHARGES

Effective Date May 1, 2011

microFIT GENERATOR SERVICE CLASSIFICATION

This classification applies to an electricity generation facility contracted under the Ontario Power Authority’s microFIT program and
connected to the distributor’s distribution system. Further servicing details are available in the distributor's Conditions of Service.

APPLICATION

The application of these rates and charges shall be in accordance with the Licence of the Distributor and any Code or Order of the
Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, which may be applicable to the administration of this schedule.

No rates and charges for the distribution of electricity and charges to meet the costs of any work or service done or furnished for the
purpose of the distribution of electricity shall be made except as permitted by this schedule, unless required by the Distributor’s
Licence or a Code or Order of the Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, or as specified herein.

Unless specifically noted, this schedule does not contain any charges for the electricity commaodity, be it under the Regulated Price
Plan, a contract with a retailer or the wholesale market price, as applicable.

It should be noted that this schedule does not list any charges or assessments that are required by law to be charged by a
distributor and that are not subject to Board approval, such as the Debt Retirement Charge, charges for Ministry of Energy and
Infrastructure Conservation and Renewable Energy Program, the Provincial Benefit and any applicable taxes.

MONTHLY RATES AND CHARGES

Service Charge S 5.25



Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.

PROPOSED TARIFF OF RATES AND CHARGES

Effective Date May 1, 2011

SPECIFIC SERVICE CHARGES

APPLICATION

The application of these rates and charges shall be in accordance with the Licence of the Distributor and any Code or Order of the
Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, which may be applicable to the administration of this schedule.

No charges to meet the costs of any work or service done or furnished for the purpose of the distribution of electricity shall be made
except as permitted by this schedule, unless required by the Distributor’s Licence or a Code or Order of the Board, and
amendments thereto as approved by the Board, or as specified herein.

It should be noted that this schedule does not list any charges or assessments that are required by law to be charged by a
distributor and that are not subject to Board approval, such as the Debt Retirement Charge, charges for Ministry of Energy and
Infrastructure Conservation and Renewable Energy Program, the Provincial Benefit and any applicable taxes.

Customer Administration

Legal letter charge $ 15.00
Statement of account $ 15.00
Account history $ 15.00
Notification Charge $ 15.00
Returned Cheque charge (plus bank charges) $ 15.00
Account set up charge / change of occupancy charge (plus credit agency costs if applicable)$ 30.00

Non-Payment of Account

Late Payment - per month % 1.50
Late Payment - per annum % 19.56
Collection of account charge — no disconnection $ 30.00
Disconnect/Reconnect at meter — during regular hours $ 65.00
Install/Remove load control device — during regular hours $ 65.00
Disconnect/Reconnect at meter — after regular hours $ 185.00
Install/lRemove load control device — after regular hours $ 185.00
Other
Special meter reads $ 30.00
Meter dispute charge plus Measurement Canada fees (if meter found correct) $ 30.00
Specific Charge for Access to the Power Poles — per pole/year $ 22.35
ALLOWANCES
Transformer Allowance for Ownership - per kW of billing demand/month $ (0.60)

Primary Metering Allowance for transformer losses — applied to measured demand and energy % (1.00)



Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.

PROPOSED TARIFF OF RATES AND CHARGES

Effective Date May 1, 2011
RETAIL SERVICE CHARGES (if applicable)

APPLICATION

The application of these rates and charges shall be in accordance with the Licence of the Distributor and any Code or Order of the
Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, which may be applicable to the administration of this schedule.

No rates and charges for the distribution of electricity and charges to meet the costs of any work or service done or furnished for the
purpose of the distribution of electricity shall be made except as permitted by this schedule, unless required by the Distributor’s
Licence or a Code or Order of the Board, and amendments thereto as approved by the Board, or as specified herein.

Unless specifically noted, this schedule does not contain any charges for the electricity commodity, be it under the Regulated Price
Plan, a contract with a retailer or the wholesale market price, as applicable.

It should be noted that this schedule does not list any charges or assessments that are required by law to be charged by a
distributor and that are not subject to Board approval, such as the Debt Retirement Charge, charges for Ministry of Energy and
Infrastructure Conservation and Renewable Energy Program, the Provincial Benefit and any applicable taxes.

Retail Service Charges refer to services provided by a distributor to retailers or customers related
to the supply of competitive electricity

One-time charge, per retailer, to establish the service agreement between the distributor and the retailer $ 100.00
Monthly Fixed Charge, per retailer $ 20.00
Monthly Variable Charge, per customer, per retailer $/cust. 0.50
Distributor-consolidated billing charge, per customer, per retailer $/cust. 0.30
Retailer-consolidated billing credit, per customer, per retailer $/cust. (0.30)
Service Transaction Requests (STR)

Request fee, per request, applied to the requesting party $ 0.25

Processing fee, per request, applied to the requesting party $ 0.50

Request for customer information as outlined in Section 10.6.3 and Chapter 11 of the Retail

Settlement Code directly to retailers and customers, if not delivered electronically through the

Electronic Business Transaction (EBT) system, applied to the requesting party
Up to twice a year no charge
More than twice a year, per request (plus incremental delivery costs) $ 2.00

LOSS FACTORS

If the distributor is not capable of prorating changed loss factors jointly with distribution rates, the revised loss factors will be implemented upon
the first subsequent billing for each billing cycle.

Total Loss Factor — Secondary Metered Customer < 5,000 kW 1.0431
Total Loss Factor — Secondary Metered Customer > 5,000 kW 1.0145
Total Loss Factor — Primary Metered Customer < 5,000 kW 1.0326

Total Loss Factor — Primary Metered Customer > 5,000 kW 1.0044
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DRAFT ISSUES LIST:

The Applicant would expect, based on previous regulatory experience and other hearings, that

the following matters pertaining to the 2011 Test Year may constitute issues in this Application:

YV Vv VvV YV VY V¥V VYV VY

v

The amount of WHSI’s proposed revenue requirement;

The reasonableness of the 2011 capital program;

The reasonableness of the 2011 operating, maintenance, and administrative budget;

The reasonableness of the 2011 weather normalized forecast;

The reasonableness of the proposed smart meter rate recovery rider;

The reasonableness of the proposed smart meter rate adder;

The reasonableness of the proposed lost revenue adjustment mechanism;

The reasonableness of the proposed regulatory asset recoveries;

The reasonableness of the proposed cost allocation-related adjustments to class-specific
revenue requirements

The reasonableness of the proposed rate design, namely the addition and removal of
certain rate classes

The reasonableness of the proposed distribution rates
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PROCEDURAL ORDERS/MOTIONS/NOTICES:

On March 12, 2007, the OEB issued a Report titled “LDC Screening Methodology to Establish a
Rebasing Schedule for Electricity LDC’s”. The purpose of that Report was “to describe the
criteria to be considered in determining which electricity distributors to engage in proceedings
before the Board for rebasing to establish rates for each of the years 2008, 2009 and 2010” and
to establish the next steps and timelines for filing. Section 3.3 of the Report provided an

opportunity for LDC’s to “self-nominate” to be rebased in a particular year.

On January 30, 2008, the OEB issued its Final Selection of Electricity Distributors for Rebasing in
2009 and 2010 (Board File No. EB-2006-0330). WHSI was included on Appendix B — Selection of

Electricity Distributors for Rate Rebasing in 2010.

On January 29, 2009, the OEB issued a letter to all electricity distributors extending the number
of years for rebasing to include the 2011 rate year (Board File No. EB-2009-0028). WHSI was
included on Schedule B, Selection of Electricity Distributors for Rate Rebasing in 2011. This
change was confirmed in the OEB’s March 5, 2009 letter whereby WHSI was identified in

Appendix B as an Electricity Distributor scheduled for Rate Rebasing in 2011.

On April 20, 2010 the OEB issued a letter to all electricity distributors to address the issue of
filing rate applications through a cost of service proceeding earlier than scheduled. Asindicated
on Appendix A, WHSI continues to remain on the list of Electricity Distributors scheduled for

Rate Rebasing in 2011.

No further Procedural Orders of directions have been issued by the OEB to the date of filing this

application.
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ACCOUNTING ORDERS REQUESTED:

WHSI is not requesting Accounting Orders in this proceeding.
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COMPLIANCE WITH UNIFORM SYSTEM OF ACCOUNTS:

WHSI has followed the accounting principles and main categories of accounts as stated in the
OEB’s Accounting Procedures Handbook (the “APH”) and the Uniform System of Accounts

(“USoA”) in the preparation of this Application.
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DISTRIBUTION SERVICE TERRITORY AND DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM:

Description of Distributor:

Community Served: City of Woodstock
Total Service Area: 29 sq km

Rural Service Area: 0sq km

Distribution Type: Electricity Distribution
Service area population: 35,000

Municipal population: 36,000

WHSI owns and operates the electricity distribution system in its licensed service area within
the City of Woodstock, serving approximately 15,000 Residential, General Service, Street Light,

and Unmetered Scattered Load customers/connections.

WHSI’s supply for the City of Woodstock is supplied through the Hydro One transmission
system at 115 Kv, stepping down to distribution voltages of 27.6/16 Kv. Electricity is then
distributed through WHSI’s service area of 29 square kilometres, over 91 kilometres of
underground cable and 154 kilometres of overhead conductor. WHSI delivers electricity via
both 27.6 kv and 4.16 kv distribution voltages, stepping 27.6 kv down through 7 WHSI owned
distribution stations. Secondary service voltages include 120/240v single phase, 120/208v
network, 347/600 volt, 240 volt three phase and 600 volt delta via 1,618 WHSI owned
transformers and 72 customer owned transformers. WHSI provides transformation equipment

up to 750 kva.

WHSI operates the distribution system through a SCADA system, with telemetry and control in

place for 7 Municipal Substations and 5 automated load-break switches. WHSI interfaces with
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Hydro One Control center in Barrie Ontario through ICCP protocol with monitoring and some

control of the Hydro One owned station equipment.

A map of WHSI’s Distribution Service Territory is attached as Appendix B.

A schematic diagram of WHSI’s 4 KV distribution system is attached as Appendix C.

A schematic diagram of WHSI’s 28 KV distribution system is attached as Appendix D.
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APPENDIX B
MAP OF DISTRIBUTION SERVICE TERRITORY






APPENDIX C
MAP OF 4kV DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM
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LIST OF NEIGHBOURING UTILITIES:

WHSI is bounded by: Hydro One Networks Inc.
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EXPLANATION OF HOST AND EMBEDDED UTILITIES:

There are no embedded utilities within WHSI’s distribution service territory nor is WHSI a host

utility to other distributors.

Prior to deregulation and the incorporation of the respective LDC’s, Woodstock Hydro supplied
power to Ontario Hydro through the Woodstock M6 feeder. At that time, this load attracted
wheeling charges. However Ontario Hydro was not considered embedded. At market opening
and following the IESO registration of metering points, the PME metering unit owned by Hydro
One, registered by IESO was netted out of Woodstock Hydro load through the settlement
process. In 2004, Hydro One was required to de-register the PME as a metering unit and
requested customer account status as a GS>50 account, to be supplied and invoiced by WHSI

pending the rebuild of a Hydro One owned 27 KV circuit to supply the Woodstock East DS.



Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.
EB-2010-0145

Exhibit 1

Tab1

Schedule 12

Page 1 of 1

Filed: October 28, 2010

UTILITY ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.

ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Chair - 1
Directors - 2

PRESIDENT & CEO
il

MANAGER OF MANAGER OF ACCOUNTING & MANAGER OF

OPERATIONS REGULATORY AFFAIRS INTERMAL SERVICES
1 7 1
LINE SUPERVISOR BILLING SUPERVISOR
1 1
LEAD METER LEAD HAND LINE ENGINEERING MAINTENANCE BILLING REPRESENTATIVE ACCOUNTANT DATA COORDINATOR
TECHNICIAN JOURNEYPERSON TECHNOLOGIST TECHNICIAN 2 (Audit) 1
1 1 2 JOURNEYPERSON 1
METER LINE 1 ACCOUNTANT IT hN}: LYST
TECHNICIAN JOURNEYPERSON MATERIAL (General) -
2 6 COORDINATOR 1
APPRENTICE LINE e ACCOUNTING ASSISTANT
JOURNEYPERSON OPERATIONS 1
2 COORDINATOR CASHIER — CUSTOMER
ELECTRIC UTILITY 1 SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE
PERSON 1

% COLLECTIONS — CUSTOMER
SERVICE REFRESENTATIVE

RECEPTIONIST - CUSTOMER
SERVICE REFRESENTATIVE
7
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CORPORATE ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE:

WHSI is 100% owned by the City of Woodstock. A chart illustrating WHSI’s corporate structure

is provided below:

CORPORATE ENTITIES RELATIONSHIP CHART

The Corporation of the City of Woodstock

Woodstock Hydro Holdings Inc.
Directors
Daniel McMullen
John Krill

(100% of shares owned by the Corporation of the City of Woodstock)

Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.
Directors
John Krill
Ron Charie
Daniel McMullen

(100% of shares owned by Woodstock Hydro Holdings Inc.)
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1  PLANNED CHANGES IN CORPORATE AND OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE:

2 No changes to WHSI’s corporate and operational structures are planned at the present time.
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STATUS OF BOARD DIRECTIVES FROM PREVIOUS BOARD DECISIONS:

In the Board’s Decision and Order (EB-2009-0211) for WHSI’s 2010 approved distribution rates, the

following two Directives were issued:

HST Directive

“The Board therefore directs that, beginning July 1, 2010, Woodstock Hydro shall record in a deferral
account 1592 (PILS and Tax Variances, Sub-account HST/OVAT Input Tax Credits (ITCs)) the incremental ITC
it receives on distribution revenue requirement items that were previously subject to PST and become
subject to HST. Tracking of these amounts will continue in the deferral account until the effective date of
Woodstock Hydro’s next cost of service rate order. 50% of the confirmed balances in the accounts shall be

returnable to the ratepayers.

The Board may issue more detailed accounting guidance in the future. In that event, the Applicant should

make the appropriate accounting entries, if and as applicable.”

Status:
Woodstock Hydro Services Inc. has established account 1592 (PILS and Tax Variances, Sub-account
HST/OVAT Input Tax Credits (ITCs to track the incremental ITC it receives on distribution revenue

requirement items that were previously subject to PST and become subject to HST.

EDDVAR Directive — Global Adjustment Sub Account

“The Board directs Woodstock Hydro to further investigate and report to the Board in a proceeding no
later than the rebasing proceeding Woodstock Hydro’s projection of the costs that it would incur in order
to accommodate the establishment of a separate rate rider to dispose of the global adjustment sub-

account “
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Status:

As discussed further in Exhibit 9, WHSI’s billing system is now able to support a separate rate rider for
non-RPP customers. WHSI’s CIS provider supports several other Ontario LDC’s and as a result, the CIS
provider developed a standard solution for all of their Ontario clients to accommodate the LDC
requirements. Consequently, the associated programming costs were included under the provisions of
WHSI’s standard maintenance agreement with the CIS provider. Although incremental costs were

incurred internally for labour and miscellaneous expense, they were immaterial.
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PRELIMINARY LIST OF WITNESSES:

While WHSI requests that this Application be disposed of by way of a written hearing, should a
technical conference or an oral hearing be necessary WHSI will provide a list of potential

witnesses as required.
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OVERVIEW

Woodstock Hydro Services Inc. provides the highest quality service to its customers in support of its
mission statement and values. WHSI’s customers have come to expect reliability in everything the Utility
does for them, from keeping the lights on through to customer billing and inquiries. WHSI has long held a
community presence, attending community events, promoting conservation initiatives, and pioneering

prepaid metering.

Our mission statement outlines the organization’s “reason for existence”. It describes with one or two

sentences the greater purpose the organization is aiming to serve - why it exists.

WHS!I’s Mission Statement

“Through partnership with our customers, employees, community and shareholder, we deliver safe and
reliable electricity, innovative energy solutions, superior customer service and sound financial
performance.”

WHSI’s Motto

Keeping Your Future Bright!

WAHSI ISO Registered to ISO 9001-2008 Standard

WHSI is committed to continuous improvement in its performance and processes and in seeking smart
and simple solutions to fulfill its customers needs. Originally registered in 2004 WHSI has made ISO part of
its daily operating mindset. Driven from the top down WHSI’s management systems are improved
continuously. WHSI’s quality system has been implemented as a primary mechanism to deliver the
concepts enshrined in our mission statement, and to maintain and continually improve the quality of

electricity and service to WHSI customers.
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WHSI’s efforts to meet customers expectations are reflected in the results of the 2008 Customer Survey
included as Appendix C of Exhibit 4. The survey results indicated that 93% of WHSI were either Very
Satisfied or Satisfied with WHSI.

In October 2004 WHSI passed its inaugural registration audit to the I1SO 9001 quality-management

standard and continues to be an ISO 9001 registered company today.

In keeping with this vision to pursue health and safety as its top priority, WHSI was recently awarded by
the Electrical & Utilities Safety Association (“E&USA”) the safety Bronze Award pursuit of ZeroQuest which

represents zero injuries and illnesses.

Within its service territory, WHSI has partnered with local agencies and businesses to deliver innovative

conservation and demand management programs, and is described in more detail in this application.

WHSI has consistently exceeded the OEB’s Service Quality Indicators and, as set out in Table 1-1 below,
has targeted to maintain its performance at levels equal to or above the OEB’s standards in 2010 and

2011.



Table 1-1

WHSI’s SERVICE QUALITY INDICATORS
AVERAGE PERFORMANCE FOR 2008 & 2009

Appointments Met - at appointed time

SQl Standard - 90% of the time

2008 Actual 2009 Actual 2010 Target
100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

2011 Target
100.00%

Telephone Accessibility - answered in person within 30 seconds

SQl Standard - 65% of the time

2008 Actual 2009 Actual 2010 Target 2011 Target
99.90% 92.21% 95.00% 100.00%
Underground Cable Locates - within 5 working days
SQl Standard - 90% of the time
2008 Actual 2009 Actual 2010 Target 2011 Target
100.00% 99.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Connection of New Services - within 5 working days
SQl Standard - 90% of the time
2008 Actual 2009 Actual 2010 Target 2011 Target
99.60% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Emergency Response - Urban within 60 minutes and
Rural within 120 minutes
SQl Standard - 90% of the time
2008 Actual 2009 Actual 2010 Target 2011 Target
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Written responses to Inquiries - within 10 working days
SQl Standard - 80% of the time
2008 Actual 2009 Actual 2010 Target 2011 Target
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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Purpose and Need

WHSI is submitting this Application for revised distribution rates effective May 1, 2011, in accordance with
Chapter 2 of the Filing Requirements for Transmission and Distribution Applications, dated June 28, 2010.
This Cost of Service Application is based on projected customer load, expenditures, revenue and

regulatory requirements, and other expectations for the 2011 rate year and beyond.

WHSI’s last rebasing rate application was for the 2006 EDR rate year, which was based on the average
rate base of 2003 and 2004 capital assets, 2004 historical working capital, customer, and expense data,
adjusted for Tier 1 regulatory items. Since 2004, a number of significant changes have transpired in the
industry and within WHSI. Increasing investments for infrastructure in response to customer growth,
demand, safety, reliability, and replacement, coupled with higher operating costs and the evolution of

regulatory and conservation initiatives have stretched WHSI’s resources considerably.

Current rates, if left unchanged, will result in a revenue deficiency and actual Return on Equity in 2010 and
2011 far below levels currently approved by the OEB. Two significant investments, $1.4 million for Smart
Metering Initiatives, and $4.1million for capital contributions towards a new, Hydro One Transmission
Station between 2010 and 2011, in particular, will have had a substantial impact on WHSI’s rate base for

2011.

WHSI has submitted this Application in order to meet its Corporate Mission and Corporate Goals as

outlined below. The proposed distribution rates are required to:

1) Maintain current capital investment levels in infrastructure to ensure a safe, reliable distribution

system.

2) Continue with training programs for staff needed to meet future staffing requirements and

prepare for succession planning.
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3) Manage staffing levels and skills to ensure regulatory compliance, ESA compliance, to provide
superior customer service, promote conservation programs, smart meters and time-of-use pricing,
renewable energy, smart grid, micfoFIT, FIT, and other initiatives resulting from the Green Energy
and Green Economy Act; and, to implement accounting and reporting changes resulting from the

adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards.

4) To provide a reasonable rate of return to the Shareholder.

When forecasted energy and demand levels for 2011 are considered, WHSI estimates that its present
rates will produce a deficiency in gross distribution revenue before taxes of $1,756,617 for the 2011 Test
Year. Should this revenue deficiency continue, WHSI will not be able to sustain the current capital

investment and lineperson training programs required to ensure a safe and reliable distribution system.

Therefore, WHSI seeks the OEB’s approval to revise its electricity distribution rates. The rates proposed to
recover its projected revenue requirement and other relief sought are set out in Exhibit 1, Tab 1, Schedule

5, Appendix A and Exhibit 8, Tab 8, Schedule 3 to this Application.

The information presented in this Application is WHSI’s forecasted results for its 2011 Test Year. WHSI is
also presenting the historical actual information for fiscal 2006, OEB-Approved data for 2006, actual

information for fiscal 2007, 2008, 2009, forecast results for the 2010 Bridge Year.

WHSI’s requested revenue requirement for 2011 in the amount of $8,232,474 includes the recovery of its
costs to provide distribution services, its permitted Return on Equity [“ROE”] and the funds necessary to

service its debt as it transitions to a 60%/40% debt equity ratio in 2011.
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Return on Equity

WHSI has assumed a return on equity of 9.85% consistent with the Cost of Capital Parameter Updates for
2010 Cost of Service Applications issued by the OEB on March 8, 2010. WHSI understands the OEB will be

finalizing the return on equity for 2011 rates based on January 2011 market interest rate information.

Capital Expenditures

WHSI continues to expand and reinforce its distribution system in order to meet the demand of new and
existing customers in its service territory. Expenditures are also being made to meet regulations set out

by both the OEB and IESO including load transfers and primary metering points.

Timing

The financial information supporting the Test Year for this Application will be WHSI’s fiscal year ending
December 31, 2011 (the “2011 Test Year”). However, this information will be used to set rates for the

period May 1, 2011 to April 30, 2012.

Customer Impact

In preparing this application, WHSI has considered the impacts on its customers, with a goal of minimizing
those impacts. With respect to cost allocation, WHSI notes that for the majority of its customers, the
current revenue to cost ratio of each rate class does not fall within the applicable threshold defined by the
OEB in the November 28, 2007, Report on Application of Cost Allocation for Electricity Distributors. WHSI
has updated the Cost Allocation model for the 2011 forecast year, including two new proposed rate
classes, General Service 50kW — 999kW, and General Service >1,000 kW. As a result, adjustments have
been made in this Application to bring all but the Street Light class within the allowed ranges of the

revenue-to-cost ratios. The Street Light class is being increased by approximately 50% of the difference
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between their current levels and the bottom of the OEB’s ranges, and WHSI will further adjust the
revenue-to-cost ratios in 2011 to bring them to the bottom of the approved ranges. Increased allocation
of distribution revenue to cost ratio from these two classes in 2011 will be offset by reductions in
distribution revenue to cost ratio from the Residential class. Although this class is currently within the

targeted revenue-to-cost ratio, the reductions in 2011 will move the revenue-to-cost ratio closer to 100%.

Customer impacts including the percentage average Total Bill Impact and Average Dollar Impact, which
include revised distribution rates [monthly service charge and volumetric rates], revised loss factors,
revised retail transmission service rates, a revised smart meter rate adder, and new or revised rate riders
for smart meters, Lost Revenue Adjustment Mechanism, regulatory asset rate riders to dispose of the
balances in the Deferral and Variance Accounts, and rate riders for non RPP customers to recover the

balances in the Global Adjustment Variance account.

Appendix E provides a bill impact analysis for all proposed rate classes.
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Operating and Maintenance Costs

Based on the OEB’s Comparison of Ontario Electricity Distributors Costs [EB-2006-0268], as updated with
2007 Data issued on June 25, 2010, WHSI’'s OM&A costs per customer fall the mid range in its “Mid Size
Southern Medium-High Undergrounding” cohort. In 2007, the average OM&A cost per customer for the
cohort was $214.00 while WHSI’s cost was $228. Over the 3-year average from 2005 to 2007, WHSI’s cost
was $223.00 while the average for the cohort was $208. Details of the calculations supporting this

analysis are included in Table 1-2 to this Schedule.



Table 1-2

COMPARISON OF WHSI’s
2007 OM&A COSTS TO
“Mid Size Southern Medium-High Undergrounding”

COHORT GROUPING

Comparison of Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.
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OM&A Costs To “Small Southern Medium-High Undergrounding with Rapid Growth”

LDC

Mid-Size Southern Medium-High
Undergrounding

E.L.K. Energy Inc.

Wasaga Distribution Inc.
Chatham-Kent Hydro Inc.
Peterborough Distribution Incorporated
Festival Hydro Inc.

Welland Hydro-Electric System Corp.
Kingston Electricity Distribution Limited
Westario Power Inc.

COLLUS Power Corp.

St. Thomas Energy Inc.

Essex Powerlines Corporation
Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.
Niagara Falls Hydro Inc.

Bluewater Power Distribution Corporation
Erie Thames Powerlines Corporation

Group Average

Cohort Grouping

Average 2007 2006 2005
$155 $182 $171 $113
$157 $159 $159 $152
$162 $164 $161 $162
$181 $192 $186 $166
$182 $185 $189 $171
$183 $209 $162 $178
$189 $182 $181 $204
$203 $196 $205 $206
$211 $225 $220 $187
$216 $214 $229 $205
$221 $206 $222 $236
$223 $228 $223 $218
$247 $255 $245 $240
$261 $256 $270 $258
$329 $356 $308 $324
$208
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SOURCE:

Comparison of Ontario Electricity Distributors Costs [EB-2006-0268], updated with 2007 Data
issued June 25, 2010.
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Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.
, License Number ED-2003-0011, File Number EB-2010-0145

BILL IMPACTS (Monthly Consumptions)

RESIDENTIAL
2010 BILL 2011 BILL IMPACT
Volume RATE CHARGE Volume RATE CHARGE Change Change % of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ %
Consumption Monthly Service Charge 11.10 : e 13.74 2.64 23.78% 44.78%
100 kWh | [pistribution (kwh) 1.90 0.0235 2.35 0.45 23.68% 7.66%
Smart Meter Adder (per month) 0.00 R 047 047 1.53%
Smart Meter Rider (per month) 1.63 s, S narina 1.20 (0.43) -26.38% 3.91%
LRAM & SSM Rider (kWh) 0.00 100 0.0010 0.10 0.10 0.33%
ﬁ(evm’a' and Variance Account Rider (2010) 100 (0.0014) -0.14 100 (0.0014) (0.14) (0.00) 2.14% (0.47%)
Deferral and Variance Account Rider (2011) 100 0.00 100 0.0008 0.08 0.08 0.27%
(kWh)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 100 0.00 100 0.0004 0.04 0.04 0.13%
(2010) (kWh)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider
. .0001 .01 .01 .03%
(2011) (kwWh) 100 0.00 100 0.000: 0.0 0.0 0.03%
Distribution Sub-Total 14.49 17.85 3.36 23.17% 58.17%
Retail Transmisssion (kWh) 104 0.0108 1.13 104 | 0.0107 1.12 (0.01) -1.01% 3.64%
Delivery Sub-Total 15.62 18.96 3.35 21.42% 61.81%
Other Charges (kWh) 104 0.0135 1.41 104 0.0135 1.41 (0.00) -0.09% 4.59%
Cost of Power Commodity Block 1 (kWh) 104 0.0650 6.79 104 0.0650 6.78 (0.01) -0.09% 22.10%
Cost of Power Commodity Block 2 (kWh) 0 0.0750 0.00 0 0.0750 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Commodity & Other 8.20 8.19 -0.01 -0.09% 26.69%
Total Bill Before Taxes 23.81 27.15 3.34 14.02% 88.50%
GST/HST 5.00% 1.19 | 13.00% 3.53 2.34 196.45% 11.50%
Total Bill 25.00 30.68 5.68 22.71% 100.00%
RESIDENTIAL
2010 BILL 2011 BILL IMPACT
E E E E
Volume RAT! CHARG! Volume RAT!I CHARG! Change Change % of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ $ %
Consumption Monthly Service Charge i 11.10 B e 13.74 2.64 23.78% 27.16%
250 kWh Distribution (kWh) 0.0190 4.75 0.0235 5.88 113 23.68% 11.61%
Smart Meter Adder (per month) i 0.00 i 0.47 0.47 0.93%
Smart Meter Rider (per month) 1.63 et Pt Pt 1.20 (0.43) -26.38% 2.37%
LRAM & SSM Rider (kWh) 0.00 250 0.0010 0.25 0.25 0.49%
ie\;;')' al and Variance Account Rider (2010) 250 (0.0014) 035 250 (0.0014) (0.36) (0.01) 2.14% (0.71%)
;Jkizlehr)ral and Variance Account Rider (2011) 250 0.00 250 0.0008 021 021 0.41%
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 250 0.00 250 0.0004 0.10 0.10 0.19%
(2010) (kWh)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 250 0.00 250 0.0001 0.02 0.02 0.04%
(2011) (kWh)
Distribution Sub-Total 17.13 21.50 4.37 25.53% 42.51%
Retail Transmisssion (kWh) 261 0.0108 2.82 261 | 0.0107 2.79 (0.03) -1.01% 5.52%
Delivery Sub-Total 19.95 24.29 4.34 21.78% 48.03%
Other Charges (kWh) 261 0.0135 3.52 261 0.0135 3.52 (0.00) -0.09% 6.96%
Cost of Power Commodity Block 1 (kWh) 261 0.0650 16.97 261 0.0650 16.95 (0.01) -0.09% 33.51%
Cost of Power Commodity Block 2 (kWh) 0 0.0750 0.00 0 0.0750 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Commodity & Other 20.49 20.47 -0.02 -0.09% 40.47%
Total Bill Before Taxes 40.44 44.76 4.33 10.70% 88.50%
GST/HST 5.00% 2.02 | 13.00% 5.82 3.80 187.82% 11.50%
Total Bill 42.46 50.58 8.12 19.13% 100.00%




Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.
, License Number ED-2003-0011, File Number EB-2010-0145

BILL IMPACTS (Monthly Consumptions)

RESIDENTIAL
2010 BILL 2011 BILL IMPACT
Volume RATE CHARGE Volume RATE CHARGE Change Change % of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ $ %
Consumption Monthly Service Charge o 11.10 & e Sy 13.74 2.64 23.78% 16.41%
500 kWh | |oistribution (kwh) 0.0190 9.50 0.0235 11.75 2.25 23.68% 14.03%
Smart Meter Adder (per month) i 0.00 R 047 047 0.56%
Smart Meter Rider (per month) et 1.63 ot < St 1.20 (0.43) -26.38% 1.43%
LRAM & SSM Rider (kWh) 500 0.00 500 0.0010 0.50 0.50 0.60%
ﬁ(evm’a' and Variance Account Rider (2010) 500 (0.0014) -0.70 500 (0.0014) (0.72) (0.02) 2.14% (0.85%)
Deferral and Variance Account Rider (2011) 500 0.00 500 0.0008 041 041 0.49%
(kWh)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 500 0.00 500 0.0004 0.19 0.19 0.23%
(2010) (kWh)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider
X .0001 .04 .04 059
(2011) (kwWh) 500 0.00 500 0.000: 0.0: 0.0: 0.05%
Distribution Sub-Total 21.53 27.60 6.07 28.17% 32.95%
Retail Transmisssion (kWh) 522 0.0108 5.64 522 0.0107 5.58 (0.06) -1.01% 6.66%
Delivery Sub-Total 27.17 33.18 6.01 22.12% 39.61%
Other Charges (kWh) 522 0.0135 7.05 522 0.0135 7.04 (0.01) -0.09% 8.41%
Cost of Power Commodity Block 1 (kWh) 522 0.0650 33.93 522 0.0650 33.90 (0.03) -0.09% 40.48%
Cost of Power Commodity Block 2 (kWh) 0 0.0750 0.00 0 0.0750 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Commodity & Other 40.98 40.94 -0.04 -0.09% 48.88%
Total Bill Before Taxes 68.14 74.12 5.97 8.77% 88.50%
GST/HST 5.00% 3.41 13.00% 9.64 6.23 182.79% 11.50%
Total Bill 71.55 83.75 12.20 17.05% 100.00%
RESIDENTIAL
2010 BILL 2011 BILL IMPACT
Volume RATE CHARGE Volume RATE CHARGE Change Change % of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ $ %
Consumption Monthly Service Charge [eo-i-0- 11.10 Sharinarizart 13.74 2.64 23.78% 10.89%
800 kwh Distribution (kWh) 0.0190 15.20 0.0235 18.80 3.60 23.68% 14.90%
Smart Meter Adder (per month) LELEEEY 0.00 AR 0.47 0.47 0.37%
Smart Meter Rider (per month) 1.63 et 1.20 (0.43) -26.38% 0.95%
LRAM & SSM Rider (kWh) 0.00 0.0010 0.80 0.80 0.63%
ﬁ(evm' al and Variance Account Rider (2010) 800 (0.0014) 112 800 (0.0014) (1.14) (0.02) 2.14% (0.91%)
(Dkevt;r)ral and Variance Account Rider (2011) 300 0.00 200 0.0008 0.66 0.66 0.52%
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 200 0.00 200 0.0004 031 031 0.25%
(2010) (kWh)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider
. X 1 .07 .07 .05%
(2011) (kwWh) 800 0.00 800 0.000: 0.0 0.0 0.05%
Distribution Sub-Total 26.81 34.91 8.10 30.20% 27.66%
Retail Transmisssion (kWh) 835 0.0108 9.02 834 0.0107 8.93 (0.09) -1.01% 7.08%
Delivery Sub-Total 35.83 43.84 8.01 22.35% 34.73%
Other Charges (kWh) 835 0.0135 11.28 834 0.0135 11.27 (0.01) -0.09% 8.93%
Cost of Power Commodity Block 1 (kWh) 600 0.0650 39.00 600 0.0650 39.00 0.00 0.00% 30.90%
Cost of Power Commodity Block 2 (kWh) 235 0.0750 17.64 234 0.0750 17.59 (0.05) -0.31% 13.93%
Commodity & Other 67.92 67.85 -0.06 -0.09% 53.76%
Total Bill Before Taxes 103.75 111.69 7.94 7.66% 88.50%
GST/HST 5.00% 5.19 13.00% 14.52 9.33 179.91% 11.50%
Total Bill 108.93 126.21 17.28 15.86% 100.00%




Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.
, License Number ED-2003-0011, File Number EB-2010-0145

BILL IMPACTS (Monthly Consumptions)

RESIDENTIAL
2010 BILL 2011 BILL IMPACT
Volume RATE CHARGE Volume RATE CHARGE Change Change % of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ $ %
Consumption Monthly Service Charge I 11.10 e e e S S 13.74 2.64 23.78% 8.86%
1,000 kWh Distribution (kWh) 1,000 0.0190 19.00 1,000 0.0235 23.50 4.50 23.68% 15.15%
Smart Meter Adder (per month) e B 0.00 A AL 0.47 0.47 0.30%
Smart Meter Rider (per month) 1.63 $rarSnar Shar o 1.20 (0.43) -26.38% 0.77%
LRAM & SSM Rider (kWh) 0.00 0.0010 1.00 1.00 0.64%
ﬁ(evm’a' and Variance Account Rider (2010) | - 5 | (9 go14) -1.40 1,000 (0.0014) (1.43) (0.03) 2.14% (0.92%)
(Dkevt;r)ral and Variance Account Rider (2011) 1,000 0.00 1,000 0.0008 0.83 0.83 0.53%
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 1,000 0.00 1,000 0.0004 039 039 0.25%
(2010) (kWh)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider
1, . X 1 . . .06%
(201) (ki) ,000 0.00 1,000 0.000: 0.09 0.09 0.06%
Distribution Sub-Total 30.33 39.78 9.45 31.16% 25.65%
Retail Transmisssion (kWh) 1,044 | 0.0108 11.28 1,043 0.0107 11.16 (0.11) -1.01% 7.20%
Delivery Sub-Total 41.61 50.94 9.34 22.45% 32.85%
Other Charges (kWh) 1,044 0.0135 14.09 1,043 0.0135 14.08 (0.01) -0.09% 9.08%
Cost of Power Commodity Block 1 (kWh) 600 0.0650 39.00 600 0.0650 39.00 0.00 0.00% 25.14%
Cost of Power Commodity Block 2 (kWh) 444 0.0750 33.30 443 0.0750 33.23 (0.07) -0.20% 21.43%
Commodity & Other 86.39 86.31 -0.08 -0.09% 55.65%
Total Bill Before Taxes 128.00 137.26 9.26 7.23% 88.50%
GST/HST | 5.00% 6.40 13.00% 17.84 11.44 178.81% 11.50%
Total Bill 134.40 155.10 20.70 15.40% 100.00%
RESIDENTIAL
2010 BILL 2011 BILL IMPACT
E E E E
Volume RAT! CHARG! Volume RAT!I CHARG! Change Change % of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ $ %
Consumption Monthly Service Charge S E e Tl 11.10 heraat Ther gt ine 13.74 2.64 23.78% 6.04%
1,500 kWh Distribution (kWh) 1,500 0.0190 28.50 1,500 0.0235 35.25 6.75 23.68% 15.51%
Smart Meter Adder (per month) e LT 0.00 LT e 0.47 0.47 0.21%
Smart Meter Rider (per month) 1.63 Eepr i 1.20 (0.43) -26.38% 0.53%
LRAM & SSM Rider (kWh) 0.00 0.0010 1.50 1.50 0.66%
(Dkevt;r)ral and Variance Account Rider (2010) 1,500 (0.0014) 2.10 1,500 (0.0014) (2.15) (0.04) 2.14% (0.94%)
ﬁ(evm' al and Variance Account Rider (2011) 1,500 0.00 1,500 0.0008 124 124 0.55%
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 1,500 0.00 1,500 0.0004 058 058 0.26%
(2010) (kWh)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider
1,500 0.00 1, 0.0001 0.13 0.13 0.06%
(2011) (kWh) 500 5
Distribution Sub-Total 39.13 51.97 12.84 32.81% 22.86%
Retail Transmisssion (kWh) 1,566 | 0.0108 16.91 1,565 0.0107 16.74 (0.17) -1.01% 7.36%
Delivery Sub-Total 56.04 68.71 12.67 22.60% 30.22%
Other Charges (kWh) 1,566 0.0135 21.14 1,565 0.0135 21.12 (0.02) -0.09% 9.29%
Cost of Power Commodity Block 1 (kWh) 600 0.0650 39.00 600 0.0650 39.00 0.00 0.00% 17.16%
Cost of Power Commodity Block 2 (kWh) 966 0.0750 72.45 965 0.0750 72.35 (0.10) -0.14% 31.82%
Commodity & Other 132.59 132.47 -0.12 -0.09% 58.27%
Total Bill Before Taxes 188.63 201.18 12.55 6.65% 88.50%
GST/HST | 5.00% 9.43 13.00% 26.15 16.72 177.30% 11.50%
Total Bill 198.07 227.34 29.27 14.78% 100.00%




Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.
, License Number ED-2003-0011, File Number EB-2010-0145

BILL IMPACTS (Monthly Consumptions)

GENERAL SERVICE < 50 kW
2010 BILL 2011 BILL IMPACT
E E E E
Volume RAT! CHARG! Volume RAT!I CHARG! Change Change % of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ $ %
Consumption Monthly Service Charge g BRSNS AT AT 21.45 T T e e e e 28.42 6.97 32.49% 17.92%
1,000 kWh Distribution (kwh) 1,000 0.0123 1230 1,000 0.0163 16.30 4.00 32.52% 10.28%
Smart Meter Adder (per month) AT TR T T 0.00 e e 0.47 0.47 0.30%
Smart Meter Rider (per month) i Snartnart 1.63 & SnarSnart frarfnarSnartie 1.20 (0.43) -26.38% 0.76%
LRAM & SSM Rider (kwh) 1,000 0.00 1,000 0.0003 0.30 0.30 0.19%
ie\;;')' al and Variance Account Rider (2010) |, 4 (0.0014) 140 1,000 (0.0014) (1.43) (0.03) 2.14% (0.90%)
83;')' al and Variance Account Rider (2011) 1,000 0.00 1,000 0.0002 022 022 0.14%
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 1,000 0.00 1,000 0.0004 039 039 0.25%
(2010) (kWh)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider
1,000 0.00 1, 0.0001 0.12 0.12 0.08%
(2011) (kwh) 000 >
Distribution Sub-Total 33.98 45.99 12.01 35.35% 29.00%
Retail Transmisssion (kWh) 1,044 | 0.0098 10.23 1,043 | 0.0091 9.54 (0.69) -6.78% 6.01%
Delivery Sub-Total 44.21 55.53 11.32 25.60% 35.01%
Other Charges (kWh) 1,044 0.0135 14.09 1,043 0.0135 14.08 (0.01) -0.09% 8.88%
Cost of Power Commodity Block 1 (kWh) 750 0.0650 48.75 750 0.0650 48.75 0.00 0.00% 30.74%
Cost of Power Commodity Block 2 (kWh) 294 0.0750 22.05 293 0.0750 21.98 (0.07) 0.31% 13.86%
Commodity & Other 84.89 84.81 -0.08 -0.09% 53.48%
Total Bill Before Taxes 129.11 140.34 11.24 8.70% 88.50%
GST/HST | 5.00% 6.46 | 13.00% 18.24 11.79 182.63% 11.50%
Total Bill 135.56 158.59 23.03 16.99% 100.00%
GENERAL SERVICE < 50 kW
2010 BILL 2011 BILL IMPACT
Volume RATE CHARGE Volume RATE CHARGE Change Change % of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ %
Consumption Monthly Service Charge I 21.45 L E B o 28.42 6.97 32.49% 9.74%
2,000 kWh Distribution (kWh) 2,000 24.60 2,000 0.0163 32.60 8.00 32.52% 11.18%
Smart Meter Adder (per month) S 0.00 IR 0.47 0.47 0.16%
Smart Meter Rider (per month) et 1.63 Cner B e 1.20 (0.43) -26.38% 0.41%
LRAM & SSM Rider (kwh) 2,000 0.00 0.0003 0.60 0.60 0.21%
83;’)’3' and Variance Account Rider (2010) | -, 05 | (9 0014) -2.80 2,000 (0.0014) (2.86) (0.06) 2.14% (0.98%)
(Dkevt;r)ral and Variance Account Rider (2011) 2,000 0.00 2,000 0.0002 0.44 0.44 0.15%
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 2,000 0.00 2,000 0.0004 078 078 0.27%
(2010) (kWh)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider
2 X .0001 .24 .24 .08Y
(2011) (kWh) ,000 0.00 2,000 0.000: 0 0 0.08%
Distribution Sub-Total 44.88 61.89 17.01 37.90% 21.22%
Retail Transmisssion (kWh) 2,088 | 0.0098 20.46 2,086 | 0.0091 19.07 (1.39) -6.78% 6.54%
Delivery Sub-Total 65.34 80.97 15.62 23.91% 27.76%
Other Charges (kWh) 2,088 0.0135 28.19 2,086 0.0135 28.16 (0.02) -0.09% 9.66%
Cost of Power Commodity Block 1 (kWh) 750 0.0650 48.75 750 0.0650 48.75 0.00 0.00% 16.72%
Cost of Power Commodity Block 2 (kWh) 1,338 0.0750 100.35 1,336 0.0750 100.22 (0.14) -0.13% 34.36%
Commodity & Other 177.29 177.13 -0.16 -0.09% 60.73%
Total Bill Before Taxes 242.63 258.09 15.46 6.37% 88.50%
GST/HST | 5.00% 12.13 | 13.00% 33.55 21.42 176.57% 11.50%
Total Bill 254.76 291.65 36.88 14.48% 100.00%




Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.
, License Number ED-2003-0011, File Number EB-2010-0145

BILL IMPACTS (Monthly Consumptions)

GENERAL SERVICE < 50 kW
2010 BILL 2011 BILL IMPACT
E E E E
Volume RAT! CHARG! Volume RAT!I CHARG! Change Change % of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ $ %
Consumption Monthly Service Charge g BRSNS AT AT 21.45 T T e e e e 28.42 6.97 32.49% 4.11%
5,000 kWh Distribution (kWh) 5,000 0.0123 61.50 5,000 0.0163 81.50 20.00 32.52% 11.80%
Smart Meter Adder (per month) AT TR T T 0.00 e e 0.47 0.47 0.07%
Smart Meter Rider (per month) i Snartnart 1.63 & SnarSnart frarfnarSnartie 1.20 (0.43) -26.38% 0.17%
LRAM & SSM Rider (kWh) 5,000 0.00 5,000 0.0003 1.50 1.50 0.22%
(Dkevt;r)ral and Variance Account Rider (2010) 5,000 (0.0014) 7.00 5,000 (0.0014) (7.15) (0.15) 2.14% (1.03%)
83;')' al and Variance Account Rider (2011) | 5 0.00 5,000 0.0002 111 111 0.16%
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 5,000 0.00 5,000 0.0004 104 104 0.28%
(2010) (kWh)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider
5,000 0.00 ! 0.0001 0.60 0.60 0.09%
(2011) (kWh) 3,000 :
Distribution Sub-Total 77.58 109.59 32.01 41.26% 15.86%
Retail Transmisssion (kWh) 5,220 | 0.0098 51.16 5,216 0.0091 47.69 (3.47) -6.78% 6.90%
Delivery Sub-Total 128.74 157.28 28.54 22.17% 22.77%
Other Charges (kWh) 5,220 0.0135 70.47 5,216 0.0135 70.41 (0.06) -0.09% 10.19%
Cost of Power Commodity Block 1 (kWh) 750 0.0650 48.75 750 0.0650 48.75 0.00 0.00% 7.06%
Cost of Power Commodity Block 2 (kWh) 4,470 0.0750 335.25 4,466 0.0750 334.91 (0.34) -0.10% 48.48%
Commodity & Other 454.47 454.07 -0.40 -0.09% 65.73%
Total Bill Before Taxes 583.21 611.35 28.15 4.83% 88.50%
GST/HST | 5.00% 29.16 13.00% 79.48 50.32 172.55% 11.50%
Total Bill 612.37 690.83 78.46 12.81% 100.00%
GENERAL SERVICE < 50 kW
2010 BILL 2011 BILL IMPACT
Volume RATE CHARGE Volume RATE CHARGE Change Change % of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ %
Consumption Monthly Service Charge el B g 21.45 L E B T 28.42 6.97 32.49% 2.10%
10,000 kWh Distribution (kWh) 10,000 0.0123 123.00 10,000 0.0163 163.00 40.00 32.52% 12.02%
Smart Meter Adder (per month) T 0.00 T e 0.47 0.47 0.03%
Smart Meter Rider (per month) CRner B e 1.63 e Cner B e 1.20 (0.43) -26.38% 0.09%
LRAM & SSM Rider (kWh) 10,000 0.00 10,000 0.0003 3.00 3.00 0.22%
83;')' al and Variance Account Rider (2010) |, 55 (0.0014) -14.00 10,000 (0.0014) (14.30) (0.30) 2.14% (1.05%)
(Dkevt;r)ral and Variance Account Rider (2011) 10,000 0.00 10,000 0.0002 222 222 0.16%
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 10,000 0.00 10,000 0.0004 3.89 3.89 0.29%
(2010) (kWh)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider
1 . X 1 1.2 1.2 .09
(2011) (kwWh) 0,000 0.00 10,000 0.000: 0 0 0.09%
Distribution Sub-Total 132.08 189.09 57.01 43.17% 13.94%
Retail Transmisssion (kWh) 10,440 | 0.0098 102.31 10,431 0.0091 95.37 (6.94) -6.78% 7.03%
Delivery Sub-Total 234.39 284.47 50.08 21.36% 20.98%
Other Charges (kWh) 10,440 0.0135 140.94 10,431 0.0135 140.82 (0.12) -0.09% 10.38%
Cost of Power Commodity Block 1 (kWh) 750 0.0650 48.75 750 0.0650 48.75 0.00 0.00% 3.59%
Cost of Power Commodity Block 2 (kWh) 9,690 0.0750 726.75 9,681 0.0750 726.08 (0.68) -0.09% 53.54%
Commodity & Other 916.44 915.64 -0.80 -0.09% 67.52%
Total Bill Before Taxes 1,150.83 1,200.11 49.28 4.28% 88.50%
GST/HST | 5.00% 57.54 13.00% 156.01 98.47 171.13% 11.50%
Total Bill 1,208.37 1,356.13 147.75 12.23% 100.00%




Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.
, License Number ED-2003-0011, File Number EB-2010-0145

BILL IMPACTS (Monthly Consumptions)

GENERAL SERVICE < 50 kW
2010 BILL 2011 BILL IMPACT
Volume RATE CHARGE Volume RATE CHARGE Change Change % of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ $ %
Consumption Monthly Service Charge Eica: A AT T 21.45 DA TR TR T T T T 28.42 6.97 32.49% 1.06%
20,000 kWh Distribution (kWh) 20,000 0.0123 246.00 20,000 0.0163 326.00 80.00 32.52% 12.13%
Smart Meter Adder (per month) B AT B 0.00 Theraatnd Thergatine 0.47 0.47 0.02%
Smart Meter Rider (per month) DD 1.63 Lt . .. 1.20 (0.43) -26.38% 0.04%
LRAM & SSM Rider (kWh) 20,000 0.00 20,000 0.0003 6.00 6.00 0.22%
ﬁ(evm’a' and Variance Account Rider (2010) | 5,555 | (9 0014) -28.00 20,000 (0.0014) (28.60) (0.60) 2.14% (1.06%)
(Dkevt;r)ral and Variance Account Rider (2011) 20,000 0.00 20,000 0.0002 444 444 0.17%
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 20,000 0.00 20,000 0.0004 7.77 7.77 0.29%
(2010) (kWh)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider
2 X .0001 2. 2. .09
(2011) (kWh) 0,000 0.00 20,000 0.000: 39 39 0.09%
Distribution Sub-Total 241.08 348.10 107.02 44.39% 12.96%
Retail Transmisssion (kWh) 20,880 | 0.0098 204.62 20,862 | 0.0091 190.75 (13.87) -6.78% 7.10%
Delivery Sub-Total 445.70 538.85 93.14 20.90% 20.06%
Other Charges (kWh) 20,880 0.0135 281.88 20,862 0.0135 281.64 (0.24) -0.09% 10.48%
Cost of Power Commodity Block 1 (kwh) 750 0.0650 48.75 750 0.0650 48.75 0.00 0.00% 1.81%
Cost of Power Commodity Block 2 (kWh) 20,130 0.0750 1,509.75 20,112 0.0750 1,508.40 (1.35) -0.09% 56.14%
Commodity & Other 1,840.38 1,838.79 -1.59 -0.09% 68.44%
Total Bill Before Taxes 2,286.08 2,377.64 91.55 4.00% 88.50%
GST/HST | 5.00% 114.30 | 13.00% 309.09 194.79 170.41% 11.50%
Total Bill 2,400.39 2,686.73 286.34 11.93% 100.00%
GENERAL SERVICE 50 kW - 999 kW
2010 BILL 2011 BILL IMPACT
Volume RATE CHARGE Volume RATE CHARGE Change Change % of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ $ %
Consumption Monthly Service Charge & e ey 294.82 & ey 360.69 65.87 22.34% 10.12%
30,000 kWh Distribution (kW) 100 1.8048 180.48 100 2.1129 211.29 30.81 17.07% 5.93%
100 kw Smart Meter Adder (per month) T AL 0.00 ERE A E T e T 0.47 0.47 0.01%
Smart Meter Rider (per month) Shert 1.63 Shert e e tnar 1.20 (0.43) (26.38%) 0.03%
LRAM & SSM Rider (kW) 100 0.00 100 0.0863 8.63 8.63 0.24%
(Dkevt/e)"al and Variance Account Rider (2010) 100 (0.4471) 4471 100 (0.5422) (54.22) (9.51) 21.27% (1.52%)
?lj;le)rral and Variance Account Rider (2011) 100 0.00 100 (0.0487) (4.87) (4.87) (0.14%)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 100 0.00 100 0.1471 1471 1471 0.41%
(2010) (kw)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 100 0.00 100 0.0301 301 301 0.08%
(2011) (kw)
Distribution Sub-Total 432.22 540.91 108.69 25.15% 15.18%
Retail Transmisssion (kW) 100 | 4.2383 423.83 100 | 2.9046 290.46 (133.37) (31.47%) 8.15%
Delivery Sub-Total 856.05 831.37 -24.68 (2.88%) 23.33%
Other Charges (kWh) 31,320 | 0.0135 422.82 31,293 | 0.0135 422.46 (0.36) (0.09%) 11.85%
Cost of Power Commodity (kWh) 31,320 | 0.0607 1,901.75 31,293 | 0.0607 1,900.11 (1.64) (0.09%) 53.31%
Total Bill Before Taxes 3,180.62 3,153.94 -26.68 (0.84%) 88.50%
GST/HST | 5.00% 159.03 | 13.00% 410.01 250.98 157.82% 11.50%
Total Bill 3,339.65 3,563.95 224.30 6.72% 100.00%




Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.
, License Number ED-2003-0011, File Number EB-2010-0145

BILL IMPACTS (Monthly Consumptions)

GENERAL SERVICE 50 kW - 999 kW

2010 BILL 2011 BILL IMPACT
Volume RATE CHARGE Volume RATE CHARGE Change Change % of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ $ %
Consumption Monthly Service Charge E T 294.82 E E o 360.69 65.87 22.34% 4.35%
75,000 kWh Distribution (kW) 1.8048 451.20 2.1129 528.23 77.02 17.07% 6.37%
250 kw Smart Meter Adder (per month) : 0.00 0.47 0.47 0.01%
Smart Meter Rider (per month) 1.63 Tt 1.20 (0.43) (26.38%) 0.01%
LRAM & SSM Rider (kW) 250 0.00 250 0.0863 21.58 21.58 0.26%
ievze)"al and Variance Account Rider (2010) 250 (0.4471) 11178 250 (0.5422) (135.55) (23.77) 21.27% (1.63%)
ﬁ(evze)"a' and Variance Account Rider (2011) 250 0.00 250 (0.0487) (12.18) (12.18) (0.15%)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 250 0.00 250 0.1471 36.77 36.77 0.44%
(2010) (kw)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 250 0.00 250 0.0301 754 754 0.09%
(2011) (kw)
Distribution Sub-Total 635.88 808.75 172.87 27.19% 9.75%
Retail Transmisssion (KW) 250 | 4.2383 1,059.58 250 | 2.9046 726.14 (333.43) (31.47%) 8.75%
Delivery Sub-Total 1,695.45 1,534.89 -160.56 (9.47%) 18.50%
Other Charges (kWh) 78,300 | 0.0135 1,057.05 78,233 |  0.0135 1,056.14 (0.91) (0.09%) 12.73%
Cost of Power Commodity (kWh) 78,300 | 0.0607 4,754.38 78,233 | 0.0607 4,750.28 (4.10) (0.09%) 57.26%
Total Bill Before Taxes 7,506.88 7,341.30 -165.57 (2.21%) 88.50%
GST/HST | 5.00% 375.34 | 13.00% 954.37 579.03 154.27% 11.50%
Total Bill 7,882.22 8,295.67 413.45 5.25% 100.00%
2010 BILL 2011 BILL IMPACT
Volume RATE CHARGE Volume RATE CHARGE Change Change % of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ $ %
Consumption Monthly Service Charge B g B g 294.82 - E B ¥ 360.69 65.87 22.34% 1.75%
200,000 kWh Distribution (kW) 1.8048 902.40 500 2.1129 1,056.45 154.05 17.07% 5.14%
500 kW Smart Meter Adder (per month) e 0.00 e s 0.47 0.47 0.00%
Smart Meter Rider (per month) Ecrrs 1.63 Ecrs iy 1.20 (0.43) (26.38%) 0.01%
LRAM & SSM Rider (kW) 500 0.00 500 0.0863 43.15 43.15 0.21%
ievt/e)"al and Variance Account Rider (2010) 500 (0.4471) 22355 500 (0.5422) (271.09) (47.54) 21.27% (1.32%)
ﬁ(evfle)"a' and Variance Account Rider (2011) 500 0.00 500 (0.0487) (24.36) (24.36) (0.12%)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 500 0.00 500 0.1471 73.55 73.55 0.36%
(2010) (kw)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 500 0.00 500 0.0301 15.07 15.07 0.07%
(2011) (kw)
Distribution Sub-Total 975.30 1,255.13 279.83 28.69% 6.11%
Retail Transmisssion (KW) 500 | 4.2383 2,119.15 500 | 2.9046 1,452.28 (666.87) (31.47%) 7.06%
Delivery Sub-Total 3,094.45 2,707.41 -387.04 (12.51%) 13.17%
Other Charges (kWh) 208,800 | 0.0135 2,818.80 208,620 |  0.0135 2,816.37 (2.43) (0.09%) 13.70%
Cost of Power Commodity (kWh) 208,800 | 0.0607 12,678.34 208,620 |  0.0607 12,667.41 (10.93) (0.09%) 61.62%
Total Bill Before Taxes 18,591.59 18,191.19 -400.40 (2.15%) 88.50%
GST/HST | 5.00% 929.58 | 13.00% 2,364.85 1,435.28 154.40% 11.50%
Total Bill 19,521.17 20,556.05 1,034.88 5.30% 100.00%




Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.
, License Number ED-2003-0011, File Number EB-2010-0145

BILL IMPACTS (Monthly Consumptions)

GENERAL SERVICE 50 kW - 999 kW

2010 BILL 2011 BILL IMPACT
Volume RATE CHARGE Volume RATE CHARGE Change Change % of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ $ %
Consumption Monthly Service Charge T PR 294.82 LT P 360.69 65.87 22.34% 1.18%
300,000 kWh Distribution (kW) 750 1.8048 1,353.60 750 2.1129 1,584.68 231.08 17.07% 5.17%
750 kw Smart Meter Adder (per month) ERCErLOr Ty 0.00 ERCErLon 0.47 0.47 0.00%
Smart Meter Rider (per month) 1.63 SRR T A 1.20 (0.43) (26.38%) 0.00%
LRAM & SSM Rider (kW) 750 0.00 750 0.0863 64.73 64.73 0.21%
ievze)"al and Variance Account Rider (2010) 750 (0.4471) 335.33 750 (0.5422) (406.64) (71.31) 21.27% (1.33%)
ﬁ(evze)"a' and Variance Account Rider (2011) 750 0.00 750 (0.0487) (36.54) (36.54) (0.12%)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 750 0.00 750 0.1471 110.32 110.32 0.36%
(2010) (kw)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 750 0.00 750 0.0301 22.61 2261 0.07%
(2011) (kw)
Distribution Sub-Total 1,314.73 1,701.52 386.79 29.42% 5.56%
Retail Transmisssion (kW) 750 | 4.2383 3,178.73 750 | 2.9046 2,178.42 (1,000.30) (31.47%) 7.11%
Delivery Sub-Total 4,493.45 3,879.94 -613.51 (13.65%) 12.67%
Other Charges (kWh) 313,200 | 0.0135 4,228.20 312,930 |  0.0135 4,224.56 (3.64) (0.09%) 13.79%
Cost of Power Commodity (kWh) 313,200 | 0.0607 19,017.50 312,930 |  0.0607 19,001.11 (16.39) (0.09%) 62.04%
Total Bill Before Taxes 27,739.15 27,105.61 -633.55 (2.28%) 88.50%
GST/HST | 5.00% 1,386.96 | 13.00% 3,523.73 2,136.77 154.06% 11.50%
Total Bill 29,126.11 30,629.34 1,503.22 5.16% 100.00%
GENERAL SERVICE 50 kW - 999 kW
2010 BILL 2011 BILL IMPACT
Volume RATE CHARGE Volume RATE CHARGE Change Change % of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ $ %
Consumption Monthly Service Charge Tk : 2 : 2 : 2 294.82 S P : 2 : . 360.69 65.87 22.34% 0.89%
400,000 kWh Distribution (kW) 1.8048 1,803.00 999 2.1129 2,110.79 307.79 17.07% 5.19%
999 kW Smart Meter Adder (per month) Rl 0.00 ] 0.47 0.47 0.00%
Smart Meter Rider (per month) e 1.63 iy sy 1.20 (0.43) (26.38%) 0.00%
LRAM & SSM Rider (kW) 999 0.00 999 0.0863 86.21 86.21 0.21%
ievt/e)"al and Variance Account Rider (2010) 999 (0.4471) -446.65 999 (0.5422) (541.64) (94.98) 21.27% (1.33%)
ﬁ(evfle)"a' and Variance Account Rider (2011) 999 0.00 999 (0.0487) (48.67) (48.67) (0.12%)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 999 0.00 999 0.1471 146.95 146.95 0.36%
(2010) (kw)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 999 0.00 999 0.0301 3011 3011 0.07%
(2011) (kw)
Distribution Sub-Total 1,652.79 2,146.12 493.32 29.85% 5.27%
Retail Transmisssion (kW) 999 | 42383 4,234.06 999 | 2.9046 2,901.66 (1,332.40) (31.47%) 7.13%
Delivery Sub-Total 5,886.85 5,047.78 -839.07 (14.25%) 12.40%
Other Charges (kWh) 417,600 | 0.0135 5,637.60 417,240 | 0.0135 5,632.74 (4.86) (0.09%) 13.84%
Cost of Power Commodity (kWh) 417,600 | 0.0607 25,356.67 417,240 | 0.0607 25,334.81 (21.86) (0.09%) 62.25%
Total Bill Before Taxes 36,881.13 36,015.33 -865.79 (2.35%) 88.50%
GST/HST | 5.00% 1,844.06 | 13.00% 4,681.99 2,837.94 153.90% 11.50%
Total Bill 38,725.18 40,697.33 1,972.14 5.09% 100.00%




Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.
, License Number ED-2003-0011, File Number EB-2010-0145

BILL IMPACTS (Monthly Consumptions)

GENERAL SERVICE >1000 kW

2010 BILL 2011 BILL IMPACT
Volume RATE CHARGE Volume RATE CHARGE Change Change % of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ $ %
Consumption Monthly Service Charge 294.82 2,335.85 2,041.03 692.30% 2.98%
750,000 kWh Distribution (kW) 1,500 1.8048 2,707.20 1,500 1.4400 2,160.00 (547.20) (20.21%) 2.76%
1,500 kw Smart Meter Adder (per month) P ity 0.00 Y o : 0.47 0.47 0.00%
Smart Meter Rider (per month) L 1.63 L L 1.20 (0.43) (26.38%) 0.00%
LRAM & SSM Rider (kW) 1,500 0.00 1,500 0.0863 129.45 129.45 0.17%
ievt/e)"al and Variance Account Rider (2010) 1,500 (0.4471) 67065 1,500 (0.6522) (978.26) (307.61) 45.87% (1.25%)
ﬁ(evze)”a' and Variance Account Rider (2011) |y 5o 0.00 1,500 (0.2040) (306.07) (306.07) (0.39%)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 1,500 0.00 1,500 0.1771 265.62 265.62 0.34%
(2010) (kW)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 1,500 0.00 1,500 0.0499 74.81 74.81 0.10%
(2011) (kW)
Distribution Sub-Total 2,333.00 3,683.09 1,350.09 57.87% 4.70%
Retail Transmisssion (kW) 1,500 | 4.2383 6,357.45 1,500 | 5.0741 7,611.18 1,253.73 19.72% 5.71%
Delivery Sub-Total 8,690.45 11,294.27 2,603.82 29.96% 14.41%
Other Charges (kWh) 783,000 | 0.0135 10,570.50 782,325 | _ 00135 10,561.39 (9.11) (0.09%) 13.48%
Cost of Power Commodity (kWh) 783,000 | 0.0607 47,543.76 782,325 | 0.0607 47,502.77 (40.99) (0.09%) 60.61%
Total Bill Before Taxes 66,804.71 69,358.43 2,553.72 3.82% 88.50%
GST/HST [ 5.00% 3,340.24 [ 13.00% 9,016.60 5,676.36 169.94% 11.50%
Total Bill 70,144.95 78,375.03 8,230.08 11.73% 100.00%
GENERAL SERVICE >1000 kW
2010 BILL 2011 BILL IMPACT
Volume RATE CHARGE Volume RATE CHARGE Change Change % of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ $ %
Consumption Monthly Service Charge 294.82 2,335.85 2,041.03 692.30% 1.81%
1,250,000 kWh Distribution (kW) 2,500 1.8048 4,512.00 2,500 1.4400 3,600.00 (912.00) (20.21%) 2.79%
2,500 kW Smart Meter Adder (per month) e e 0.00 N 0.47 0.47 0.00%
Smart Meter Rider (per month) por R TR 1.63 Sy porFe TR Th 1.20 (0.43) (26.38%) 0.00%
LRAM & SSM Rider (kW) 2,500 0.00 2,500 0.0863 215.75 215.75 0.17%
ievt/e)"al and Variance Account Rider (2010) 2,500 (0.4471) 1,117.75 2,500 (0.6522) (1,630.43) (512.68) 45.87% (1.27%)
ﬁ(evfle)”a' and Variance Account Rider (2011) |, 5 0.00 2,500 (0.2040) (510.11) (510.11) (0.40%)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 2,500 0.00 2,500 0.1771 442.71 442.71 0.34%
(2010) (kw)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 2,500 0.00 2,500 0.0499 124.60 124.60 0.10%
(2011) (kW)
Distribution Sub-Total 3,690.70 4,580.13 889.43 24.10% 3.55%
Retail Transmisssion (kW) 2,500 | 4.2383 10,595.75 2,500 | 5.0741 12,685.31 2,089.56 19.72% 5.84%
Delivery Sub-Total 14,286.45 17,265.44 2,078.99 20.85% 13.40%
Other Charges (kWh) 1,305,000 | 00135 17,617.50 1303875 | 0.0135 17,602.31 (15.19) (0.09%) 13.66%
Cost of Power Commodity (kWh) 1,305,000 | 0.0607 79,239.60 1,303,875 | 0.0607 79,171.29 (68.31) (0.09%) 61.44%
Total Bill Before Taxes 111,143.55 114,039.04 2,895.49 2.61% 88.50%
GST/HST [ 5.00% 5,557.18 [ 13.00% 14,825.08 9,267.90 166.77% 11.50%
Total Bill 116,700.73 128,864.11 12,163.39 10.02% 100.00%




Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.
, License Number ED-2003-0011, File Number EB-2010-0145

BILL IMPACTS (Monthly Consumptions)

GENERAL SERVICE >1000 kW

2010 BILL 2011 BILL IMPACT
Volume RATE CHARGE Volume RATE CHARGE Change Change % of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ $ %
Consumption Monthly Service Charge 294.82 2,335.85 2,041.03 692.30% 1.16%
2,000,000 kWh Distribution (kW) 3,500 1.8048 6,316.80 3,500 1.4400 5,040.00 (1,276.80) (20.21%) 2.50%
3,500 kW Smart Meter Adder (per month) P ity 0.00 Y o : 0.47 0.47 0.00%
Smart Meter Rider (per month) L 1.63 L L 1.20 (0.43) (26.38%) 0.00%
LRAM & SSM Rider (kW) 3,500 0.00 3,500 0.0863 302.05 302.05 0.15%
ievt/e)"al and Variance Account Rider (2010) 3,500 (0.4471) -1,564.85 3,500 (0.6522) (2,282.60) (717.75) 45.87% (1.13%)
ﬁ(evze)”a' and Variance Account Rider (2011) | 5 5 0.00 3,500 (0.2040) (714.16) (714.16) (0.35%)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 3,500 0.00 3,500 0.1771 619.79 619.79 0.31%
(2010) (kW)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 3,500 0.00 3,500 0.0499 174.56 174.56 0.09%
(2011) (kW)
Distribution Sub-Total 5,048.40 5,477.17 428.77 8.49% 2.72%
Retail Transmisssion (kW) 3500 | 4.2383 14,834.05 3500 | 5.0741 17,759.43 2,025.38 19.72% 8.83%
Delivery Sub-Total 19,882.45 23,236.60 3,354.15 16.87% 11.55%
Other Charges (kWh) 2,088,000 | 0.0135 28,188.00 2,086,200 | _ 0.0135 28,163.70 (24.30) (0.09%) 14.00%
Cost of Power Commodity (kWh) 2,088,000 | 0.0607 126,78336 | 2,086,200 | _ 0.0607 126,674.06 (109.30) (0.09%) 62.95%
Total Bill Before Taxes 174,353.81 178,074.37 3,220.56 1.80% 88.50%
GST/HST [ 500% 8,742.69 [ 13.00% 23,149.67 14,406.98 164.79% 11.50%
Total Bill 183,596.50 201,224.04 17,627.54 9.60% 100.00%
GENERAL SERVICE >1000 kW
2010 BILL 2011 BILL IMPACT
Volume RATE CHARGE Volume RATE CHARGE Change Change % of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ $ %
Consumption Monthly Service Charge 294.82 2,335.85 2,041.03 692.30% 1.12%
2,000,000 kWh Distribution (kW) 4,500 1.8048 8,121.60 4,500 1.4400 6,480.00 (1,641.60) (20.21%) 3.12%
4,500 kW Smart Meter Adder (per month) e e 0.00 N 0.47 0.47 0.00%
Smart Meter Rider (per month) por R TR 1.63 Sy porFe TR Th 1.20 (0.43) (26.38%) 0.00%
LRAM & SSM Rider (kW) 4,500 0.00 4,500 0.0863 388.35 388.35 0.19%
ievtze)"al and Variance Account Rider (2010) 4500 | (0.4472) |  -2,011.95 4,500 (0.6522) (2,934.77) (922.82) 45.87% (1.41%)
ﬁ(evfle)”a' and Variance Account Rider (2011) | 5o 0.00 4,500 (0.2040) (918.20) (918.20) (0.44%)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 4,500 0.00 4,500 0.1771 796.87 796.87 0.38%
(2010) (kw)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 4,500 0.00 4,500 0.0499 224.44 224.44 0.11%
(2011) (kW)
Distribution Sub-Total 6,406.10 6,374.22 31.88 (0.50%) 3.06%
Retail Transmisssion (kW) 4,500 | 4.2383 19,072.35 4500 | 50741 22,833.55 3,761.20 19.72% 10.98%
Delivery Sub-Total 25,478.45 29,207.77 3,729.32 14.64% 14.04%
Other Charges (kWh) 2,088,000 | 0.0135 28,188.00 2,086,200 | _ 0.0135 28,163.70 (24.30) (0.09%) 13.54%
Cost of Power Commodity (kWh) 2,088,000 | 0.0607 126,783.36 | 2,086,200 | _ 0.0607 126,674.06 (109.30) (0.09%) 60.91%
Total Bill Before Taxes 180,449.81 184,045.53 3,595.72 1.99% 88.50%
GST/HST [ 500% 9,022.49 [ 13.00% 23,925.92 14,903.43 165.18% 11.50%
Total Bill 189,472.30 207,971.45 18,499.15 9.76% 100.00%




Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.
, License Number ED-2003-0011, File Number EB-2010-0145

BILL IMPACTS (Monthly Consumptions)

Street Lighting

2010 BILL 2011 BILL IMPACT
Volume RATE CHARGE Volume RATE CHARGE Change Change % of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ $ %
Billing Monthly Service Charge 40 0.87 34.80 40 2.20 87.97 53.17 152.78% 10.55%
40 conn. Distribution (kW) 10 3.4918 34.92 10 8.8266 88.27 53.35 152.78% 10.59%
7,000 kWh LRAM & SSM Rider (kW) 10 0.00 10 0.0000 0.00 0.00 0.00%
10 kw (Dke\;/e)"al and Variance Account Rider (2010) 10 (0.3838) 3.84 10 (0.5227) (5.23) (139) 36.17% (0.63%)
;Jkit/e)rral and Variance Account Rider (2011) 10 0.00 10 0.1658 166 166 0.20%
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 10 0.00 10 0.1417 142 142 0.17%
(2010) (kw)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 10 0.00 10 0.0416 0.42 0.42 0.05%
(2011) (kW)
Distribution Sub-Total 65.88 174.50 108.62 164.88% 20.94%
Retail Transmisssion (kW) 10 3.1281 31.28 10 2.1145 21.15 (10.14) (32.40%) 2.54%
Delivery Sub-Total 97.16 195.64 98.48 101.36% 23.47%
Other Charges (kWh) 7,308 0.0135 98.66 7,302 0.0135 98.57 (0.09) (0.09%) 11.83%
Cost of Power Commodity (kWh) 7,308 0.0607 443.74 7,302 0.0607 443.36 (0.38) (0.09%) 53.19%
Total Bill Before Taxes 639.56 737.58 98.02 15.33% 88.50%
GST/HST 5.00% 31.98 13.00% 95.88 63.91 199.85% 11.50%
Total Bill 671.54 833.46 161.92 24.11% 100.00%
Street Lighting
2010 BILL 2011 BILL IMPACT
Volume RATE CHARGE Volume RATE CHARGE Change Change % of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ $ %
Billing Monthly Service Charge 4,000 0.87 3,480.00 4,000 2.20 8,796.80 5,316.80 152.78% 17.59%
4,000 conn. Distribution (kW) 560 3.4918 1,955.41 560 8.8266 4,942.90 2,987.49 152.78% 9.89%
380,000 kWh LRAM & SSM Rider (kW) 560 0.00 560 0.0000 0.00 0.00 0.00%
560 kW (Dke\;/e)"a' and Variance Account Rider (2010) 560 (0.3838) 21495 560 (0.5227) (292.69) (77.74) 36.17% (0.59%)
;Jkit/e)rral and Variance Account Rider (2011) 560 0.00 560 0.1658 92.87 92.87 0.19%
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 560 0.00 560 0.1417 79.35 79.35 0.16%
(2010) (kw)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 560 0.00 560 0.0416 2331 2331 0.05%
(2011) (kw)
Distribution Sub-Total 5,220.46 13,642.53 8,422.07 161.33% 27.29%
Retail Transmisssion (kW) 560 3.1281 1,751.74 560 2.1145 1,184.14 (567.59) (32.40%) 2.37%
Delivery Sub-Total 6,972.19 14,826.67 7,854.47 112.65% 29.65%
Other Charges (kWh) 396,720 0.0135 5,355.72 396,378 0.0135 5,351.10 (4.62) (0.09%) 10.70%
Cost of Power Commodity (kWh) 396,720 0.0607 24,088.84 396,378 0.0607 24,068.07 (20.77) (0.09%) 48.14%
Total Bill Before Taxes 36,416.75 44,245.84 7,829.09 21.50% 88.50%
GST/HST 5.00% 1,820.84 13.00% 5,751.96 3,931.12 215.90% 11.50%
Total Bill 38,237.59 49,997.80 11,760.21 30.76% 100.00%




Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.
, License Number ED-2003-0011, File Number EB-2010-0145

BILL IMPACTS (Monthly Consumptions)

Unmetered Scattered

2010 BILL 2011 BILL IMPACT
Volume RATE CHARGE Volume RATE CHARGE Change Change % of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ $ %
Consumption Monthly Service Charge oL PERE Pk PP P 10.73 oL PR R 13.27 2.54 23.70% 28.53%
250 kWh Distribution (kWh) 250 0.0123 3.08 250 0.0152 3.80 0.73 23.58% 8.17%
LRAM & SSM Rider (kWh) 250 0.00 250 0.0122 3.05 3.05 6.56%
33;’)’3' and Variance Account Rider (2010) 250 0.0000 0.00 250 (0.0014) (0.36) (0.36) (0.77%)
Deferral and Variance Account Rider (2011) 250 0.00 250 0.0002 0.06 0.06 0.12%
(kWh)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 250 0.00 250 0.0004 0.10 0.10 0.21%
(2010) (kWh)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider
2 . 2 .0001 . . .06%
(2011) (kwWh) 50 0.00 50 0.000: 0.03 0.03 0.06%
Distribution Sub-Total 13.81 19.95 6.14 44.50% 42.88%
Retail Transmisssion (kWh) 261 0.0098 2.56 261 0.0072 1.87 (0.69) -27.07% 4.01%
Delivery Sub-Total 16.36 21.81 5.45 33.31% 46.89%
Other Charges (kWh) 261 0.0135 3.52 261 0.0135 3.52 (0.00) -0.09% 7.57%
Cost of Power Commodity (kWh) 261 0.0607 15.85 261 0.0607 15.83 (0.01) -0.09% 34.04%
Total Bill Before Taxes 35.73 41.17 5.43 15.21% 88.50%
GST/HST 5.00% 1.79 13.00% 5.35 3.57 199.54% 11.50%
Total Bill 37.52 46.52 9.00 23.98% 100.00%
Unmetered Scattered
2010 BILL 2011 BILL IMPACT
Volume RATE CHARGE Volume RATE CHARGE Change Change % of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ $ %
Consumption Monthly Service Charge Tt 10.73 e B e 13.27 2.54 23.70% 17.01%
500 kWh | |Distribution (kwh) 500 0.0123 6.15 500 0.0152 7.60 1.45 23.58% 9.74%
LRAM & SSM Rider (kWh) 500 0.00 500 0.0122 6.10 6.10 7.82%
33;’)’3' and Variance Account Rider (2010) 500 0.0000 0.00 500 (0.0014) (0.72) (0.72) (0.92%)
Deferral and Variance Account Rider (2011) 500 0.00 500 0.0002 011 011 0.14%
(kWh)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider 500 0.00 500 0.0004 0.19 0.19 0.25%
(2010) (kWh)
Non-RPP Global Adjustment Rate Rider
. .0001 . . .08%
(2011) (kWh) 500 0.00 500 0.000: 0.06 0.06 0.08%
Distribution Sub-Total 16.88 26.62 9.74 57.72% 34.11%
Retail Transmisssion (kWh) 522 0.0098 5.12 522 0.0072 3.73 (138) -27.07% 4.78%
Delivery Sub-Total 22.00 30.35 8.36 38.00% 38.89%
Other Charges (kWh) 522 0.0135 7.05 522 0.0135 7.04 (0.01) -0.09% 9.02%
Cost of Power Commodity (kWh) 522 0.0607 31.70 522 0.0607 31.67 (0.03) -0.09% 40.58%
Total Bill Before Taxes 60.74 69.06 8.32 13.71% 88.50%
GST/HST 5.00% 3.04 13.00% 8.98 5.94 195.64% 11.50%
Total Bill 63.78 78.04 14.27 22.37% 100.00%
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BUDGET DIRECTIVES:

WHSI compiles budget information for the three major components of the budgeting process:
revenue forecasts, operating and maintenance expense forecast and capital budget forecast.

This budget information is compiled for both the 2010 Bridge Year and the 2011 Test Year.

Revenue Forecast

WHSI's energy sales and revenue forecast model was updated to reflect more recent
information. This model was then used to prepare the revenues sales and throughput volume
and revenue forecast at existing rates for fiscal 2010 and 2011. The forecast is weather
normalized as outlined in Exhibit 3, Tab 2, and Schedule 1 and considers such factors as new
customer additions, a proposed general service >50-999 kW rate class and a proposed general
service> 1,000 KW rate class, customer class changes, and load profiles for all classes of

customers.

Operating Maintenance and Administration (“OM&A”) Expense Forecast

The OM&A expenses for the 2010 Bridge Year and the 2011 Test Year have been based on an
in-depth review of operating priorities and requirements and are determine by a combination
of prior year experience and future requirements. WHSI’s Asset Management strategy includes
testing and inspection of assets, which may result in some increase to operating and
maintenance costs. Each item is reviewed in detail for each cost type, (labour, vehicle,
purchases, subcontractors, and service agreements), on an account by account basis for each of
the forecast years. Department managers and supervisors were interviewed to assess their
future requirements, based on available labour hours, resources, and working capital. New
smart meter related expenses, the impact from the transition of nearly 3,000 WHSI customers
from the pay-as-you-go meter program to regular billing schedules, and proposed amendments
to the OEB’s customer service guidelines are examples of new cost requirements to consider,

that were not present before.
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Capital Budget
The capital budget forecast 2010 and 2011 is influenced, among other factors, by WHSI’s

capacity to finance capital projects. All proposed capital projects are assessed within the

framework of its capital budget process as outlined in Exhibit 2, Tab 3, and Schedule 1.
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CHANGES IN METHODOLOGY:

WHSI is not requesting any changes in methodology in the current proceeding.

WHSI has prepared this rate application in accordance with CGAAP and current OEB

Accounting Procedures in accordance with the Accounting Procedures Handbook.
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REVENUE DEFICIENCY:

WHSI’s net revenue deficiency is calculated as $1,338,700 and when grossed up for PILs, the

revenue deficiency is $1,756,617. WHSI’s calculation of its 2011 revenue deficiency is

summarized in Table 1-3 below, and further in Exhibit 1, Tab 2, Schedule 4 and Exhibit 6, Tab 1,

Schedule 1.

Appendix K provides the Revenue Requirement Work Form

The revenue deficiency is primarily the result of:

>

Increases in OM&A costs including depreciation expense. Operating and maintenance
costs are increasing due to smart meter requirements, customer service amendments,
and a more proactive asset management strategy. WHSI began a lineperson apprentice
program in 2007 in order to ensure qualified linemen are in place for forecasted
retirements in the next five years. These OM&A cost are discussed in further detail in

Exhibit 4.

Capital Expenditures from 2006 through to budgeted in 2011 exceeds depreciation
levels resulting in an increased rate base on which the rate of return is calculated. WHSI
is committed to ensuring the reliability of the distribution system and will continue to
invest in capital infrastructure in 2010 and 2011. Changes in the Rate Base are

discussed further in Exhibit 2.

Despite a reduction in WHSI’s weighted rate to 4.93%, down from 6.756%, the increase
in the deemed debt ratio to 56% long term and 4% short term combined with the higher
rate base upon which the debt is based, increases the debt expense by $190,703 in the
2011 Test Year.
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WHSI is committed to meeting its corporate mission and goals of providing safe and reliable
distribution through prudent investments in capital assets and investing in training and

education of staff required to meet the future needs of its customers.

CALCULATION OF REVENUE DEFICIENCY:

Table 1-3
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2010 Bridge 2011 Test 2011 Test - Required
Description Actual Existing Rates Revenue
Revenue

Revenue Deficiency 1,756,617

Distribution Revenue 6,350,730 6,475,857 6,475,857

Other Operating Revenue (Net) 384,328 483,279 483,279
Total Revenue 6,735,059 6,959,136 8,715,753
Costs and Expenses

Administrative & General, Billing & Collecting 2,293,602 2,525,930 2,525,930

Operation & Maintenance 1,474,146 1,516,331 1,516,331

Depreciation & Amortization 1,865,397 2,031,382 2,031,382

Property Taxes 123,852 126,946 126,946

Capital Taxes 9,738 [0} 0

Deemed Interest 744,194 934,897 934,897
Total Costs and Expenses 6,510,928 7,135,485 7,135,485

Less OCT Included Above 0 o] 0
Total Costs and Expenses Net of OCT 6,510,928 7,135,485 7,135,485
Utility Income Before Income Taxes 224,131 -176,350 1,580,267
Income Taxes:

Corporate Income Taxes 37,894 -84,092 333,825
Total Income Taxes 37,894 -84,092 333,825
Utility Net Income 186,236 -92,257 1,246,442
Capital Tax Expense Calculation:

Total Rate Base 27,984,354 31,635,594 31,635,594

Exemption 15,000,000 15,000,000 15,000,000

Deemed Taxable Capital 12,984,354 16,635,594 16,635,594

Ontario Capital Tax 9,738 [¢] o]
Income Tax Expense Calculation:

Accounting Income 224,131 -176,350 1,580,267

Tax Adjustments to Accounting Income -61,568 -177,112 -177,112
Taxable Income 162,563 -353,462 1,403,155
Income Tax Expense 37,894 -84,092 333,825
Tax Rate Refecting Tax Credits 23.31% 23.79% 23.79%
Actual Return on Rate Base:

Rate Base 27,984,354 31,635,594 31,635,594

Interest Expense 744,194 934,897 934,897

Net Income 186,236 -92,257 1,246,442
Total Actual Return on Rate Base 930,430 842,640 2,181,339
Actual Return on Rate Base 3.32% 2.66% 6.90%
Required Return on Rate Base:

Rate Base 27,984,354 31,635,594 31,635,594
Return Rates:

Return on Debt (Weighted) 4.43% 4.93% 4.93%

Return on Equity 9.85% 9.85% 9.85%

Deemed Interest Expense 744,194 934,897 934,897

Return On Equity 1,102,584 1,246,442 1,246,442
Total Return 1,846,777 2,181,339 2,181,339
Expected Return on Rate Base 6.60% 6.90% 6.90%
Revenue Deficiency After Tax 916,347 1,338,700 o
Revenue Deficiency Before Tax 1,194,883 1,756,617 o
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Woodstock Hydro Holdings Inc (WHHI’s) 2009 Annual Report is included as Appendix F to this

Exhibit.

WHSI Audited Financial Statements

WHSI’s audited financial statements from 2006 to 2009 are included as Appendices G, H, I, and

J to this Exhibit.

WHSI Pro-Forma Financial Statements

WHSI’s Pro-Forma Financial Statements for the 2010 Bridge and 2011 Test Years are included as

Appendices L and M to this Exhibit
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am
pleased to report that 2009 provided a
number of positive results and is recognized
by the Board as the tremendous efforts by the
employees at Woodstock Hydro.

Woodstock Hydro Holdings will declare
a dividend for third consecutive year to the
Shareholder, The City of Woodstock to cap
another year of strong fiscal management and
performance.

Board of Directors

Daniel McMullen
John Krill

The City of Woodstock continues to be a leader in energy
conservation programs within the Province. Woodstock Hydro
continued fo promote OPA conservation programs, transferring
more than $300,000 into customer infrastructure improvements.
To assist with the promotion and awareness campaign, Woodstock
Hydro continues to Chair the Energy Innovation Committee with
the local Chamber of Commerce. We were pleased to present
a local manufacturer, Arcellor-Mittal with the Chambers Energy
Innovation Award - a great way to raise the profile of energy
conservation leaders within our community.

Among the many gratifying moments of serving
on the board of Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.
(WHSI) is presenting the annual financial report.
Why is it a pleasure to do so Because it is

w W

, the culminating moment in the operating year,
Board of Directors  Where all the hard work of WHSI employees
. is made known; and 2009 is the year where it
John Kril was never more obvious.
Daniel McMullen
Ron Charie 2009 marked a record year of capital investment

in electrical distribution infrastructure by WHSI.
Over $3 million was invested in improvements
to Woodstock's electrical system. For example:

* over 100 customer homes were converted to 27.6KV via a
rebuild of the ageing 4KV system;

¢ the overhead distribution system was rebuilt on Bower Hill Road,
Beards Lane, Commerce Way and Parkison Road;

* automated switching units were installed on the WHSI grid,
allowing protection and rapid system voltage recovery in ?ood
sensitive areas; and

¢ the underground distribution system was rebuilt in Woodstock's
south-west downtown area.

These improvements are an investment in the City of Woodstock,

and will ensure longterm reliability for WHSI customers in years
to come.

i
Wil

Woodstock Hydro Holdings Inc. /

Woodstock

Y
MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIR \ H

Woodstock

An ISO 9001:2008 Registered Company

Woodstock Hydro worked closely with customers interested in
renewable energy, and in 2009, connected our first microFIT
renewable customers. Woodstock Hydro  supported the
installation, education and public awareness process and look
forward to taking a Ieodersﬁip role in future renewable energy
expansion projects.

In 2009, Woodstock Hydro Services delivered a record year of
capital improvements that will provide the backbone to deliver
reliable service to The City of Woodstock for years to come. This
focus on reliability continues in 2010 and a look to the future
with new conservation programs, the review of alternative energy
sources will be part of our efforts in 2010.

The Board congratulates all employees of Woodstock Hydro
Services for another year of positive results and contribution to be
the reliable provider of electricity to the City of Woodstock.

op

Dan McMullen
Chair

Woodstock

Hydro

An ISO 9001:2008 Registered Company

MESSAGE FROM THE CHAR
Hydro Services Inc.

Also throughout 2009, WHSI worked collaboratively with Hydro
One to improve fransmission grid reliability in and around
Woodstock. By the end of 2011, the City of Woodstock will enjoy
the long-term benefits of an improved transmission and distribution
skuﬁion upgrade involving a total investment in excess of $100
million.

And finally in 2009, WHSI successfully implemented the conversion
fo Smart metering for the maijority of our residential and commercial
customers. Whiige this program is a mandate of the Province, in the
long run, all will enjoy the environmental benefits brought about by
conserving energy.

Thank you to all the employees of WHSI and to my fellow board
members Dan McMullen and Ron Charie for another excellent
year. Enclosed, | present to you the audited 2009 WHSI Financial
Statements.

Y 7/

J.P.Krill
Chair

Woodstock Hydr
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WOODSTOCK HYDRO HOLDINGS INC. WOODSTOCK HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.

Auditors’ Report Consolidated Balance Sheet

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet December 31 2009 2008
of WOODSTOCK HYDRO HOLDINGS INC. as at A
December 31, 2009 and the consolidated statements csse's
of operations and retained earnings and cash flows urrent
for the year then ended. These financial statements gﬁSh ond bank 32,181,863 54’223’%;
the responsibility of the company's management orkterm investhents ) '
are ponsioilil pany's manag : Accounts receivable 3,513,459 3,379,720
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Unbilled revenue 3,606,543 2977,160
financial statements based on our audit. Income taxes receivable 123,093 264,577
Due from related parties (Note 11) 121,192 107,300
We conducted our audit in accordance with Inventories (Note 3) 943,213 911,186
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Prepaid expenses 140,727 155,149
Those standards require that we plan and perform 10.630.090 12,144 104
an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the e Y
finoncigl statements are free of material misstatement. Capital assets (Note 4) 20,611,828 19622067
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence .
. . . . . Future income tax asset 2,460,100 2,285,220
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial Long-ferm deposit
statements. An audit also includes assessing the - Hydro One TS (Note 5) 169,500 169500
accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the $33,871,518  $34220,891
overall financial statement presentation.
Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity
In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements Curr:nt ble and
fairly, in all material respects, the financial ccounts pryable an
present tairly, pects, accrued liabilities $5,632,578 $5,092,709
position of the company as at December 31, 2009 Deferred revenue - 500,622
and the results of its operations and the changes Accrued payroll and vacation pay 160,549 139,916
in its financial position for the year then ended in Current porfion of
accordance with Canadian generally accepted customer deposits (Note 6) 316,500 327,000
accounting principles. 6,109,627 6060247
Sick leave liability 126,052 121,589
]zg \B o C“”""’"‘gﬂi—/ ez Long-term customer
deposits (Note 6) 1,027,270 770,065
Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants Regulatory liabilities (Note 7) 231,452 1,277,198
Long-term debt (Note 8) 10,941,862 10,941,862
: Accrued benefit
xgﬁsgogk,z(g?gno obligation (Note 14) 1,118,833 1,087,527
19,555,096 20,258,488
Shareholder's equity
Share capital (Note 10) 35,060 35,060
Contributed surplus 11,511,097 11,511,097
Retained earnings 2,770,265 2,416,246
14,316,422 13,962,403

VR

$ 33,871,518 S 34,220,891
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WOODSTOCK HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.

Consolidated Statement of

Operations and Retained Earnings

WOODSTOCK HYDRO HOILDINGS INC.
Consolidated Statement

of Cash Flows

Woods ock Hydro HoI‘d|ng Inc. Annual Report -

‘ Deoember 31,2009

For the year ended December 31 2009 2008 For the year ended December 31 2009 2008
Sale of energy Cash provided by (used in)
dentt Operating activities
gzzlgft?ltls(:elrvice 3 2:;22:;;3 Slgjggﬁg Net income for the year $ 579,019 $ 896,295
Street/Sentinel lighting 2,896 2951 ems not involing ash:
gfs't‘::'bﬁ?lgrngy sales 2'2(2)‘;'232 nggg;;’ copitl assefs 1,996,673 1914661
iive ch ’ 9' 46 5'7 53' 583 Future income taxes
Non-competitive charges 5,669,5 i 29, provision (recovery) (174,880) (388,597)
Gain on disposal of
27,758,177 34,089,638 capital assefs (3,520)
Service revenue adjustment (93,728) (52,375) Increase (decrease) in
sick leave liability 4,463 (12,730)
27,664,449 34,037,263 Increase in accrued
benefit obligation 31,306
t of h 21,258,81 27 420,4
Cost of power purchased 58,813 0,436 2,433,061 2.409,629
Gross margin on Net change in non-cash
service revenue 6,405,636 6,616,827 working capital balances
Other operating revenue 500,172 759,076 (Note 12) (593,255) (523,742)
6,905,808 7,375,903 1,839,806 1,885,887
Investing activities
Expenses Purchase of capital assets (2,986,434)  (2,640,675)
Operating and maintenance 1,592,150 1,512,314 Proceeds on sale of capital assets 3,520 -
Administration and general 1,856,767 1,876,338 (Decrease) increase in
Financial expense 593,878 869,913 regulatory assets/liabilities (1,045,746) 748,302
Amortization 1,871,315 1,766,770 Increase in long-term deposits - (169,500)
Write down of investment - 462 (4,028,660)  (2061,873)
5,914,110 6,025,797 Financing activities
. Repayment of long-term debt - (10,941,862)
Income before income taxes 991,698 1,350,106 Proceeds from long-term debt - 10,941,862
Dividends paid (225,000) (260,886)
Income taxes Increase in customer deposits 246,705 24,986
Current 587,559 842,408
Future (recovery) (174,880) (388,597) 21,705 (235,900)
Decrease in cash and cash
42,679 453811 equivalents during the year (2,167,149) (411,886)
Net income for the year 579,019 896,295  Cash and cash equivalents,
beginning of year 4,349,012 4,760,898
Retained earnings,
beginning of year 2,416,246 2477584  Cash and cash equivalents,
end of year $2,181,863 54,349,012
Dividends paid (225,000) (260,886)
Represented by
Correction of prior period (Note 1) - (696,747) Cash and bank $2,181,863 $4,298575
Short-term investments - 50,437
Retained earnings,
end of year $ 2,770,265 $2416,246 $2,181,863 54,349,012
o a ! o A e / N
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WOODSTOCK HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business

The company was incorporated under the laws of Ontario and
is licensed by the Ontario Energy Board (“OEB”) as an electricity
distributor. The principle activity of the company is to operate
distribution facilities and distribute electricity to customers within their
Licensed Territory as defined in the Distribution License. The company
is regulated by tKe OEB under authority of the Ontario Energy Board
Act, 1998.

Basis of Consolidation
These financial statements include the financial statements of
Woodstock Hydro Holdings Inc. and those of its subsidiary company
Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.

Basis of Accounting

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (Canadian
GAAP), including accounting principles as required by the Ontario
Energy Board under authority of Section 57, 70(2) and 78 of the
Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, and policies set forth in the “OEB

Accounting Procedures Handbook”.

Financial Instruments

In accordance with CICA Handbook Section 3855, Financial
Instruments, Recognition and Measurement, all financial instruments
are classified info one of the following four categories: held-for-
trading, held-fo-maturity, loans and receivables, or other financial
liabilities. All financial instruments, including derivatives, are carried
at fair value on the Balance Sheet.

On initial recognition, all financial instruments that meet the
definition of a gnonciol asset or financial liability are recorded
at fair value, unless fair value cannot be reliably determined.
Subsequent measurement depends on the category to which the
financial instrument has been classified. The company has elected
the following balance sheet classifications with respect fo its financial
assets and financial liabilities.

Cash is classified as “heldfortrading” and is measured at fair value.
Transaction costs are expensed as incurred.

Cash equivalents, comprising of shortterm investments, are financial
assets jassified as “held-fo-maturity-investments" and are measured
at amortized cost, which, upon initial recognition, is considered
equivalent to fair value. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred.

Accounts receivable are classified as “loans and receivables” and
are measured at amortized cost, which, upon initial recognition, is
considered equivalent to fair value. Subsequent measurements are
recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
The carrying amounts of these instruments approximate their fair
value due to their relatively short periods to maturity. Transaction
costs are expensed as incurred.

Accounts payable, accrued liabilities, and longterm debt are
classified as “other financial liabilities” and are initially measured
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at their fair value. Subsequent measurements are recorded at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The
carrying amount of accounts payable and accrued liability
instruments approximate their fair value due to their relatively
short periods to maturity. Transaction costs are expensed as
incurred. Longferm debt also approximates its fair vqﬁje.

Inventories
Inventories consist of parts, supplies, and materials held for
maintenance and are stated at tEe lower of average cost or net
realizable value.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization.
Costs may include material, labour, contracted services,
overhead, and engineering costs, and are net of related
investment tax credits, government grants, and contributions in
aid of consfruction received. Work-in-progress costs may include
the same cost discussed above, these assets are not amortized
until available for use. Amortization is based on the estimated
useful life of the asset and is recorded on the straightline basis
over the following number of years:

Buildings 25 years
Distribution stations 30 years
Distribution systems 25 years
Transformers 25 years
Meters 15-25 years
Office equipment 10 years
Rolling stocﬁ 5-8 years
Stores equipment 10 years
Tools and equipment 10 years
Computer equipment 5 years
Computer software 5 years
Organization expense 40 years

Pudyments In Lieu of Corporate Taxes (PILS)

Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the company is responsible for
making payments in lieu of corporate income and capital taxes
to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation (OEFC). These
payments are calculated in accordance with the Income Tax
Act (Canada) and the Corporations Tax Act (Ontario), and are
modified by regulations made under the Electricity Act, 1998.

The company follows the asset/liability method of accounting
for income taxes. Future income fax assets that are likely to be
realized and future income tax liabilities are recognized for
temporary differences between the tax and accounting basis of
assefs and liabilities. Any payment in lieu of future tax assets
are reassessed each year to determine if a valuation allowance
is required. Any effect of the re-measurement or reassessment
is recognized in the period of the change. Future tax amounts
are measured at enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which temporary differences are expected
to be recovered or seftled.

Hydro Holding Inc. Annual Report - December 31, 2009
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WOODSTOCK HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Regulatory assets and liabilities

Regulatory assets and liabilities arise as a result of the rate seffing
process by the OEB. Based on OEB regulations, certain costs and
variance account balances are recorded as regulatory assefs or
regulatory liabilities and are reflected in the balance sheet until the
OEB determines the manner and timing of their disposition.

Regulatory assets represent future revenues associated with certain
costs, incurred in current or prior periods, that are expected fo be
recovered through the rafe sefting process.

Regulatory assefs and liabilities can arise from differences in amounts
billed to customers (based on regulated rates) and the corresponding
cost of non-competitive electricity service incurred by the company
in the wholesale market administered by the Independent Electricity
System Operator (“IESO”) after May 1, 2002. These amounts have
been accumulated pursuant to regulations underlying the Electricity
Act, 1998, and deferred in anticipation of their future recovery in
electricity distribution service charges. Amounts recorded are subject
fo review and approval by the OEB.

In the absence of rate regulation, Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles would require that the costs be recognized as
an expense or capital asset, as applicable, when incurred and the
related recovery of these costs in income when received or receivable.

The expected recovery or settlement period, or likelihood of recovery
and settlement, is affected by risks and uncertainties relating to the
ultimate authority of the OEB in determining the item’s treatment for
rafe-sefting purposes. The company believes that it is probable that
the OEB will factor its regulatory assets and liabilities into the setting
of future rafes. If at some future date the company determines that it
is no longer probable that the OEB will include a regulatory asset
or liability in future rates, the appropriate carrying amount will be
charged to operations in the period the determination is made.

Accrued Benefit Obligation

The accrued benefit obligation and current service costs are calculated
using the projected benefit method prorated on service and based on
assumptions that reflect management's best estimate. The transitional
obligation recognized is amortized info expense prospectively over
11 years, which is reflective of the average remaining service period
of active employees expected to receive benefits under the plan.
Any actuarial gains or losses are amortized info expense using the
corridor method.

Revenue Recognition

Distribution revenue is recorded on the basis of regular meter readings
and estimates of customer usage since the last meter reading date to
the end of the period. Estimated customer usage from the last meter
reading date to the period end (unbilled revenue) is included in
revenue.

Distribution and energy related revenues affributable to the supply
and delivery of electricity are based on OEB-approved rates and are
recognized as electricity is delivered to customers.

g
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Other revenues, which include pole attachment fees, customer
demand work, and other miscellaneous revenues are recognized
at the time the service is provided.

Rate Regulating

The rates of the company’s electricity business are subject to
regulation by the OEB. The OEB has the general power to include
or exclude costs, revenues, losses or gains in the rates of a specific
period, resulting in a change in the timing of accounting recognition
from that which would have applied in an unregulated company.
Such change in timing gives rise fo the recognition of regulatory
assefs and liabilities. The company’s regulatory assefs represent
certain amounts receivable from future customers and costs that
have been deferred for accounting purposes because it is probable
that they will be recovered in future rates. In addition, the company
has recorded regulatory liabilities which represent amounts for
expenses incurreg in difterent periods that would be the case had
the company not been regulated. Specific regulatory assets and
liabilities are disclosed in Note 7.

As prescribed by regulatory rate order, payment in lieu of taxes
are recovered throug% cusfomer rates based on the taxes payable
method. Rates do not include the recovery of payment in lieu of
future taxes related to temporary differences between the tax basis
of assets and liabiliies and their carrying amounts for accounting
purposes.

Power Purchases

The power bill received from the Independent Electricity System
Operator (IESO) is recorded in the period to which it refers and not
in the period in which it is received.

Costs for power purchased represent the cost of electricity delivered
fo customers within the company'’s distribution service territory
and consist of the wholesale commodity cost of energy, the IESO
wholesale market service charges, and tfransmission charges levied
by the IESO.

Use of Estimates

The preparation offinancial statements in accordance with Canadian
generofl)y accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities ot the date of the financial statements,
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from management's
best estimates as additional information becomes available in the
future, including changes as a result of future decisions made by
the OEB, the Minister of Energy and Infrastructure, or the Minister
of Finance.

Accounts receivable is based on expected amounts to be recovered
less an appropriate allowance for unrecoverable amounts based
on prior experience. Unbilled revenue and regulatory assets are
reported based on amounts expected to be recovered.

009




WOODSTOCK HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Correction of Prior Period

During the year, an actuarial analysis was performed on the
company's employee postretirement non-pension benefits as
of January 1, 2009. The results of the analysis yielded that
a liability related to these benefits existed as of January 1,
2009 (Note 14).

Due to an underestimation of the number of employees
eligible for the receipt of these benefits, the company had
never recognized a liability for the future cost of the benefits.

Given the expertise required to calculate the liability
associated with these benefits, and the many variables that
are required to quantify the liability that may have existed
in periods prior to the year ended December 31, 2008,
determining a liability for prior periods was not practical.
As such, an adjustment has been made to the current years
refained earnings fo reflect the existence of the liability that
existed at January 1, 2009.

The effect of the restatement on 2008 is summarized below:

2008
Assets
Increase in Future income tax asset $390,780
Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity
Increase in Accrued benefit obligation $1,087,527
Decrease in Retained earnings $(696,747)
$390,780

2. Change in Accounting Policy

Regulatory (Liabilities) Assets

Effective January 1, 2009, the company adopted amended
Canadian Institute  of Chartered Accountants  (CICA)
Handbook Section 1100 - "Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP)". The amendment to Handbook Section
1100 removes the temporary exemption for rate-regulated
entities pertaining to the application of that section to the
recognition and measurement of assets and liabilities arising
from rate regulation. The company has determined that in
accordance with the amendments in Handbook Section
1100 that its assets and liabilities arising from rate-regulated
activities qualify for recognition under GAAP. As such, the
amendments to this Handbook Section have had no impact
on the company's financial statements.

‘ " S o A |
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Effective January 1, 2009, the company adopted amended
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA) Handbook
Section 3465 - "Income Taxes". The amendment to Handbook
Section 3465 requires the recognition of future income tax
liabilities and assets as well as a separate regulatory asset
or liability balance for the amount of future income taxes
expected to be included in future tax rates and recovered from
or paid to customers. Through a review of the company's rate
sefting application it was determined by management that the
effect of these amendments had no impact on the company's
financial statements.

Financial Instruments

In June 2009, the CICA amended Handbook Section 3862 to
include additional disclosure requirements with respect to fair
value measurement of financial instruments and to enhance
liquidity risk disclosure requirements. Handbook Section
3862 establishes a fair value hierarchy which includes three
categories for fair value measurement

Fair value is based on unadjusted quoted prices for
identical assets or liabilities in an active market.

Level 1:

level 2: Fair value is based on quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities in active markets, valuation that
is based on significant observable inputs or inputs
that are derived principally for or corroborated with
observable market data through correlation or other

means.

Fair value is based on valuation techniques that
require one or more significant unobservable inputs
or the use of broker quotes. These unobservable
inputs reflect the Company's assumptions about the
assumptions market participants would use in pricing
the assets or liabilities.

Level 3:

These amendments were adopted by the company, however,
there was no impact on the company's financial statements.

eport - December 31, 2009
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WOODSTOCK HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Inventories

December 31, 2009

CICA Handbook Section 3031 - “Inventories”, requires the
company to retrospectively reclassify all amounts related to future

2009 2008  components of its electricity distribution system from inventory to
capital assets. Once capitalized, these items are amortized when
Plant materials $ 386,604 $404341  they become available for use.
Smart meters 556,609 506,845
Included in inventory are assets that are deemed "stranded". These
Total $943,213 $911,186  assets relate to meters that have been replaced by smart meters.
The amount carried in the company's inventory is $111,194 as at
December 31, 2009. Disposition of these costs will be determined
in future proceedings of the Ontario Energy Board.
4. Capital Assets 2009 2008
Accumulated Accumlated
Cost Amortization Cost Amortization
Land ) 39,365 S - S 39,365 S -
Buildings and distribution system 31,117,593 11,907,106 28,696,934 10,321,238
Machinery and equipment 4,565,116 3,303,407 4,137,562 2,943,531
Organization expense 16,365 3,806 16,365 3,390
Work-in-progress 87,708 -
$ 35,826,147 $15,214,319 S 32,890,226 $13,268,159
Net book value $20,611,828 $19,622,067

At December 31, 2009, the net book value of stranded meters related to the deployment of smart meters included in buildings
and distribution systems was $1,263,892 net of accumulated amortization. In the absence of rate-regulation, capital assets
would have been reduced by this amount as of December 31, 2009. Disposition of these costs will be determined in future

proceedings of the Ontario Energy Board.

5. Long Term Deposit - Hydro One TS

A letter Agreement between the company and Hydro
One for construction of a new transformer station was
signed on May 29, 2008. In accordance with the Letter
Agreement, the company provided a deposit of $169,500
in July 2008 ($150,000 plus taxes) that represented 50%

of the cancellation cost.

The company anticipates the Connection Cost Recovery
Agreement (CCRA) will be signed in 2010 and
construction of the new transformer station will begin in
the same year. Additional funding for the construction
of this station will be required by the company, and the
anticipated payment schedule related to the additional
contribution is as follows:

50% of the contribution at signing, less the current deposit;

25% of the contribution at the commencement of
construction; and,

25% at the completion of the project.

At this time, the expected completion date for the transformer
station is the fourth quarter of 2011.

6. Customer Deposits

Customer Deposits include amounts collected from customers
to guarantee the payment of energy bills. The customer deposit
liability includes interest credited to the customer’s deposit
accounts, with the debit charged to interest expense. Deposits
expected to be refunded to customers within the next fiscal year
are classified as a current liability. Customer deposits also include
prudential deposits received from retailers.

Developer deposits collected for maintenance deposits and
deposits for recoverable work are also included in Customer
Deposits.

ember 31, 200
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WOODSTOCK HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

7. Regulatory (Liabilities) Assets

2009 2008

Deferred payments in lieu of taxes $ 305,298 $302,578
Settlement sales variance (2,125,997) (1,735,864)
Smart mefers 1,279,867 (127,118)
Other regulatory assets 274,837 249,251
Assets recovered through rates 34,543 33,955
$(231,452)  $(1,277,198)

For most of the regulatory assets and liabilities identified
the expected recovery or settlement period, or likelihood of
recovery or seflement, is affected by risks and uncertainties
relating fo the ultimate authority of the OEB in determining the
item’s treatment for rate-setting purposes. These costs have been
deferred in accordance with OEB regulatory requirements.
Amounts recorded are subject to review and approval of the

OEB.

The regulatory (liability) asset balances of the company are
defined as follows:

Deferred payments in lieu of taxes

The company has accumulated a PILS variance amount
representing differences that have resulted from a legislative or
regulatory change to the tax rates or rules assumed in the rate
adjustment model. The 2009 OEB prescribed carrying charges
were $2,720 (2008 - $9,591).

Settlement sales variance

In May 1, 2002 the Ontario energy market opened to
competition. Since May 1, 2002, the difference between the
cost of power based on time-of-use rates and amounts billed
to non-time-of-use customers charged at an average rate are
recorded in seftlement variance accounts as directed by the
OEB; variances resulting from energy line-loss are also included.
These sales variance accounts ensure that a utility’s gross profit
is limited fo distribution revenue and service charges.

Smart meter recovery

Effective May 1, 2006, the OEB has allowed the company to
defer revenues, capital expenditures, operating expenditures
and amortization relating to smart meters. Accordingly, the
company has deferred these items in accordance with criteria
set out in the Accounting Procedures Handbook.

In connection with the smart meter initiative, the corporation
has incurred capital costs relating to their installation in 2009
of $1,314,184 (2008 - $nil) net of amortization. Along with
the capital expenditures incurred, the company also incurred
operating, maintenance and amortization expenses in 2009

Ll j.m%%@é%ﬁ%«‘f s Tl s il

Woodstock Hydro H’oldmg Inc Annual Report - December 31, 2009

December 31, 2009

of $211,457 (2008 - $nil), and incurred OEB prescribed
carrying charges of $855 (2008 - $3,706). For the year ended
December 31, 2009, the company collected smart meter
customer revenues of $119,512 (2008 - $47,952) from rate
riders.

Other regulatory assets

OEB Assessment Costs

In December 2004, Local Distribution Companies (LDC's) were
allowed to establish a deferral account to record the annual
costs assessed by the OEB. The amounts recorded as deferral
costs are the amounts by which the annual OEB assessment
costs for the period January 1, 2004 to April 30, 2006,
exceed the amounts being recovered through distribution rates.
Subsequent to April 30, 2006, the annual assessment costs
have been fully expensed by the company. It is anticipated the
costs deferred will be reviewed by the OEB for final approval
in a future rate application process. In 2009, OEB prescribed
carrying charges of $383 (2008 - $1,351) for OEB cost
assessment inferest were recorded.

Pension Contributions

In December 2004, an OEB deferral account was established
to record OMERS cash pension costs between January 1, 2005
and April 30, 2006 that were not recovered in rates. On May 1,
2006, pension cost contributions to OMERS were incorporated
into the distribution rafes. In 2009, OEB prescribed carrying
charges of $2,081 (2008 - $7,341) for pension contribution
interest were recorded.

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) Costs

In 2009, an OEB deferral account was established to record
one-time administrative costs related to the transition to IFRS. In
2009, one-time costs incurred for IFRS transition were $22,008
(2008 - $nil).

Renewable Generation Connection Costs

In 2009, an OEB deferral account was established to record
costs associated with renewable energy costs. The deferral of
costs includes those associated with demonstration projects,
planning, education and training related to renewable energy
development. In 2009, costs incurred for renewable energy
education were $1,114 (2008 - $nil).

Assets recovered through rates

The regulatory assets recovery account (RARA) includes
regulatory asset balances the OEB has approved for recovery
and recovered over a period ending March 31, 2008. The OEB
has indicated that a future proceeding will address seftlement of
the residual balance in the RARA account. The RARA is credited
with recovery amounts and is debited by OEB - prescribed
carrying charges. In the absence of rate regulation, these would
have been capitalized or expensed under Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles.
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WOODSTOCK HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

8. Long-term Debt

2009 2008

4.975% CIBC term bank loan,
payable interest only monthly
until May 2012, payable
$87,385 principal and inferest
monthly thereafter until
October 2025

$10,941,862  $10,941,862

To mitigate exposure to interest rate risk, the company entered

into an Infernational Swaps and Derivatives Association

(ISDA), 200 Master Agreement concurrent with the entry

into the loan facility. The interest rate swap is used for non-

j)eculotive purposes to convert floating rate debt into fixed
ebt rate bearing interest at 4.975%.

The debt facilities are amortized on the basis of a 15 year
amortization schedule following a two-year interestonly
period. The long-term debt obligation is unsecured.

The agreement with respect to the CIBC credit facility contains
certain covenants regarding leverage, liquidity, restrictions
on business activities, restrictions on distributions, change
in ownership, mergers, acquisitions or change in line of
business, and limitations on additional debt.

Principal repayments for the next four years are as follows:

2010 S

2011 -
2012 328,309
2013 10,613,553

S 10,941,862

The debt facility has a termination date of October 1, 2025,
with early termination options available to both CIBC and the
company in July of 2013, 2018 and 2023.

Exercising the early termination option would result in either
a liability or an asset for the company. This value of the asset
of liability is based on an agreed upon amount between the
two parties involved, dependent on the market conditions at
the time of termination.
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9. Bank Operating Facility

The company has available an operating credit facility of up to
$3,000,000 from the Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce
at the corporate bank prime rate of interest plus 0.15%. At
December 31, 2009, there were no amounts drawn under
the facility (2008 - $nil). The company also has provided the
Independent Electricity System Operator with a $1,960,005
letter of credit. At December 31, 2009, there were no amounts
drawn under the facility (2008 - nil).

10. Share Capital

The authorized class "A" Special share capital of the company
is an unlimited number of nonvoting shares, with a stated
value equal to consideration received on issue, redeemable
and refractable at $100 per share and entitled to a non-
cumulative annual dividend to be determined each year by
the directors based on the redemption amount.

The authorized class "B" Special share capital of the company
is an unlimited number of voting shares, with a stated value
equal to the consideration received on issue, redeemable and
refractable at $100 per share and entitled to a non-cumulative
annual dividend to be determined each year by the directors
based on the redemption amount.

The authorized common share capital of the company is an unlimited
number of shares.

The issued share capital is as follows:
2009
$ 35,060

2008
$ 35,060

360 Common shares

11. Related Party Transactions

The City of Woodstock owns all the issued shares of Woodstock
Hydro Holdings Inc.

The followin? table summarizes the company's related party

transactions for the year:

2009 2008
Balance Sheet
Due from related parfies S 121,192 S 107,300
Statement of Operations
Other operating revenue S 194,524 S 146,146
Operating and maintenance S 3,478 N 9,505
Property taxes S 104,422 S 108,933
Financial expense S - S 616,027

These transactions are in the normal course of operations
and are measured at the exchange value (the amount of
consideration established and agreed to by the related
parties), which approximates the arm's length equivalent

value for sales of product. / C
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WOODSTOCK HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

12. Net Change in Non-cash Working Capital Balances

The net change in non-cash working capital balances consists of:

2009 2008
Accounts receivable S (133,739) S (279,552)
Unbilled revenue (629,383) (76,898)
Income taxes receivable 141,484 (264,577)
Due from related parties (13,892) -
Inventories (32,027) (124,469)
Prepaid expenses 14,422 (26,085)
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities 539,869 1,268,359
Income taxes payable - (445,738)
Due to related parties - (35,000)
Deferred revenue (500,622) (115,461)
Accrued payroll and
vacation pay 20,633 17,539
Inventory transfer to
capital assets (441,860)
S (593,255) S (523,742)
Interest paid S 533,380 S 853,961
Income taxes paid S 446,070 S 1543427

13. Pension

The company makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees
Retirement Fund (OMERS), which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf
of its staff. The plan is a defined benefit plan, which specifies the
amount of the refirement benefit to be received by the employees,
based on the length of service and rates of pay.

The amount contributed to OMERS for 2009 was $166,241 (2008 -
$162,841) for current service.

14. Accrued Benefit Obligation

The company has a number of unfunded benefit plans
providing refirement and  postemployment  benefits
(excluding pension) to most of its employees. The company
pays certain dental, medical and life insurance benefits
under unfunded defined benefit plans on behalf of its retired

employees.

The company measures its accrued benefits obligation for
accounting purposes as at December 31 of each year. The
latest actuarial valuation was performed as at January 1, 2009.

December 31, 2009

2009 2008

Accrued henefit obligation
Balance,

beginning of year S 1,087,527 S
Current service cost 21,820
Interest on benefits 64,899
Benefits paid (55,413)
Correction of prior

1,087,527
1,118,833 S 1,087,527

period error (Note 1)

Balance, end of year S

Since 2009 is the first year an actuarial analysis has been
completed on the accrued benefit obligation, comparative
information is unavailable.

The assumptions used in the measurement of the benefit
obligations are shown in the following table:

2009
Discount rafe 5.00 %
Withdrawal rate 2.00 %
Rate of compensation increase 3.30 %
Health care cost trend rate 9.00 %

For December 31, 2009, health costs are assumed to be
9.00%, these costs are assumed to decrease by 0.67%

annually until 2015, where they are assumed to remain at
5.00% thereafter.

15. Subsequent Event

Subsequent to year end, the company received an advance
from Ontario Infrastructure Projects Corporation ("OIPC")
in the amount of $1,696,744. This advance relates to a
financing agreement between the OIPC and the company for
the implementation of smart meters.

Under the agreement, the company has requested and been
approved for financing up to $3,000,000. This financing
agreement contains similar covenants to those of its longterm
debt and operating bank facility as noted in Notes 8 and
9, respectively, along with the requirement of maintaining a
minimum current ratio of 1.1:1.

The advances bear interest at the OIPC's floating rate plus a
spread assigned to the company's sector based on delivery
costs and risks, and is payable to the OIPC at the beginning of
every month in interest only payments.

Once the installation of the smart meters has been completed,
any advances made to the company will be rolled into
debentures with separate interest and repayment terms.

G Wit i il
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WOODSTOCK HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

16. Contingency

An action has been brought under the Class Proceedings Act,
1992. The plaintiff class seeks $500 million in restitution for
amounts paid to Toronto Hydro and to other Ontario municipal
electric utilities ("LDCs") who received late payment penalties
which constitute interest at an effective rate in excess of 60%
per year, contrary to Section 347 of the Criminal Code. This
action is at a preliminary stage. Pleadings have closed and
examinations for discovery have been conducted. The action
has not yet been certified as a class action and no discoveries
have been held, as the parties were awaiting the outcome of a
similar proceeding brought against Enbridge Gas Distribution
Inc. (formally known as Consumers Gas).

On April 22, 2004, the Supreme Court of Canada released
a decision in the Enbridge Gas case rejecting all of the
defences which had been raised by Enbridge Gas, although
the Court did not permit the Plaintiff class to recover damages
for any period prior to the issuance of the Statement of Claim
in 1994 challenging the validity of late payment penalties.
The Supreme Court remitted the matter back to the Ontario
Superior Court of Justice for determination of the damages. At
the end of 2006, a mediation process resulted in the seflement

17. Financial Instruments Risk Factors

Recognition and Measurement

December 31, 2009

of the damages payable by Enbridge and that seftlement was
approved by the Ontario Superior Court.

In 2007, Enbridge filed an application to the Ontario Energy
Board ("OEB") to recover the Court-approved amount and
related amounts from ratepayers. On February 4, 2008
the OEB approved the recovery of the said amounts from
ratepayers over a five year period.

After the release by the Supreme Court of Canada of its 2004
decision in the Enbridge Gas case, the plaintiffs in the LDC
late payment penalties class action indicated their infention to
proceed with their litigation against the LDCs. The parties are
in seflement discussions but no settlement has been reached.
At this time, it is not possible to quantify the effect, if any, on
the financial statements.

Woodstock Hydro Services Inc. collected total late penalties
of $827,148 from and after 1994 until January 1, 2002. No
determination of the portion of these payments which may
have constituted interest at an impermissible rate has been
made. Woodstock Hydro changed its late payment from 5%
to 1.5% effective January 1, 2002.

The company's carrying value of financial instruments consist of the following:

Designated Loans and Other financial
held-for-trading receivables liabilities

Cash and bank S 2181,863 N - S
Accounts receivable, net of allowance - 3,513,459 -
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (5,632,578)
Accrued payroll and vacation pay (160,549)
Sick leave liability (126,052)
Long term debt (10,941,862)
Accrued benefit obligation (1,118,833)
S 2181863 S 3513459 S (17.979,874)

The following is a discussion of risks and related mitigation strategies that have been identified by the company for financial
instruments. This list is not exhaustive of all risks, nor will the mitigation strategies eliminate all risks listed.
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WOODSTOCK HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such

as foreign exchange rates, interest rates, and commodity

Erices, will affect the Company’s cash flows of the value of its
oldings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk

management is to minimize the impact that market risks have

on the company’s cash flows.

The company does not have commodity risk and has limited
exposure fo changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

The company’s revenue requirement is recovered through
distribution rates and charges and other income, which
includes interest income. Currently, the difference in interest
revenue reduction and the actual interest income earned by
the company is immaterial.

Changes in interest rates do not have a significant impact
on cash payments that are required on the Company’s
debt obligations. Exposure to changes in interest rates are
mitigated through the use of an Interest Rate Swap (IRS) for the
company's long-term debt.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that of a financial loss to the company if
a customer or counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to
the company. The company’s maximum exposure to credit risk
is equal to the carrying value of its financial assets. Credit risk
can be prevalent in customers that are similarly affected by
economic or other conditions. Concentrations o?lconsumption
by class or individual customer may also impact risk due to
varying energy consumption patterns and allowable security
deposit requirements associated with each class.

The company’s objective is to maximize credit collection
and minimize bad debt expense. Credit risk is managed by
monitoring and limiting exposure to credit risk, subject to OEB
guidelines, on an ongoing basis.

Risk is mitigated by regulation which provides for certain
customers to provide security deposits for a prescribed period
of time. Customers may be required to post security fo receive
electricity or other services.

The carrying amount of accounts receivable is reduced through
the use of an allowance for doubtful accounts based on the
financial condition of the counter-parties and by applying a
percentage based amount to total accounts receivable, based
on past experience. The amount of the related impairment loss
is recognized in the income statement. Subsequent recoveries
of receivables previously provisioned are credited to the
income statement.

(ML ik It M&%&MMMWMWXW i
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December 31, 2009

Credit risk associated with accounts receivable is as follows:

2009
Total accounts receivable S 3548459
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (35,000)
S 3513459
Of which:
Qutstanding for not more than 30 days S 3282543
Outstanding for more than 30 days but not
more than 60 days 114,586
Outstanding for more than 60 days not not
more than 90 days 39,102
Qutstanding for more than 90 days 112,228
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (35,000)
S 3513459

As of December 31, 2009, the company is not exposed to
a significant concentration of credit risk within any customer
class or individual customer.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able
to meet its financial obligations as they become due. Short-
term liquidity is provided through cash and cash equivalents
on hand, funds from operations, as well as an established
$3,000,000 operating credit facility (Note 9). The company
believes that future cash flow from operating activities,
available capacity on its existing revolving credit facility and
access o additional liquidity through excess debt capacity will
be adequate to meet its financial obligations.

Due within  Due between Due after
1year 1and5 years 5 years
Finandial liabilities
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilifies $ 5632578 S - S
Accrued payroll and
vacation pay 160,549 -
Accrued sick leave 126,052
Long-term debt 10,941,862 -
Accrued benefit obligation 1,118,833
$5793127 S 11,067914 S 1,118,833

The timing of the accrued sick leave payable is unknown, and
would be dependent on when the eligible employees would
request to take the time, or retire. It has been reflected as due

between 1 and 5 years.
g | | ) ‘ [
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WOODSTOCK HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

18. Public Liability Insurance

The company is a member of the Electricity Distributors
Association Reciprocal Insurance Exchange which is a pooling
of the public liability insurance risks of many of the municipal
utilities in Ontario. All members of the pool are subject to
assessment for losses experienced by the pool for the years in
which they are members on a pro-rata basis based on the total
of their respective service revenues.

It is anticipated that, should such an assessment occur, it would
be funded over a period of up to five years. As at December
31, 2009, no assessments have been made.

19. Capital Disclosures

The company’s objectives when managing its capital are to:
- maintain a financial position that supports the company’s

operations and growth strafegies;
provide an adequate return fo its shareholder;
comply with covenants related to its credit facilities; and
align its capital structure for regulated activities with debt
fo equity structure recommendged by the OEB, which is
60% debt and 40% equity by 2010.

The company defines capital as shareholder's equity. As of
December 31, 2009, shareholder’s equity amounted to
$14,316,422 (2008 $]3 962,403).

The company has externally imposed capital requirements
in the form of credit facility agreements that contain various
financial and nonfinancial covenants (Note 8). The financial
covenants associated with the company’s credit facility are as
follows:

(i) maximum debt to capitalization ratio of 65% at any time;
and
(ii) minimum cash flow debt service ratio of 1.5 at any time.

As at December 31, 2009, the company was in compliance
with all of the above financial covenants.

20. Economic Dependence

The company purchases substantially all of its power from the
Independent Electricity System Operator. A minimal amount
of electricity is purchased from Hydro One for long-term load

transfers.

December 31, 2009

21. New Accounting Pronouncements

Section 1506, Accounting Changes requires disclosures of
when an entity has not applied a new primary source of GAAP
that has been issued but is not yet effective.

Recent accounting pronouncements that have been issued but
are not yet effective, and have a potential implication for the
company, are as follows:

International Financial Reporting Standards

On February 13, 2008, the CICA pronounced that publicly
accountable enterprises will adopt International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), for fiscal years beginning
on or after January 1, 2011. IFRS will require increased
financial statement disclosure. Although IFRS uses a conceptual
framework similar to Canadian GAAP, some differences in
accounting policies exist.

At this time, the impact on the company’s financial statements
is not reasonably determinable or estimable. The company is
currently developing an implementation plan for the adoption
of IFRS and has updated its information system to be
compatible with IFRS requirement. The OEB has also begun
an IFRS consultation to determine the nature of any changes
that should be made in regulatory reporting requirements in
response fo IFRS. The company will closely monitor the OEB
consultation as well as any International Accounting Standards
Board initiatives with the potential to impact rate regulated
accounting under IFRS.

22. Comparative Financial Statements

The comparative financial statement amounts have been
reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.
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Auditors' Report

To the Shareholder of
WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.

We have audited the balance sheet of WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC. as at December
31, 2006 and the statements of operations and retained earnings and cash flows for the year then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the company's management. Our
responsibility is {o express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the company as at December 31, 2006 and the results of its operations and the changes
in its financial position for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles.

Lt P

BPOLrepnn

Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

Woodstock, Ontario
April 3, 2007

BDO Dunwoody LLP is a Limited Liability Partuership registered in Onlario



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Balance Sheet

December 31 2006 2005
Assets
Current
Cash and bank $ 2,645,368 $ 3,659,048
Short-term investments 50,409 50,374
Accounts receivable 3,506,999 2,127,569
Unbilled revenue 2,683,549 3,748,928
Income taxes receivable 116,869 -
Due from related parties (Note 5) 11,806 13,735
Inventories 1,589,210 1,332,775
Prepaid expenses 102,789 100,429
10,706,999 11,032,858
Capital assets (Note 1) 17,318,295 17,014,136
Regulatory assets (Note 2) 445,324 845110
Future income tax asset 999,912 751,470

$ 29,470,530 $ 29,643,574

Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity

Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 4,197,377 $ 4,573,044
Income taxes payable - 352,000
Due to related parties (Note 5) 12,296 12,462
Deferred revenue 330,913 309,735
Accrued payroll and vacation pay 113,113 95,955
Current portion of customer deposits 219,000 114,000
4,872,699 5,457,196
Sick leave liability 130,353 170,703
Long-term customer deposits 527,416 555,909
Long-term debt (Note 3) 10,941,862 10,941,862

16,472,330 17,125,670

Shareholder's equity

Share capital (Note 4) 10,941,862 10,941,862
Retained earnings 2,056,338 1,676,042

12,998,200 12,517,904

$ 29,470,530 $ 29,643,574

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements,



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Statement of Operations and Retained Earnings

For the year ended December 31

2006

2005

Sale of energy
Residential
General service

$ 5,001,673 $ 4,791,728

12,338,873 15,638,496
Street/Sentinel lighting 159,450 144,222
Retail energy sales 5,430,654 5,817,877
Distribution 6,151,919 5,401,489
Non-competitive charges 6,208,387 6,833,115
35,290,956 38,626,927
Service revenue adjustment - (723,434)
35,290,956 37,903,493
Cost of power purchased 29,139,037 32,617,914
Gross margin on service revenue 6,151,919 5,285,579
Other operating revenue 886,599 895,185
7,038,518 6,180,764
Expenses
Qperating and maintenance 4,220,950 1,112,207
Administration and general 2,229,330 2,032,920
Financial expense 810,133 796,108
Amortization 1,581,823 1,513,230
Writedown of regulatory asset (Note 10) 296,694 -
6,138,930 5,454,465
Income before income taxes 899,588 726,299
Income taxes
Current 632,734 749,573
Future (recovery) (248,442) {474,034)
384,292 2755639
Net income for the year 515,296 450,760
Retained earnings, beginning of year 1,576,042 1,165,282
Dividends paid (35,000) {(40,000)
Retained earnings, end of year $ 2,056,338 $ 1,576,042

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31 2006 2005

Cash provided by (used in)

Operating activities

Net income for the year $ 515296 $ 450,760
ltems not involving cash:
Amortization of capital assets 1,792,991 1,685,597
Future income taxes recovery (248,442) (474,034)
Gain on disposal of capital assets {35,621) -
(Decrease) increase in sick leave liability {(40,350) 9,141

1,983,874 1,671,464

Net change in non-cash working capital balances (Note 6) (1,377,283) 1,305,970
606,591 2977434
Investing activities
Purchase of capital assets (2,097,150) (1,307,334)
Proceeds on sale of capital assets 35,621 -
Decrease in regulatory assets 399,786 205,978

(1,661,743) (1,101,356)

Financing activities

Dividends paid (35,000) (40,000)
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 76,507 {143,736)
41,507 (183,736)

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
during the year (1,013,645) 1,692,342
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 3,709,422 2,017,080
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 2,695777 $ 3,700,422

Represented by

Cash and bank $ 2,645,368 $ 3,659,048
Short-term investments 50,409 50,374

$ 2,695777 3 3,709,422

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

December 31, 2006

Nature of Business The company is incorporated under the laws of Ontario and is
engaged in the operation of distribution of electricity.

The accounting policies of the company are in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles as
prescribed by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB).

Financial Instruments The Company utilizes various financial instruments. Unless
otherwise noted, it is management's opinion that the company
is not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risks
arising from these financial instruments and the carrying
amounts approximate fair values.

Short-Term Investments Short-term investments are stated at the lower of cost and
market value.

Inventories Inventories are valued at average cost.
Capital Assets Capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortization. Amortization is recorded on the straight-line

basis over the estimated useful life of the individual assets at
the following annual rates:

Buildings and distribution system 3% t0 7%

Machinery and equipment 10% to 20%

Organization expense 2.5%
Revenue Recognition Service revenue is recorded on the basis of regular meter

readings and estimates of customer usage since the last meter
reading date to the end of the period. Estimated customer
usage from the last meter reading date to the period end
(unbilled revenue) is included in revenue.

Distribution revenues attributable to the delivery of electricity
are based on OEB-approved distribution rates and are
recognized as electricity is delivered to customers.



December 31, 2006

WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Rate Regulating

Power Purchases

The rates of the company's electricity business are subject to
regulation by the OEB. The OEB has the general power to
include or exclude costs, revenues, losses or gains in the rates
of a specific period, resulting in a change in the timing of
accounting recognition from that which would have applied in
an unregulated company. Such change in timing gives rise to
the recognition of regulatory assets and liabilities. The
company's regulatory assets represent certain amounts
receivable from future customers and costs that have been
deferred for accounting purposes because it is probable that
they will be recovered in future rates. In addition, the company
has recorded regulatory liabilities which represent amounts for
expenses incurred in different periods than would be the case
had the company been unregulated. Specific regulatory assets
and liabilities are disclosed in Note 2.

The company continually assesses the likelihood of recovery of
each of its regulatory assets and continues to believe that it is
probable that the OEB will factor its regulatory assets and
liabilities into the setting of future rates. If, at some future date,
the company judges that it is no longer probable that the OEB
will include a regulatory asset or liability in future rates, the
appropriate carrying amount will be reflected in results of
operations in the period that the assessment is made.

The power bill received from the Independent Electricity System
Operator is recorded in the period to which it refers and not in
the period in which it is received.



December 31, 2006

WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Payments In Lieu of Corporate
Taxes

Use of Estimates

Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the company is responsible for
making payments in lieu of corporate income and capital taxes
to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation (OEFC). These
payments are calculated in accordance with the Income Tax
Act (Canada) and the Corporations Tax Act (Ontario), and are
modified by regulations made under the Electricity Act, 1998.

The company follows the asset/liability method of accounting
for income taxes. Under this method, current income taxes are
recognized for the estimated income taxes payable for the
current year. As well, future income tax assets that are likely to
be realized and future income tax liabilities are recognized for
temporary differences between the tax and accounting basis of
assets and liabilities.

Future tax amounts are measured at enacted fax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from management's best estimates as additional
information becomes available in the future.



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2006

1. Capital Assets

2006 2005

Accumulated Accumulated

Cost Amortization Cost  Amortization

Land $ 39,365 § - $ 39,365 $ -
Buildings and distribution

system 23,583,517 7,569,800 22,136,244 6,180,666

Machinery and equipment 3,397,514 2,146,108 2,813,951 1,808,981

Organization expense 16,365 2,558 16,365 2,142

$ 27,036,761 $ 9,718,466 $ 25005925 $ 7,991,789

Net book value $ 17,318,295 $ 17,014,136

2. Regulatory Assets

2006 2005
Deferred payments in lieu of taxes $ 374,498 % 272,049
Extraordinary event losses - 296,694
Miscellaneous deferred asset - 44,400
Pre-market opening energy variances - 470,724
Qualifying transition costs - 330,747
Settlement sales variance (403,648) (233,327)
Smart meter recovery (27,131) -
Other regulatory asset 230,253 191,260
Assets recovered through rates 271,352 (527,437)

$ 445,324 5 845,110

These costs have been deferred in accordance with OEB regulatory requirements. Amounts
recorded are subject to review and approval by the OEB.



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2006

3. Long-term Debt

2006 2005
Promissory note payable to the City of
Woodstock - 6.756%, interest only payable
monthly. $ 10,941,862 $ 10,941,862

The note is payable on the giving of written demand, provided that the stipulated date for
payment must be at least twelve months after the date of giving such written demand for
payment. As at December 31, 2008, there has been no demand given.

4. Share Capital

The authorized class "A" Special share capital of the company is an unlimited number of non-
voting shares, with a stated value equal to consideration received on issue, redeemable and
retractable at $100 per share and entitled to a non-cumulative annual dividend to be
determined each year by the directors based on the redemption amount.

The authorized class "B" Special share capital of the company is an unlimited number of voting
shares, with a stated value equal to the consideration received on issue, redeemable and
retractable at $100 per share and entitled to a non-cumulative annual dividend to be
determined each year by the directors based on the redemption amount.

The authorized common share capital of the company is an unlimited number of shares.

The issued share capital is as follows:

2006 2005

360 Common shares $ 10,941,862 $ 10,941,862

10



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2006

5,

Related Party Transactions
The following entities are related to Woodstock Hydre Services Inc.:

- Woodstock Hydro Holdings Inc. - parent company
- Woodstock Info Energy Inc. - controlied by the same parent company
- City of Woodstock - owner of Woodstock Hydro Holdings Inc.

The following table summarizes the company's related party transactions for the year:

Woodstock Woodstock

Hydro Info City of

Holdings Inc. Energy Inc. Woodstock Total
Balance Sheet
Due from related parties $ 1,182 § 10,625 § 27,035 $ 38,842
Due to related parties $ - % 12,296 $ - % 12,296
Long-term debt $ - $ - $ 10,941,862 $ 10,941,862
Dividends paid $ ~ 35000 $ - % - % 35,000
Statement of Operations
Other operating revenue $ - % 10,679 $ - 3 10,679
Operating and maintenance $ - % - % 68,466 $ 68,466
Administration and general  $ - % 47,133 § 106,817 $ 153,950
Financial expense 3 - 3 - $ 739,230 % 739,230

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange
value (the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties), which
approximates the arm's length equivalent value for sales of product.
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WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2006

6. Net Change in Non-cash Working Capital Balances

The net change in non-cash working capital balances consists of:

2006 2005
Accounts receivable $ (1,379,430) $ 1,146,337
Unbilled revenue 1,065,379 (965,308)
Income taxes receivable {116,869) 337,190
Due from related parties 1,929 1,335
Inventories (256,435) (225,158)
Prepaid expenses (2,360) {9,698)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (375,667) 622,276
Income taxes payable {352,000) 352,000
Due to related parties (166) (10,883)
Deferred revenue 21,178 55,333
Accrued payroll and vacation pay 17,158 2,546

$ (1,377,283) $ 1,305,970

Interest paid $ 810,133 3 796,108

income taxes paid $ 1,101,603 $ 60,383

7. Pension

The company makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund
(OMERS), which is a muiti-employer plan, on behalf of its staff. The plan is a defined benefit
plan, which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employees,
based on the length of service and rates of pay.

The amount contributed to OMERS for 2006 was $140,736 (2005 - $137,532) for current
service.

12



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2006

8.

Contingency

An action has been brought under the Class Proceedings Act, 1992. The plaintiff class seeks
$500 million in restitution for amounts paid to Toronto Hydro and fo other Ontario municipal
glectric utilities ("LDCs") who received late payment penalties which constitute interest at an
effective rate in excess of 60% per year, confrary to Section 347 of the Criminal Code.
Pleadings have closed in this action. The action has not yet been certified as a class action
and no discoveries have been held, as the parties were awaiting the outcome of similar
proceedings brought against Enbridge Gas (formerly known as Consumer Gas).

On April 22, 2004, the Supreme Court of Canada released a decision in the Consumers Gas
case rejecting all of the defences which had been raised by Consumers Gas, although the
Court did not permit the Plaintiff class to recover damages for any period prior to the issuance
of the Statement of Claim in 1994 challenging the validity of late payment penalties. The
Supreme Court remitted the matter back to the Ontario Superior Court of Justice for
determination of the damages. Presently, a mediation process is underway to attempt to
resolve the issue of the damages payable by Enbridge Gas.

After the release by the Supreme Court of Canada of its 2004 decision in the Consumers Gas
case, the plaintiffs in the LDC late payment penalties class action indicated their intention to
proceed with their litigation against the LDCs. To date, no formal steps have been taken to
move the action forward. The electric utilities intend to respond to the action if and when it

proceeds on the basis that the LDCs' situation may be distinguishable from that of Consumer
Gas.

The Electricity Distributors Association is undertaking the defence of this class action.
Woodstock Hydro Services inc. collected total late penalties of $827,148 from and after 1994
uniil January 1, 2002. No determination of the portion of these payments which may have

constituted interest at an impermissible rate has been made. Woodstock Hydro changed its
late payment from 5% to 1.5% effective January 1, 2002,

Bank Operating Facility

The utility has available an operating credit facility of up to $3,000,000 from the Canadian
Imperial Bank of Commerce at prime rate. In addition, the utility has provided the Independent
Electricity System Operator with a $2,706,004 letter of credit. These credit facilities are
secured by a general security agreement covering all personal property owned by the utility.

13



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2006

10. Write down of Regulatory Asset

The company makes annual rate applications to the Ontario Energy Board (OEB) to recover its
regulatory assets. During the year, the OEB denied the company's rate application with

respect to the Extraordinary Event Loss asset, therefore, the company wrote off this asset in
the current year. - ‘
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BDO Dunwoody LLp 94 Graham Street
Chartered Accountants Woodstock Ontaric Canada N4S 6]7

Telephone: (519) 539-2081
Fax: (519) 539-2571
www.bdo.ca

and Advisors

Auditors' Report

To the Shareholder of
WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.

We have audited the balance sheet of WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC. as at December
31, 2007 and the statements of operations and retained earnings and cash flows for the year then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the company as at December 31, 2007 and the results of its operations and the changes
in its financial position for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles.

Brol. L P

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

Woodstock, Ontario
April 2, 2008

BDO Dunwoody LLp is a Limited Liability Partnership registered in Ontario



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Balance Sheet

December 31 2007 2006
Assets
Current
Cash and bank $ 4652014 $ 2645368
Short-term investments 50,452 50,409
Accounts receivable 3,207,349 3,506,999
Unbilled revenue 2,900,262 2,683,549
Income taxes receivable - 116,869
Due from related parties (Note 5) 189 11,806
inventories 1,322,647 1,689,210
Prepaid expenses 129,064 102,789
12,261,977 10,706,999
Capital assets (Note 1) 17,931,062 17,318,295
Regulatory assets (Note 2) - 445,324
Future income tax asset 1,505,844 999,912

$ 31,698,883 $ 29,470,530

Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity

Current

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 3,945,312 % 4,197,377
Income taxes payable 445,682 -
Due to related parties - 12,296
Deferred revenue 616,083 330,913
Accrued payroll and vacation pay 122,377 113,113
Current portion of customer deposits 259,000 219,000
5,388,454 4,872,699
Sick leave liability 134,319 130,353
Long-term customer deposits 691,632 527,416
Regulatory liabilities (Note 2) 528,896 -
Long-term debt (Note 3) 10,941,862 10,941,862
17,685,163 16,472,330

Shareholder's equity
Share capital (Note 4) 10,941,862 10,941,862
Retained earnings 3,071,858 2,056,338
14,013,720 12,998,200

$ 31,698,883 $ 29470530

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.

Statement of Operations and Retained Earnings

For the year ended December 31 2007 2006
Sale of energy
Residential $ 5,044,066 $ 5001673
General service 11,298,744 12,338,873
Street/Sentinel lighting 47,057 159,450
Retail energy sales 6,673,371 5,430,654
Distribution 6,475,336 6,151,919
Non-competitive charges 6,045,524 6,208,387
34,584,098 35,290,956
Service revenue adjustment {91,348) -
34,492,750 35,290,956
Cost of power purchased 28,017,413 29,139,037
Gross margin on service revenue 6,475,337 6,151,919
Other operating revenue 1,015,832 886,599
7,491,169 7,038,518
Expenses
Operating and maintenance 1,335,751 1,220,950
Administration and general 2,059,262 2,229,330
Financial expense 804,987 810,133
Amortization 1,673,186 1,681,823
Writedown of regulatory asset - 296,694
5,873,186 6,138,930
Income before income taxes 1,617,983 899,588
Income taxes
Current 1,078,394 632,734
Future (recovery) (505,931) (248,442)
572,463 384,292
Net income for the year 1,045,520 515,296
Retained earnings, beginning of year 2,056,338 1,676,042
Dividends paid {30,000) (35,000)

Retained earningﬁ, end of year

$ 3,071,858 $ 2,056,338

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



For the year ended December 31

WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Statement of Cash Flows

2007 2006

Cash provided by (used in)

Operating activities
Net income for the year
Items not involving cash:
Amortization of capital assets

$ 1,045520 $ 515,296

1,900,848 1,792,991

Future income taxes recovery (505,931) (248,442)
Gain on disposal of capital assets (15,300) (35,621)
Increase (decrease) in sick leave liability 3,966 (40,350)

2,429,103 1,983,874

Net change in non-cash working capital balances (Note 6) 927,466 (1,377,283)

Investing activities
Purchase of capital assets

Proceeds on sale of capital assets

Decrease in regulatory assets

Financing activities
Dividends paid
Increase in customer deposits

3,356,569 608,591

(2,513,615)  (2,097,150)
15,300 35,621
974,220 399,786

(1,524,095) (1,661,743)

{30,000) (35,000)
204,215 76,507
174,215 41,507

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

during the year

2,006,689 (1,013,645)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 2,695,777 3,709,422

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$ 4,702,466 $ 2695777

Represented by

Cash and bank
Short-term investments

$ 4,652,014 $ 2645368
50,452 50,409

$ 4,702,466 $ 2695777

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



December 31, 2007

WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business

Financial Instruments

The company is incorporated under the laws of Ontario and is
engaged in the operation of distribution of electricity.

The accounting policies of the company are in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles as
prescribed by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB).

The company utilizes various financial instruments. Unless
otherwise noted, it is management's opinion that the company
is not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risks
arising from these financial instruments and the carrying values
approximate fair values. All transactions related to financial
instruments are recorded on a settlement date basis.

The company classifies its financial instruments into one of the following categories based on
the purpose for which the asset was acquired. The company's accounting policy for each

category is as follows:

Held-for-trading

Loans and receivables

Other financial liabilities

Inventories

Capital Assets

This category is comprised of cash and cash equivalents.
They are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in the statement of
operations. Transaction costs related to instruments
classified as held-for-trading are expensed as incurred.

These assets are non-derivative financial assets resulting
from the delivery of cash or other assets by a lender to a
borrower in return for a promise to repay on a specified
date or dates, or on demand. They arise principally
through the provision of goods and services to customers.
Transaction costs related to loans and receivables are
expensed as incurred.

Other financial liabilities includes all financial liabilities
other than those classified as held-for-trading and
comprises trade payables, and other monetary liabilities.
Transaction costs related to other financial liabilities are
expensed as incurred.

Inventories are valued at average cost.

Capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortization. Amortization is recorded on the straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life of the individual assets at
the following annual rates:

Buildings and distribution system 3% to 7%
Machinery and equipment 10% to 20%
Organization expense 2.5%
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December 31, 2007

WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue Recognition

Rate Regulating

Power Purchases

Service revenue is recorded on the basis of regular meter
readings and estimates of customer usage since the last meter
reading date to the end of the period. Estimated customer
usage from the last meter reading date to the period end
(unbilled revenue) is included in revenue.

Distribution revenues attributable to the delivery of electricity
are based on OEB-approved distribution rates and are
recognized as electricity is delivered to customers.

The rates of the company's electricity business are subject to
regulation by the OEB. The OEB has the general power to
include or exclude costs, revenues, losses or gains in the rates
of a specific period, resulting in a change in the timing of
accounting recognition from that which would have applied in
an unregulated company. Such change in timing gives rise to
the recognition of regulatory assets and liabilities. The
company's regulatory assets represent certain amounts
receivable from future customers and costs that have been
deferred for accounting purposes because it is probable that
they will be recovered in future rates. In addition, the company
has recorded regulatory liabilities which represent amounts for
expenses incurred in different periods than would be the case
had the company been unregulated. Specific regulatory assets
and liabilities are disclosed in Note 2.

The company continually assesses the likelihood of recovery of
each of its regulatory assets and continues to believe that it is
probable that the OEB will factor its regulatory assets and
liabilities into the setting of future rates. If, at some future date,
the company judges that it is no longer probable that the OEB
will include a regulatory asset or liability in future rates, the
appropriate carrying amount will be reflected in results of
operations in the period that the assessment is made.

The power bill received from the Independent Electricity System
Operator is recorded in the period to which it refers and not in
the period in which it is received.



December 31, 2007

WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Payments In Lieu of Corporate
Taxes

Use of Estimates

Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the company is responsible for
making payments in lieu of corporate income and capital taxes
to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation (OEFC). These
payments are calculated in accordance with the Income Tax
Act (Canada) and the Corporations Tax Act (Ontario), and are
modified by regulations made under the Electricity Act, 1998.

The company follows the asset/liability method of accounting
for income taxes. Under this method, current income taxes are
recognized for the estimated income taxes payable for the
current year. As well, future income tax assets that are likely to
be realized and future income tax liabilities are recognized for
temporary differences between the tax and accounting basis of
assets and liabilities.

Future tax amounts are measured at enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from management's best estimates as additional
information becomes available in the future.



December 31, 2007

WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

1. Capital Assets

2007 2006

Accumulated Accumulated

Cost Amortization Cost  Amortization

Land $ 39,365 § - % 39,365 $ -
Buildings and distribution

system 25,625,491 9,049,166 23,583,517 7,569,800

Machinery and equipment
Organization expense

3,823,988 2,522,007 3,397,514 2,146,108

16,365 2,974 16,365 2,558

$ 29,505,209 $ 11,574,147 $ 27,036,761 $ 9,718,466

Net book value

$ 17,931,062 $ 17,318,295

2. Regulatory (Liabilities) Assets

Deferred payments in lieu of taxes
Settlement sales variance

Smart meter recovery

Other regulatory asset

Assets recovered through rates

2007 2006

$ 292,987 § 374,498
(1,092,631) (403,648)

(75,460) (27,131)
240,560 230,253
105,648 271,352

$ (528,896) $ 445,324

These costs have been deferred in accordance with OEB regulatory requirements. Amounts
recorded are subject to review and approval by the OEB.



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2007

3. Long-term Debt

2007 2006
Promissory note payable to the City of
Woodstock - 6.756%, interest only payable
monthiy. $ 10,941,862 $ 10,941,862

The note is payable on the giving of written demand, provided that the stipulated date for
payment must be at least twelve months after the date of giving such written demand for
payment. As at December 31, 2007, there has been no demand given.

4. Share Capital

The authorized class "A" Special share capital of the company is an unlimited number of non-
voting shares, with a stated value equal to consideration received on issue, redeemable and
retractable at $100 per share and entitled to a non-cumulative annual dividend to be
determined each year by the directors based on the redemption amount.

The authorized class "B" Special share capital of the company is an unlimited number of voting
shares, with a stated value equal to the consideration received on issue, redeemable and
retractable at $100 per share and entitled to a non-cumulative annual dividend to be
determined each year by the directors based on the redemption amount.

The authorized common share capital of the company is an unlimited number of shares.

The issued share capital is as follows:

2007 2006

360 Common shares $ 10,941,862 $ 10,941,862
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WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2007

5.

Related Party Transactions
The following entities are related to Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.:

- Woodstock Hydro Holdings Inc. - parent company
- Woodstock Info Energy Inc. - controlled by the same parent company
- City of Woodstock - owner of Woodstock Hydro Holdings Inc.

The following table summarizes the company's related party transactions for the year:

Woodstock Woodstock

Hydro Info City of

Holdings Inc. Energy Inc. Woodstock Total
Balance Sheet
Due from related parties $ 189 $ - 8 72,792 % 72,981
Capital assets $ - $ - % 7,327 % 7,327
Long-term debt $ - $ - $ 10,941,862 $ 10,941,862
Dividends paid 3 30,000 % - % - % 30,000
Statement of Operations
Other operating revenue $ - 8 946 $ 206,523 $ 207,469
Operating and maintenance  $ - $ - % 70,670 3 70,670
Administration and general  $ - % 1,151 $ 107,640 3 108,791
Financial expense $ - 3 - $ 739230 $ 739,230

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange
value (the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties), which
approximates the arm's length equivalent value for sales of product.
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WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2007

6. Net Change in Non-cash Working Capital Balances
The net change in non-cash working capital balances consists of:
2007 2006
Accounts receivable $ 299,650 $ (1,379,430)
Unbilled revenue (216,713) 1,065,379
Income taxes receivable 116,869 (116,869)
Due from related parties 11,617 1,929
Inventories 266,563 (256,435)
Prepaid expenses (26,275) (2,360)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (252,065) (375,667)
Income taxes payable 445,682 (352,000)
Due to related parties (12,2986) (166)
Deferred revenue 285,170 21,178
Accrued payroll and vacation pay 9,264 17,158
$ 927,466 $ (1,377,283)
Interest paid ’ $ 804,987 $ 810,133
Income taxes paid $ 515,843 $ 1,101,603
7. Pension

The company makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund
(OMERS), which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of its staff. The plan is a defined benefit
plan, which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employees,

based on the length of service and rates of pay.

The amount contributed to OMERS for 2007 was $146,541 (2006 - $140,736) for current

service.
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WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2007

8.

Contingency

An action has been brought under the Class Proceedings Act, 1992. The plaintiff class seeks
$500 million in restitution for amounts paid to Toronto Hydro and to other Ontario municipal
electric utilities ("LDCs") who received late payment penalties which constitute interest at an
effective rate in excess of 60% per year, contrary to Section 347 of the Criminal Code.
Pleadings have closed in this action. The action has not yet been certified as a class action
and no discoveries have been held, as the parties were awaiting the outcome of similar
proceedings brought against Enbridge Gas (formerly known as Consumers Gas).

On April 22, 2004, the Supreme Court of Canada released a decision in the Consumers Gas
case rejecting all of the defences which had been raised by Consumers Gas, although the
Court did not permit the Plaintiff class to recover damages for any period prior to the issuance
of the Statement of Claim in 1994 challenging the validity of late payment penalties. The
Supreme Court remitted the matter back to the Ontario Superior Court of Justice for
determination of the damages. Presently, a mediation process is underway to attempt to
resolve the issue of the damages payable by Enbridge Gas.

In 2007, Enbridge filed an application to the Ontario Energy Board ("OEB") to recover the
Court-approved amount and related amounts from ratepayers. On February 4, 2008 the OEB
approved the recovery of the said amounts from ratepayers over a five year period.

After the release by the Supreme Court of Canada of its 2004 decision in the Consumers Gas
case, the plaintiffs in the LDC late payment penalties class action indicated their intention to
proceed with their litigation against the LDCs. To date, no formal steps have been taken to
move the action forward. The electric utilities intend to respond to the action if and when it
proceeds on the basis that the LDCs' situation may be distinguishable from that of Consumers
Gas.

The Electricity Distributors Association is undertaking the defence of this class action.

Woodstock Hydro Services Inc. collected total late penalties of $827,148 from and after 1994
until January 1, 2002. No determination of the portion of these payments which may have
constituted interest at an impermissible rate has been made. Woodstock Hydro changed its
late payment from 5% to 1.5% effective January 1, 2002.

Bank Operating Facility

The utility has available an operating credit facility of up to $3,000,000 from the Canadian
Imperial Bank of Commerce at prime rate. In addition, the utility has provided the Independent
Electricity System Operator with a $1,960,005 letter of credit. These credit facilities are
secured by a general security agreement covering all personal property owned by the utility.
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WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2007

10. New Accounting Pronouncements

Section 1506, Accounting Changes requires disclosures of when an entity has not applied a
new primary source of GAAP that has been issued but is not yet effective.

Recent accounting pronouncements that have been issued but are not yet effective, and
have a potential implication for the company, are as follows:

General standards on financial statement presentation

CICA Handbook Section 1400, General Standards on Financial Statement Presentation, has
been amended to include requirements to assess and disclose an entity's ability to continue
as a going concern. The changes are effective for interim and annual financial statements
beginning on or after January 1, 2008. The company does not expect the adoption of these
changes to have a material impact on its financial statements.

International financial reporting standards

The CICA plans to converge Canadian GAAP with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS") over a transition period expected to end in 2011. The impact of the
transition to IFRS on the company'’s financial statements has yet to be determined.

Capital disclosures )
CICA Handbook Section 1535, Capital Disclosures, requires disclosure of an entity's
objectives, policies and processes for managing capital, quantitative data about what the
entity regards as capital and whether the entity has complied with any capital requirements
and, if it has not complied, the consequences of such non-compliance. This standard is
effective for interim and annual financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or
after October 1, 2007. The company is currently assessing the impact of the new standard.

Financial instruments

CICA Handbook Section 3862, Financial Instruments - Disclosure, increases the disclosures
currently required to enable users to evaluate the significance of financial instruments for an
entity's financial position and performance, including disclosures about fair value. CICA
Handbook Section 3863, Financial Instruments - Presentation, replaces the existing
requirements on the presentation of financial instruments, which have been carried forward
unchanged. These standards are effective for interim and annual financial statements
relating to fiscal years beginning on or after October 1, 2007. The company is currently
evaluating the impact of the adoption of these changes on the disclosure and presentation
within its financial statements.
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WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2007

10. New Accounting Pronouncements (continued)

Inventories

The CICA has issued Section 3031, Inventories, which provides guidance on determining
cost as well as other recognition, measurement, disclosure and presentation issues related
to inventories. The standard includes guidance on the treatment of excess capacities,
inventory valuation and write-downs and additional elements to be considered in measuring
inventory costs. The new standard is effective for interim and annual financial statements
relating to fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2008. The company is currently
assessing the impact of the new standard.

.

Economic dependence

The company purchases substantially all of its power from the Independent Electricity System
Operator. A minimal amount of electricity is purchased from Hydro One for long term load
transfers.
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BDO Dunwoody LLp 94 Graham Street
Chartered Accountants Woodstock Ontario Canada N4S 6]7
and Advisors Telephone: (519) 539-2081

Fax: (519) 539-2571

www.bdo.ca

Auditors' Report

To the Shareholder of
WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.

We have audited the balance sheet of WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC. as at December
31, 2008 and the statements of operations and retained earnings and cash flows for the year then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the company's management. Our
responsibility is o express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the company as at December 31, 2008 and the results of its operations and the changes

in its financial position for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles.

B_’DDM LLP‘

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

Woodstock, Ontario
April 1, 2009

BDO Dunwoody LLP is a Limited Liability Partnership registered in Onlario



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Balance Sheet

December 31 2008 2007
Assets
Current
Cash and bank $ 4,261,357 $ 4,652,014
Short-term investments 50,437 50,452
Accounts receivable 3,487,016 3,207,349
Unbilled revenue 2,977,160 2,900,262
Income taxes receivable 264,558 -
Due from related parties (Note 10) 25 189
Inventories (Note 2) 911,186 786,717
Prepaid expenses 155,149 129,064
12,106,888 11,726,047
Capital assets (Note 3) 19,622,067 18,466,992
Future income tax asset 1,894,440 1,505,844
Long-term deposit - Hydro One TS (Note 4) 169,500 -

$ 33,792,895 § 31,698,883

Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity

Current

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 5,214,033 $ 3,945,312
Income taxes payable - 445,682
Deferred revenue 500,622 616,083
Accrued payroil and vacation pay 139,916 122,377
Current portion of customer deposits (Note 5) 327,000 259,000
6,181,571 5,388,454
Sick leave liability 121,589 134,319
Long-term customer deposits (Note 5) 648,618 691,632
Regulatory liabilities (Note 6) 1,277,198 528,896
Long-term debt (Note 7) 10,941,862 10,941,862
19,170,838 17,685,163

Shareholder's equity
Share capital (Note 9) 10,941,862 10,941,862
Retained earnings 3,680,195 3,071,858
14,622,057 14,013,720

$ 33,792,895 $ 31,698,883

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements,



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Statement of Operations and Retained Earnings

For the year ended December 31 2008 2007
Sale of energy
Residential $ 5,057,697 $ 5,044,066
General service 10,834,762 11,298,744
Street/Sentinel lighting 2,951 47,057
Retail energy sales 5,823,818 5,673,371
Distribution 6,616,827 6,475,336
Non-competitive charges 5,753,583 6,045,524
34,089,638 34,584,098
Service revenue adjustment (52,375) (91,348)
34,037,263 34,492,750
Cost of power purchased 27,420,436 28,017,413
Gross margin on service revenue 6,616,827 6,475,337
Other operating revenue 744,671 1,015,832
7,361,498 7,491,169
Expenses
Operating and maintenance 1,512,315 1,335,751
Administration and general 1,876,338 2,059,262
Financial expense 853,961 . 804,987
Amortization 1,766,770 1,673,186
6,009,384 5,873,186
Income before income taxes 1,352,114 1,617,983
Income taxes
Current 842,374 1,078,394
Future (recovery) (388,597) (505,931)
453,777 572,463
Net income for the year 898,337 1,045,520
Retained earnings, beginning of year 3,071,858 2,056,338
Dividends paid {290,000) {30,000)
Retained earnings, end of year $ 3,680,195 3,071,858

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31 2008 2007
Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Net income for the year 3 898,337 § 1,045,520
[tems not involving cash:
Amortization of capital assets 1,914,661 1,900,848
Future income taxes recovery (388,597) (505,931)
Gain on disposal of capital assets - (15,300)
(Decrease) increase in sick leave liability (12,730) 3,966
2,411,671 2,429,103
Net change in non-cash working capital balances (Note 11) (488,256) 927,466
1,923,415 3,356,569
Investing activities
Purchase of capital assets (2,627,875) (2,513,615)
Proceeds on sale of capital assets - 15,300
Increase in regulatory liabilities 748,302 974,220
Increase in long-term deposits (169,500) -
(2,049,073) (1,524,095)
Financing activities
Repayment of long-term debt (10,941,862) -
Proceeds from long-term debt 10,941,862 -
Dividends paid (290,000) (30,000)
Increase in customer deposits 24,986 204,215
(265,014) 174,215
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
during the year (390,672) 2,006,689
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 4,702,466 2,695,777
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 4311,794 $ 4,702,466
Represented by
Cash and bank $ 4261357 $ 4,652,014
Short-term investments 50,437 50,452
$ 4311794 $ 4,702,466

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

December 31, 2008

Nature of Business

The company was incorporated under the laws of Ontario and is licensed by the Ontario
Energy Board (“OEB”) as an electricity distributor. The principle activity of the company is to
operate distribution facilities and distribute electricity to customers within their Licensed
Territory as defined in the Distribution License. The company is regulated by the OEB under
authority of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998.

Basis of Accounting

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles (Canadian GAAP), including accounting principles as required by the
Ontario Energy Board under authority of Section 57, 70(2) and 78 of the Ontario Energy Board
Act, 1998, and policies set forth in the "OEB Accounting Procedures Handbook”.

Financial Instruments

in accordance with CICA Handbook Section 3855, Financial Instruments, Recognition and
Measurement, all financial instruments are classified into one of the following four categories:
held-for-trading, held-to-maturity, loans and receivables, or other financial liabilities. All
financial instruments, including derivatives, are carried at fair value on the Balance Sheet.

On initial recognition, all financial instruments that meet the definition of a financial asset or
financial liability are recorded at fair value, unless fair value cannot be reliably determined.
Subsequent measurement depends on the category to which the financial instrument has been
classified. The company has elected the following balance sheet classifications with respect to
its financial assets and financial liabilities.

Cash is classified as “held-for-trading” and is measured at fair value. Transaction costs are
expensed as incurred.

Cash equivalents, comprising of short-term investments, are financial assets classified as
“held-to-maturity-investments" and are measured at amortized cost, which, upon initial
recognition, is considered equivalent to fair value. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred.

Accounts receivable are classified as “loans and receivables” and are measured at amortized
cost, which, upon initial recognition, is considered equivalent to fair value. Subsequent
measurements are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The
carrying amounts of these instruments approximate their fair value due to their relatively short
periods to maturity. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred.



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

December 31, 2008

Accounts payable, accrued liabilities, and long-term debt are classified as “other financial
liabilities” and are initially measured at their fair value. Subsequent measurements are
recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The carrying amount of
accounts payable and accrued liability instruments approximate their fair value due to their
relatively short periods to maturity. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred. Long-term

debt also approximates their fair value, since terms and conditions are comparable to market
conditions.

Inventories

Inventories consist of parts, supplies, and materials held for maintenance and are stated at the
lower of average cost or net realizable value.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Costs may include materiali,
labour, contracted services, overhead, and engineering costs, and are net of related
investment tax credits, government grants, and contributions in aid of construction received.
Amortization is based on the estimated useful life of the asset and is recorded on the straight-
line basis over the following number of years:

Buildings 25 years
Distribution stations 30 years
Distribution systems 25 years
Transformers 25 years
Meters 15 - 25 years
Office equipment 10 years
Rolling stock 5 - 8 years
Stores equipment 10 years
Tools and equipment 10 years
Computer equipment 5 years
Computer software 5 years
Organization expense 40 years

Payments In Lieu of Corporate Taxes (PILS)

Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the company is responsible for making payments in lieu of
corporate income and capital taxes to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation (OEFC).
These payments are calculated in accordance with the Income Tax Act (Canada) and the

Corporations Tax Act (Ontario), and are modified by regulations made under the Electricity Act,
1998.



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

December 31, 2008

The company follows the asset/liability method of accounting for income taxes. Future income
tax assets that are likely to be realized and future income tax liabilities are recognized for
temporary differences between the tax and accounting basis of assets and liabilities. Any
payment in lieu of future tax assets are reassessed each year to determine if a valuation
allowance is required. Any effect of the re-measurement or reassessment is recognized in the
period of the change. Future tax amounts are measured at enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled.

Regulatory assets and liabilities

Regulatory assets and liabilities arise as a result of the rate setting process by the OEB. Based
on OEB regulations, certain costs and variance account balances are recorded as regulatory
assets or regulatory liabilities and are reflected in the balance sheet until the OEB determines
the manner and timing of their disposition.

Regulatory assets represent future revenues associated with certain costs, incurred in current
or prior periods, that are expected to be recovered through the rate setting process. Regulatory
assets and liabilities can arise from differences in amounts billed to customers (based on
regulated rates) and the corresponding cost of non-competitive electricity service incurred by
the company in the wholesale market administered by the Independent Electricity System
Operator (IESO”) after May 1, 2002. These amounts have been accumulated pursuant to
regulations underlying the Electricity Act, 1998, and deferred in anticipation of their future
recovery in electricity distribution service charges. Amounts recorded are subject to review and
approval by the OEB.

In the absence of rate regulation, Canadian generally accepted accounting principles would
require that the costs be recognized as an expense or capital asset, as applicable, when
incurred and the related recovery of these costs in income when received or receivable.

The expected recovery or settlement period, or likelihood of recovery and settlement, is
affected by risks and uncertainties relating to the ultimate authority of the OEB in determining
the item’s treatment for rate-setting purposes. The company believes that it is probable that
the OEB will factor its regulatory assets and liabilities into the setting of future rates. If at some
future date the company determines that it is no longer probable that the OEB will include a
regulatory asset or liability in future rates, the appropriate carrying amount will be charged to
operations in the period the determination is made.



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

December 31, 2008

Revenue Recognition

Distribution revenue is recorded on the basis of regular meter readings and estimates of
customer usage since the last meter reading date to the end of the period. Estimated
customer usage from the last meter reading date to the period end (unbilled revenue) is
included in revenue.

Distribution and energy related revenues attributable to the supply and delivery of electricity are
based on OEB-approved rates and are recognized as electricity is delivered to customers.
Other revenues, which include pole attachment fees, customer demand work, and other
miscellaneous revenues are recognized at the time the service is provided.

Rate Regulating

The rates of the company’s electricity business are subject to regulation by the OEB. The OEB
has the general power to include or exclude costs, revenues, losses or gains in the rates of a
specific period, resulting in a change in the timing of accounting recognition from that which
would have applied in an unregulated company. Such change in timing gives rise to the
recognition of regulatory assets and liabilities. The company’s-regulatory assets represent
certain amounts receivable from future customers and costs that have been deferred for
accounting purposes because it is probable that they will be recovered in future rates. In
addition, the company has recorded regulatory liabilities which represent amounts for
expenses incurred in different periods that would be the case had the company not been
regulated. Specific regulatory assets and liabilities are disclosed in Note 6.

As prescribed by regulatory rate order, payment in lieu of taxes are recovered through
customer rates based on the taxes payable method. Rates do not include the recovery of
payment in lieu of future taxes related to temporary differences between the tax basis of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for accounting purposes.

Power Purchases
The power bill received from the Independent Electricity System Operator {IESO) is recorded
in the period to which it refers and not in the period in which it is received.

Costs for power purchased represent the cost of electricity delivered to customers within the
company's distribution service territory and consist of the wholesale commodity cost of energy,
the IESO wholesale market service charges, and transmission charges levied by the IESO.



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

December 31, 2008

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management 1o make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from management's best estimates as additional information becomes available in the
future, including changes as a result of future decisions made by the OEB, the Minister of
Energy and Infrastructure, or the Minister of Finance.

Accounts receivable is based on expected amounts to be recovered less an appropriate
allowance for unrecoverable amounts based on prior experience. Unbilled revenue and
regulatory assets are reported based on amounts expected to be recovered.

10



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

1. Change in Accounting Policy

Inventory

Effective January 1, 2008, the company adopted CICA Handbook Section 3031, Inventories,
which provides increased guidance on determining cost, including allocation of overheads,
and requires inventories to be measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. More
restrictive guidance on the cost methodologies and on the classification of spare and
replacement parts as inventory are also included. Additional disclosure requirements
prescribed include those relating to the accounting policies adopted in measuring inventories,
the carrying amount of inventories, the amount of inventories recognized as an expense during
the period, the amount of write downs during the period, and the amount of any reversal of
write downs that is recognized as a reduction of expenses.

In accordance with the new requirements, the company has retrospectively reclassified all
major future components of capital assets from inventory to capital assets. Once capitalized
these items are not amortized until they are put into service.

As a result of the adoption of CICA Handbook Section 3031 — “Inventories”, $977,791 (2007 -
$535,930) was reclassified out of inventories and into capital assets.

Financial Instruments

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
(“CICA”) Handbook Section 3862, Financial Instruments - Disclosures and Handbook Section
3863, Financial Instruments - Presentation. Section 3862 requires increased disclosure of the
risks associated with financial instruments such as credit, liquidity, and market risks, and the
techniques used to identify, monitor and manage those risks. The disclosures did not have a
financial impact on the company.

Section 3863 carries forward unchanged the presentation requirements of Section 3861
adopted in the previous year. These disclosures are presented below (Note 14).

Capital Disclosures

CICA Handbook Section 1535, Capital Disclosures, requires disclosure of an entities
objectives, policies and processes for managing capital, quantitative data about that the entity
manages as capital, whether during the period the entity complied with any externally imposed
capital requirements and, if the company has not complied, the consequences of such non-
compliance. These disclosures are presented in Note 16. This new standard did not have a
financial impact on the company.

11



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

2. Inventories

2008 2007
Plant materials $ 404,341 $ 455,908
Meters 506,845 330,809
Total $ 911,186 $ 786,717

As a result of the adoption of CICA Handbook Section 3031 - “Inventories”, $977,791 (2007 -
$535,930) was reclassified out of inventories and into capital assets (electrical distribution
assets).

Included in inventory are assets that are deemed "stranded”. These assets are going to be
replaced by smart meters in 2009 and 2010. The net recoverable value of these assets is
estimated to be 10% of their cost. The amount carried in the company records is $363,621 as
at December 31, 2008. For the year ended December 31, 2008, the company recognized
operating and maintenance expenses of $70,495 (2007 - $67,085) related to inventory used in
the servicing of electrical distribution assets.

3. Capital Assets

2008 2007

Accumulated Accumulated

Cost Amortization Cost  Amortization

Land $ 39,365 $ - $ 39,365 $ -
Buildings and distribution

system 27,719,143 10,321,238 25,625,491 9,049,166

Electrical distribution assets 977,791 - 535,930 -

Machinery and equipment 4,137,562 2,943,531 3,823,988 2,522,007

Organization expense 16,365 3,390 16,365 2,974

$ 32,890,226 $ 13,268,159 $ 30,041,139 §$ 11,574,147

Net book value $ 19,622,067 $ 18,466,992

The assets identified above as electrical distribution assets are not being amortized.



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

4.

Long Term Deposit - Hydro One TS

A Letter Agreement between the company and Hydro One for construction of a new
transformer station was signed on May 29, 2008. In accordance with the Letter Agreement,
the company provided a deposit of $169,500 in July 2008 ($150,000 plus GST and PST) that
represented 50% of the cancellation cost.

The company anticipates the Connection Cost Recovery Agreement (CCRA) will be signed in
2009, provided the land acquisition has been finalized and Hydro One can provide a final cost
estimate. At this time, the expected in-service date for the transformer station will be in the
third quarter of 2011.

Customer Deposits

Customer Deposits include amounts collected from customers to guarantee the payment of
energy bills. The customer deposit liability includes interest credited to the customer’s deposit
accounts, with the debit charged to interest expense. Deposits expected to be refunded to
customers within the next fiscal year are classified as a current liability. Customer deposits
also include prudential deposits received from retailers.

Developer deposits collected for maintenance deposits and deposits for recoverable work are
also included in Customer Deposits.

Regulatory (Liabilities) Assets

2008 2007
Deferred payments in lieu of taxes $ 302,578 §$ 292,987
Settlement sales variance (1,735,864) (1,092,631)
Smart meter recovery (127,118) (75,460)
QOther regulatory assets 249,251 240,560
Assets recovered through rates 33,955 105,648

$ (1,277,198) $ (528,896)

For most of the regulatory assets and liabilities identified the expected recovery or settlement
period, or likelihood of recovery or settlement, is affected by risks and uncertainties relating to
the ultimate authority of the OEB in determining the item’s treatment for rate-setting purposes.
These costs have been deferred in accordance with OEB regulatory requirements. Amounts
recorded are subject to review and approval of the OEB.
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WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

6.

Regulatory (Liabilities) Assets (continued)

The regulatory assets and (liabilities) balance of the company are defined as follows:

Deferred payments in lieu of taxes

The company has accumulated a PILS variance amount representing differences that have
resulted from a legislative or regulatory change to the tax rates or rules assumed in the rate
adjustment model. The 2008 OEB prescribed carrying charges were $9,591 (2007 - $11,374).

Settlement sales variance

In May 1, 2002 the Ontario energy market opened to competition. Since May 1, 2002, the
difference between the cost of power based on time-of-use rates and amounts billed to non-
time-of-use customers charged at an average rate are recorded in settlement variance
accounts as directed by the OEB; variances resulting from energy line-loss are also included.
These sales variance accounts ensure that a utility's gross profit is limited to distribution
revenue and service charges.

Smart meter recovery

Effective May 1, 2006, the OEB has allowed the company to defer revenues, capital
expenditures, operating expenditures and amortization relating to smart meters. Accordingly,
the company has deferred these items in accordance with criteria set out in the Accounting
Procedures Handbook. In 2008, the company collected smart meter customer revenues of
$47,952 (2007 - $46,037) from rate riders, and OEB prescribed carrying charges of $3,706
(2007 - $2,607) and there have been no expenditures.

Other regulatory assets

i) OEB Assessment Costs - In December 2004, Local Distribution Companies (LDC's) were
allowed to establish a deferral account to record the annual costs assessed by the OEB. The
amounts recorded as deferral costs are the amounts by which the annual OEB assessment
costs for the period January 1, 2004 to April 30, 2006, exceed the amounts being recovered
through distribution rates. Subsequent to April 30, 2006, the annual assessment costs have
been fully expensed by the company. It is anticipated the costs deferred will be reviewed by the
OEB for final approval in a future rate application process. OEB prescribed carrying charges of
$1,351 (2007 - $1,602) for OEB cost assessment interest.

ii) Pension Contributions - In December 2004, an OEB deferral account was established to
record OMERS cash pension costs between January 1, 2005 and April 30, 2006 that were not
recovered in rates. On May 1, 2006, pension cost contributions to OMERS were incorporated
into the distribution rates. In 2008, OEB prescribed carrying charges of $7,341 (2007 - $8,705)
for pension contribution interest.

Assets recovered through rates

The regulatory assets recovery account (RARA) includes regulatory asset balances the OEB
has approved for recovery and recovered over a period ending March 31, 2008. The OEB has
indicated that a future proceeding will address settlement of the residual balance in the RARA
account.

14



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

6.

Regulatory (Liabilities) Assets (continued)

The RARA is credited with recovery amounts and is debited by OEB - prescribed carrying
charges. In the absence of rate regulation, these would have been capitalized or expensed
under Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Conservation and demand initiatives

In May 2004, the Minister of Energy granted approval to all distributors to apply to the OEB for
an increase in their 2005 distribution rates, conditional on a commitment by the company to
spend an equivalent amount on conservation and demand management initiatives. The
company has received funds from the OPA and have used these funds for a variety of
conservation initiatives including system optimization improvements, power factor audits,
customer education programs and renewable energy demonstrations.

Long-term Debt

2008 2007

Promissory note payable to the City of
Woodstock - 6.756%, interest only payable
monthly $ - 10,941,862

4.975% CIBC term bank loan, payable

interest only monthly until November 2010,

payable $86,385 principal and interest monthly

thereafter until October 2025 10,941,862 -

$ 10,941,862 $ 10,941,862

To mitigate exposure to interest rate risk, the company entered into an International Swaps
and Derivatives Association (ISDA), 200 Master Agreement concurrent with the entry into the
loan facility. The interest rate swap is used for non-speculative purposes to convert floating
rate debt into fixed debt rate bearing interest at 4.975%.

The debt facilities are amortized on the basis of a 15 year amortization schedule following a
two-year interest-only period, which, if requested by the company, may be extended upon
CIBC approval, for an additional year. The long-term debt obligation is unsecured.



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

7. Long-term Debt (continued)
The agreement with respect to the CIBC credit facility contains certain covenants regarding
leverage, liquidity, restrictions on business activities, restrictions on distributions, change in
ownership, mergers, acquisitions or change in line of business, and limitations on additional
debt.
Principal repayments for the next five years are as follows:
2009 $ -
2010 82,214
2011 507,830
2012 533,678
2013 9,818,140
$ 10,941,862
The debt facility has a termination date of October 1, 2025, with an optional exit strategy at 5,
10, and 15 years.
8. Bank Operating Facility
The company has available an operating credit facility of up to $3,000,000 from the Canadian
Imperial Bank of Commerce at the corporate bank prime rate of interest. At December 31,
2008, there were no amounts drawn under the facility (2007 — nil).
The company also has provided the Independent Electricity System Operator with a
$1,960,005 letter of credit. At December 31, 2008, there were no amounts drawn under the
facility (2007 — nil).
As of October 1, 2008, the credit facility agreement was amended so that all credits
outstanding rank pari-passu to any other unsecured obligations of the company.
9. Share Capital

The authorized class "A" Special share capital of the company is an unlimited number of non-
voting shares, with a stated value equal to consideration received on issue, redeemable and
retractable at $100 per share and entitled to a non-cumulative annual dividend to be
determined each year by the directors based on the redemption amount.
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WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

9. Share Capital (continued)
The authorized class "B" Special share capital of the company is an unlimited number of voting
shares, with a stated value equal to the consideration received on issue, redeemable and
retractable at $100 per share and entitled to a non-cumulative annual dividend to be
determined each year by the directors based on the redemption amount.
The authorized common share capital of the company is an unlimited number of shares.
The issued share capital is as follows:
2008 2007
360 Common shares $ 10,941,862 $ 10,941,862
10. Related Party Transactions
The following entities are related to Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.:
- Woodstock Hydro Holdings Inc. - parent company
- City of Woodstock - owner of Woodstock Hydro Holdings Inc.
The following table summarizes the company's related party transactions for the year:
Woodstock
Hydro City of
Holdings Inc.  Woodstock Total
Balance Sheet
Due from related parties $ 25 $ 107,300 $ 107,325
Dividends paid $ 290,000 $ - § 290,000
Statement of Operations
Other operating revenue $ - 8 146,146 $ 146,146
Operating and maintenance $ - $ 9,505 $ 9,505
Property taxes 3 - 8 108,933 §$ 108,933
Financial expense $ - $§ 616,027 $ 616,027
Other Transactions
Repayment of debt $ - $ 10,941,862 $ 10,941,862
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WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

10.

Related Party Transactions (continued)

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange
value (the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties), which
approximates the arm's length equivalent value for sales of product.

11. Net Change in Non-cash Working Capital Balances

The net change in non-cash working capital balances consists of:
2008 2007
Accounts receivable $ (279,667) $ 299,650
Unbilled revenue (76,898) (216,713)
Income taxes receivable (264,558) 116,869
Due from related parties 164 11,617
Inventories (124,469) 802,493
Prepaid expenses (26,085) (26,275)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,268,721 (252,065)
Income taxes payable (445,682) 445,682
Due to related parties - (12,296)
Deferred revenue (115,461) 285,170
Accrued payroll and vacation pay 17,539 9,264
Inventory transfer to capital assets {441,860) (535,930)
$ (488,256) $ 927,466

Interest paid $ 853,961 § 804,987
Income taxes paid $ 1543335 $ 515,483

12. Pension

The company makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund
(OMERS), which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of its staff. The plan is a defined benefit
plan, which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employees,
based on the length of service and rates of pay.

The amount contributed to OMERS for 2008 was $162,841 (2007 - $146,541) for current
service.
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13. Contingency

An action has been brought under the Class Proceedings Act, 1992. The plaintiff class seeks
$500 million in restitution for amounts paid to Toronto Hydro and to other Ontario municipal
electric utilities ("LDCs") who received late payment penalties which constitute interest at an
effective rate in excess of 60% per year, contrary to Section 347 of the Criminal Code. This
action is at a preliminary stage. Pleadings have closed and examinations for discovery have
been conducted. The action has not yet been certified as a class action, however, as the
parties were awaiting the outcome of the Enbridge Gas (formally known as Consumers Gas)
class action.

It is anticipated that the first action will now proceed for determination in light of the reasons of
the Supreme Court in the Enbridge class action.

On April 22, 2004, the Supreme Court of Canada released a decision in the Enbridge Gas
case rejecting all of the defences which had been raised by Enbridge Gas, although the Court
did not permit the Plaintiff class to recover damages for any period prior to the issuance of the
Statement of Claim in 1994 challenging the validity of late payment penalties. The Supreme
Court remitted the matter back to the Ontario Superior Court of Justice for determination of the
damages.

In 2007, Enbridge filed an application to the Ontario Energy Board (“OEB") to recover the
Court-approved amount and related amounts from ratepayers. On February 4, 2008 the OEB
approved the recovery of the said amounts from ratepayers over a five year period. The
Plaintiff in the class action lawsuit has made a petition to the Lieutenant Governor in Council
(“Cabinet”) under subsection 34(1) of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1009, ¢.15, Schedule B.,
for an order that the matter be submitted back to the OEB for reconsideration. A decision by
Cabinet on the petition is pending.

After the release by the Supreme Court of Canada of its 2004 decision in the Enbridge Gas
case, the plaintiffs in the LDC late payment penalties class action indicated their intention to
proceed with their litigation against the LDCs. To date, no formal steps have been taken to
move the action forward. The electric utilities intend to respond to the action if and when it
proceeds on the basis that the LDCs' situation may be distinguishable from that of Enbridge
Gas.

The Electricity Distributors Association is undertaking the defence of this class action.

Woodstock Hydro Services Inc. collected total late penalties of $827,148 from and after 1994
until January 1, 2002. No determination of the portion of these payments which may have
constituted interest at an impermissible rate has been made. Woodstock Hydro changed its
late payment from 5% to 1.5% effective January 1, 2002.
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14. Financial instruments Risk Factors

Recognition and Measurement
The company's carrying value of financial instruments consist of the following:

Designated Loans Other
held-for- Held-to- and financial
trading maturity  receivables liabilities
Cash and bank $ 4261357 $ - $ - % -
Short-term investments - 50,437 - -
Accounts receivable, net of
allowance - - 3,487,016 -
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities - - - (5,214,033)
Accrued payroll and
vacation pay - - - (139,616)
Sick leave liability - - - (121,589)
Long-term debt - - - (10,941,862)

$ 4261357 $ 50,437 $ 3,487,016 $(16,417,100)

The following is a discussion of risks and related mitigation strategies that have been identified
by the company for financial instruments. This list is not exhaustive of all risks, nor will the
mitigation strategies eliminate all risks listed.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates, and commodity prices, will affect the Company’s cash flows of the value of its holdings
of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to minimize the impact
that market risks have on the company’s cash flows.

The company does not have commodity risk and has limited exposure to changes in foreign
currency exchange rates.

The company’s revenue requirement is recovered through distribution rates and charges and
other income, which includes interest income. Currently, the difference in interest revenue
reduction and the actual interest income earned by the company is immaterial.

Changes in interest rates do not have a significant impact on cash payments that are required
on the Company's debt obligations. Exposure to changes in interest rates are mitigated
through the use of an Interest Rate Swap (IRS) for the company’s long-term debt.
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14. Financial Instruments Risk Factors (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that of a financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty fails
to discharge its obligation to the company. The company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is
equal to the carrying value of its financial assets. Credit risk can be prevalent in customers that
are similarly affected by economic or other conditions. Concentrations of consumption by class
or individual customer may also impact risk due to varying energy consumption patterns and
allowable security deposit requirements associated with each class.

The company's objective is to maximize credit collection and minimize bad debt expense.
Credit risk is managed by monitoring and limiting exposure to credit risk, subject to OEB
guidelines, on an ongoing basis.

Risk is mitigated by regulation which provides for certain customers to provide security
deposits for a prescribed period of time. Customers may be required to post security to receive
electricity or other services.

The carrying amount of accounts receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance for
doubtful accounts based on the financial condition of the counter-parties and by applying a
percentage based amount to total accounts receivable, based on past experience. The amount
of the related impairment loss is recognized in the income statement. Subsequent recoveries
of receivables previously provisioned are credited to the income statement.

Credit risk associated with accounts receivable is as follows:

2008
Total accounts receivable $ 3,522,935
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts . (35,919)
$ 3,487,016
Of which:
Outstanding for not more than 30 days $ 3,429,011
Outstanding for more than 30 days but not more than 60 days 22,491
Outstanding for more than 60 days not not more than 90 days 30,895
Outstanding for more than 90 days 40,538
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (35,919)
$ 3,487,016

As of December 31, 2008, the company is not exposed to a significant concentration of credit
risk within any customer class or individual customer.
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14. Financial Instruments Risk Factors (continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they become due. Short-term liquidity is provided through cash and cash equivalents on hand,
funds from operations, as well as an established $3,000,000 operating credit facility (note 8).
The company believes that future cash flow from operating activities, available capacity on its
existing revolving credit facility and access to additional liquidity through excess debt capacity
will be adequate to meet its financial obligations.

Due within Due between Due after
1 year 1 and 5 years 5 years
Financial liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilites $ 5,214,033 $ - 3 -
Accrued payroll and vacation pay 139,916 - -
Accrued sick leave - 121,589 -
Long-term debt - 10,941,862 -

$ 5,353,949 $ 11,063,451 $ -

The timing of the accrued sick leave payable is unknown, and would be dependent on when
the eligible employees would request to take the time, or retire. It has been reflected as due
between 1 and 5 years.

15.

Public Liability Insurance

The company is a member of the Electricity Distributors Association Reciprocal Insurance
Exchange which is a pooling of the public liability insurance risks of many of the municipal
utilities in Ontario. All members of the pool are subject to assessment for losses experienced
by the pool for the years in which they are members on a pro-rata basis based on the total of
their respective service revenues.

It is anticipated that, should such an assessment occur, it would be funded over a period of up
to five years. As at December 31, 2008, no assessments have been made.
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16.

Capital Disclosures

The company’s objectives when managing its capital are to:

- maintain a financial position that supports the company’s operations and growth strategies
- provide an adequate return to its shareholder

- comply with covenants related to its credit facilities

- align its capital structure for regulated activities with debt to equity structure recommended
by the OEB, which is 60% debt and 40% equity by 2010.

The company defines capital as shareholder's equity. As of December 31, 2008, shareholder’s
equity amounted to $14,622,057 (2007 - $14,013,720).

The company has externally imposed capital requirements in the form of credit facility
agreements that contain various covenants (Note 7). The company's credit facility limits the
debt to capitalization ratio to 65%.

As at December 31, 2008, the debt to capitalization ratio was 42.8% The company’s credit
facility also limits the Cash Flow Debt Service ratio to no less than 1.5. As at December 31,
2008, the cash flow debt service ratio was 2.12.

17.

Economic Dependence

The company purchases substantially all of its power from the Independent Electricity System
Operator. A minimal amount of electricity is purchased from Hydro One for long-term load
transfers.
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18. New Accounting Pronouncements

Section 1506, Accounting Changes requires disclosures of when an entity has not applied a
new primary source of GAAP that has been issued but is not yet effective.

Recent accounting pronouncements that have been issued but are not yet effective, and have
a potential implication for the company, are as follows:

International Financial Reporting Standards

On February 13, 2008, the CICA pronounced that publicly accountable enterprises will adopt
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB), for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011. IFRS will
require increased financial statement disclosure. Although IFRS uses a conceptual framework
similar to Canadian GAAP, some differences in accounting policies exist.

At this time, the impact on the company’s financial statements is not reasonably determinable
or estimable. The company is currently developing an implementation plan for the adoption of
IFRS. The OEB has also begun an IFRS consultation to determine the nature of any changes
that should be made in regulatory reporting requirements in response to IFRS. The company
will closely monitor the OEB consultation as well as any International Accounting Standards
Board initiatives with the potential to impact rate regulated accounting under IFRS.

Rate Regulated Entities

During 2007, the Accounting Standards Board [“AcSB"] issued an exposure draft proposing to
remove all specific references to rate regulated accounting from the CICA Handbook. In
August 2007, the AcSB decided to remove a temporary exemption in the CICA Handbook
Section 1100 “Generally Accepted Accounting Principles”, which retain existing references to
rate regulated accounting in the CICA Handbook, amend CICA Handbook Section 3465
“Income Taxes” to require the recognition of future income tax liabilities and assets as well as
a corresponding regulatory asset or liability, and retain existing requirements to disclose the
effects of rate regulation per AcG-19. The new rules will apply prospectively to interim and
annual financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2009.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets and Other Standards

Section 3064 incorporates guidance to clarify the recognition of intangible assets and address
and recognition and measurement of internally developed intangible assets. The new
standards are effective for interim and annual financial statements relating to fiscal years
beginning on or after October 1, 2008. The company is currently assessing the impact of the
new standards.
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18. New Accounting Pronouncements (continued)

Financial Statement Concepts

CICA Handbook Section 1000, Financial Statement Concepts has been amended to focus on
the capitalization of costs that truly meet the definition of an asset and de-emphasizes the
matching principle.

The revised requirements are effective for annual and interim financial statements relating to
fiscal years beginning on or after October 1, 2008. The company is currently evaluating the
impact of the adoption of this change on the disclosure within its financial statements.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

Section 1100 was amended to remove the temporary exemption relating to its application to
the recognition and measurement of assets and liabilities arising from rate regulation and a
disclosure requirement related to this exemption. The GAAP hierarchy set out in Section 1100
will now apply equally to rate-regulated enterprises and all other entities. The new standards
are effective for interim and annual financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or
after January 1, 2009. The company is currently assessing the impact of the new standards.

19.

Comparative Financial Statements

The comparative financial statement amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current
year's presentation.
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Tel: 519 539 2081 BDO Canada LLP
Fax: 519 539 2571 94 Graham Street
www.bdo.ca Woodstock ON N4S 647 Canada

Auditors' Report

To the Shareholder of
WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.

We have audited the balance sheet of WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC. as at December 31,
2009 and the statements of operations and retained earnings and cash flows for the year then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
- statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the company as at December 31, 2009 and the results of its operations and the

changes in its financial position for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles.

/2\50 CM‘—-’-—"&(/ [“L}d

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

Woodstock, Ontario
March 30, 2010

BDO Canada LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership, is @ member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the interna%iona( BDO
network of independent member firms,



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Balance Sheet

December 31 2009 2008
Assets
Current
Cash and bank $ 2,157,301 $ 4,261,357
Short-term investments - 50,437
Accounts receivable 3,513,440 3,379,716
Unbilled revenue 3,606,543 2,977,160
Income taxes receivable 123,073 264,558
Due from related parties (Note 11) 121,214 107,325
Inventories (Note 3) 943,213 911,186
Prepaid expenses 140,729 165,149
10,605,513 12,106,888
Capital assets (Note 4) 20,611,828 19,622,067
Future income tax asset 2,460,100 2,285,220
Long-term deposit - Hydro One TS (Note 5) 169,500 169,500

$ 33846941 $ 34,183,675

Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity

Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 5632435 §$ 5,092,586
Deferred revenue - 500,622
Accrued payroll and vacation pay 160,549 139,916
Current portion of customer deposits (Note 6) 316,500 327,000
6,109,484 6,060,124
Sick leave liability 126,052 121,589
Long-term customer deposits (Note 6) 1,027,270 770,065
Regulatory liabilitles (Note 7) 231,452 1,277,198
Long-term debt (Note 8) 10,941,862 10,941,862
Accrued benefit obligation (Note 14) 1,118,833 1,087,527
19,554,953 20,258,365

Shareholder's equity

Share capital (Note 10) 10,941,862 10,941,862
Retained eamings 3,350,126 2,983,448
14,291,988 13,925,310

§ 33846941 §$ 34,183,675

The accompanying summaty of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.

Statement of Operations and Retained Earnings

For the year ended December 31 2009 2008
Sale of energy
Residential 5,489,319 $ 5,057,697
General service 6,766,295 10,834,762
Street/Sentinel lighting 2,896 2,951
Retail energy sales 3,424,485 5,823,818
Distribution 6,405,636 6,616,827
Non-competitive charges 5,669,546 5,753,583
27,758,177 34,089,638
Service revenue adjustment (93,728) (62,375)
27,664,449 34,037,263
Cost of power purchased 21,258,813 27,420,436
Gross margin on service revenue 6,405,636 6,616,827
Other operating revenue 499,987 744,671
6,905,623 7,361,498
Expenses
Operating and maintenance 1,592,150 1,512,315
Administration and general 1,856,767 1,876,338
Financial expense 581,034 853,961
Amortization 1,871,315 1,766,770
5,901,266 6,009,384
Income before income taxes 1,004,357 1,352,114
Income taxes
Current 587,559 842,374
Future (recovery) (174,880) (388,597)
412,679 453,777
Net income for the year 591,678 898,337
Retained earnings, beginning of year 2,983,448 3,071,858
Dividends paid (225,000) (290,000)
Correction of prior period (Note 1) - (696,747)
3,350,126 2,983,448

Retained eamings, end of year

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31 2009 2008

Cash provided by (used in)

Operating activities

Net income for the year $ 591,678 §$ 898,337
items not involving cash:
Amortization of capital assets 1,996,673 1,914,661
Future income taxes recovery (174,880) (388,597)
Gain on disposal of capital assets (3,520) -
Increase (decrease) in sick leave liability 4,463 (12,730)
Increase in accrued benefit obligation 31,306 -
2,445,720 2,411,671
Net change in non-cash working capital balances (Note 12) (593,258) (488,256)
1,852,462 1,923,415
Investing activities ,
Purchase of capital assets (2,986,434) (2,627,875)
Proceeds on sale of capital assets 3,520 -
(Decrease) increase in regulatory assets/liabilities (1,045,746) 748,302
Increase in long-term deposits - (169,500)

(4,028,660) (2,049,073)

Financing activities

Repayment of long-term debt - (10,941,862)
Proceeds from long-term debt - 10,941,862
Dividends paid (225,000) (290,000)
Increase in customer deposits 246,705 24,986
21,705 (265,014)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents
during the year (2,154,493) (390,672)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 4,311,794 4,702,466
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 2,157,301 $ 4,311,794
Represented by
Cash and bank $ 2,157,301 $ 4,261,357
Short-term investments - 50,437

$ 2,157,301 § 4311794

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financlal statements.



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

December 31, 2009

Nature of Business

The company was incorporated under the laws of Ontario and is licensed by the Ontario
Energy Board (“OEB") as an electricity distributor. The principle activity of the company is to
operate distribution facilites and distribute electricity to customers within their Licensed
Territory as defined in the Distribution License. The company is regulated by the OEB under
authority of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998.

Basis of Accounting

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles (Canadian GAAP), including accounting principles as required by the
Ontario Energy Board under authority of Section 57, 70(2) and 78 of the Ontario Energy Board
Act, 1998, and policies set forth in the “OEB Accounting Procedures Handbook”.

Financial Instruments

In accordance with CICA Handbook Section 3855, Financial Instruments, Recognition and
Measurement, all financial instruments are classified into one of the following four categories:
held-for-trading, held-to-maturity, loans and receivables, or other financial liabilities. All
financial instruments, including derivatives, are carried at fair value on the Balance Sheet.

On initial recognition, all financial instruments that meet the definition of a financial asset or
financial liability are recorded at fair value, unless fair value cannot be reliably determined.
Subsequent measurement depends on the category to which the financial instrument has been
classified. The company has elected the following balance sheet classifications with respect to
its financial assets and financial liabilities.

Cash is classified as “held-for-trading” and is measured at fair value. Transaction costs are
expensed as incurred.

Cash equivalents, comprising of short-term investments, are financial assets classified as
"held-to-maturity-investments” and are measured at amortized cost, which, upon initial
recognition, is considered equivalent to fair value. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred.

Accounts receivable are classified as “loans and receivables” and are measured at amortized
cost, which, upon initial recognition, is considered equivalent to fair value. Subsequent
measurements are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The
carrying amounts of these instruments approximate their fair value due to their relatively short
periods to maturity. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred.



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

December 31, 2009

Accounts payable, accrued liabilities, and long-term debt are classified as “other financial
liabilities” and are initially measured at their fair value. Subsequent measurements are
recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The carrying amount of
accounts payable and accrued liability instruments approximate their fair value due to their
relatively short periods to maturity. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred. Long-term
debt also approximates its fair value.

Inventories
Inventories consist of parts, supplies, and materials held for maintenance and are stated at the
lower of average cost or net realizable value.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Costs may include material,
labour, contracted services, overhead, and engineering costs, and are net of related
investment tax credits, government grants, and contributions in aid of construction received.
Work-in-progress costs may include the same cost discussed above, these assets are not
amortized until available for use. Amortization is based on the estimated useful life of the
asset and is recorded on the straight-line basis over the following number of years:

Buildings 25 years
Distribution stations 30 years
Distribution systems 25 years
Transformers 25 years
Meters 15 - 25 years
Office equipment 10 years
Rolling stock 5 -8 years
Stores equipment 10 years
Tools and equipment 10 years
Computer equipment 5 years
Computer software 5 years
Organization expense 40 years

Payments In Lieu of Corporate Taxes (PILS)

Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the company is responsible for making payments in lieu of
corporate income and capital taxes to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation (OEFC).
These payments are calculated in accordance with the Income Tax Act (Canada) and the
Corporations Tax Act (Ontario), and are modified by regulations made under the Electricity Act,
1998.



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

December 31, 2009

The company follows the asset/liability method of accounting for income taxes. Future income
tax assets that are likely to be realized and future income tax liabilities are recognized for
temporary differences between the tax and accounting basis of assets and liabilities. Any
payment in lieu of future tax assets are reassessed each year to determine if a valuation
allowance is required. Any effect of the re-measurement or reassessment is recognized in the
period of the change. Future tax amounts are measured at enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled.

Regulatory assets and liabilities

Regulatory assets and liabilities arise as a result of the rate setting process by the OEB. Based
on OEB regulations, certain costs and variance account balances are recorded as regulatory
assets or regulatory liabilities and are reflected in the balance sheet until the OEB determines
the manner and timing of their disposition.

Regulatory assets represent future revenues associated with certain costs, incurred in current
or prior periods, that are expected to be recovered through the rate setting process. Regulatory
assets and liabilities can arise from differences in amounts billed to customers (based on
regulated rates) and the corresponding cost of non-competitive electricity service incurred by
the company in the wholesale market administered by the Independent Electricity System
Operator (“IESO”) after May 1, 2002. These amounts have been accumulated pursuant to
regulations underlying the Electricity Act, 1998, and deferred in anticipation of their future
recovery in electricity distribution service charges. Amounts recorded are subject to review and
approval by the OEB.

In the absence of rate regulation, Canadian generally accepted accounting principles would
require that the costs be recognized as an expense or capital asset, as applicable, when
incurred and the related recovery of these costs in income when received or receivable.

The expected recovery or settlement period, or likelihood of recovery and settlement, is
affected by risks and uncertainties relating to the ultimate authority of the OEB in determining
the item’s treatment for rate-setting purposes. The company believes that it is probable that
the OEB will factor its regulatory assets and liabilities into the setting of future rates. If at some
future date the company determines that it is no longer probable that the OEB will include a
regulatory asset or liability in future rates, the appropriate carrying amount will be charged to
operations in the period the determination is made.



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

December 31, 2009

Accrued Benefit Obligation

The accrued benefit obligation and current service costs are calculated using the projected
benefit method prorated on service and based on assumptions that reflect management’s best
estimate. The transitional obligation recognized is amortized into expense prospectively over
11 years, which is reflective of the average remaining service period of active employees
expected to receive benefits under the plan. Any actuarial gains or losses are amortized into
expense using the corridor method.

Revenue Recognition

Distribution revenue is recorded on the basis of regular meter readings and estimates of
customer usage since the last meter reading date to the end of the period. Estimated
customer usage from the last meter reading date to the period end (unbilled revenue) is
included in revenue.

Distribution and energy related revenues attributable to the supply and delivery of electricity are
based on OEB-approved rates and are recognized as electricity is delivered to customers.
Other revenues, which include pole attachment fees, customer demand work, and other
miscellaneous revenues are recognized at the time the service is provided.

Rate Regulating _

The rates of the company’s -electricity business are subject to regulation by the OEB. The OEB
has the general power to include or exclude costs, revenues, losses or gains in the rates of a
specific period, resulting in a change in the timing of accounting recognition from that which
would have applied in an unregulated company. Such change in timing gives rise to the
recognition of regulatory assets and liabilities. The company's regulatory assets represent
certain amounts receivable from future customers and costs that have been deferred for
accounting purposes because it is probable that they will be recovered in future rates. In
addition, the company has recorded regulatory liabilities which represent amounts for
expenses incurred in different periods that would be the case had the company not been
regulated. Specific regulatory assets and liabilities are disclosed in Note 7.

As prescribed by regulatory rate order, payment in lieu of taxes are recovered through
customer rates based on the taxes payable method. Rates do not include the recovery of
payment in lieu of future taxes related to temporary differences between the tax basis of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for accounting purposes.

Power Purchases
The power bill received from the Independent Electricity System Operator (IESO) is recorded
in the period to which it refers and not in the period in which it is received.

Costs for power purchased represent the cost of electricity delivered to customers within the
company's distribution service territory and consist of the wholesale commodity cost of energy,
the IESO wholesale market service charges, and transmission charges levied by the IESO.



WOODSTOCK HYDROSERVICES INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

December 31, 2009

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from management's best estimates as additional information becomes available in the
future, including changes as a result of future decisions made by the OEB, the Minister of
Energy and Infrastructure, or the Minister of Finance.

Accounts receivable is based on expected amounts to be recovered less an appropriate
allowance for unrecoverable amounts based on prior experience. Unbilled revenue and
regulatory assets are reported based on amounts expected to be recovered.
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WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2009

1. Correction of Prior Period
During the year, an actuarial analysis was performed on the company's employee post-
retirement non-pension benefits as of January 1, 2009. The results of the analysis yielded that
a liability related to these benefits existed as of January 1, 2009 (Note 14).
Due to an underestimation of the number of employees eligible for the receipt of these
benefits, the company had never recognized a liability for the future cost of the benefits. Given
the expertise required to calculate the liability associated with these benefits, and the many
variables that are required to quantify the liability that may have existed in periods prior to the
year ended December 31, 2008, determining a liability for prior periods was not practical. As
such, an adjustment has been made to the current years retained earnings to reflect the
existence of the liability that existed at January 1, 2009.
The effect of the restatement on 2008 is summarized below:
2008
Assets
Increase in Future income tax asset $ 390,780
Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity
Increase in Accrued benefit obligation $ 1,087,527
Decrease in Retained earnings $ (696,747)
$__ 390780
2. Change in Accounting Policy

Regulatory (Liabilities) Assets

Effective January 1, 2009, the company adopted amended Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants (CICA) Handbook Section 1100 - "Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP)". The amendment to Handbook Section 1100 removes the temporary exemption for
rate-regulated entities pertaining to the application of that section to the recognition and
measurement of assets and liabilities arising from rate regulation. The company has
determined that in accordance with the amendments in Handbook Section 1100 that its assets
and liabilities arising from rate-regulated activities qualify for recognition under GAAP. As
such, the amendments to this Handbook Section have had no impact on the company's
financial statements.

11



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2009

2,

Change in Accounting Policy (continued)

Effective January 1, 2009, the company adopted amended Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants (CICA) Handbook Section 3465 - "Income Taxes". The amendment to Handbook
Section 3465 requires the recognition of future income tax liabilities and assets as well as a
separate regulatory asset or liability balance for the amount of future income taxes expected to
be included in future tax rates and recovered from or paid to customers. Through a review of
the company's rate setting application it was determined by management that the effect of
these amendments had no impact on the company's financial statements.

Financial Instruments

In June 2009, the CICA amended Handbook Section 3862 to include additional disclosure
requirements with respect to fair value measurement of financial instruments and to enhance
liquidity risk disclosure requirements. Handbook Section 3862 establishes a fair value
hierarchy which includes three categories for fair value measurement

Level 1: Fair value is based on unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in an
active market.

Level 2: Fair value is based on quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
valuation that is based on significant observable inputs or inputs that are derived
principally for or corroborated with observable market data through correlation or
other means.

Level 3: Fair value is based on valuation techniques that require one or more significant
unobservable inputs or the use of broker quotes. These unobservable inputs reflect
the Company's assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in
pricing the assets or liabilities.

These amendments were adopted by the company, however, there was no impact on the
company's financial statements.

12



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2009

3. Inventories

2009 2008
Plant materials $ 386,604 $ 404,341
Smart meters 556,609 506,845
Total $ 943,213 $ 911,186

CICA Handbook Section 3031 — “Inventories”, requires the company to retrospectively
reclassify all amounts related to future components of its electricity distribution system from
inventory to capital assets. Once capitalized, these items are amortized when they become
available for use.

Included in inventory are assets that are deemed "stranded". These assets relate to meters
that have been replaced by smart meters. The amount carried in the company's inventory is
$111,194 as at December 31, 2009. Disposition of these costs will be determined in future
proceedings of the Ontario Energy Board.

4. Capital Assets

2009 2008

Accumulated Accumulated

Cost Amortization Cost  Amortization

Land $ 39,365 $ - $ 39,365 $ -
Buildings and distribution

system 31,117,593 11,907,106 28,696,934 10,321,238

Machinery and equipment 4,565,116 3,303,407 4,137,562 2,943,531

Organization expense 16,365 3,806 16,365 3,390

Work-in-progress 87,708 = - -

$ 35,826,147 $ 15,214,319 $ 32,890,226 $ 13,268,159

Net book value $ 20,611,828 $ 19,622,067

At December 31, 2009, the net book value of stranded meters related to the deployment of
smart meters included in buildings and distribution systems was $1,263,892 net of
accumulated amortization. In the absence of rate-regulation, capital assets would have been
reduced by this amount as of December 31, 2009. Disposition of these costs will be
determined in future proceedings of the Ontario Energy Board

13



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2009

5. Long Term Deposit - Hydro One TS
A Letter Agreement between the company and Hydro One for construction of a new
transformer station was signed on May 29, 2008. In accordance with the Letter Agreement,
the company provided a deposit of $169,500 in July 2008 ($150,000 plus taxes) that
represented 50% of the cancellation cost.
The company anticipates the Connection Cost Recovery Agreement (CCRA) will be signed in
2010 and construction of the new transformer station will begin in the same year. Additional
funding for the construction of this station will be required by the company, and the anticipated
payment schedule related to the additional contribution is as foliows:
50% of the contribution at signing, less the current deposit
25% of the contribution at the commencement of construction; and,
25% at the completion of the project
At this time, the expected completion date for the transformer station is the fourth quarter of
2011.
6. Customer Deposits

Customer Deposits include amounts collected from customers to guarantee the payment of
energy bills. The customer deposit liability includes interest credited to the customer’s deposit
accounts, with the debit charged to interest expense. Deposits expected to be refunded to
customers within the next fiscal year are classified as a current liability. Customer deposits
also include prudential deposits received from retailers.

Developer deposits collected for maintenance deposits and deposits for recoverable work are
also included in Customer Deposits.

14



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2009

7. Regulatory (Liabilities) Assets

2009 2008
Deferred payments in lieu of taxes $ 305,298 $ 302,578
Settlement sales variance (2,125,997) (1,735,864)
Smart meters 1,279,867 (127,118)
Other regulatory assets 274,837 249,251
Assets recovered through rates 34,543 33,955

$ (231,452) $ (1,277,198)

For most of the regulatory assets and liabilities identified the expected recovery or settlement
period, or likelihood of recovery or settlement, is affected by risks and uncertainties relating to
the ultimate authority of the OEB in determining the item’s treatment for rate-setting purposes.
These costs have been deferred in accordance with OEB regulatory requirements. Amounts
recorded are subject to review and approval of the OEB.

The regulatory (liability) asset balances of the company are defined as follows:

Deferred payments in lieu of taxes

The company has accumulated a PILS variance amount representing differences that have
resulted from a legislative or regulatory change to the tax rates or rules assumed in the rate
adjustment model. The 2009 OEB prescribed carrying charges were $2,720 (2008 - $9,591).

Settlement sales variance

In May 1, 2002 the Ontario energy market opened to competition. Since May 1, 2002, the
difference between the cost of power based on time-of-use rates and amounts billed to non-
time-of-use customers charged at an average rate are recorded in settlement variance
accounts as directed by the OEB; variances resulting from energy line-loss are also included.
These sales variance accounts ensure that a utility’s gross profit is limited to distribution
revenue and service charges.

Smart meter recovery

Effective May 1, 2006, the OEB has allowed the company to defer revenues, capital
expenditures, operating expenditures and amortization relating to smart meters. Accordingly,
the company has deferred these items in accordance with criteria set out in the Accounting
Procedures Handbook.

18



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

7.

Regulatory (Liabilities) Assets (continued)

In connection with the smart meter initiative, the corporation has incurred capital costs relating
to their installation in 2009 of $1,314,184 (2008 - $nil) net of amortization. Along with the
capital expenditures incurred, the company also incurred operating, maintenance and
amortization expenses in 2009 of $211,457 (2008 - $nil), and incurred OEB prescribed
carrying charges of $855 (2008 - $3,706).

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the company collected smart meter customer
revenues of $119,512 (2008 - $47,952) from rate riders.

Other regulatory assets
OEB Assessment Costs

In December 2004, Local Distribution Companies (LDC's) were allowed to establish a deferral
account to record the annual costs assessed by the OEB. The amounts recorded as deferral
costs are the amounts by which the annual OEB assessment costs for the period January 1,
2004 to April 30, 2006, exceed the amounts being recovered through distribution rates.
Subsequent to April 30, 2006, the annual assessment costs have been fully expensed by the
company. It is anticipated the costs deferred will be reviewed by the OEB for final approval in a
future rate application process. In 2009, OEB prescribed carrying charges of $383 (2008 -
$1,351) for OEB cost assessment interest were recorded.

Pension Contributions

In December 2004, an OEB deferral account was established to record OMERS cash pension
costs between January 1, 2005 and April 30, 2006 that were not recovered in rates. On May 1,
2006, pension cost contributions to OMERS were incorporated into the distribution rates. In
2009, OEB prescribed carrying charges of $2,081 (2008 - $7,341) for pension contribution
interest were recorded.

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) Costs

In 2009, an OEB deferral account was established to record one-time administrative costs
related to the transition to IFRS. [n 2009, one-time costs incurred for IFRS transition were
$22,008 (2008 - $nil).

Renewable Generation Connection Costs

In 2009, an OEB deferral account was established to record costs associated with renewable
energy costs. The deferral of costs includes those associated with demonstration projects,
planning, education and training related to renewable energy development. In 2009, costs
incurred for renewable energy education were $1,114 (2008 - $nil).
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WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2009

7. Regulatory (Liabilities) Assets (continued)
Assets recovered through rates
The regulatory assets recovery account (RARA) includes regulatory asset balances the OEB
has approved for recovery and recovered over a period ending March 31, 2008. The OEB has
indicated that a future proceeding will address settlement of the residual balance in the RARA
account.
The RARA is credited with recovery amounts and is debited by OEB - prescribed carrying
charges. In the absence of rate regulation, these would have been capitalized or expensed
under Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

8. Long-term Debt

2009 2008
4.975% CIBC term bank loan, payable
interest only monthly until May 2012,
payable $87,385 principal and interest monthly
thereafter until October 2025 $ 10,941,862 $ 10,941,862

To mitigate exposure to interest rate risk, the company entered into an International Swaps
and Derivatives Association (ISDA), 200 Master Agreement concurrent with the entry into the
loan facility. The interest rate swap is used for non-speculative purposes to convert floating
rate debt into fixed debt rate bearing interest at 4.975%.

The debt facilities are amortized on the basis of a 15 year amortization schedule following a
two-year interest-only period. The long-term debt obligation is unsecured.

The agreement with respect to the CIBC credit facility contains certain covenants regarding
leverage, liquidity, restrictions on business activities, restrictions on distributions, change in
ownership, mergers, acquisitions or change in line of business, and limitations on additional
debt.
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WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2009

8. Long-term Debt (continued)
Principal repayments for the next four years are as follows:
2010 $ -
2011 -
2012 328,309
2013 10,613,553
$ 10,941,862
The debt facility has a termination date of October 1, 2025, with early termination options
available to both CIBC and the company in July of 2013, 2018 and 2023.
Exercising the early termination option would result in either a liability or an asset for the
company. This value of the asset of liability is based on an agreed upon amount between the
two parties involved, dependent on the market conditions at the time of termination.
9. Bank Operating Facility
The company has available an operating credit facility of up to $3,000,000 from the Canadian
Imperial Bank of Commerce at the corporate bank prime rate of interest plus 0.15%. At
December 31, 2009, there were no amounts drawn under the facility (2008 - $nil).
The company also has provided the Independent Electricity System Operator with a
$1,960,005 letter of credit. At December 31, 2009, there were no amounts drawn under the
facility (2008 — nil).
10. Share Capital

The authorized class "A" Special share capital of the company is an unlimited number of non-
voting shares, with a stated value equal to consideration received on issue, redeemable and
retractable at $100 per share and entitled to a non-cumulative annual dividend to be
determined each year by the directors based on the redemption amount.

The authorized class "B" Special share capital of the company is an unlimited number of voting
shares, with a stated value equal to the consideration received on issue, redeemable and
retractable at $100 per share and entitled to a non-cumulative annual dividend to be
determined each year by the directors based on the redemption amount.

The authorized common share capital of the company is an unlimited number of shares.

18



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2009

10. Share Capital (continued)

The issued share capital is as follows:

2009 2008

360 Common shares $ 10,941,862 $ 10,941,862

11.

Related Party Transactions

The following entities are related to Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.:

- Woodstock Hydro Holdings Inc. - parent company
- City of Woodstock - owner of Woodstock Hydro Holdings Inc.

The following table summarizes the company's related party transactions for the year:

Woodstock
Hydro City of

Holdings Inc.  Woodstock Total
Balance Sheet
Due from related parties $ 22 $ 121,192 $ 121,214
Dividends paid $ 225000 $ - $§ 225,000
Statement of Operations
Other operating revenue $ - 8 194,524 $ 194,524
Operating and maintenance $ - 3 3478 $ 3,478
Property taxes $ - $ 104422 $ 104,422

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange
value (the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties), which
approximates the arm's length equivalent value for sales of product.
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12.

Net Change in Non-cash Working Capital Balances

The net change in non-cash working capital balances consists of:

2009 2008
Accounts receivable $ (133,724) $ (279,667)
Unbilled revenue (629,383) (76,898)
Income taxes receivable 141,485 (264,558)
Due from related parties (13,889) 164
Inventories (32,027) (124,469)
Prepaid expenses 14,420 (26,085)
Accounts payable and accrued liabiiities 539,849 1,268,721
Income taxes payable - (445,682)
Deferred revenue (500,622) (115,461)
Accrued payroll and vacation pay 20,633 17,539
Inventory transfer to capital assets - (441,860)
$ (593,258) $  (488,256)
Interest paid $ 533,880 $ 853,961
Income taxes paid $ 446,070 $ 1,543,335
13. Pension

The company makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund
(OMERS), which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of its staff. The plan is a defined benefit
plan, which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employees,
based on the length of service and rates of pay.

The amount contributed to OMERS for 2009 was $166,241 (2008 - $162,841) for current
service.
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14. Accrued Benefit Obligation

The company has a number of unfunded benefit plans providing retirement and post-
employment benefits (excluding pension) to most of its employees. The company pays certain
dental, medical and life insurance benefits under unfunded defined benefit plans on behalf of
its retired employees.

The company measures its accrued benefits obligation for accounting purposes as at
December 31 of each year. The latest actuarial valuation was performed as at January 1,
2009.

2009 2008
Accrued benefit obligation

Balance, beginning of year $ 1,087,527 $ -
Current service cost 21,820 -
Interest on benefits 64,899 -
Benefits paid (55,413) -
Correction of prior period error (Note 1) = 1,087,527
Balance, end of year $ 1,118,833 $ 1,087,527

Since 2009 is the first year an actuarial analysis has been completed on the accrued benefit
obligation, comparative information is unavailable.

The assumptions used in the measurement of the benefit obligations are shown in the
following table:

2009
Discount rate 5.00 %
Withdrawal rate 2.00 %
Rate of compensation increase 3.30 %
Health care cost trend rate 9.00 %

For December 31, 2009, health costs are assumed to be 9.00%, these costs are assumed to
decrease by 0.67% annually until 2015, where they are assumed to remain at 5.00%
thereafter.
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15.

Subsequent Event

Subsequent to year end, the company received an advance from Ontario Infrastructure
Projects Corporation ("OIPC") in the amount of $1,696,744. This advance relates to a
financing agreement between the OIPC and the company for the implementation of smart
meters.

Under the agreement, the company has requested and been approved for financing up to
$3,000,000. This financing agreement contains similar covenants to those of its long-term
debt and operating bank facility as noted in Notes 8 and 9, respectively, along with the
requirement of maintaining a minimum current ratio of 1.1:1.

The advances bear interest at the OIPC's floating rate plus a spread assigned to the
company's sector based on delivery costs and risks, and is payable to the OIPC at the
beginning of every month in interest only payments.

Once the installation of the smart meters has been completed, any advances made to the
company will be rolled into debentures with separate interest and repayment terms.

16.

Contingency

An action has been brought under the Class Proceedings Act, 1992. The plaintiff class seeks
$500 million in restitution for amounts paid to Toronto Hydro and to other Ontario municipal
electric utilities ("LDCs") who received late payment penalties which constitute interest at an
effective rate in excess of 60% per year, contrary to Section 347 of the Criminal Code. This
action is at a preliminary stage. Pleadings have closed and examinations for discovery have
been conducted. The action has not yet been certified as a class action and no discoveries
have been held, as the parties were awaiting the outcome of a similar proceeding brought
against Enbridge Gas Distribution Inc. (formally known as Consumers Gas).

On April 22, 2004, the Supreme Court of Canada released a decision in the Enbridge Gas
case rejecting all of the defences which had been raised by Enbridge Gas, although the Court
did not permit the Plaintiff class to recover damages for any period prior to the issuance of the
Statement of Claim in 1994 challenging the validity of late payment penalties. The Supreme
Court remitted the matter back to the Ontario Superior Court of Justice for determination of the
damages. At the end of 2006, a mediation process resulted in the settlement of the damages
payable by Enbridge and that settlement was approved by the Ontario Superior Court.

In 2007, Enbridge filed an application to the Ontario Energy Board ("OEB") to recover the
Court-approved amount and related amounts from ratepayers. On February 4, 2008 the OEB
approved the recovery of the said amounts from ratepayers over a five year period.
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16.

Contingency (continued)

After the release by the Supreme Court of Canada of its 2004 decision in the Enbridge Gas
case, the plaintiffs in the LDC late payment penalties class action indicated their intention to
proceed with their litigation against the LDCs. The parties are in settlement discussions but no
settlement has been reached. At this time, it is not possible to quantify the effect, if any, on the
financial statements.

Woodstock Hydro Services Inc. collected total late penalties of $827,148 from and after 1994
until January 1, 2002. No determination of the portion of these payments which may have
constituted interest at an impermissible rate has been made. Woodstock Hydro changed its
late payment from 5% to 1.5% effective January 1, 2002,

17.

Financial Instruments Risk Factors

Recognition and Measurement
The company's carrying value of financial instruments consist of the following:

Designated Loans Other
held-for- and financial
trading receivables liabilities
Cash and bank $ 2,157,301 § - $ -
Accounts receivable, net of allowance - 3,613,440 -
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities - - (5,632,435)
Accrued payroll and vacation pay - - (160,549)
Sick leave liability - - (126,052)
Long-term debt - - (10,941,862)
Accrued benefit obligation - - (1,118,833)

$ 2157301 $ 3,513,440 §$(17,979,731)

The following is a discussion of risks and related mitigation strategies that have been identified
by the company for financial instruments. This list is not exhaustive of all risks, nor will the
mitigation strategies eliminate all risks listed.
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17. Financial Instruments Risk Factors (continued)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates, and commodity prices, will affect the Company’s cash flows of the value of its holdings
of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to minimize the impact
that market risks have on the company’s cash flows.

The company does not have commodity risk and has limited exposure to changes in foreign
currency exchange rates.

The company's revenue requirement is recovered through distribution rates and charges and
other income, which includes interest income. Currently, the difference in interest revenue
reduction and the actual interest income earned by the company is immaterial.

Changes in interest rates do not have a significant impact on cash payments that are required
on the Company's debt obligations. Exposure to changes in interest rates are mitigated
through the use of an Interest Rate Swap (IRS) for the company’s long-term debt.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that of a financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty fails
to discharge its obligation to the company. The company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is
equal to the carrying value of its financial assets. Credit risk can be prevalent in customers that
are similarly affected by economic or other conditions. Concentrations of consumption by class
or individual customer may also impact risk due to varying energy consumption patterns and
allowable security deposit requirements associated with each class.

The company's objective is to maximize credit collection and minimize bad debt expense.
Credit risk is managed by monitoring and limiting exposure to credit risk, subject to OEB
guidelines, on an ongoing basis.

Risk is mitigated by regulation which provides for certain customers to provide security
deposits for a prescribed period of time. Customers may be required to post security to receive
electricity or other services.

The carrying amount of accounts receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance for
doubtful accounts based on the financial condition of the counter-parties and by applying a
percentage based amount to total accounts receivable, based on past experience. The amount
of the related impairment loss is recognized in the income statement. Subsequent recoveries
of receivables previously provisioned are credited to the income statement.
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17. Financial Instruments Risk Factors (continued)

Credit risk associated with accounts receivable is as follows:

2009
Total accounts receivable $ 3,548,440
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (35,000)
$_3513.440
Of which: ~
Outstanding for not more than 30 days $ 3,282,524
Qutstanding for more than 30 days but not more than 60 days 114,586
Outstanding for more than 60 days not not more than 90 days 39,102
Qutstanding for more than 90 days 112,228
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts {35,000)
$ 3,513,440

As of December 31, 2009, the company is not exposed to a significant concentration of credit
risk within any customer class or individual customer.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they become due. Short-term liquidity is provided through cash and cash equivalents on hand,
funds from operations, as well as an established $3,000,000 operating credit facility (Note 9).
The company believes that future cash flow from operating activities, available capacity on its
existing revolving credit facility and access to additional liquidity through excess debt capacity
will be adequate to meet its financial obligations.

Due within Due between Due after
1 year 1 and 5 years 5 years
Financial liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilites $ 5,632,435 $ - § -
Accrued payroll and vacation pay 160,549 - -
Accrued sick leave - 126,052 -
Long-term debt - 10,941,862 -
Accrued benefit obligation - - 1,118,833

$ 5,792,984 $ 11,067914 $ 1,118,833

The timing of the accrued sick leave payable is unknown, and would be dependent on when
the eligible employees would request to take the time, or retire. It has been reflected as due
between 1 and 5 years.
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18.

Public Liability Insurance

The company is a member of the Electricity Distributors Association Reciprocal Insurance
Exchange which is a pooling of the public liability insurance risks of many of the municipal
utilities in Ontario. All members of the pool are subject to assessment for losses experienced
by the pool for the years in which they are members on a pro-rata basis based on the total of
their respective service revenues.

It is anticipated that, should such an assessment occur, it would be funded over a period of up
to five years. As at December 31, 2009, no assessments have been made.

19.

Capital Disclosures

The company’s objectives when managing its capital are to:

- maintain a financial position that supports the company's operations and growth
strategies; ,

- provide an adequate return to its shareholder;

- comply with covenants related to its credit facilities; and

- align its capital structure for regulated activities with debt to equ:ty structure
recommended by the OEB, which is 60% debt and 40% equity by 2010.

The company defines capital as shareholder's equity. As of December 31, 2009, shareholder’s
equity amounted to $14,291,988 (2008 - $13,925,310).

The company has externally imposed capital requirements in the form of credit facility
agreements that contain various financial and non-financial covenants (Note 8). The financial
covenants associated with the company’s credit facility are as follows:

(i maximum debt to capitalization ratio of 65% at any time; and
(i)  minimum cash flow debt service ratio of 1.5 at any time.

As at December 31, 2009, the company was in compliance with all of the above financial
covenants,

20.

Economic Dependence

The company purchases substantially all of its power from the Independent Electricity System
Operator. A minimal amount of electricity is purchased from Hydro One for long-term load
transfers.
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21.

New Accounting Pronouncements

Section 1506, Accounting Changes requires disclosures of when an entity has not applied a
new primary source of GAAP that has been issued but is not yet effective.

Recent accounting pronouncements that have been issued but are not yet effective, and have
a potential implication for the company, are as follows:

International Financial Reporting Standards

On February 13, 2008, the CICA pronounced that publicly accountable enterprises will adopt
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB), for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011. IFRS will
require increased financial statement disclosure. Although IFRS uses a conceptual framework
similar to Canadian GAAP, some differences in accounting policies exist.

At this time, the impact on the company's financial statements is not reasonably determinable
or estimable. The company is currently developing an implementation plan for the adoption of
IFRS and has updated its information system to be compatible with IFRS requirement. The
OEB has also begun an IFRS consultation to determine the nature of any changes that should
be made in regulatory reporting requirements in response to IFRS. The company will closely
monitor the OEB consultation as well as any International Accounting Standards Board
initiatives with the potential to impact rate regulated accounting under IFRS. '

22,

Comparative Financial Statements

The comparative financial statement amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current
year's presentation.
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» REVENUE REQUIREMENT WORK FORM

e
x f Name of LDC: | Woodstock Hydro Services Inc (1)
File Number: | EB-2010-0145
h [ s [ 4
Ontario Rate Year: | 2011 Version: 2.11

Table of Content

Sheet Name
A Data Input Sheet
1 Rate Base
2 Utility Income
3 Taxes/PILS
4 Capitalization/Cost of Capital
5 Revenue Sufficiency/Deficiency
6 Revenue Requirement
7A Bill Impacts -Residential
7B Bill Impacts - GS <50 kW

Notes:

(1) Pale green cells represent inputs

(2) Pale yellow cells represent drop=down lists

(3) Please note that this model uses MACROS. Before starting, please ensure that macros have been

enabled.
(4) Completed versions of the Revenue Requirement Work Form are required to be filed in working Microsoft

Excel format.

Copyright

This Revenue Requirement Work Form Model is protected by copyright and is being made available to you solely for
the purpose of preparing or reviewing your draft rate order. You may use and copy this model for that purpose, and
provide a copy of this model to any person that is advising or assisting you in that regard. Except as indicated above,
any copying, reproduction, publication, sale, adaptation, translation, modification, reverse engineering or other use or
dissemination of this model without the express written consent of the Ontario Energy Board is prohibited. If you
provide a copy of this model to a person that is advising or assisting you in preparing or reviewing your draft rate
order, you must ensure that the person understands and agrees to the restrictions noted above.



REVENUE REQUIREMENT WORK FORM Version: 2.11
Name of LDC: Woodstock Hydro Services Inc
File Number: EB-2010-0145
Rate Year: 2011
‘l:m'm'
Ontario
Data Input (1)
Initial ()] Per Board
Application Decision
1 Rate Base
Gross Fixed Assets (average) $44,579,910 $ 44,579,910 $44,579,910
Accumulated Depreciation (average) ($18,157,810) (5) -$ 18,157,810 ($18,157,810)
Allowance for Working Capital:
Controllable Expenses $4,169,207 $ 4,169,207 $4,169,207
Cost of Power $30,587,421 $ 30,587,421 $30,587,421
Working Capital Rate (%) 15.00% 15.00% 15.00%
2 Utility Income
Operating Revenues:
Distribution Revenue at Current Rates $6,475,857
Distribution Revenue at Proposed Rates $8,232,474
Other Revenue:
Specific Service Charges $234,290
Late Payment Charges $54,254
Other Distribution Revenue $105,850
Other Income and Deductions $88,885
Operating Expenses:
OM+A Expenses $4,042,261 $ 4,042,261 $4,042,261
Depreciation/Amortization $2,031,382 $ 2,031,382 $2,031,382
Property taxes $126,946 $ 126,946 $126,946
Capital taxes $0
Other expenses $- 0 $0
3  Taxes/PILs
Taxable Income:
Adjustments required to arrive at taxable ($177,112) (3)
income
Utility Income Taxes and Rates:
Income taxes (not grossed up) $254,405
Income taxes (grossed up) $333,825
Capital Taxes $- (6) (6) (6)
Federal tax (%) 16.50%
Provincial tax (%) 7.29%
Income Tax Credits
4 Capitalization/Cost of Capital
Capital Structure:
Long-term debt Capitalization Ratio (%) 56.0%
Short-term debt Capitalization Ratio (%) 4.0% (2) (2) )
Common Equity Capitalization Ratio (%) 40.0%
Prefered Shares Capitalization Ratio (%) 0.0%
100.0%
Cost of Capital
Long-term debt Cost Rate (%) 5.13%
Short-term debt Cost Rate (%) 2.07%
Common Equity Cost Rate (%) 9.85%
Prefered Shares Cost Rate (%) 0.00%
Notes:
Data inputs are required on on this Sheet A. Data Input Sheet, and on Sheets 7A and 7B, for Bill IMpacts. Data on this input sheet complete sheets 1 through 6
(Rate Base through Revenue Requirement), except for Notes that the utility may wish to use to support the data. Notes should be put on the applicable pages to
1) All inputs are in dollars ($) except where inputs are individually identified as percentages (%)
2) 4.0% unless an Applicant has proposed or been approved for another amount.
3) Net of addbacks and deductions to arrive at taxable income.
4) Average of Gross Fixed Assets at beginning and end of the Test Year
(5) Average of Accumulated Depreciation at the beginning and end of the Test Year. Enter as a negative amount.
(6) Not applicable as of July 1, 2010

@)

Select option from drop-down list by clicking on cell M10. This columnallows for the application update reflecting the end of discovery or Argument-in-Chief.
Also, the outsome of any Settlement Process can be reflected.



723 REVENUE REQUIREMENT WORK FORM Version: 2.11
¢= Name of LDC: Woodstock Hydro Services Inc
1 File Number:  EB-2010-0145
Rate Year: 2011
h [ ous | 4
Ontario
Rate Base
Line Particulars Initial Per Board
No Application Decision
1 Gross Fixed Assets (average) (3) $44,579,910 $- $44,579,910 $- $44,579,910
2 Accumulated Depreciation (average) (3) ($18,157,810) $ - ($18,157,810) $ - ($18,157,810)
3 Net Fixed Assets (average) 3 $26,422,100 $- $26,422,100 $- $26,422,100
4 Allowance for Working Capital ) $5,213,494 $ - $5,213,494 $- $5,213,494
5 Total Rate Base $31,635,594 $ - $31,635,594 $ - $31,635,594
(1) Allowance for Working Capital - Derivation
6 [Controllable Expenses $4,169,207 $- $4,169,207 $- $4,169,207
7 |Cost of Power $30,587,421 $- $30,587,421 $- $30,587,421
8 [Working Capital Base $34,756,628 $- $34,756,628 $- $34,756,628
9 |Working Capital Rate % 2 15.00% 0.00% 15.00% 0.00% 15.00%
10 |Working Capital Allowance $5,213,494 $ - $5,213,494 $- $5,213,494

Notes

(2) Generally 15%. Some distributors may have a unique rate due as a result of a lead-lag study.

(3) Average of opening and closing balances for the year.




»

REVENUE REQUIREMENT WORK FORM

Version: 2.11
= Name of LDC: Woodstock Hydro Services Inc
; File Number:  EB-2010-0145
Rate Year: 2011
h [ rous [ 4
Ontario
Utility income
Line particulars In_mal_ Per I_30_ard
No. Application Decision
Operating Revenues:
1 Distribution Revenue (at $8,232,474 ($8,232,474) $- $- $-
Proposed Rates)
2 Other Revenue 1) $483,279 ($483,279) $- $- $-
3 Total Operating Revenues $8,715,753 ($8,715,753) $- $ - $-
Operating Expenses:
4 OM+A Expenses $4,042,261 $- $4,042,261 $- $4,042,261
5 Depreciation/Amortization $2,031,382 $- $2,031,382 $- $2,031,382
6 Property taxes $126,946 $- $126,946 $- $126,946
7 Capital taxes $- $- $- $- $-
8 Other expense $- $- $- $- $-
9 Subtotal (lines 4 to 8) $6,200,589 $- $6,200,589 $- $6,200,589
10 Deemed Interest Expense $934,897 ($934,897) $- $- $-
11 Total Expenses (lines 9 to 10) $7,135,485 ($934,897) $6,200,589 $- $6,200,589
12 Utility Income betore income
taxes $1,580,267 ($7,780,856) ($6,200,589) $- ($6,200,589)
13 Income taxes (grossed-up) $333,825 $- $333,825 $- $333,825
14 Utility net income $1,246,442 ($7,780,856) ($6,534,414) $- ($6,534,414)
Notes
1) Other Revenues / Revenue Offsets
Specific Service Charges $234,290 $- $-
Late Payment Charges $54,254 $- $-
Other Distribution Revenue $105,850 $- $-
Other Income and Deductions $88,885 $- $ -
Total Revenue Offsets $483,279 $- $- $- $-
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= Name of LDC: Woodstock Hydro Services Inc
t ; File Number:  EB-2010-0145
Rate Year: 2011
h[ neus 14
Ontario
Taxes/PILs
Line . L
No. Particulars Application
Determination of Taxable Income
1 Utility net income before taxes $1,246,442
2 Adjustments required to arrive at taxable ($177,112)
utility income
3 Taxable income $1,069,330
Calculation of Utility income Taxes
4 Income taxes $254,405
5 Capital taxes $- @
6 Total taxes $254,405
7 Gross-up of Income Taxes $79,420
8 Grossed-up Income Taxes $333,825
9 PILs/tax Allowance (Grossed-up Income
taxes + Capital taxes) $333,825
10 Other tax Credits $-
Tax Rates
11 Federal tax (%) 16.50%
12 Provincial tax (%) 7.29%
13 Total tax rate (%) 23.79%
Notes
Q) Capital Taxes not applicable after July 1, 2010 (i.e. for 2011 and later test years)

$254,405
$-

$254,405
$79,420

$333,825

$333,825

$-

16.50%
7.29%
23.79%

@

Version: 2.11

Per Board
Decision

$-

($177,112)

($177,112)

$254,405
$-

$254,405
$79,420

$333,825

$333,825

$-

16.50%
7.29%
23.79%

@



REVENUE REQUIREMENT WORK FORM Version: 2.11

»
¢= Name of LDC: Woodstock Hydro Services Inc
1 ; File Number:  EB-2010-0145
For oz g i e Rate Year: 2011

h [ s |4
Ontario
Capitalization/Cost of Capital
Line . T .
No. Particulars Capitalization Ratio Cost Rate Return
[ Initial Application
(%) (%) (%) (%)
Debt
1 Long-term Debt 56.00% $17,715,933 5.13% $908,703
2 Short-term Debt 4.00% $1,265,424 2.07% $26,194
3 Total Debt 60.00% $18,981,357 4.93% $934,897
Equity
4 Common Equity 40.00% $12,654,238 9.85% $1,246,442
5 Preferred Shares 0.00% $- 0.00% $-
6 Total Equity 40.00% $12,654,238 9.85% $1,246,442
7 Total 100.00% $31,635,594 6.90% $2,181,339
(%) (%) (%) (%)
Debt
1 Long-term Debt 0.00% $- 0.00% $-
2 Short-term Debt 0.00% $- 0.00% $-
3 Total Debt 0.00% $ - 0.00% $-
Equity
4 Common Equity 0.00% $- 0.00% $-
5 Preferred Shares 0.00% $- 0.00% $-
6  Total Equity 0.00% $- 0.00% $-
7 Total 0.00% $31,635,594 0.00% $ -
[ Per Board Decision
(%) (%) (%) (%)
Debt
8 Long-term Debt 0.00% $- 5.13% $-
9 Short-term Debt 0.00% $- 2.07% $-
10  Total Debt 0.00% $- 0.00% $-
Equity
11 Common Equity 0.00% $- 9.85% $-
12 Preferred Shares 0.00% $- 0.00% $-
13 Total Equity 0.00% $- 0.00% $-
14 Total 0.00% $31,635,594 0.00% $-
Notes
1) 4.0% unless an Applicant has proposed or been approved for another amount.
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REVENUE REQUIREMENT WORK FORM

prE2 ) Version: 2.11
= Name of LDC: Woodstock Hydro Services Inc
f File Number: ~ EB-2010-0145
Rate Year: 2011
h o 14
Ontario
Revenue Sufficiency/Deficiency
Initial Application Per Board Decision
Line Particulars At Current At Proposed At Current At Proposed At Current At Proposed
No Approved Rates Rates Approved Rates Rates Approved Rates Rates
1 Revenue Deficiency from Below $1,756,617 ($330,560) $6,200,589
2 Distribution Revenue $6,475,857 $6,475,857 $6,475,857 $8,563,033 $- ($6,200,589)
3 Other Operating Revenue $483,279 $483,279 $- $- $- -
Offsets - net
4 Total Revenue $6,959,136 $8,715,753 $6,475,857 $8,232,474 $- $-
5 Operating Expenses $6,200,589 $6,200,589 $6,200,589 $6,200,589 $6,200,589 $6,200,589
6 Deemed Interest Expense $934,897 $934,897 $- $- $- $-
Total Cost and Expenses $7,135,485 $7,135,485 $6,200,589 $6,200,589 $6,200,589 $6,200,589
7 Utility Income Before Income ($176,350) $1,580,267 $275,268 $2,031,885 ($6,200,589) ($6,200,589)
Taxes
8 Tax Adjustments to Accounting ($177,112) ($177,112) ($177,112) ($177,112) $- $-
Income per 2009 PILs
9 Taxable Income ($353,462) $1,403,155 $98,156 $1,854,773 ($6,200,589) ($6,200,589)
10 Income Tax Rate 23.79% 23.79% 23.79% 23.79% 23.79% 23.79%
11 Income Tax on Taxable ($84,092) $333,825 $23,352 $441,269 ($1,475,184) ($1,475,184)
Income
12 Income Tax Credits $- $- $- $- $- $-
13 Utility Net Income ($92,257) $1,246,442 $251,916 ($6,534,414) ($4,725,405) ($6,534,414)
14 Utility Rate Base $31,635,594 $31,635,594 $31,635,594 $31,635,594 $31,635,594 $31,635,594
Deemed Equity Portion of Rate $12,654,238 $12,654,238 $- $- $- $-
Base
15 Income/Equity Rate Base (%) -0.73% 9.85% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
16 Target Return - Equity on Rate 9.85% 9.85% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Base
17 Sufficiency/Deficiency in Return -10.58% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
on Equity
18 Indicated Rate of Return 2.66% 6.90% 0.80% 0.00% -14.94% 0.00%
19 Requested Rate of Return on 6.90% 6.90% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Rate Base
20 Sufficiency/Deficiency in Rate of -4.23% 0.00% 0.80% 0.00% -14.94% 0.00%
Return
21 Target Return on Equity $1,246,442 $1,246,442 $- $- $- $-
22 Revenue Deficiency/(Sufficiency) $1,338,700 ($0) ($251,916) $- $4,725,405 $-
23 Gross Revenue $1,756,617 (1) ($330,560) (1) $6,200,589 (1)
Deficiency/(Sufficiency)
Notes:
1) Revenue Sufficiency/Deficiency divided by (1 - Tax Rate)




R REVENUE REQUIREMENT WORK FORM Version: 2.11

= :
Name of LDC: Woodstock Hydro Services Inc
\ f File Number:  EB-2010-0145
Rate Year: 2011
h o |4
Ontario
Revenue Requirement
Line Particulars Application Per Board Decision
No
1 OM&A Expenses $4,042,261 $4,042,261 $4,042,261
2 Amortization/Depreciation $2,031,382 $2,031,382 $2,031,382
3 Property Taxes $126,946 $126,946 $126,946
4 Capital Taxes $- $- $-
5 Income Taxes (Grossed up) $333,825 $333,825 $333,825
6 Other Expenses $- $- $-
7 Return
Deemed Interest Expense $934,897 $- $-
Return on Deemed Equity $1,246,442 $- $-
g Distribution Revenue Requirement
before Revenues $8,715,753 $6,534,414 $6,534,414
9 Distribution revenue $8,232,474 $ - $-
10 Other revenue $483,279 $- $-
11 Total revenue $8,715,753 $- $-

12 Ditterence (lotal Revenue Less
Distribution Revenue

Requirement before Revenues) ($0) (1) ($6,534,414) (1) ($6,534,414)

Notes
Q) Line 11 - Line 8

@



REVENUE REQUIREMENT WORK FORM

ﬂ Version: 2.11
(= Name of LDC: Woodstock Hydro Services Inc
x f File Number:  EB-2010-0145
= = Rate Year: 2011
h [ s |4
Ontario
Residential
Consumption kwWh
Current Board-Approved Proposed Impact
Rate Volume | Charge Rate Volume | Charge $ %
Charge Unit ($) ($) $) $) Change | Change
1 Monthly Service Charge monthly $ 11.1000 1[$ 11.10 $ 13.7400 1| $ 13.74 $ 264 | 23.78%
2 Smart Meter Rate Adder monthly $ 1.6300 1|$ 1.63 $ 0.4700 1[$ 047 | |-$ 1.16| -71.17%
3 Service Charge Rate Adder(s) 1 $ - 1 $ - $ -
4 Service Charge Rate Rider(s) 1 $ - 1 $ - $ -
5 Distribution Volumetric Rate per kWh $ 0.0190 800 $ 15.20 $ 0.0235 800| $ 18.80 $ 3.60| 23.68%
6 Low Voltage Rate Adder 800( $ - 800| $ - $ -
7 Volumetric Rate Adder(s) 800( $ - 800| $ - $ -
8 Volumetric Rate Rider(s) 800( $ - 800| $ - $ -
9 Smart Meter Disposition Rider monthly 800| $ - 800| $ - $ -
10 LRAM & SSM Rate Rider per kWh 800( $ - $ 0.0010 800|$ 0.80 $ 0.80
11 Deferral/Variance Account per kWh -$ 0.0014 800|-$ 112 |-$ 0.0014 800|-$ 112 |$ - 0.00%
Disposition Rate Rider
12 Smart Meter Disposition Rider monthly $ - $ 1.2000 1{$ 1.20 $ 1.20
13 Deferral/Variance Account per kWh $ - $ 0.0008 800($ 064||$ 0.64
Disposition Rate Rider 2011
14 Non-RPP Rate Rider 2010 per kWh $ - $ 0.0004 800| $ 0.32 $ 032
15 Non-RPP Rate Rider 2011 $ - $ 0.0001 800| $ 0.08 $ 0.08
16 Sub-Total A - Distribution $ 26.81 $ 3493|1$ 8.12| 30.29%
17 RTSR - Network per kWh 0.0061 835.2( $ 5.09 $ 0.0058 834.48($ 484 | |-$ 0.25 -5.00%
18 RTSR - Line and . e 00047 | 8352|s 393||® 00049 gasasls a00||s 016| 417%
Transformation Connection
19 Sub-Total B - Delivery $ 35.83 $ 43.86 $ 8.03 22.41%
(including Sub-Total A)
20 Wholesale Market Service per kWh $ 0.0052 835.2|$ 434 |[$ 0.0052| 834.48($ 434 |-$ 0.00| -0.09%
Charge (WMSC)
21 Rural and Remote Rate per kWh $ 0.0013 835.2 $ 1.09 $ 0.0013 834.48( $ 1.08 | |- 0.00 -0.09%
Protection (RRRP)
22 Special Purpose Charge per kWh $ 0.0003730 835.2|$ 0.31 $0.0003730 834.48($ 031 |-$ 0.00 -0.09%
23 Standard Supply Service Charge monthly $ 0.2500 1|1$ 0.25 $ 0.2500 1{$ 0.25 $ - 0.00%
24  Debt Retirement Charge (DRC) per kWh $ 0.0070 835.2 $ 5.85 $ 0.0070 834.48/$ 584 | |-$ 0.01 -0.09%
25 Energy 835.2 $ - 834.48( $ - $ -
26 Block 1 (RPP Summer) per kWh $ 0.0650 600| $ 39.00 $ 0.0650 600| $ 39.00 $ - 0.00%
27 Block 2 (RPP Summer) $ 0.0750 235.2|$ 17.64 $ 0.0750 23448 $ 1759 | [-$ 0.05 -0.31%
28 Total Bill (before Taxes) $ 104.31 $ 112.27 $ 7.96 7.64%
29 HST 5% $ 5.22 13% $ 14.60 $ 9.38 [ 179.85%
30 Total Bill (including Sub-total $ 109.52 $ 126.87 $ 17.35| 15.84%
B)
31 Loss Factor (%) Note 1
Notes:

Note 1: Enter existing and proposed total loss factor (Secondary Metered Customer < 5,000 kW) as a percentage.
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REVENUE REQUIREMENT WORK FORM Version: 2.11
Name of LDC: Woodstock Hydro Services Inc
File Number:  EB-2010-0145

j=
A
-,

Rate Year: 2011
| s 14
Ontario
General Service < 50 kW
Consumption kWh
Current Board-Approved Proposed Impact
Rate Volume | Charge Rate Volume | Charge $ %
Charge Unit ($) $) ($) ($) Change [ Change
1 Monthly Service Charge monthly $ 21.4500 1[$ 2145 $ 28.4200 1| $ 28.42 $ 6.97| 32.49%
2 Smart Meter Rate Adder monthly $ 1.6300 1|$ 1.63 $ 0.4700 1[$ 047 [$ 116 -71.17%
3 Service Charge Rate Adder(s) 1 $ - 1 $ - $ -
4 Service Charge Rate Rider(s) 1 $ - 1 $ - $ -
5 Distribution Volumetric Rate per kWh $ 0.0123 2000( $ 24.60 $ 0.0163 2000 $ 32.60 $ 8.00| 32.52%
6 Low Voltage Rate Adder 2000( $ - 2000| $ - $ -
7 Volumetric Rate Adder(s) 2000| $ - 2000| $ - $ -
8 Volumetric Rate Rider(s) 2000( $ - 2000| $ - $ -
9 Smart Meter Disposition Rider monthly 2000| $ - 2000| $ - $ -
10 LRAM & SSM Rider per kWh 2000( $ - $ 0.0003 2000( $ 0.60 $ 0.60
11 Deferral/Variance Account per kWh -$ 0.0014 2000|-$ 280 |-$ 0.0014 2000|-$ 280 |$% - 0.00%
Disposition Rate Rider
12 Smart Meter Disposition Rider monthly $ - $ 1.2000 1[$ 1.20 $ 1.20
13 Deferral/Variance Account per kWh $ - $ 0.0002 2000($ 0.40||$ 0.40
Disposition Rate Rider 2011
14 Non-RPP Rate Rider 2010 per kWh $ - $ 0.0004 2000| $ 0.80 $ 0.80
15 Non-RPP Rate Rider 2011 per kWh $ - 0.0000 2000( $ 0.04 $ 0.04
16 Sub-Total A - Distribution $ 44.88 $ 61.73 $ 16.85 37.55%
17 RTSR - Network per kWh $ 0.0055 2088|$ 11.48]|[$ 0.0049 | 2086.2[$ 1022 | [-$ 1.26 | -10.99%
18 RTSR-Line and per kWh $ 0.0043 2088|$ 898 |$ 0.0042 | 2086.2|$ 876 (% 022 -241%
Transformation Connection
19 Sub-Total B - Delivery $ 6534 $ 8072||$ 1537 | 2353%
(including Sub-Total A)
20 Wholesale Market Service per kWh $ 0.0052 2088 $ 10.86 $ 0.0052 2086.2|$ 1085 | |-$ 0.01 -0.09%
Charge (WMSC)
21 Rural and Remote Rate per kWh $ 0.0013 2088 $ 271 $ 0.0013 2086.2($ 2.71||-$ 0.00 -0.09%
Protection (RRRP)
22 Special Purpose Charge per kWh $ 0.0003730 2088 $ 0.78 $ 0.0003730 2086.2($ 0.78 | |-$ 0.00 -0.09%
23 Standard Supply Service Charge monthly $ 0.2500 1|$ 025 $ 0.2500 1[$ 025 $ - 0.00%
24 Debt Retirement Charge (DRC)  per kWh $ 0.0070 2088 $ 14.62 $ 0.0070 2086.2|$ 1460 | |-$ 0.01 -0.09%
25 Energy per kWh 2088( $ - 2086.2( $ - $ -
26 $ 0.0650 750| $ 48.75 $ 0.0650 750| $ 48.75 $ - 0.00%
27 $ 0.0750 1338| $ 100.35 $ 0.0750 1336.2| $ 100.22 | [-$ 0.14 -0.13%
28 Total Bill (before Taxes) $ 243.66 $ 258.87 | |L$ 15.21 6.24%
29 HST 5% $ 12.18 13% $ 33.65 $ 21.47 | 176.23%
30 Total Bill (including Sub-total $ 255.84 $ 29253 | |$ 36.69 | 14.34%
B)
31 Loss Factor Note 1
Notes:

Note 1: See Note 1 from Sheet 1A. Bill Impacts - Residential
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WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC
2010 PRO FORMA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2010 BALANCE SHEET

Account Description [ Total
1050-Current Assets
1005-Cash 3,401,823
1010-Cash Advances and Working Funds 600
1020-Interest Special Deposits 0
1030-Dividend Special Deposits 0
1040-Other Special Deposits 0
1060-Term Deposits 0
1070-Current Investments 0
1100-Customer Accounts Receivable 3,213,994
1102-Accounts Receivable - Services 40,326
1104-Accounts Receivable - Recoverable Work 219,328
1105-Accounts Receivable - Merchandise, Jobbing, etc. 0
1110-Other Accounts Receivable 100,344
1120-Accrued Utility Revenues 3,606,543
1130-Accumulated Provision for Uncollectable Accounts -- Credit (45,000)
1140-Interest and Dividends Receivable 0
1150-Rents Receivable 5,565
1170-Notes Receivable 0
1180-Prepayments 140,731
1190-Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Assets 0
1200-Accounts Receivable from Associated Companies 121,214
1210-Notes Receivable from Associated Companies 0
1050-Current Assets Total 10,805,468
1100-Inventory
1305-Fuel Stock 0
1330-Plant Materials and Operating Supplies 558,644
1340-Merchandise 0
1350-Other Material and Supplies 0
1100-Inventory Total 558,644
1150-Non-Current Assets
1405-Long Term Investments in Non-Associated Companies 0
1408-Long Term Receivable - Street Lighting Transfer 0
1410-Other Special or Collateral Funds 0
1415-Sinking Funds 0
1425-Unamortized Debt Expense 0
1445-Unamortized Discount on Long-Term Debt--Debit 0
1455-Unamortized Deferred Foreign Currency Translation Gains and Losses 0
1460-Other Non-Current Assets 0
1465-0.M.E.R.S. Past Service Costs 0
1470-Past Service Costs - Employee Future Benefits 0
1475-Past Service Costs -Other Pension Plans 0
1480-Portfolio Investments - Associated Companies 0
1485-Investment In Subsidiary Companies - Significant Influence 0
1490-Investment in Subsidiary Companies 0
1150-Non-Current Assets Total 0

2010 Balance Sheet



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC
2010 PRO FORMA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Account Description | Total

1200-Other Assets and Deferred Charges
1505-Unrecovered Plant and Regulatory Study Costs 0
1508-Other Regulatory Assets 334,658
1510-Preliminary Survey and Investigation Charges 0
1515-Emission Allowance Inventory 0
1516-Emission Allowance Withheld 0
1518-RCVA Retail 0
1521- Special Purpose Charge Assessment 64,496
1522- Late Payment Settlement Recovery? 0
1525-Miscellaneous Deferred Debits 0
1530-Deferred Losses from Disposition of Utility Plant 0
1531-Renewable Connection Capital 0
1532-Renewable Connection OM&A 15,468
1534-Smart Grid Capital 0
1535-Smart Grid OM&A 38,998
1540-Deferred Losses from Disposition of Utility Plant 0
1545-Development Charge Deposits/ Receivables 0
1548-RCVA - Service Transaction Request (STR) 0
1550-LV Charges - Variance 0
1555-Smart Meters Recovery 1,651,915
1556-Smart Meters OM & A 292,123
1562-Deferred PlLs 307,298
1563-Deferred PILs - Contra 0
1565-C & DM Costs 0
1566-C & DM Costs Contra 0
1570-Qualifying Transition Costs 0
1571-Pre Market CofP Variance 0
1572-Extraordinary Event Losses 0
1574-Deferred Rate Impact Amounts (1,278,650)
1580-RSVA - Wholesale Market Services 142,021
1582-RSVA - One-Time (390,427)
1584-RSVA - Network Charges (42,538)
1586-RSVA - Connection Charges (556,402)
1588-RSVA - Commodity (Power) 34,543
1590-Recovery of Regulatory Assets (25% of 2002 bal.) 0
1592-PILs and Tax Variance for 2006 & Subsequent Years 0
1595-Disposition and Recovery of Regulatory Balances 0
1200-Other Assets and Deferred Charges Total 613,501

1450-Distribution Plant

1805-Land 21,836
1806-Land Rights 0
1808-Buildings and Fixtures 190,774
1810-Leasehold Improvements 0
1815-Transformer Station Equipment - Normally Primary above 50 kV 0
1820-Distribution Station Equipment - Normally Primary below 50 kV 647,560
1825-Storage Battery Equipment 0
1830-Poles, Towers and Fixtures 8,098,922
1835-Overhead Conductors and Devices 3,778,126
1840-Underground Conduit 4,125,341
1845-Underground Conductors and Devices 5,019,501
1850-Line Transformers 7,351,088
1855-Services 2,616,951
1860-Meters 4,422,227
1865-Other Installations on Customer's Premises 0

1450-Distribution Plant Total 36,272,325

2010 Balance Sheet



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC
2010 PRO FORMA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Account Description | Total

1500-General Plant
1905-Land 17,530
1906-Land Rights 0
1908-Buildings and Fixtures 983,723
1910-Leasehold Improvements 0
1915-Office Furniture and Equipment 240,941
1920-Computer Equipment - Hardware 1,149,475
1925-Computer Software 1,294,868
1930-Transportation Equipment 1,355,849
1935-Stores Equipment 76,839
1940-Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment 270,236
1945-Measurement and Testing Equipment 121,963
1950-Power Operated Equipment 0
1955-Communication Equipment 29,759
1960-Miscellaneous Equipment 1,905
1970-Load Management Controls - Customer Premises 0
1975-Load Management Controls - Utility Premises 0
1980-System Supervisory Equipment 336,973
1985-Sentinel Lighting Rentals 0
1990-Other Tangible Property 0
1995-Contributions and Grants (3,848,276)
1996-Contributions - Commerce Way TS 2,500,000
1500-General Plant Total 4,531,785

1550-Other Capital Assets

2005-Property Under Capital Leases

2010-Electric Plant Purchased or Sold

2020-Experimental Electric Plant Unclassified

2030-Electric Plant and Equipment Leased to Others

2040-Electric Plant Held for Future Use

2050-Completed Construction Not Classified--Electric

2055-Construction Work in Progress--Electric

2060-Electric Plant Acquisition Adjustment

2065-0Other Electric Plant Adjustment

2070-Other Utility Plant

2075-Non-Utility Property Owned or Under Capital Lease
1550-Other Capital Assets Total

ojJo|o|jo|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o

1600-Accumulated Amortization
2105-Accumulated Amortization of Electric Utility Plant - Property, Plant and Equipment (17,169,245)
2120-Accumulated Amortization of Electric Utility Plant - Intangibles 0
2140-Accumulated Amortization of Electric Plant Acquisition Adjustment 0
2160-Accumulated Amortization of Other Utility Plant 0
2180-Accumulated Amortization of Non-Utility Property 0

1600-Accumulated Amortization Total (17,169,245)

[Total Assets | 35,612,477|

2010 Balance Sheet



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC
2010 PRO FORMA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Account Description | Total
1650-Current Liabilities

2205-Accounts Payable 1,761,550
2208-Customer Credit Balances 0
2210-Current Portion of Customer Deposits 316,459
2215-Dividends Declared 0
2220-Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities 1,217,623
2225-Notes and Loans Payable 0
2240-Accounts Payable to Associated Companies 0
2242-Notes Payable to Associated Companies 0
2250-Debt Retirement Charges (DRC) Payable 13,295
2252-Transmission Charges Payable 0
2254-Electric Safety Authority Fees Payable 0
2256-Independent Market Operator Fees and Penalties Payable 2,762,517
2260-Current Portion of Long Term Debt 0
2262-Ontario Hydro Debt - Current Portion 0
2264-Pensions and Employee Benefits - Current Portion 0
2268-Accrued Interest on Long Term Debt 0
2270-Matured Long Term Debt 0
2272-Matured Interest on Long Term Debt 0
2285-0Obligations Under Capital Leases--Current 0
2290-Commodity Taxes 31,116
2292-Payroll Deductions / Expenses Payable 37,999
2294-Accrual for Taxes, "Payments in Lieu" of Taxes, Etc. (123,073)
2296-Future Income Taxes - Current 0
1650-Current Liabilities Total 6,017,486

1700-Non-Current Liabilities
2305-Accumulated Provision for Injuries and Damages 0
2306-Employee Future Benefits 1,018,833
2308-Other Pensions - Past Service Liability 0
2310-Vested Sick Leave Liability 100,052
2315-Accumulated Provision for Rate Refunds 0
2320-Other Miscellaneous Non-Current Liabilities 0
2325-0Obligations Under Capital Lease--Non-Current 0
2330-Devolpment Charge Fund 0
2335-Long Term Customer Deposits 1,027,311
2340-Collateral Funds Liability 0
2345-Unamortized Premium on Long Term Debt 0
2348-0.M.E.R.S. - Past Service Liability - Long Term Portion 0
2350-Future Income Tax - Non-Current (2,460,100)
2405-Other Regulatory Liabilities 0
2410-Deferred Gains From Disposition of Utility Plant 0
2415-Unamortized Gain on Reacquired Debt 0
2425-Other Deferred Credits 0
2435-Accrued Rate-Payer Benefit 0
1700-Non-Current Liabilities Total (313,904)

2010 Balance Sheet



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC
2010 PRO FORMA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Account Description Total

1800-Long-Term Debt

2505-Debentures Outstanding - Long Term Portion 1,800,000
2510-Debenture Advances 0
2515-Required Bonds 0
2520-Other Long Term Debt 13,441,862
2525-Term Bank Loans - Long Term Portion 0
2530-Ontario Hydro Debt Outstanding - Long Term Portion 0
2550-Advances from Associated Companies 0

1800-Long-Term Debt Total 15,241,862

1850-Shareholders' Equity

3005-Common Shares Issued 10,941,862
3008-Preference Shares Issued 0
3010-Contributed Surplus 0
3020-Donations Received 0
3022-Devolpment Charges Transferred to Equity 0
3026-Capital Stock Held in Treasury 0
3030-Miscellaneous Paid-In Capital 0
3035-Installments Received on Capital Stock 0
3040-Appropriated Retained Earnings 0
3045-Unappropriated Retained Earnings 3,562,569
3046-Balance Transferred From Income 162,602
3047-Appropriations of Retained Earnings - Current Period 0
3048-Dividends Payable-Preference Shares 0
3049-Dividends Payable-Common Shares 0
3055-Adjustment to Retained Earnings 0
3065-Unappropriated Undistributed Subsidiary Earnings 0

1850-Shareholders' Equity Total 14,667,033

[Total Liabilities & Shareholder's Equity 35,612,477]
| Balance Sheet Total o]

2010 Balance Sheet



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC
2010 PRO FORMA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2010 STATEMENT OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS

Account Description | Total

3000-Sales of Electricity

4006-Residential Energy Sales (7,881,095)
4010-Commercial Energy Sales 0
4015-Industrial Energy Sales 0
4020-Energy Sales to Large Users 0
4025-Street Lighting Energy Sales (172,263)
4030-Sentinel Energy Sales 0
4035-General Energy Sales (16,243,379)
4040-Other Energy Sales to Public Authorities 0
4045-Energy Sales to Railroads and Railways 0
4050-Revenue Adjustment 0
4055-Energy Sales for Resale 0
4060-Interdepartmental Energy Sales 0
4062-WMS (2,380,059)
4064-Billed WMS-One Time 0
4066-NS (2,260,186)
4068-CS (1,769,920)
4075-LV Charges 0

3000-Sales of Electricity Total

(30,706,903)

3050-Revenues From Services - Distirbution

4080-Distribution Services Revenue (6,324,330)
4082-RS Rev (25,400)
4084-Serv Tx Requests (1,000)
4090-Electric Services Incidental to Energy Sales 0
3050-Revenues From Services - Distirbution Total (6,350,730)

3100-Other Operating Revenues
4205-Interdepartmental Rents 0
4210-Rent from Electric Property (40,885)
4215-Other Utility Operating Income 0
4220-Other Electric Revenues 0
4225-Late Payment Charges (50,235)
4230-Sales of Water and Water Power 0
4235-Miscellaneous Service Revenues (148,875)
4240-Provision for Rate Refunds 0
4245-Government Assistance Directly Credited to Income 0
3100-Other Operating Revenues Total (239,995)
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Account Description Total
3150-Other Income & Deductions
4305-Regulatory Debits 0
4310-Regulatory Credits 0
4315-Revenues from Electric Plant Leased to Others 0
4320-Expenses of Electric Plant Leased to Others 0
4324-Special Purpose Charge Recovery - Billed 0
4325-Revenues from Merchandise, Jobbing, Etc. 0
4330-Costs and Expenses of Merchandising, Jobbing, Etc 0
4335-Profits and Losses from Financial Instrument Hedges 0
4340-Profits and Losses from Financial Instrument Investments 0
4345-Gains from Disposition of Future Use Utility Plant 0
4350-Losses from Disposition of Future Use Utility Plant 0
4355-Gain on Disposition of Utility and Other Property (1,000)
4360-Loss on Disposition of Utility and Other Property 0
4365-Gains from Disposition of Allowances for Emission 0
4370-Losses from Disposition of Allowances for Emission 0
4375-Revenues from Non-Utility Operations (793,005)
4380-Expenses of Non-Ultility Operations 717,978
4385-Expenses of Non-Ultility Operations 0
4390-Miscellaneous Non-Operating Income (25,350)
4395-Rate-Payer Benefit Including Interest 0
4398-Foreign Exchange Gains and Losses, Including Amortization 0
3150-Other Income & Deductions Total (101,377)
3200-Investment Income
4405-Interest and Dividend Income (42,956)
4415-Equity in Earnings of Subsidiary Companies 0
3200-Investment Income Total (42,956)
3350-Power Supply Expenses
4705-Power Purchased 24,296,737
4708-WMS 2,380,059
4710-Cost of Power Adjustments 0
4712-0 0
4714-NW 2,260,186
4715-System Control and Load Dispatching 0
4716-NCN 1,769,920
4720-Other Expenses 0
4725-Competition Transition Expense 0
4730-Rural Rate Assistance Expense 0
4750-LV Charges 0
3350-Power Supply Expenses Total 30,706,903
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Account Description

Total

3500-Distribution Expenses - Operation

5005-Operation Supervision and Engineering 205,500
5010-Load Dispatching 40,500
5012-Station Buildings and Fixtures Expense 36,300
5014-Transformer Station Equipment - Operation Labour 0
5015-Transformer Station Equipment - Operation Supplies and Expenses 0
5016-Distribution Station Equipment - Operation Labour 45,000
5017-Distribution Station Equipment - Operation Supplies and Expenses 12,611
5020-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Labour 36,000
5025-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Supplies and Expenses 3,600
5030-Overhead Subtransmission Feeders - Operation 0
5035-Overhead Distribution Transformers - Operation 3,300
5040-Underground Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Labour 22,000
5045-Underground Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Supplies and Expenses 17,120
5050-Underground Subtransmission Feeders - Operation 0
5055-Underground Distribution Transformers - Operation 0
5060-Street Lighting and Signal System Expense 0
5065-Meter Expense 160,000
5070-Customer Premises - Operation Labour 70,000
5075-Customer Premises - Materials and Expenses 6,000
5085-Miscellaneous Distribution Expense 168,548
5090-Underground Distribution Lines and Feeders - Rental Paid 0
5095-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Rental Paid 3,775
5096-Other Rent 0

3500-Distribution Expenses - Operation Total 830,254
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Account Description

Total

3550-Distribution Expenses - Maintenance

5105-Maintenance Supervision and Engineering 78,200
5110-Maintenance of Structures 0
5112-Maintenance of Transformer Station Equipment 0
5114-Mtaint Dist Stn Equip 10,000
5120-Maintenance of Poles, Towers and Fixtures 85,692
5125-Maintenance of Overhead Conductors and Devices 94,000
5130-Maintenance of Overhead Services 72,000
5135-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Right of Way 106,700
5145-Maintenance of Underground Conduit 6,300
5150-Maintenance of Underground Conductors and Devices 39,000
5155-Maintenance of Underground Services 70,000
5160-Maintenance of Line Transformers 82,000
5165-Maintenance of Street Lighting and Signal Systems 0
5170-Sentinel Lights - Labour 0
5172-Sentinel Lights - Materials and Expenses 0
5175-Maintenance of Meters 0
5178-Customer Installations Expenses - Leased Property 0
5195-Maintenance of Other Installations on Customer Premises 0
3550-Distribution Expenses - Maintenance Total 643,892

3650-Billing and Collecting
5305-Supervision 50,434
5310-Meter Reading Expense 132,248
5315-Customer Billing 219,245
5320-Collecting 117,055
5325-Collecting - Cash Over and Short 100
5330-Collection Charges (4,000)
5335-Bad Debt Expense 45,000
5340-Miscellaneous Customer Accounts Expenses 2,200
3650-Billing and Collecting Total 562,282

3700-Community Relations
5405-Supervision 3,250
5410-Community Relations - Sundry 17,750
5415-Energy Conservation 5,300
5420-Community Safety Program 10,000
5425-Miscellaneous Customer Service and Informational Expenses 0
3700-Community Relations Total 36,300
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Account Description Total
3800-Administrative and General Expenses
5605-Executive Salaries and Expenses 182,478
5610-Management Salaries and Expenses 261,655
5615-General Administrative Salaries and Expenses 500,000
5620-Office Supplies and Expenses 82,305
5625-Administrative Expense Transferred-Credit (52,105)
5630-Outside Services Employed 134,437
5635-Property Insurance 30,695
5640-Injuries and Damages 67,000
5645-Employee Pensions and Benefits 18,150
5650-Franchise Requirements 0
5655-Regulatory Expenses 55,000
5660-General Advertising Expenses 5,500
5665-Miscellaneous Expenses 147,380
5670-Rent 0
5675-Maintenance of General Plant 255,175
5680-Electrical Safety Authority Fees 7,350
5681- Special Purpose Charge Expense 0
5685-Independent Market Operator Fees and Penalties 0
5695-OM&A Contra Account 0
3800-Administrative and General Expenses Total 1,695,020
3850-Amortization Expense
5705-Amortization Expense - Property, Plant and Equipment 1,865,397
5710-Amortization of Limited Term Electric Plant 0
5715-Amortization of Intangibles and Other Electric Plant 0
5720-Amortization of Electric Plant Acquisition Adjustments 0
5725-Miscellaneous Amortization 0
5730-Amortization of Unrecovered Plant and Regulatory Study Costs 0
5735-Amortization of Deferred Development Costs 0
5740-Amortization of Deferred Charges 0
3850-Amortization Expense Total 1,865,397
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Account Description Total
3900-Interest Expense
6005-Interest on Long Term Debt 623,752
6010-Amortization of Debt Discount and Expense 0
6015-Amortization of Premium on Debt-Credit 0
6020-Amortization of Loss on Reacquired Debt 0
6025-Amortization of Gain on Reacquired Debt-Credit 0
6030-Interest on Debt to Associated Companies 0
6035-Other Interest Expense 78,226
6040-Allowance for Borrowed Funds Used During Construction-Credit 0
6042-Allowance for Other Funds Used During Construction 0
6045-Interest Expense on Capital Lease Obligations 0
3900-Interest Expense Total 701,978
3950-Taxes Other Than Income Taxes
6105-Taxes Other Than Income Taxes 123,852
3950-Taxes Other Than Income Taxes Total 123,852
4000-Income Taxes
6110-Income Taxes 112,982
6115-Provision for Future Income Taxes 0
4000-Income Taxes Total 112,982
4100-Extraordinary & Other Items
6205-Donations 500
6210-Life Insurance 0
6215-Penalties 0
6225-Other Deductions 0
4100-Extraordinary & Other Items Total 500
Net Income - (Gain)/Loss (162,602)
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2010 BALANCE SHEET

Account Description Total
1050-Current Assets
1005-Cash 1,849,837
1010-Cash Advances and Working Funds 600
1020-Interest Special Deposits 0
1030-Dividend Special Deposits 0
1040-Other Special Deposits 0
1060-Term Deposits 0
1070-Current Investments 0
1100-Customer Accounts Receivable 3,213,994
1102-Accounts Receivable - Services 40,326
1104-Accounts Receivable - Recoverable Work 219,328
1105-Accounts Receivable - Merchandise, Jobbing, etc. 0
1110-Other Accounts Receivable 100,344
1120-Accrued Utility Revenues 3,606,543
1130-Accumulated Provision for Uncollectable Accounts -- Credit (50,000)
1140-Interest and Dividends Receivable 0
1150-Rents Receivable 5,565
1170-Notes Receivable 0
1180-Prepayments 140,731
1190-Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Assets 0
1200-Accounts Receivable from Associated Companies 121,214
1210-Notes Receivable from Associated Companies 0
1050-Current Assets Total 9,248,482
1100-Inventory
1305-Fuel Stock 0
1330-Plant Materials and Operating Supplies 558,644
1340-Merchandise 0
1350-Other Material and Supplies 0
1100-Inventory Total 558,644
1150-Non-Current Assets
1405-Long Term Investments in Non-Associated Companies 0
1408-Long Term Receivable - Street Lighting Transfer 0
1410-Other Special or Collateral Funds 0
1415-Sinking Funds 0
1425-Unamortized Debt Expense 0
1445-Unamortized Discount on Long-Term Debt--Debit 0
1455-Unamortized Deferred Foreign Currency Translation Gains and Losses 0
1460-Other Non-Current Assets 0
1465-0.M.E.R.S. Past Service Costs 0
1470-Past Service Costs - Employee Future Benefits 0
1475-Past Service Costs -Other Pension Plans 0
1480-Portfolio Investments - Associated Companies 0
1485-Investment In Subsidiary Companies - Significant Influence 0
1490-Investment in Subsidiary Companies 0
1150-Non-Current Assets Total 0
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Account Description | Total
1200-Other Assets and Deferred Charges
1505-Unrecovered Plant and Regulatory Study Costs 0
1508-Other Regulatory Assets 337,317
1510-Preliminary Survey and Investigation Charges 0
1515-Emission Allowance Inventory 0
1516-Emission Allowance Withheld 0
1518-RCVA Retail 0
1521- Special Purpose Charge Assessment 20,448
1522- Late Payment Settlement Recovery? 0
1525-Miscellaneous Deferred Debits 0
1530-Deferred Losses from Disposition of Utility Plant 0
1531-Renewable Connection Capital 0
1532-Renewable Connection OM&A 49,241
1534-Smart Grid Capital 0
1535-Smart Grid OM&A 45,003
1540-Deferred Losses from Disposition of Utility Plant 0
1545-Development Charge Deposits/ Receivables 0
1548-RCVA - Service Transaction Request (STR) 0
1550-LV Charges - Variance 0
1555-Smart Meters Recovery 633,048
1556-Smart Meters OM & A 232,584
1562-Deferred PlLs 307,298

1563-Deferred PILs - Contra

1565-C & DM Costs

1570-Qualifying Transition Costs

0
0
1566-C & DM Costs Contra 0
0
0

1571-Pre Market CofP Variance

1572-Extraordinary Event Losses 0
1574-Deferred Rate Impact Amounts (1,278,650)
1580-RSVA - Wholesale Market Services 142,021
1582-RSVA - One-Time (390,427)
1584-RSVA - Network Charges (42,538)
1586-RSVA - Connection Charges (556,402)
1588-RSVA - Commodity (Power) 34,543
1590-Recovery of Regulatory Assets (25% of 2002 bal.) 0
1592-PILs and Tax Variance for 2006 & Subsequent Years 0
1595-Disposition and Recovery of Regulatory Balances 0

1200-Other Assets and Deferred Charges Total (466,515)

1450-Distribution Plant

1805-Land 21,836
1806-Land Rights 0
1808-Buildings and Fixtures 190,774
1810-Leasehold Improvements 0
1815-Transformer Station Equipment - Normally Primary above 50 kV 0
1820-Distribution Station Equipment - Normally Primary below 50 kV 647,560
1825-Storage Battery Equipment 0
1830-Poles, Towers and Fixtures 8,701,849
1835-Overhead Conductors and Devices 4,307,891
1840-Underground Conduit 4,597,854
1845-Underground Conductors and Devices 5,392,776
1850-Line Transformers 7,858,815
1855-Services 2,816,764
1860-Meters 5,933,997
1865-Other Installations on Customer's Premises 0

1450-Distribution Plant Total 40,470,116
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Account Description | Total

1500-General Plant
1905-Land 17,530
1906-Land Rights 0
1908-Buildings and Fixtures 1,073,723
1910-Leasehold Improvements 0
1915-Office Furniture and Equipment 265,941
1920-Computer Equipment - Hardware 1,300,173
1925-Computer Software 1,402,123
1930-Transportation Equipment 1,626,888
1935-Stores Equipment 116,839
1940-Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment 290,236
1945-Measurement and Testing Equipment 131,963
1950-Power Operated Equipment 0
1955-Communication Equipment 49,759
1960-Miscellaneous Equipment 1,905
1970-Load Management Controls - Customer Premises 0
1975-Load Management Controls - Utility Premises 0
1980-System Supervisory Equipment 356,973
1985-Sentinel Lighting Rentals 0
1990-Other Tangible Property 0
1995-Contributions and Grants (4,291,188)
1996-Contributions - Commerce Way TS 4,100,000
1500-General Plant Total 6,442,863

1550-Other Capital Assets

2005-Property Under Capital Leases

2010-Electric Plant Purchased or Sold

2020-Experimental Electric Plant Unclassified

2030-Electric Plant and Equipment Leased to Others

2040-Electric Plant Held for Future Use

2050-Completed Construction Not Classified--Electric

2055-Construction Work in Progress--Electric

2060-Electric Plant Acquisition Adjustment

2065-0Other Electric Plant Adjustment

2070-Other Utility Plant

2075-Non-Utility Property Owned or Under Capital Lease
1550-Other Capital Assets Total

ojJo|o|jo|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o

1600-Accumulated Amortization
2105-Accumulated Amortization of Electric Utility Plant - Property, Plant and Equipment (19,146,375)
2120-Accumulated Amortization of Electric Utility Plant - Intangibles 0
2140-Accumulated Amortization of Electric Plant Acquisition Adjustment 0
2160-Accumulated Amortization of Other Utility Plant 0
2180-Accumulated Amortization of Non-Utility Property 0

1600-Accumulated Amortization Total (19,146,375)

[Total Assets | 37,107,215|
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Account Description | Total
1650-Current Liabilities

2205-Accounts Payable 1,761,550
2208-Customer Credit Balances 0
2210-Current Portion of Customer Deposits 316,459
2215-Dividends Declared 0
2220-Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities 1,217,623
2225-Notes and Loans Payable 0
2240-Accounts Payable to Associated Companies 0
2242-Notes Payable to Associated Companies 0
2250-Debt Retirement Charges (DRC) Payable 13,295
2252-Transmission Charges Payable 0
2254-Electric Safety Authority Fees Payable 0
2256-Independent Market Operator Fees and Penalties Payable 2,762,517
2260-Current Portion of Long Term Debt 0
2262-Ontario Hydro Debt - Current Portion 0
2264-Pensions and Employee Benefits - Current Portion 0
2268-Accrued Interest on Long Term Debt 0
2270-Matured Long Term Debt 0
2272-Matured Interest on Long Term Debt 0
2285-0Obligations Under Capital Leases--Current 0
2290-Commodity Taxes 31,116
2292-Payroll Deductions / Expenses Payable 37,999
2294-Accrual for Taxes, "Payments in Lieu" of Taxes, Etc. (123,073)
2296-Future Income Taxes - Current 0
1650-Current Liabilities Total 6,017,486

1700-Non-Current Liabilities
2305-Accumulated Provision for Injuries and Damages 0
2306-Employee Future Benefits 1,018,833
2308-Other Pensions - Past Service Liability 0
2310-Vested Sick Leave Liability 100,052
2315-Accumulated Provision for Rate Refunds 0
2320-Other Miscellaneous Non-Current Liabilities 0
2325-0Obligations Under Capital Lease--Non-Current 0
2330-Devolpment Charge Fund 0
2335-Long Term Customer Deposits 1,027,311
2340-Collateral Funds Liability 0
2345-Unamortized Premium on Long Term Debt 0
2348-0.M.E.R.S. - Past Service Liability - Long Term Portion 0
2350-Future Income Tax - Non-Current (2,460,100)
2405-Other Regulatory Liabilities 0
2410-Deferred Gains From Disposition of Utility Plant 0
2415-Unamortized Gain on Reacquired Debt 0
2425-Other Deferred Credits 0
2435-Accrued Rate-Payer Benefit 0
1700-Non-Current Liabilities Total (313,904)
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Account Description Total

1800-Long-Term Debt

2505-Debentures Outstanding - Long Term Portion 1,800,000
2510-Debenture Advances 0
2515-Required Bonds 0
2520-Other Long Term Debt 15,041,862
2525-Term Bank Loans - Long Term Portion 0
2530-Ontario Hydro Debt Outstanding - Long Term Portion 0
2550-Advances from Associated Companies 0

1800-Long-Term Debt Total 16,841,862

1850-Shareholders' Equity

3005-Common Shares Issued 10,941,862
3008-Preference Shares Issued 0
3010-Contributed Surplus 0
3020-Donations Received 0
3022-Devolpment Charges Transferred to Equity 0
3026-Capital Stock Held in Treasury 0
3030-Miscellaneous Paid-In Capital 0
3035-Installments Received on Capital Stock 0
3040-Appropriated Retained Earnings 0
3045-Unappropriated Retained Earnings 3,683,736
3046-Balance Transferred From Income (63,827)
3047-Appropriations of Retained Earnings - Current Period 0
3048-Dividends Payable-Preference Shares 0
3049-Dividends Payable-Common Shares 0
3055-Adjustment to Retained Earnings 0
3065-Unappropriated Undistributed Subsidiary Earnings 0

1850-Shareholders' Equity Total 14,561,771

[Total Liabilities & Shareholder's Equity 37,107,215]
| Balance Sheet Total o]

2011 Balance Sheet



WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC
2011 PRO FORMA STATEMENTS

2010 STATEMENT OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS

Account Description | Total

3000-Sales of Electricity

4006-Residential Energy Sales (8,404,029)
4010-Commercial Energy Sales 0
4015-Industrial Energy Sales 0
4020-Energy Sales to Large Users 0
4025-Street Lighting Energy Sales (171,508)
4030-Sentinel Energy Sales 0
4035-General Energy Sales (15,970,331)
4040-Other Energy Sales to Public Authorities 0
4045-Energy Sales to Railroads and Railways 0
4050-Revenue Adjustment 0
4055-Energy Sales for Resale 0
4060-Interdepartmental Energy Sales 0
4062-WMS (2,404,463)
4064-Billed WMS-One Time 0
4066-NS (2,024,605)
4068-CS (1,744,674)
4075-LV Charges 0

3000-Sales of Electricity Total

(30,719,610)

3050-Revenues From Services - Distirbution

4080-Distribution Services Revenue (6,514,422)
4082-RS Rev (25,400)
4084-Serv Tx Requests (1,000)
4090-Electric Services Incidental to Energy Sales 0
3050-Revenues From Services - Distirbution Total (6,540,822)

3100-Other Operating Revenues
4205-Interdepartmental Rents 0
4210-Rent from Electric Property (40,885)
4215-Other Utility Operating Income 0
4220-Other Electric Revenues 0
4225-Late Payment Charges (54,254)
4230-Sales of Water and Water Power 0
4235-Miscellaneous Service Revenues (234,290)
4240-Provision for Rate Refunds 0
4245-Government Assistance Directly Credited to Income 0
3100-Other Operating Revenues Total (329,429)
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Account Description Total
3150-Other Income & Deductions
4305-Regulatory Debits 0
4310-Regulatory Credits 0
4315-Revenues from Electric Plant Leased to Others 0
4320-Expenses of Electric Plant Leased to Others 0
4324-Special Purpose Charge Recovery - Billed 0
4325-Revenues from Merchandise, Jobbing, Etc. 0
4330-Costs and Expenses of Merchandising, Jobbing, Etc 0
4335-Profits and Losses from Financial Instrument Hedges 0
4340-Profits and Losses from Financial Instrument Investments 0
4345-Gains from Disposition of Future Use Utility Plant 0
4350-Losses from Disposition of Future Use Utility Plant 0
4355-Gain on Disposition of Utility and Other Property (1,000)
4360-Loss on Disposition of Utility and Other Property 0
4365-Gains from Disposition of Allowances for Emission 0
4370-Losses from Disposition of Allowances for Emission 0
4375-Revenues from Non-Utility Operations (829,344)
4380-Expenses of Non-Ultility Operations 770,512
4385-Expenses of Non-Ultility Operations 0
4390-Miscellaneous Non-Operating Income (15,350)
4395-Rate-Payer Benefit Including Interest 0
4398-Foreign Exchange Gains and Losses, Including Amortization 0
3150-Other Income & Deductions Total (75,182)
3200-Investment Income
4405-Interest and Dividend Income (45,700)
4415-Equity in Earnings of Subsidiary Companies 0
3200-Investment Income Total (45,700)
3350-Power Supply Expenses
4705-Power Purchased 24,545,868
4708-WMS 2,404,463
4710-Cost of Power Adjustments 0
4712-0 0
4714-NW 1,977,276
4715-System Control and Load Dispatching 0
4716-NCN 1,659,815
4720-Other Expenses 0
4725-Competition Transition Expense 0
4730-Rural Rate Assistance Expense 0
4750-LV Charges 0
3350-Power Supply Expenses Total 30,587,421
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Account Description

Total

3500-Distribution Expenses - Operation

5005-Operation Supervision and Engineering 107,021
5010-Load Dispatching 51,816
5012-Station Buildings and Fixtures Expense 52,934
5014-Transformer Station Equipment - Operation Labour 0
5015-Transformer Station Equipment - Operation Supplies and Expenses 0
5016-Distribution Station Equipment - Operation Labour 33,292
5017-Distribution Station Equipment - Operation Supplies and Expenses 14,500
5020-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Labour 43,275
5025-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Supplies and Expenses 5,500
5030-Overhead Subtransmission Feeders - Operation 0
5035-Overhead Distribution Transformers - Operation 3,234
5040-Underground Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Labour 34,167
5045-Underground Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Supplies and Expenses 23,500
5050-Underground Subtransmission Feeders - Operation 0
5055-Underground Distribution Transformers - Operation 0
5060-Street Lighting and Signal System Expense 0
5065-Meter Expense 146,160
5070-Customer Premises - Operation Labour 63,885
5075-Customer Premises - Materials and Expenses 8,000
5085-Miscellaneous Distribution Expense 194,651
5090-Underground Distribution Lines and Feeders - Rental Paid 0
5095-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Rental Paid 3,625
5096-Other Rent 0

3500-Distribution Expenses - Operation Total 785,560
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Account Description

Total

3550-Distribution Expenses - Maintenance

5105-Maintenance Supervision and Engineering 84,438
5110-Maintenance of Structures 20,061
5112-Maintenance of Transformer Station Equipment 0
5114-Mtaint Dist Stn Equip 5,000
5120-Maintenance of Poles, Towers and Fixtures 91,987
5125-Maintenance of Overhead Conductors and Devices 116,877
5130-Maintenance of Overhead Services 73,273
5135-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Right of Way 111,935
5145-Maintenance of Underground Conduit 12,535
5150-Maintenance of Underground Conductors and Devices 51,073
5155-Maintenance of Underground Services 64,648
5160-Maintenance of Line Transformers 98,945
5165-Maintenance of Street Lighting and Signal Systems 0
5170-Sentinel Lights - Labour 0
5172-Sentinel Lights - Materials and Expenses 0
5175-Maintenance of Meters 0
5178-Customer Installations Expenses - Leased Property 0
5195-Maintenance of Other Installations on Customer Premises 0
3550-Distribution Expenses - Maintenance Total 730,771

3650-Billing and Collecting
5305-Supervision 54,748
5310-Meter Reading Expense 151,927
5315-Customer Billing 301,335
5320-Collecting 116,362
5325-Collecting - Cash Over and Short 100
5330-Collection Charges (5,000)
5335-Bad Debt Expense 53,460
5340-Miscellaneous Customer Accounts Expenses 2,200
3650-Billing and Collecting Total 675,133

3700-Community Relations
5405-Supervision 3,825
5410-Community Relations - Sundry 21,235
5415-Energy Conservation 8,170
5420-Community Safety Program 9,153
5425-Miscellaneous Customer Service and Informational Expenses 0
3700-Community Relations Total 42,382
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Account Description Total
3800-Administrative and General Expenses
5605-Executive Salaries and Expenses 195,903
5610-Management Salaries and Expenses 282,822
5615-General Administrative Salaries and Expenses 524,085
5620-Office Supplies and Expenses 81,254
5625-Administrative Expense Transferred-Credit (54,628)
5630-Outside Services Employed 126,500
5635-Property Insurance 32,000
5640-Injuries and Damages 72,555
5645-Employee Pensions and Benefits 18,150
5650-Franchise Requirements 0
5655-Regulatory Expenses 100,000
5660-General Advertising Expenses 5,500
5665-Miscellaneous Expenses 139,554
5670-Rent 0
5675-Maintenance of General Plant 277,221
5680-Electrical Safety Authority Fees 7,500
5681- Special Purpose Charge Expense 0
5685-Independent Market Operator Fees and Penalties 0
5695-OM&A Contra Account 0
3800-Administrative and General Expenses Total 1,808,415
3850-Amortization Expense
5705-Amortization Expense - Property, Plant and Equipment 2,031,382
5710-Amortization of Limited Term Electric Plant 0
5715-Amortization of Intangibles and Other Electric Plant 0
5720-Amortization of Electric Plant Acquisition Adjustments 0
5725-Miscellaneous Amortization 0
5730-Amortization of Unrecovered Plant and Regulatory Study Costs 0
5735-Amortization of Deferred Development Costs 0
5740-Amortization of Deferred Charges 0
3850-Amortization Expense Total 2,031,382
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WOODSTOCK HYDRO SERVICES INC
2011 PRO FORMA STATEMENTS

Account Description

Total

3900-Interest Expense

6005-Interest on Long Term Debt 934,897
6010-Amortization of Debt Discount and Expense 0
6015-Amortization of Premium on Debt-Credit 0
6020-Amortization of Loss on Reacquired Debt 0
6025-Amortization of Gain on Reacquired Debt-Credit 0
6030-Interest on Debt to Associated Companies 0
6035-Other Interest Expense 26,114
6040-Allowance for Borrowed Funds Used During Construction-Credit 0
6042-Allowance for Other Funds Used During Construction 0
6045-Interest Expense on Capital Lease Obligations 0
3900-Interest Expense Total 961,011
3950-Taxes Other Than Income Taxes
6105-Taxes Other Than Income Taxes 126,946
3950-Taxes Other Than Income Taxes Total 126,946
4000-Income Taxes
6110-Income Taxes 25,049
6115-Provision for Future Income Taxes 0
4000-Income Taxes Total 25,049
4100-Extraordinary & Other Items
6205-Donations 500
6210-Life Insurance 0
6215-Penalties 0
6225-Other Deductions 0
4100-Extraordinary & Other Items Total 500
Net Income - (Gain)/Loss 63,827

2011 Income Statement
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RECONCILIATION BETWEEN PRO FORMA STATEMENTS AND REVENUE DEFICIENCY STATEMENTS
WHSI advises that the 2009 Audited Financial Statements vary only slightly from the regulatory financial

results filed in this Application, and therefore a reconciliation between the financial statements and

financial results filed has not been provided.

Any differences between the audited financial statements and the regulatory financial statements have

been reconciled on the Revenue Requirement Work Form excel spreadsheets
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OVERVIEW

The WHSI Distribution System:

WHSI owns and operates the electricity distribution system in its licensed service area within
the City of Woodstock, serving approximately 15,000 Residential, General Service, Street Light,

and Unmetered Scattered Load customers/connections.

WHSI’s supply for the City of Woodstock is provided through the Hydro One transmission
system at 115 KV stepping down to distribution voltages of 27.6/16 Kv. Electricity is then
distributed through WHSI’s service area of 29 square kilometres, over 91 kilometres of
underground cable and 154 kilometres of overhead conductor. WHSI delivers electricity via
both 27.6 kv and 4.16 kv distribution voltages, stepping 27.6 kv down through seven WHSI
owned distribution stations. Secondary service voltages include 120/240v single phase,
120/208v network, 347/600 volt, 240 volt three phase and 600 volt delta via 1,618 WHSI owned
transformers and 72 customer owned transformers. WHSI provides transformation equipment

up to 750 kVA.

WHSI operates the distribution system through a SCADA system, with telemetry and control in
place for seven Municipal Substations and five automated load-break switches. WHSI interfaces
with Hydro One Control Center in Barrie, Ontario through ICCP protocol with monitoring and

some control of the Hydro One owned station equipment.

WHSI owns and maintains approximately 15,000 meters installed on its customers’ premises for
the purpose of measuring consumption of electricity for billing purposes. Meters vary in type
by customer and include meters capable of measuring kWh consumption, kW and kVA demand
as well as hourly interval data. As part of the Province of Ontario’s smart meter initiative, WHSI
expects to complete all smart meter installations within it’s service territory by December 31,

2010.
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Rate Base:

The rate base used for the purpose of calculating the revenue requirement in this Application
was determined in accordance with guidelines set out in Chapter 2 of the Filing Requirements
for Transmission and Distribution Applications, issued on June 28, 2010. The rate base follows
the definition used in the 2006 EDR Handbook as an average of the balances at the beginning
and the end of the 2011 Test Year, plus a working capital allowance, which is 15% of the sum of

the cost of power and controllable expenses.

The net fixed assets include distribution assets associated with the delivery of electricity for
distribution purposes. Smart meter capital costs up to Dec 31 2009 are included in the 2010
Bridge Year addition amounts so that the full cost of these assets are captured for the 2011 Test
Year average net book value calculation. The WHSI rate base calculation excludes non-
distribution assets. Controllable expenses include operations and maintenance, billing and

collecting, community relations, administration and general expenses.

WHSI has provided its rate base calculations for the years 2006 Board Approved, 2006 Actual,
2007 Actual, 2008 Actual, 2009 Actual, 2010 Bridge Year and 2011 Test Year in Table 2-1 below.
WHSI has calculated its 2011 Test Year rate base to be $31,635,594. This represents an increase

of 44.71% over the 2006 OEB Approved Rate Base and an average annual increase of 7.86%.

Table 2-1
Summary of Rate Base
2006 OEB 2010 Bridge | 2011 Test
Description Approved 2006 Actual | 2007 Actual 2008 Actual {2009 Actual Year Year
Gross Fixed Assets 22,793,343| 26,866,890| 29,268,197| 32,873,861| 35,722,074 42,246,842 46,912,980
Accumulated Depreciation 5,487,012 9,562,401 11,350,525| 13,264,770| 15,210,513 17,169,245]| 19,146,375
Net Book Value 17,306,331 17,304,488 17,917,672| 19,609,091| 20,511,561| 25,077,597 27,766,604
Average Net Book Value 17,306,331 17,152,200| 17,611,080| 18,763,381| 20,060,326 22,794,579| 26,422,100
Working Capital 30,370,752 32,588,742 31,411,925| 30,808,539| 24,707,230| 34,598,502| 34,756,628
Working Capital Allowance 4,555,613 4,888,311| 4,711,789 4,621,281| 3,706,084 5,189,775| 5,213,494
Rate Base 21,861,943 22,040,511 22,322,869( 23,384,662| 23,766,410 27,984,354 31,635,595
Rate Base Variance 0.8% 13% 4.8% 1.6% 17.7% 13.0%
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WHSI has provided a summary of its calculations of the cost of power and controllable expenses
used to determine working capital for the years 2006 Board Approved, 2006 Actual, 2007
Actual, 2008 Actual, 2009 Actual, 2010 Bridge Year and 2011 Test Year in Table 2-2, below. The
2011 Test Year Working Capital amount of $34,756,628 represents an increase 0.5% over the

2010 Bridge Year amount and 14.4% over the 2006 OEB Approved Working Capital amount.

Table 2-2

10

11

Summary of Working Capital Calculation

2006 OEB 2010 Bridge | 2011 Test
Description Approved |2006 Actual [ 2007 Actual | 2008 Actual | 2009 Actual Year Year
Cost of Power 27,340,162| 29,139,037 28,017,413| 27,420,436 21,258,813| 30,706,903 30,587,421
Operations 574,159 624,785 685,178 787,716 719,297 830,254 785,560
Maintenance 375,770 489,302 472,477 532,855 630,310 643,892 730,771
Billing & Collecting 633,461 676,329 672,465 567,613 548,428 562,282 675,133
Community 8,207 286,411 128,950 40,209 24,088 36,300 42,382
Administration & General Expense 1,313,737 1,246,687 1,310,603 1,334,041 1,403,517 1,695,020 1,808,415
Taxes Other than Income Taxes 125,256 126,191 124,838 125,668 122,776 123,852 126,946
Working Capital $30,370,752|$32,588,742($31,411,925| $30,808,539| $24,707,230( $34,598,502| $34,756,628
Working Capital Variance 7.3% -3.6% -1.9% -19.8% 40.0% 0.5%
2006 EDR - 2011 Test Year Variance 14.4%
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RATE BASE VARIANCE ANALYSIS:

The following Table 2-3 sets out WHSI’s rate base and working capital calculations for 2006
Board Approved and Actual, 2007 Actual, 2008 Actual, 2009 Actual, 2010 Bridge Year and 2011

Test Year, and the following variances:

e 2006 Actual against 2006 Board Approved;
e 2007 Actual against 2006 Actual;

e 2008 Actual against 2007 Actual;

e 2009 Actual against 2008 Actual;

e 2010 Bridge Year against 2009 Actual; and
e 2011 Test Year against 2010 Bridge Year.

WHSI notes that the 2006 OEB Approved rate base was determined through the 2006 EDR
process and is based on the 2004 year end rate base adjusted for Tier 1 Adjustments.
Accordingly, the variance between 2006 Actual and 2006 OEB Approved spans a two-year

period.

The 2011 Revenue Requirement for WHSI is S 8,232,474 therefore WHSI has calculated the
materiality threshold on its rate base to be $50,000 for 2011 in accordance with the Filing
Requirements (distributors with a distribution revenue requirement of less than or equal to $10

million).

WHSI offers the following comments in respect of the relevant variances identified in Table 2-3

following.

WHSI also explains projects under the materiality threshold where relevant.
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Variance
Variance Variance Variance Variance Variance from 2010
2006 OEB from 2006 from 2006 from 2007 from 2008 (2010 Bridge| from 2009 | 2011 Test | Bridge
Description Approved | 2006 Actual OEB 2007 Actual Actual 2008 Actual Actual [2009 Actual| Actual Year Actual Year Year
Gross Fixed
Assets 22,793,343| 26,866,890| 4,073,547| 29,268,197 2,401,307 32,873,861 3,605,664| 35,722,074| 2,848,213| 42,246,842 6,524,768| 46,912,980 4,666,138
Accumulated
Depreciation 5,487,012|  9,562,401| (4,075,389)| 11,350,525 (1,788,124)| 13,264,770 (1,914,245)| 15,210,513| (1,945,743)| 17,169,245| (1,958,732)| 19,146,375/ (1,977,130)
Net Book
Value 17,306,331 17,304,488 (1,842)| 17,917,672 613,184 19,609,091| 1,691,419 20,511,561 902,469| 25,077,597| 4,566,036|27,766,604 2,689,008
Average Net
Book Value 17,306,331| 17,152,200| (154,131)| 17,611,080 458,880| 18,763,381 1,152,301| 20,060,326| 1,296,944| 22,794,579 2,734,253| 26,422,100 3,627,522
Working
Capital 30,370,752| 32,588,742 2,217,990 31,411,925 (1,176,817)| 30,808,539 (603,386)| 24,707,230| (6,101,309)| 34,598,502 9,891,273| 34,756,628 158,126
Working
Capital
Allowance 4,555,613 4,888,311 332,698 4,711,789 (176,523) 4,621,281 (90,508)| 3,706,084| (915,196)| 5,189,775 1,483,691| 5,213,494 23,719
Rate Base 21,861,943| 22,040,511 178,568| 22,322,869 282,357 23,384,662| 1,061,794 23,766,410 381,748| 27,984,354| 4,217,944| 31,635,594 3,651,241
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2006 Actual vs. 2006 Board Approved:

The rate base of $22,040,511 for 2006 Actual was higher than the 2006 Board Approved by
$178,568 or 0.8%. The difference reflects the fact that the 2006 Board Approved amounts were

calculated as the average of the 2003 and 2004 actual amounts.

The variance between the 2006 Actual and the 2006 Board Approved included the difference
between the 2004 actual and the 2006 Board Approved amounts as well as the 2005 normal

investments.

2007 Actual vs. 2006 Actual:

The rate base of $22,322,869 for 2007 Actual increased over 2006 Actual by $282,357 or 1.3%.

This increase due in part to a change in average net assets of $458,880 for capital expenditures.

The working capital allowance decreased by $(176,523) or 3.6% from 2006. A decrease in both

the cost of power and OM&A account expense account for this change.

2008 Actual vs. 2007 Actual:

The rate base of $23,384,662 for 2008 Actual increased over 2007 Actual by $1,061,794. This
increase is primarily due to a change in average net assets of $1,152,301 for capital

expenditures. Detailed project information can be found in Exhibit 2, Tab 2, Schedule 3.

The 2008 working capital allowance decreased moderately by $(90,508 ) or -1.9% from 2007
levels. A decrease in both the cost of power and OM&A account expense account for this

change.
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2009 Actual vs. 2008 Actual:

The rate base of $23,766,410 for 2009 Actual increased over 2008 Actual by $381,748, or 1.6%.
This increase is due, in part from a change in average net assets of $1,296,944 for capital

expenditures. Detailed project information can be found in Exhibit 2, Tab 2, Schedule 3.

The working capital allowance decreased by $(915,196) or -19.8 % from 2009. This variance is
primarily due to the lower than typical cost of power supply expenses incurred in 2009 as

discussed above.

2010 Bridge Year vs. 2009 Actual:

The total rate base for the 2010 Bridge Year is expected to be $27,984,354, which represents an
increase of $4,217,944 or 17.7% over the 2009 Actual year. This change results in part from an
increase in average net assets of $2,734,253, which due to . The items of significant impact on
the the addition of smart meter capital costs to the rate base in 2010 for $1,442,731 and a
capital contribution of $2,500,000 in 2010 for the Commerce Way Transmission Station owned

by Hydro-One. Detailed project information can be found in Exhibit 2, Tab 2, Schedule 3.

The working capital allowance increased by $1,483,691 or 40% from 2009. This variance can be
attributed to the 44.4% increase in 2010 forecast power supply expenses over 2009. A
combination of market pricing, mild weather conditions, conservation efforts and economic
challenges drove down consumption in 2009, resulting in WHSI’s lowest power supply expenses
since market opening. When comparing the lower than average costs of 2009 to a more
normalized forecast and higher pricing, the outcome is an atypical gap in the variance. When
compared to the 2008 power supply expenses, the 2010 Forecast power supply expenses are
12% higher, which is a more reasonable reflection of pricing adjustments and a normalized load
forecast. A detailed calculation of the working capital allowance for the 2010 Bridge Year can be

found at Exhibit 2, Tab 4, Schedule 1.
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2011 Test Year:

As shown in Table 2-3 above, the total rate base in the 2011 test year is forecast to be
$31,635,594 Average net fixed assets account for $ 26,422,100 of this total. The allowance for
working capital totals $5,213,494 and has been calculated as 15% of the sum of the cost of

power and controllable expenses

2011 Test Year vs. 2010 Bridge Year:

The total rate base of $31,635,594 is expected to be $3,651,241 or 13% higher in the 2011 Test
Year than in the 2010 Bridge Year rate base of $27,984,354. This increase is shown in Table 2-3
above and is attributable primarily to an increase in average net fixed assets of $3,627,522. The
items of significant impact on the average net fixed assets are the addition of smart meter
capital costs to the rate base in 2010 for $1,442,731 and capital contributions of $2,500,000 in
2010 and $1,600,000 in 2011 for the Commerce Way Transmission Station owned by Hydro-
One. The increase in fixed assets along with the required detailed information for projects is

discussed in detail by capital project in Exhibit 2, Tab 2, Schedule 3.

The working capital allowance increased by $23,719 or 0.5% from the 2010 Bridge Year. A
detailed calculation of the working capital allowance for the 2011 Test Year can be found at

Exhibit 2, Tab 4, Schedule 1.
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FIXED ASSET CONTINUITY STATEMENTS

WHSI’s Fixed Asset Continuity Statements for the 2005 to 2009 Actual, 2010 Bridge, and 2011

Test Years are presenting in the next few Tables of this Exhibit.

Amortization for the 2005 to 2009 Actual years reflect the actual amounts recognized and
amortized using the straight line method over the useful life of each pooled asset. A full years

amortization on new additions was recognized for the actual amounts between 2005 and 2009.

For the purposes of this rate application, asset additions in the 2010 Bridge and 2011 Test Years
were amortized using the half year rule, in accordance with Filing Requirements to maintain
consistency in the recognition of the average of the beginning and ending asset balances to

calculate the rate base.
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2005 Cost Accumulated Depreciation
Depreciation| Opening Closing Closing Net Book
CCAClass OEB |Description Rate Balance | Additions |Disposals| Balance Opening Balance Additions | Disposals [ Balance Value
N/A 1805 |Land 21,836 21,836 0 21,836
1/47 1808 |Buildings 25 & 60 181,937 8,837 190,774 29,431 7,581 37,013 153,761
1/47 1820 [Substation Equipment 30 519,894 44,567 564,461 135,316 30,526 165,842 398,619
1/47 1830 [Poles, Towers & Fixtures 25 5,363,311 197,067 5,560,378 1,195,546 302,813 1,498,359 4,062,019
1/47 1835 |OH Conductors & Devices 25 2,961,885 40,984 3,002,868 582,323 152,900 735,223 2,267,645
1/47 1840 |UG Conduit 25 1,949,204 282,907 2,232,110 423,922 125,286 549,208 1,682,903
1/47 1845 |UG Conductors & Devices 25 3,036,833| 198,528 3,235,362 755,827 201,414 957,241 2,278,121
1/47 1850 |[Line Transformers 25 3,239,563 280,750 3,520,313 585,851 176,830 762,681 2,757,631
1/47 1855 [Services (OH & UG) 25 755,944 241,821 997,765 64,766 39,967 104,733 893,032
1/47 1860 |Meters 15 & 25 3,343,293 104,370 3,447,663 1,017,914 270,662 1,288,576 2,159,087
N/A 1905 |Land 17,530 17,530 0 17,530
1/47 1908 |Buildings & Fixtures 25 & 60 427,143 7,767 434,910 64,492 17,297 81,790 353,120
8 1915 |Office Furniture & Equip 10 131,354 9,069 140,423 71,495 13,215 84,710 55,713
10/45/46/52| 1920 |Computer - Hardware 5 511,629 86,600 598,229 278,765 103,761 382,526 215,702
12/52 1925 |Computer Software 5 602,774 88,646 691,420 434,111 84,690 518,801 172,620
10 1930 |Transportation Equipment 58&8 1,045,280 1,045,280 499,206 123,637 622,843 422,438
8 1935 |Stores Equipment 10 23,354 23,354 13,170 2,775 15,945 7,409
8 1940 |Tools, Shop & Garage Equip 10 178,540 5,573 184,112 88,727 18,409 107,136 76,976
8 1945 |Measure & Testing 10 75,163 75,163 47,362 9,538 56,900 18,262
8 1955 |Communications Eq 10 5,576 243 5,819 1,445 584 2,029 3,790
8 1960 |Graphics Equipment 10 485 485 220 53 273 212
1/47 1980 |System Superv Equip 15 49,665 49,665 14,576 3,242 17,818 31,846
1/47 1995 |Contributions & Grants 25 -812,515| -336,349 -1,148,864 -52,549 -45,955 -98,504( -1,050,360
Total 23,629,677| 1,261,379 0| 24,891,055 6,251,916 1,639,226 0| 7,891,143] 16,999,913
Less: Fully Allocated Depreciation

10 1930 |Transportation Transportation 123,637

8 1935 |Stores Equipment Stores Equipment 2,775

Net Depreciation 1,512,814
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2006 Cost Accumulated Depreciation
Depreciation Opening Closing Opening Closing Net Book
CCAClass OEB Description Rate Balance Additions Disposals Balance Balance Additions Disposals Balance Value
N/A 1805 Land 21,836 21,836 0 21,836
1/47 1808 Buildings 25 & 60 190,774 190,774 37,013 7,581 44,594 146,180
1/47 1820  |Substation Equipment 30 564,461 1,709 566,170 165,842 30,583 196,425 369,745
1/47 1830 Poles, Towers & Fixtures 25 5,560,378 535,874 6,096,252 1,498,359 321,652 1,820,010 4,276,241
1/47 1835 OH Conductors & Devices 25 3,002,868 141,454 3,144,322 735,223 157,507 892,731 2,251,592
1/47 1840 UG Conduit 25 2,232,110| 191,417 2,423,527 549,208 132,943 682,150 1,741,377
1/47 1845 UG Conductors & Devices 25 3,235,362 72,746 3,308,108 957,241 204,324 1,161,565 2,146,542
1/47 1850 Line Transformers 25 3,520,313| 353,245 3,873,558 762,681 190,960 953,641| 2,919,917
1/47 1855  [Services (OH & UG) 25 997,765| 157,473 1,155,238 104,733 46,266 150,999 1,004,239
1/47 1860 Meters 15 & 25 3,447,663| 150,990 3,598,653 1,288,577 279,477 1,568,054 2,030,599
N/A 1905 Land 17,530 17,530 0 17,530
1/47 1908 Buildings & Fixtures 25 & 60 434,910 13,573 448,483 81,790 17,840 99,630 348,853
8 1915 Office Furniture & Equip 10 140,423 25,692 166,115 84,710 12,797 97,507 68,608
10/45/46/52 1920  [Computer - Hardware 5 598,229 91,261 689,490 382,526 110,008 492,534 196,955
12/52 1925 Computer Software 5 691,420 102,021 793,441 518,801 87,829 606,630 186,811
10 1930  |Transportation Equipment 58&8 1,045,280 280,746 66,313 1,259,713 622,843 151,608 66,313 708,137 551,576
8 1935  [Stores Equipment 10 23,354 19,721 43,075 15,945 4,557 20,502 22,573
8 1940  [Tools, Shop & Garage Equip 10 184,112 3,482 187,594 107,136 17,572 124,708 62,886
8 1945 Measurement & Testing Equip 10 75,163 0 75,163 56,900 6,485 63,385 11,777
8 1955 Communications Equip 10 5,819 7,284 13,103 2,029 1,312 3,341 9,761
8 1960 Graphics Equipment 10 485 0 485 273 53 326 159
1/47 1980  |System Supervisor Equipment 15 49,665 119,671 169,335 17,818 11,220 29,038 140,297
1/47 1995 Contributions & Grants 25 -1,148,864( -226,210 -1,375,074 -98,504 -55,003 -153,507| -1,221,567
Total 24,891,055 | 2,042,148 66,313 | 26,866,890 7,891,143 1,737,572 66,313| 9,562,401 17,304,488
Less: Fully Allocated Depreciation

10 Transportation Transportation 151,608

8 Stores Equipment Stores Equipment 4,557

Net Depreciation 1,581,407
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2007 Cost Accumulated Depreciation
Depreciation Opening Closing Opening Closing Net Book
CCAClass OEB Description Rate Balance Additions | Disposals Balance Balance Additions Disposals Balance Value
N/A 1805 Land 21,836 21,836 0 0 21,836
1/47 1808 Buildings 25 & 60 190,774 0 190,774 44,594 7,581 52,175 138,599
1/47 1820 Substation Equipment 30 566,170 0 566,170 196,425 30,583 227,009 339,162
1/47 1830 Poles, Towers & Fixtures 25 6,096,252 228,581 6,324,833 1,820,010 328,183 2,148,193 4,176,640
1/47 1835 OH Conductors & Devices 25 3,144,322 54,782 3,199,104 892,731| 158,641 1,051,372 2,147,732
1/47 1840 UG Conduit 25 2,423,527 370,615 2,794,142 682,150 147,768 829,918 1,964,224
1/47 1845 UG Conductors & Devices 25 3,308,108 258,273 3,566,380 1,161,565| 214,655 1,376,221 2,190,160
1/47 1850 Line Transformers 25 3,873,558 619,197 4,492,755 953,641| 215,728 1,169,369 3,323,387
1/47 1855 Services (OH & UG) 25 1,155,238 347,435 1,502,672 150,999 60,163 211,162 1,291,510
1/47 1860 Meters 15 & 25 3,598,653 346,296 3,944,949 1,568,054| 296,099 1,864,153 2,080,796
N/A 1905 Land 17,530 17,530 0 0 17,530
1/47 1908 Buildings & Fixtures 25 & 60 448,483 53,091 501,573 99,630 19,964 119,594 381,979
8 1915 Office Furniture & Equipment 10 166,115 8,955 175,070 97,507 12,636 110,143 64,928
10/45/46/52 1920 Computer - Hardware 5 689,490 106,422 795,911 492,534 108,355 600,889 195,022
12/52 1925 Computer Software 5 793,441 167,372 960,814 606,630 100,494 707,124 253,690
10 1930 Transportation Equipment 5&8 1,259,713 81,115 39,748 1,301,080 708,137| 150,809 39,748 819,198 481,882
8 1935 Stores Equipment 10 43,075 43,075 20,502 4,292 24,794 18,281
8 1940 Tools, Shop & Garage Equipment 10 187,594 9,700 197,295 124,708 15,579 140,287 57,008
8 1945 Measurement & Testing Equipment 10 75,163 0 75,163 63,385 4,693 68,078 7,084
8 1955 Communications Equipment 10 13,103 757 13,860 3,341 1,388 4,729 9,130
8 1960 Graphics Equipment 10 485 0 485 326 53 379 106
1/47 1980 System Supervisor Equipment 15 169,335 91,900 261,235 29,038 17,347 46,385 214,850
1/47 1996 Hydro One TS Contribution 25 0 0 0 0 0
1/47 1995 Contributions & Grants 25 -1,375,074 -303,436 -1,678,510 -153,507| -67,141 -220,648| -1,457,862
0
Total 26,866,890| 2,441,055 39,748| 29,268,197 9,562,401 1,827,872 39,748 11,350,525 17,917,672
Less: Fully Allocated Depreciation

10 Transportation Transportation 150,809

8 Stores Equipment Stores Equipment 4,292

Net Depreciation 1,672,770
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2008 Cost Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Closing Opening Closing Net Book
CCAClass OEB Description Depreciation Rate| Balance Additions | Disposals Balance Balance Additions [ Disposals Balance Value
N/A 1805 Land 21,836 21,836 0 0 21,836
1/47 1808 Buildings 25 & 60 190,774 0 190,774 52,175 7,581 59,756 131,018
1/47 1820 Substation Equipment 30 566,170 56,488 622,658 227,009 32,466 259,475 363,183
1/47 1830 Poles, Towers & Fixtures 25 6,324,833 368,973 6,693,806 2,148,193] 339,373 2,487,567 4,206,239
1/47 1835 OH Conductors & Devices 25 3,199,104 196,086 3,395,190 1,051,372 165,922 1,217,294 2,177,896
1/47 1840 UG Conduit 25 2,794,142 569,820 3,363,961 829,918| 170,477 1,000,395 2,363,567
1/47 1845 UG Conductors & Devices 25 3,566,380 808,364 4,374,744 1,376,221 246,821 1,623,042 2,751,702
1/47 1850 Line Transformers 25 4,492,755| 2,046,397 6,539,153 1,169,369 260,651 1,430,019 5,109,133
1/47 1855 Services (OH & UG) 25 1,502,672 521,367 2,024,039 211,162 81,018 292,180 1,731,859
1/47 1860 Meters 15& 25 3,944,949 36,254 3,981,203 1,864,153 296,879 2,161,033 1,820,171
N/A 1905 Land 17,530 17,530 0 0 17,530
1/47 1908 Buildings & Fixtures 25 & 60 501,573 181,380 682,953 119,594 27,219 146,814 536,139
8 1915 Office Furniture & Equipment 10 175,070 13,090 188,160 110,143 13,049 123,192 64,969
10/45/46/52 1920 Computer - Hardware 5 795,911 62,598 858,510 600,889 89,866 690,755 167,755
12/52 1925 Computer Software 5 960,814 168,644 1,129,458 707,124 128,457 835,581 293,877
10 1930 Transportation Equipment 5&8 1,301,080 1,301,080 819,198| 143,599 962,797 338,283
8 1935 Stores Equipment 10 43,075 0 43,075 24,794 4,292 29,086 13,989
8 1940 Tools, Shop & Garage Equipment 10 197,295 33,602 230,897 140,287 17,494 157,781 73,116
8 1945 Measurement & Testing Equipment 10 75,163 25,923 101,085 68,078 5,029 73,108 27,978
8 1955 Communications Equipment 10 13,860 9,074 22,934 4,729 2,295 7,024 15,909
8 1960 Graphics Equipment 10 485 0 485 379 53 432 53
1/47 1980 System Supervisor Equipment 15 261,235 642 261,877 46,385 17,390 63,775 198,102
1/47 1996 Hydro One T/S Contribution 25 0 0 0 0 0
1/47 1995 Contributions & Grants 25 -1,678,510(-1,493,038 -3,171,548 -220,648| -135,688 -356,336| -2,815,212
Total 29,268,197| 3,605,664 0 32,873,861 11,350,525 1,914,245 0| 13,264,770 19,609,091
Less: Fully Allocated Depreciation

10 Transportation Transportation 143,599

8 Stores Equipment Stores Equipment 4,292

Net Depreciation 1,766,354
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2009 Cost Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Opening Closing Net Book
CCAClass OEB Description Depreciation Rate| Balance |Additions |Disposals|Closing Balance Balance Additions Disposals Balance Value
N/A 1805 Land 21,836 21,836 0 0 21,836
1/47 1808 Buildings 25 & 60 190,774 0 190,774 59,756 7,581 67,337 123,437
1/47 1820 Substation Equipment 30 622,658 0 622,658 259,475 32,466 291,941 330,717
1/47 1830 Poles, Towers & Fixtures 25 6,693,806 1,009,511 7,703,317 2,487,567 378,396 2,865,963 4,837,354
1/47 1835 OH Conductors & Devices 25 3,395,190 132,732 3,527,922 1,217,294 169,800 1,387,094 2,140,828
1/47 1840 UG Conduit 25 3,363,961| 205,097 3,569,058 1,000,395 169,843 1,170,238 2,398,821
1/47 1845 UG Conductors & Devices 25 4,374,744 287,267 4,662,011 1,623,042 240,520 1,863,562| 2,798,449
1/47 1850 Line Transformers 25 6,539,153| 236,918 6,776,071 1,430,019 307,061 1,737,080| 5,038,990
1/47 1855 Services (OH & UG) 25 2,024,039| 269,381 2,293,421 292,180 91,793 383,974| 1,909,447
1/47 1860 Meters 15 & 25 3,981,203| 299,179 4,280,382 2,161,033 288,826 2,449,859 1,830,523
N/A 1905 Land 17,530 17,530 0 0 17,530
1/47 1908 Buildings & Fixtures 25 & 60 682,953 221,770 904,723 146,814 36,090 182,904 721,819
8 1915 Office Furniture & Equipment 10 188,160 18,231 206,391 123,192 14,242 137,434 68,957
10/45/46/52 1920 Computer - Hardware 5 858,510 150,966 1,009,475 690,755 99,570 790,325 219,151
12/52 1925 Computer Software 5 1,129,458 89,577 1,219,036 835,581 123,254 958,835 260,201
10 1930 Transportation Equipment 5&8 1,301,080| 105,283 50,514 1,355,849 962,797 122,456 50,514| 1,034,739 321,110
8 1935 Stores Equipment 10 43,075 8,764 51,839 29,086 2,902 31,988 19,851
8 1940 Tools, Shop & Garage Equipment 10 230,897 14,339 245,236 157,781 17,677 175,458 69,778
8 1945 Measurement & Testing Equipment 10 101,085 10,878 111,963 73,108 5,051 78,159 33,804
8 1955 Communications Equipment 10 22,934 4,936 27,869 7,024 2,789 9,813 18,056
8 1960 Graphics Equipment 10 485 0 485 432 53 485 0
1/47 1980 System Supervisor Equipment 15 261,877 75,095 336,973 63,775 22,396 86,172 250,801
1/47 1996 Hydro One S/S Contribution 25 0 0 0 0 0
1/47 1995 Contributions & Grants 25 -3,171,548( -241,196 -3,412,745 -356,336 -136,510 -492,846( -2,919,899
94 2055 Work in Process 0 87,708 87,708 87,708
Total 32,873,860( 2,986,435 50,514 35,809,781 13,264,770 1,996,257 50,514| 15,210,513( 20,599,268
Less: Fully Allocated Depreciation

10 Transportation Transportation 122,456

8 Stores Equipment Stores Equipment 2,902

Net Depreciation 1,870,899
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2010 Cost Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Closing Opening Closing Net Book
CCAClass OEB Description Depreciation Rate Balance Additions |Disposals Balance Balance Additions [ Disposals Balance Value
N/A 1805 Land 21,836 21,836 0 0 21,836
1/47 1808 Buildings 25 & 60 190,774 0 190,774 67,337 7,581 74,919 115,855
1/47 1820 Substation Equipment 30 622,658 24,902 647,560 291,941 32,881 324,823 322,737
1/47 1830 Poles, Towers & Fixtures 25 7,703,317 395,605 8,098,922 2,865,963 382,666 3,248,629| 4,850,293
1/47 1835 OH Conductors & Devices 25 3,527,922 250,203 3,778,126 1,387,094 173,330 1,560,423 2,217,702
1/47 1840 UG Conduit 25 3,569,058 556,283 4,125,341 1,170,238 160,508 1,330,746| 2,794,595
1/47 1845 UG Conductors & Devices 25 4,662,011 357,489 5,019,501 1,863,562 206,480 2,070,042 2,949,458
1/47 1850 Line Transformers 25 6,776,071 575,018 7,351,088 1,737,080 310,665 2,047,745| 5,303,343
1/47 1855 Services (OH & UG) 25 2,293,421 323,530 2,616,951 383,974 98,264 482,237| 2,134,714
1/47 1860 Meters 15 & 25 4,280,382 141,845 4,422,227 2,449,859 236,315 2,686,174 1,736,054
1/47 1861 Smart Meters 15 0 1,384,779 1,384,779 0 46,159 46,159 1,338,620
N/A 1905 Land 17,530 17,530 0 0 17,530
1/47 1908 Buildings & Fixtures 25 & 60 904,723 79,000 983,723 182,904 37,670 220,574 763,149
8 1915 Office Furniture & Equipment 10 206,391 34,550 240,941 137,434 14,797 152,231 88,710
10/45/46/52 1920 Computer - Hardware 5 1,009,475 150,697 1,160,173 790,325 97,321 887,646 272,527
12/52 1925 Computer Software 5 1,219,036 123,087 1,342,123 958,835 117,833 1,076,668 265,455
10 1930 Transportation Equipment 58&8 1,355,849 1,355,849 1,034,739 89,194 1,123,933 231,916
8 1935 Stores Equipment 10 51,839 25,000 76,839 31,988 4,141 36,130 40,709
8 1940 Tools, Shop & Garage Equipment 10 245,236 25,000 270,236 175,458 16,661 192,118 78,117
8 1945 Measurement & Testing Equipment 10 111,963 10,000 121,963 78,159 5,353 83,512 38,451
8 1955 Communications Equipment 10 27,869 1,890 29,759 9,813 2,859 12,672 17,087
8 1960 Graphics Equipment 10 485 1,420 1,905 485 71 556 1,349
1/47 1980 System Supervisor Equipment 15 336,973 0 336,973 86,172 22,396 108,568 228,405
1/47 1996 Hydro One T/S Contribution 25 0| 2,500,000 2,500,000 0 50,000 50,000| 2,450,000
1/47 1995 Contributions & Grants 25 -3,412,745 -435,531 -3,848,275 -492,846 -154,414 -647,260| -3,201,015
94 2055 Work in Process 87,708 87,708 0 0 0
Total 35,809,781| 6,524,768 87,708| 42,246,841 15,210,513 1,958,732 0| 17,169,245| 25,077,596
Less: Fully Allocated Depreciation

10 Transportation Transportation 89,194

8 Stores Equipment Stores Equipment 4,141

Net Depreciation 1,865,397
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Table 2-10:

Reconciliation of 2010 Fixed Asset Continuity Schedule to Forecast Capex in 2010 Bridge Year

Reconciliation of FA Continuity to 2010 Bridge year Capital Expenditures

Total Additions per Continuity Schedule 6,524,768
Less: GL 1860 smart meters (1,384,779)
Less: GL 1920 smart meter hw (10,697)
Less: GL1925 smart meter sw (47,255)
2010 Bridge Year Capital Expenditures Forecast 5,082,037

Smart Meter assets areincluded in the 2010 FA continuity schedule so the model
calculates a full year depreciation in 2011. 1/2 year rule used for 2010 schedule

SM Assets -Net Capex in account 1555 to Dec 31 2009
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2011 Cost Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Closing Opening Closing Net Book
CCAClass OEB Description Depreciation Rate Balance Additions Disposals Balance Balance Additions Disposals Balance Value
N/A 1805 |Land 21,836 21,836 0 0 21,836
1/47 1808 [Buildings 25 & 60 190,774 0 190,774 74,919 7,581 82,500 108,274
1/47 1820 |Substation Equipment 30 647,560 0 647,560 324,823 33,296 358,119 289,441
1/47 1830 |Poles, Towers & Fixtures 25 8,098,922 602,927 8,701,849 3,248,629 396,693 3,645,323 5,056,526
1/47 1835 |OH Conductors & Devices 25 3,778,126 529,765 4,307,891 1,560,423 186,523 1,746,947 2,560,944
1/47 1840 |UG Conduit 25 4,125,341 472,513 4,597,854 1,330,746 177,699 1,508,444 3,089,410
1/47 1845 |UG Conductors & Devices 25 5,019,501 373,275 5,392,776 2,070,042 214,280 2,284,323 3,108,453
1/47 1850 [Line Transformers 25 7,351,088 507,727 7,858,815 2,047,745 327,719 2,375,464 5,483,351
1/47 1855 [Services (OH & UG) 25 2,616,951 199,814 2,816,764 482,237 108,731 590,968 2,225,796
1/47 1860 [Meters 15 & 25 4,422,227 126,991 4,549,218 2,686,174 196,501 2,882,675 1,666,544
1/47 1861 |Smart Meters 15 1,384,779 1,384,779 46,159 92,319 138,478 1,246,301
N/A 1905 |Land 17,530 17,530 0 0 17,530
1/47 1908 |Buildings & Fixtures 25 & 60 983,723 90,000 1,073,723 220,574 41,050 261,624 812,099
8 1915 |Office Furniture & Equipment 10 240,941 25,000 265,941 152,231 15,912 168,143 97,799
10 1920 [Computer - Hardware 5 1,160,173 140,000 1,300,173 887,646 108,134 995,780 304,393
12 1925 |Computer Software 5 1,342,123 60,000 1,402,123 1,076,668 115,734 1,192,402 209,720
10 1930 [Transportation Equipment 58&8 1,355,849 450,000 178,962 1,626,888 1,123,933 117,319 178,962| 1,062,291 564,597
8 1935 |[Stores Equipment 10 76,839 40,000 116,839 36,130 7,391 43,521 73,318
8 1940 |Tools, Shop & Garage Equipment 10 270,236 20,000 290,236 192,118 15,948 208,066 82,169
8 1945 [Measurement & Testing Equipment 10 121,963 10,000 131,963 83,512 6,355 89,867 42,096
8 1955 [Communications Equipment 10 29,759 20,000 49,759 12,672 3,684 16,355 33,404
8 1960 |Graphics Equipment 10 1,905 0 1,905 556 142 698 1,207
1/47 1980 |System Supervisor Equipment 15 336,973 20,000 356,973 108,568 23,063 131,631 225,342
1/47 1996 |Hydro One T/S Contribution 25 2,500,000 1,600,000 4,100,000 50,000 132,000 182,000 3,918,000
1/47 1995 [Contributions & Grants 25 -3,848,275 -442,913 -4,291,188 -647,260 -171,983 -819,243 -3,471,945
Work in Process 0 0 0 0 0
Total 42,246,841 4,845,100 178,962 46,912,979 17,169,245 2,156,092 178,962|19,146,375| 27,766,604
Less: Fully Allocated Depreciation

10 Transportation Transportation 117,319

8 Stores Equipment Stores Equipment 7,391

Net Depreciation 2,031,382
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Table 2-12:

Reconciliation of 2011 Fixed Asset Continuity Schedule to 2011 Test Year Additions to GL Accounts

Reconciliation of FA Continuity to 2010 Bridge year Capital Expenditures

Total Additions per Continuity Schedule 4,845,100
Less: GL 1860 smart meters 1,384,779
Less: GL 1920 smart meter hw 10,697
Less: GL 1925 smart meter sw 47,255
2010 Bridge Year Capital Expenditures Forecast 5,082,037

Smart Meter assets areincluded in the 2010 FA continuity schedule so the model
calculates a full year depreciation in 2011. 1/2 year rule used for 2010 schedule
SM Assets -Net Capex in acct 1555 to Dec 31 2009 -added to asset GLaccounts in 2011 Test
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Variance Variance Variance
2006 Board Variance Variance Variance 2010 Bridge 2011 Test
2006 Board 2006 Approved to 2007 2007 to 2006 2008 2008 to 2007 2009 2009 to 2008 Bridge to 2009 Test Year to 2010
Description Approved Actual 2006 Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Year 2010 Actual 2011 Bridge
Land & Buildings
1805 Land 21,836 21,836 0 21,836 0 21,836 0 21,836 0 21,836 0 21,836 0
1808 Buildings 181,937 190,774 8,837 190,774 0 190,774 0 190,774 0 190,774 0 190,774 0
1905 Land 17,530 17,530 0 17,530 0 17,530 0 17,530 0 17,530 0 17,530 0
221,302 230,139 8,837 230,139 0 230,139 0 230,139 0 230,139 0 230,139 0
Distribution Station Equipment
1820 Substation Equipment 521,895 566,170 44,275 566,170 0 622,658 56,488 622,658 0 647,560 24,902 647,560 0
521,895 566,170 44,275 566,170 0 622,658 56,488 622,658 0 647,560 24,902 647,560 0
Poles & Wires
1830 Poles, Towers & Fixtures 5,279,586| 6,096,252 816,665 6,324,833 228,581 6,693,806 368,973 7,703,317 1,009,511| 8,098,922 395,605 8,701,849 602,927
1835 OH Conductors & Devices 2,882,718 3,144,322 261,604|[ 3,199,104 54,782| 3,395,190 196,086| 3,527,922 132,732|| 3,778,126 250,203|| 4,307,891 529,765
1840 UG Conduit 1,886,327 2,423,527 537,200 2,794,142 370,615 3,363,961 569,820 3,569,058 205,097|| 4,125,341 556,283|| 4,597,854 472,513
1845 UG Conductors & Devices 2,952,999 3,308,108 355,109|| 3,566,380 258,273 4,374,744 808,364 4,662,011 287,267|| 5,019,501 357,489 5,392,776 373,275
13,001,631| 14,972,208 1,970,578|| 15,884,459 912,250( 17,827,701 1,943,243|| 19,462,309 1,634,607(| 21,021,889  1,559,580(| 23,000,370 1,978,481
Line Transformers
1850 Line Transformers 3,025,559| 3,873,558 847,999(| 4,492,755 619,197|| 6,539,153 2,046,397|| 6,776,071 236,918|| 7,351,088 575,018|| 7,858,815 507,727
3,025,559| 3,873,558 847,999 4,492,755 619,197 6,539,153 2,046,397| 6,776,071 236,918|| 7,351,088 575,018 7,858,815 507,727
Services and Meters
1855 Services (OH & UG) 616,419 1,155,238 538,819 1,502,672 347,435( 2,024,039 521,367| 2,293,421 269,381|| 2,616,951 323,530|| 2,816,764 199,814
1860 Meters 3,214,266| 3,598,653 384,387|| 3,944,949 346,296(| 3,981,203 36,254| 4,280,382 299,179|| 4,422,227 141,845|| 4,549,218 126,991
1861 Smart Meters 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 1,384,779 1,384,779|| 1,384,779 0
3,830,685| 4,753,891 923,206(| 5,447,621 693,730(| 6,005,243 557,621|| 6,573,802 568,560|| 8,423,957 1,850,155|| 8,750,762 326,805
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2
Variance Variance Variance
2006 2006 Board Variance Variance Variance 2010 Bridge 2011 Test
Board 2006 Approved to 2007 2007 to 2006 2008 2008 to 2007 2009 2009 to 2008 || Bridge Year  to 2009 Test Year to 2010
Description Approved Actual 2006 Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual 2010 Actual 2011 Bridge

General Plant

1908 Buildings & Fixtures 412,966 448,483 35,516 501,573 53,091 682,953 181,380 904,723 221,770 983,723 79,000(| 1,073,723 90,000
412,966 448,483 35,516 501,573 53,091|| 682,953 181,380|| 904,723 221,770 983,723 79,000(| 1,073,723 90,000
IT Assets
1920 Computer - Hardware 460,406 689,490 229,083 795,911 106,422 858,510 62,598|| 1,009,475 150,966|| 1,160,173 150,697|| 1,300,173 140,000
1925 Computer Software 544,976 793,441 248,465 960,814 167,372|| 1,129,458 168,644|| 1,219,036 89,577|| 1,342,123 123,087|| 1,402,123 60,000
1,005,382 1,482,931 477,548|| 1,756,725 273,794|| 1,987,968 231,243 2,228,511 240,543 2,502,295 273,784(| 2,702,295 200,000
Equipment
1915 Office Furniture & Equip. 116,123 166,115 49,992 175,070 8,955 188,160 13,090|| 206,391 18,231 240,941 34,550 265,941 25,000
1930 Transportation 947,660 1,259,713 312,053(| 1,301,080 41,367| 1,301,080 0|| 1,355,849 54,769(| 1,355,849 0|| 1,626,888 271,038
1935 Stores 23,354 43,075 19,721 43,075 0 43,075 0 51,839 8,764 76,839 25,000 116,839 40,000
1940 Tools, Shop & Garage 175,061 187,594 12,533 197,295 9,700 230,897 33,602 245,236 14,339 270,236 25,000 290,236 20,000
1945 Measurement & Testing 72,851 75,163 2,312 75,163 ol 101,085 25,923 111,963 10,878 121,963 10,000 131,963 10,000
1955 Communications 4,248 13,103 8,855 13,860 757 22,934 9,074 27,869 4,936 29,759 1,890 49,759 20,000
1960 Miscellaneous 485 485 0 485 0 485 0 485 0 1,905 1,420 1,905 0
1980 System Supervisory 49,665 169,335 119,671 261,235 91,900 261,877 642 336,973 75,095 336,973 0 356,973 20,000
1,389,446 1,914,583 525,137|| 2,067,263 152,680|| 2,149,594 82,331|| 2,336,605 187,011|| 2,434,465 97,860|| 2,840,503 406,038
Other Distribution Assets
1996 Hydro One S/S Contribution 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0|| 2,500,000 2,500,000|| 4,100,000 1,600,000
1995 Contributions & Grants (615,802) (1,375,074)  (759,272)||(1,678,510)  (303,436)|[ (3,171,548)  (1,493,038)|| (3,412,744)  (241,196)|| (3,848,275)  (435,531)|| (4,291,188) (442,913)
2055 Construction WIP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 87,708 87,708 0 (87,708) 0 0

(615,802) (1,375,074) (759,272)|| (1,678,510) (303,436)|| (3,171,548)  (1,493,038)|| (3,325,036) (153,488)|| (1,348,275)  1,976,761|| (191,188) 1,157,087

Gross Asset Total 22,793,065 26,866,890  4,073,825(| 29,268,197 2,401,307|( 32,873,861 3,605,664 35,809,782 2,935,921|| 42,246,842 6,437,060 [ 46,912,980 4,666,138

3 Note: 2006 Board Approved amount for gross asset total is $22,793,343, including CDM assets (Account 1565) of $278. CDM assets are not included in the 2011 Test Year rate base calculation; accordingly, Account
4 1565 is omitted from this table



~N o o1~ W

10

11
12
13

14

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

23

Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.
EB-2010-0145

Exhibit 2

Tab 2

Schedule 3

Page 1 of 57

Filed: October 28, 2010

GROSS ASSETS VARIANCE ANALYSIS:

Overview

WHSI’s 2011 Test Year revenue requirement is $8,232,474. In accordance with Chapter 2 of the
Filing Requirements for Transmission and Distribution Applications (June 28, 2010), the
materiality threshold for distributors with a distribution revenue requirement less than or equal
to $10 million is $50,000. For the purposes of this analysis, WHSI will also explain variances that

are below the $50,000 threshold where relevant.

Table 2-13 below provides a summary of Gross Distribution Assets additions and variances for

the 2005 to 2009 Actual, 2006 Approved, 2010 Bridge Year and 2011 Test Year Amounts.

Following this summary table are the detailed variance analysis and tables for the 2005 Actual,
2006 Actual, 2006 Approved, 2007 Actual, 2008 Actual, 2009 Actual, 2010 Bridge, and 2011 Test

Year capital expenditures.

Capital Expenditures 2005 and 2006:

The 2006 Board Approved amounts for each account were calculated as the average of the
2003 and 2004 actual amounts in accordance with the 2006 rate model. As such the amount
for the 2006 Actual includes the difference between the 2004 actual and the 2006 Board
Approved amounts as well as 2005 and 2006 annual investments. The capital expenditures for
2005 amount to $1,261,379 and 2006 amount to 1,975,384. The total capital expenditures for
2005 and 2006 were $3,236,763. The difference between the 2006 EDR approved gross assets
of $22,793,065 and actual 2006 ending balance was $4,073,825, and amounted to a net
variance of $837,062.
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2005 Capital Projects

Table 2-14 summarizes the 2005 capital expenditures by project and account number. Projects
that are near or exceed the materiality threshold of $50,000 are described in more detail

following this table.
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1 Table 2-14
2 2005 Capital Expenditures By Project and Account
Distn Stn Tools,
Buildings & [Equip Poles, OH UG Office Shop & Commun-|
Total Fixtures-  [Primary [Towers & [Conductors|UG Conductors|Transfor Buildings [Furniture & |Comput [Comput |Garage ication |Contributed
Project Description Project |Substations |<50kW Fixtures (& Devices |Conduit |& Devices [mers Services |Meters |& Fixtures|Equipment [erHW |erSW |Equip Equip Capital
1808 1820 1830 1835 1840 1845 1850 1855 1860 1908 1915 1920 1925 1940 1955 1995
Projects Above Materiality
Subdivisions & New Services 260,310 100,078 86,125| 182,872| 227,584 -336,349
Equipment Replacements 206,116 33,500 40,984| 36,679 51,252| 43,702
M7 & M10 TS Feeder Replacements 181,425 7,877 128,559 44,989
Danger Pole Replacements 103,721 103,721
Leinster Gladstone Conversion 102,166 17,591 16,162| 54,176| 14,237
Computer software 88,646 88,646
Computer hardware 86,600 86,600
Meter replacements 73,270 73,270
Projects Below Materiality
Wdstk TS B & Y Bus Metering 44,567 44,567
Prepaid Meter Installations 31,100 31,100
Poles on North Park Crescent 10,070 10,070
Poles on Commerce Way 9,996 9,996
Poles on Dundas 9,130 9,130
Desks & chairs 9,069 9,069
MS6 & MS3B refurbishments 8,837, 8,837
Poles on Parkinson 8,490 8,490
Office renovations 7,767 7,767
Miscellaneous equipment 5,815 5,572 243
Poles on Wilson & College 5,782 5,782
Poles on Grosvenor & Altador 5,371 5,371
Poles on Huron 3,130 3,130
Total $1,261,378 $8,837| $44,567| $197,067 $40,984| $282,906| $198,528| $280,750| $241,821| $104,370 $7,767 $9,069| $86,600| $88,646 $5,572 $243| -$336,349

3
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2005 Capital Projects:

Subdivisions and New Services: $260,310

Driver: Customer Demand/Growth

The net subdivision capital additions were attributable
developments within the WHSI service area

e Bridlewood Acres

e Potterswoods Phase 2

e Southwood Estates

e Anderson Condos

e Herons Landing

e Forrestway Trail

e Trillium Woods

e CanRobert

e Southwood Estates Phase 2

¢ Lansdowne Meadow Phase 7

e Lansdowne Subdivision Phase 2A

In 2005, WHSI also added or upgraded 12 commercial services.

Equipment Replacements:  $206,116

Driver : Replacement /Reliability
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to the following residential

Transformers and other equipment requiring replacement due to unexpected equipment

failures or damage accounted for $206,116. On an individual incident basis, these projects fell

below the $50,000 threshold and the consolidated amount has provided for information

purposes.
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M7 & M10 Feeder Replacements at Woodstock TS: $181,425

Driver : Replacement /Reliability

Increased loading at Woodstock TS initiated this investment to ensure adequate supply and
voltage quality was maintained at under-rated feeder locations. The Woodstock Hydro M7 and
M10 feeder conductors running from the load side of the feeder breaker and terminating at
Woodstock Hydro supply points were identified as undersized. Existing conductor sizes at the
time limited load currents to less than half of the available supply, limiting the amount of load
available for transfer to these two critical feeders. In addition, the existing conductor was
nearing end of life. Both feeders were replaced with 1000 MCM aluminum underground
conductor effectively taking the feeder breaker potential to full capacity. This work was

completed in cooperation with Hydro One Networks.

Danger Pole Replacements: $103,721

Driver : Replacement /Reliability

Pole integrity testing began in 2005. Following this pole asset testing project, several poles
were identified as requirement replacement as soon as possible. These poles were replaced
outside of an area-wide rebuilding process. Ongoing pole replacements are budgeted on a
going forward basis, however the investment will typically follow asset replacement or voltage

conversion initiatives.

Leinster Gladstone Conversion: $102,166

Driver : Replacement /Reliability
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Aging and failing primary conductor was replaced in this part of Woodstock. As part of the
replacement process, voltage conversion and some transformer replacement was completed

taking the distribution voltages to 27 Kv from the older 4 Kv system.

Computer Software: $88,646

Driver : Replacement /Regulatory

Computer software upgrades for billing and settlement systems ($39,711), corporate software
(539,374), and finance software ($9,561) were added in 2005 to accommodate changing

regulatory requirements and system security improvements.

Computer Hardware: $86,600

Driver : Replacement /Reliability

WHSI replaced 10 workstations and 2 printers ($24,748), billing and meter reading equipment
(521,207) and server equipment ($40,645) in 2005 as part of WHSI’s IT asset management and
replacement program. Server equipment upgrades were necessary build an IT platform that

would ensure system reliability and security.

Meter Replacements and Additions: $73,270

Driver : Growth/Replacement

Regular and interval meter replacements due to re-verifications and new commercial services
account for $73,270 in 2005. On an individual basis, these additions fell below the $50,000

threshold and the consolidated amount has provided for information purposes.



A WN

© 00 ~N o o

10
11

Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.
EB-2010-0145

Exhibit 2

Tab 2

Schedule 3

Page 7 of 57

Filed: October 28, 2010

Woodstock TS B & Y Bus Metering: $44,567

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

Much of the existing station metering across the Province was ‘grandfathered’ as acceptable
for IESO Market opening requirements. To ensure instrumentation and metering equipment at
the wholesale metering points met minimum standards, IESO required utilities such as Hydro
One and Woodstock Hydro to upgrade their metering equipment. These charges relate to
improvements in Woodstock TS wholesale metering equipment to ensure compliance with the

IESO could be maintained.
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Distn Stn  |Poles, OH UG Buildings |Office Transpor- Tools, Shop [Commun-
Equip Pr  |Towers & |Conductors |UG Conductors |Transfor & Furniture |[Computer|Computer [tation Stores (& Garage [ication |SCADA Contributed
Project Description Total Project|<50kW Fixtures |& Devices |Conduit |& Devices [mers Services |Meters Fixtures |& HW SW Equip Equp Equip Equip Equip Capital
1820 1830 1835 1840 1845 1850 1855 1860 1908 1915 1920 1925 1930 1935 1940 1955 1980 1995
Projects Above Materiality
Conversion 4 KV to 27 KV Overhead 367,552 186,899 62,964 75,777 41,912
RBD Truck 280,746 280,746
RBD Tradein & Truck 22 sold -66,313 -66,313
Subdivisions and New Services 211,358 42,202 11,203 94,071 52,968| 121,563| 115,561 -226,210
Danger Pole Replacements 168,052 168,052
Cartier UG Conversion 4 KV to 27 KV Phase 1 166,711 97,108 11,387 58,216
Dual redundant SCADA system 119,671 119,671
Prepaid Meter Installations 104,071 104,071
27 KV Extend Lansdowne Ave - part of LTLT Elimination 95,931 69,834 17,238 8,860
27 KV Rebuild Water and Centre Streets 63,920 35,116 26,357 2,447
New 27 KV Commerce Way Business Park Ph 1 57,025 33,333 23,692
LAN/Server/Peripherals 54,613 54,613
Projects Below Materiality
Interval Metering 43,934 43,934
Canada Stampings 36,845 35,242 1,603
Workstation and printer replacements 36,648 36,648
Trans Arctic- Pattullo 33,932 439 238 8,392| 23,481 1,383
Office productivity/corporate software 27,750 27,750
Bysham- Industrial Park 27,660 27,660
Desks & filing cabinets 25,692 25,692
LAN/Infrastructure software 21,150 21,150
Billing software upgrades 20,900 20,900
Used Fork Lift 19,721 19,721
Finance software upgrades 17,801 17,801
Engineering software upgrades 14,420 14,420
Office renovations 13,573 13,573
Telephone upgrades 7,284 7,284
Misc tools & equipment 3,482 3,482
Substation 1,709 1,709
Total $1,975,834 $1,709| $535,874| $141,454|$191,417 $72,747($353,245($157,473[ $150,990( $13,573| $25,692| $91,261|$102,021|$214,433|$19,721 $3,482 $7,284| $119,671 -$226,210
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2006 Capital Projects:

Overhead 4 KV to 27 Kv Conversion: $367,552

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

Conversion of aging overhead primary and secondary distribution to the 27 Kv system. Pole

testing and age of plant required replacement of wood pole, conductor and transformer assets.

2007 International Radial Boom Derrick (RBD) Truck: $280,746 (no trade in)

Driver: Replacement/Growth

The 1993 International RDB Truck purchased in 1994 exceeded it’s useful life and was replaced
with a 2007 International Digger Derrick Truck to accommodate demand related growth and

system conversions.

Vehicle Disposals: ($66,313)

Driver: Replacement

In 2006, a fully depreciated 1996 Ford Aerostar Van was retired from the fleet and the gross
purchase price of $9,645 removed from account 1930 Transportation Equipment, and account
2105 Accumulated Amortization. The vehicle was not replaced. A fully depreciated 1993 RDB
was also disposed and the gross purchase price of $56,668 was removed from account 1930

and account 2105.
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Subdivisions and New Services: $211,358

Driver: Customer Demand/Growth

The net capital additions for $211,358 were attributable to the following residential
developments within the WHSI service area
e Bridlewood Acres

Potterswoods Phase 2

e Southwood Estates

e Anderson Condos

e Herons Landing

e Forrestway Trail

e Trillium Woods

e CanRobert

e Southwood Estates Phase 2

e Lansdowne Phases 1, 2A, 5,6,7 and 8

In 2006, 82 new services were connected among 12 various developments and 30 commercial

upgrades or new services were added.

Danger Pole Replacements: $168,052

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

Pole integrity testing continued into 2006 and several poles were identified as requiring
replacement as soon as possible. These poles were replaced outside of an area-wide rebuilding
process. Ongoing pole replacements are budgeted on a going forward basis, however the

investment will typically follow asset replacement or voltage conversion initiatives.
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Cartier 4 KV to 27 Kv Conversion Phase 1: $166,711

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

A 4 Kv underground conductor and related transformation equipment was converted to 27 Kv.
The underground primary and secondary conductor was reaching end of life and was beginning

to experience burn-off, particularly with the secondary service conductor.

System Supervisory Equipment: $119,671

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

WHSI upgraded to a dual-redundant Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition System (SCADA)
to ensure against hardware failure. The SCADA system is used to monitor WHSIs" 4KV
substations, Hydro One feeders, automate switching with field switchgear, and to track the

time and location of outages.

Prepaid Meter Installations: $104,071

Driver: Customer Demand

Customer demand for pay-as-you-go meter technology continued into 2006, resulting in
additional prepaid meter installations of $104,071. At this time, WHSI was well underway in
their search to find a proven prepaid meter technology that would comply with the smart
meter minimum functionality requirements, at a reasonable cost. WHSI made it’s final
purchase of pay-as-you go meters in 2005 which was recognized in account 1330, Inventory.
The cost of these meters were added to the Meter asset account 1860 upon their installation

in the field.
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Lansdowne Avenue 27 Kv Extension: $95,931

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

As part of the Long Term Load elimination strategy, a 27kV line was extended east along

Lansdowne Avenue toward the Hydro One demarcation point.

27 Kv Rebuild of Water and Center Street — Downtown Conversion: $63,920

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

Much of the downtown core had aging 4 Kv infrastructure and pole testing results supported
the need to replace existing wood pole assets. This project included the conversion of 4 Kv to
that of 27 Kv and formed the beginning of the greater downtown replacement project in years

to follow.

New 27 Kv Distribution in Commerce Way Business Park Phase 1 : $57,025

Driver: Customer Demand/Growth

Phase one of this project included costs for the expansion of the distribution system into a

new business park located in South-east Woodstock.

Computer Hardware LAN/Server/Peripherals: $54,613

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

Two Disaster Recovery (DR) backup servers were purchased as part of the first-generation

approach to Disaster Recovery for $34,265. One server was sized to be capable of supporting
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the entire organization with up to 10 virtual servers on one physical server, operating out of our
specified DR site, in a full-scale emergency scenario. A second (smaller) server was purchased
for on-site business continuity and testing. Other peripheral purchases include a backup tape
changer (5$8,366), SPAM appliance (55,860), server room console equipment ($4,708), and UPS
devices ($1,417).

Interval Metering: $49,934

Driver: Regulatory/Replacement

Consumer awareness and education was the primary focus for many WHSI conservation
programs during the three year third tranche conservation period. From experience, we
recognize the value of Interval load data, particularly for those businesses who have access to
their facility power use via the Internet. In many cases, commercial and industrial customers
struggle to recognize the major contributing loads within their plant. What equipment
consumes the most power; what is the coincidental peak of various pieces of equipment; is it

necessary for this equipment to operate together during times of peak demand, and so forth.

The only means a customer has of identifying load characteristics within their facility is to have
access to hourly Interval data. As such, WHSI invested $49,934 to replace standard mechanical
metering for those customers with a demand >100 kw. This initiative contributed significantly
toward demand and energy awareness and will continue to support the Provinces desire to

build conservation awareness strategies and required skill-sets among this customer group.
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Tools,
Poles, OH UG Office Transpor- [Shop & [Commun
Total Towers & [Conductors (UG Conductors |Trans- Buildings |Furniture |Computer |Computer |tation Garage |ication [SCADA |Contributed
Project Description Project |Fixtures |& Devices |Conduit |& Devices [formers [Services [Meters |& Fixtures|& Equip |HW SwW Equip Equip |Equip Equip |Capital
1830 1835 1840 1845 1850 1855 1860 1908 1915 1920 1925 1930 1940 1955 1980 1995
Projects Above Materiality
Nesbitt Vanier Underground 4 KV to 27 KV Conversion 474,411 169,810 52,575| 87,440| 164,586
Cartier Underground Conversion 4 KV to 27 KV Phase 2 186,805 15,968 32,498| 138,339
New Commercial Services 183,818 47,335 19,123 4,920 6,158 84,833| 17,890 3,560
Equipment Replacements 143,109 19,532 0| 30,014 11,977| 60,863] 20,723 0|
New CIS/Billing System Software 134,252 134,252
Interval meter replacements 129,295 129,295
Rex 1 Meters (Smart) 103,308 103,308
Downtown Conversion Phase 1 101,493 64,321 21,443| 14,146 1,583
Upgraded Scada system 91,900 91,900
Subvidisions and New Residential Services 85,368 65,035 58,677| 125,750 132,488 6,853 -303,436
Cargo Van & crew cab pick up 81,115 81,115
Disposal of 1996 GMC Cube Van & 1995 GMC Step Van -39,748 -39,748
Danger Pole Replacements 80,749 80,749
Prepaid Meter installations 79,905 79,905
New 27 KV Commerce Way Business Park Phase 2 75,140 6,633 6,507 7,314 54,686
Heating & cooling automation & server room 53,091 53,091
Projects Below Materiality

Woodstock Chrysler Dealership 46,851 584 799 4,141 15,660 25,667
St Michaels School Conversion 45,407 14,409 1,597 9,090 4,599 14,554 1,157
Beards Lane Rebuild 45,106 8,714 10,104 23,396 2,892
Maple Automotive 42,895 13,293 3,982 25,293 327
Workstation and printer replacements 36,400 36,400
Bysham Park Industrial Park Pole Line Extension 34,512 28,542 5,970
PreCon Flex Wall 31,331 3,869 6,700 18,917 372 1,474
CIS Servers (2) and Console) 29,600 29,600
Delta to Wye Conversions 27,317 11,375| 15,942
LAN/Server replacements 25,172 25,172
Engineering software 20,245 20,245
Backup devices for office and disaster recovery site 15,250 15,250
LAN/Infrastructure software 12,875 12,875
Tools and equipment 10,457 9,700 757
Bill stuffing machine, chairs & blinds 8,955 8,955
Automated Switching 4,922 4,922
Total $2,401,307 $228,581 $54,782 $370,615 $258,273 $619,197 $347,435 $346,296  $53,091 $8,955 $106,422 $167,372 $41,367 $9,700 $757 $91,900  -$303,436)
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2007 Capital Projects:

Nesbitt-Vanier 4 Kv to 27 Kv Underground Conversion:  $474,411

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

Aging underground 4 Kv in the Nesbitt-Vanier area, along with safety concerns at the
meterbase initiated this conversion. All primary, secondary and transformer equipment was

replaced.

Cartier 4 KV to 27 Kv Conversion Phase 2: $186,805

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

The second and final phase of this27 Kv underground conversion was completed in 2007.

New Commercial Services: $183,818

Driver : Customer Demand/Growth

In 2007, WHSI added 39 commercial services and at an average cost of $4,713 each. On an
individual basis, these additions fell below the $50,000 threshold and the consolidated amount

has provided for information purposes.
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Equipment Replacements:  $143,109

Driver : Replacement/Reliability

Transformers and other equipment requiring replacement due to unexpected equipment
failures or damage accounted for $143,109. On an individual incident basis, these projects fell
below the $50,000 threshold and the consolidated amount has provided for information

purposes.

New CIS/Billing System: $134,252

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

In 2007 WHSI began the process of setup and conversion to a new CIS/Billing system. The 2007
software implementation costs for the Harris Northstar CIS / Billing system were $134,252 and
included the purchase and setup of the Windows Enterprise Server operating system software,
the SQL server database software, CIS configuration, data conversion, custom report writing

and other one-time software design charges.

Interval Meters: $129,295

Driver: Regulatory

WHSI continued its third tranche conservation program to replace standard mechanical
metering to interval meters for customers with a demand >100 kW to give customers the tools
to monitor and improve their power factor and to create an effective demand side

management and conservation program.
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REX 1 Meter Exchange: $103,308

Driver: Regulatory

As was the case with many LDC’s during the Smart metering design process, WHSI encountered
several batches of aging single phase meters that required replacement. In total, 1100
mechanical type meters were identified for replacement and WHSI was directed by
Measurement Canada to complete this change in advance of Smart meter implementation. A
cost analysis was completed that compared the ultimate loss of replacing meters like-for-like
(ie. Mechanical with mechanical). Had this option been selected, the full cost of metering and

labour would have been invested and ultimately lost during Smart meter conversions.

As a means of hedging the loss, WHSI opted to replace the mechanical type failed units with
Elster REX 1 Smart meters. The labour and equipment costs associated with converting these
meters was charged to OM&A expense, and the cost of the meters were charged to meter
capital. Although a decision had not yet been finalized, ELSTER was a front runner among LDC’

in the smart meter initiative.

The investment proved to be sound, as WHSI finalized a contract with Elster and the 1,100

replacement meters are now functioning as part of the WHSI Smart metering network.

Downtown Conversion Phase 1: $101,493

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

Phase one of the conversion to 27kW in the Woodstock Downtown area began in order to
relieve load from existing 4 Kv Municipal Substation number 6, and replace aging overhead and

underground conductor.

SCADA System: $91,900

Driver: Replacement/Reliability
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WHSI added an ICCP upgrade and wireless communication equipment for the automated
switches to the dual-redundant (SCADA) system. ICCP was required to allow access to Barrie
OGC for remote hold-off, and the communication equipment enabled remote control and

monitoring of 3 viper switches.

Subdivisions and New Services: $85,368

Driver: Customer Demand/Growth

The net subdivision capital additions for $85,368 were attributable to the following residential
developments within the WHSI service area

e Forrestway Trail

e Southwood Estates Phase 2, 4

e Trillium Woods Phase 1,2

e Tiffany Homes Phase 1

e Lansdowne Phases 2,9, 10

e Lansdowne Meadows

In 2007, 129 new services were connected among 11 various developments.

Cargo Van & Crew Cab Pick Up: $81,115

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

A 1996 GMC cube van used primarily for substation maintenance and plant locating services
and had exceeded its useful life. This vehicle was replaced with a smaller, 2007 GMC Savanna

van, which continues to serve the same purpose.
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A 1995 GMC Step Van used exclusively by WHSI line crews, primarily for underground work, had
exceeded it’s useful life. This vehicle was replaced with a 2007 GMC Sierra 1 Ton, crew cab
chassis and is now used for both overhead and underground work activities while providing a

means of transporting crews.

Vehicle Disposals: ($39,748)

Driver: Replacement

In 2007, a fully depreciated 1996 GMC Cube Van and a 1995 GMC Step Van were retired from
the fleet and the total purchase price of $39,748 removed from account 1930 Transportation

Equipment, and account 2105 Accumulated Amortization.

Danger Pole Replacements: $80,749

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

Pole integrity testing was completed in 2005 and 2006 and several poles were identified as
requiring replacement as soon as possible. These poles were replaced outside of an area-wide
rebuilding process. Ongoing pole replacements are budgeted on a go- forward basis, however

the investment will typically follow asset replacement or voltage conversion initiatives.

Prepaid Meters: $79,905

Driver: Customer Demand
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Replacement of existing prepaid meters and requests for new prepaid meters continued into
2007. WHSI had made it’s final purchase of prepaid meters in 2005 which were recorded in

account 1330, Inventory and then recognized in account 1860 Meters, upon installation.

27 Kv Distribution Expansion in Commerce Way Business Park Phase 2: $75,140

Driver: Customer Demand/Growth

Further expansion was required into this business park development to keep pace with growth

within the City of Woodstock. The installation for this conversion is an overhead 27 Kv.

Server Room Heating & Cooling Automation $53,091

Driver — Replacement/Reliability

Building renovations to accommodate an automated heating and cooling system in the upper
and lower server rooms were completed at a cost of $53,091. These renovations were
necessary to create a climate controlled environment and eliminate the risk of equipment

failure due to high room temperatures.
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1 Table 2-17
2 2008 Capital Expenditures by Project and Account Number
Station Equip |Poles, OH UG Office Tools, Shop [Commun-
Primary Towers & [Conductors |UG Conductors Buildings |Furniture |Compute |Computer |Stores |& Garage |ication |SCADA |Contributed
Project Description Total Project [<50kW Fixtures |& Devices |Conduit (& Devices [Transformers |Services |Meters |& Fixtures (& Equip  |r HW SW Equp Equip Equip Equip |Capital
1820 1830 1835 1840 1845 1850 1855 | 1860 1908 1915 1920 1925 1935 1940 1955 1980 1995
Projects Above Materiality
Inventory Adjustment - assets in inventory 977,791 54,462 923,329
Subvidisions and New Residential Services 516,339 767 457|344,066 305,622 625,633[456,567| 20,136 -1,236,908
New Commercial Services 248,194 21,873 6,705| 13,911 337,770 104,942 7,501|11,622 -256,130
Beards Lane Rebuild 233,359 67,163 62,350 18,541 38,398 46,480 429
Brock Street Rebuild and Conversion Phase 1 231,120 15,110 5,015| 90,845 9,550 109,878 722
Equipment Replacements 210,151 44,234 30,034 15,349 39,412 59,991| 17,062 4,068
Danger pole replacements 140,199 102,091 24,697 2,748 6,369 4,295
Dundas & Wilson rebuild 136,484 12,923 3,481| 50,968 33,055 33,541] 2,518
Billing System software 124,697 124,697
Downtown Conversion Phase 2 116,490 -1,072 672| 30,255 19,977 55,649| 11,010
Graham Street Voltage Conversion 112,567 8,806 2,021 19,957 66,591| 15,192
Seagrave Chandaria 106,496 42,617 60,653 1,218 619 1,388
Part of Garage Roof 97,000 97,000
Interior Building Renovations 84,380 84,380
MS3B Refurbishment 56,488 56,488
Projects Below Materiality
Misc shop & garage tools 33,602 33,602
Workstations & Printers 27,996 27,996
Measurement equipment 25,923 25,923
Nesbitt/Vanier Conversion 25,033 5,887 658 13,375 5,113
LAN/Infrastructure software 21,032 21,032
Engineering software 20,228 20,228
LAN/Servers/Peripherals 19,653 19,653
Projectors and other devices 15,592 14,950 642
Desks & blinds 13,090 13,090
Telephone equipment 9,074 9,074
Finance software 2,687 2,687
Total Gross Assets 3,605,664 56,488| 368,973 196,086 569,820 808,364 2,046,397|521,367]36,254| 181,380 13,090] 62,598 168,644 33,602 25,923 9,074] 642[ -1,493,038
Accounting Adjustment - to reallocate contributed
capital amortization to account 2105 -220,648 -220,648
Reconciliation to Trial Balance 3,385,016 56,488| 368,973 196,086 569,820 808,364 2,046,397|521,367[ 36,254 181,380 13,090| 62,598| 168,644| 33,602 25,923 9,074] 642| -1,713,686

3
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2008 Capital Projects:

In addition to summarizing the 2008 capital projects, Table 2-17 above reconciles the actual
projects to the trial balance. Prior to 2008, accumulated amortization for account 1995,
Contributed Capital, was recognized in a sub-account of account 1995. Although the net
Contributed Capital amount was correct, the net book value was reported in account 1995 and
reflected in the trial balance, instead of reflecting the gross amount of this contra asset
account. Similarly, account 2105, Accumulated Amortization, did not capture the contra-
amount for Contributed Capital Amortization. In 2008, an accounting adjustment was made to
reallocate the accumulated amortization on contributed capital from sub account 1995 to
Contra Sub- Account 2105, Accumulated Amortization. This adjustment resulted in a credit of

$220,648 to account 1995, and a debit to sub-account 2105 for the same amount.

The Total Gross Assets on Table 2-17 reconciles to the amount in the Gross Distribution Asset

Table 2-13.

Inventory Adjustment: $977,791

Prior to 2008, WHSI’s accounting practice was to allocate all material purchases to account
1330, Inventories, until such time it was put into service. In 2008, WHSI amended their
accounting practice to allocate pole and transformer material to asset account 1830, Poles,
Towers, and Fixtures, and to account 1850, Transformers, in accordance with CICA Handbook

section 3031 — “Inventories” and the OEB Accounting Procedures Handbook.
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Subdivisions and New Services: $516,339

Driver: Customer Demand/Growth

The net subdivision capital additions for $516,339 were attributable to the following residential
developments within the WHSI service area

e Anderson St. Condo’s

e Forrestway Trail

e Southwood Estates Phase 2, 4

e Trillium Woods Phase 1,2

e Tiffany Homes Phase 1, 2

e lLansdowne Phases 2,9, 10

e Lansdowne Meadows

In 2008, 182 new services were connected among the 12 developments noted above.

New Commercial Services: $248,194

Driver : Customer Demand/Growth

In 2008, WHSI added 19 new commercial services that ranging in cost between per connection.
On an individual basis, these additions fell below the $50,000 threshold and the consolidated
amount has been provided for information purposes. In 2008, WHSI recognized the portion of
customer contributions for commercial service connections as an offset against account 1995,
Contributed Capital. Prior to 2008, new commercial services were recorded on a net basis

directly into the asset accounts.
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Beards Lane Rebuild: $233,359

Driver : Growth/Reliability

Beards Lane is a heavily industrialized section of Woodstock and located conveniently to supply
the new Toyota Automotive plant. Several new tier two suppliers located in the WHSI service
area to supply Toyota, putting the aging 27 Kv overhead system under stress. An entire re-build
to two-circuit 27 Kv was started this year that included transformer conversions. City approval
required the distribution plant be re-constructed in the same right-of-way as the existing

system.

Brock Street Rebuild and Conversion Phase 1: $231,120

Driver : Replacement/Reliability

The Brock street rebuild contributes to both the Graham street and downtown rebuild projects
by eliminating back-alley 4 Kv and supplying an underground loop feed to downtown business
locations. Several of these businesses also experienced voltage issues during times of peak

summer demand, and were essentially at end of life.

Equipment Replacements:  $210,151

Driver : Replacement/Reliability

Transformers and other equipment requiring replacement due to unexpected equipment

failures or damage accounted for $210,151. On an individual incident basis, these projects fell
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below the $50,000 threshold and the consolidated amount has provided for information

purposes.

Danger Pole Replacements: $140,199

Driver : Replacement/Reliability

Following a pole asset testing project, several poles were identified as requirement
replacement as soon as possible. These poles were replaced outside of an area-wide rebuilding
process. Ongoing pole replacements are budgeted on a going forward basis, however the

investment will typically follow asset replacement or voltage conversion initiatives.

Dundas & Wilson Alley Rebuild: $136,484

Driver : Replacement/Reliability

This replacement and expansion project of 4Kv overhead to 27 Kv underground was initiated by
a customer connection request. Aging 4 Kv assets including pole line and transformer
equipment was replaced and expanded to connect a new customer connection. Customer

connection costs are over and above this capital replacement cost.

Billing Software: $124,697

Driver : Replacement/Reliability
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On April 1, 2008 WHSI went live with their new Customer Information System. WHSI had
purchased additional modules which were offered at special incentive pricing that provided
functionality unavailable in the previous billing system, including electronic document
management, meter management, demand side management, and customer self-serve

functionalities.

Downtown Voltage Conversion — Phase 2: $116,490

Driver : Replacement/Reliability

Much of downtown Woodstock was supplied by aging 4 Kv distribution. With recent
development in the downtown area, power quality issues arise during times of summer peak
loading. Voltage conversion and transformer replacement to that of 27 Kv will ensure demand

and power quality requirements are maintained.

Graham Street Voltage Conversion: $112,567

Driver : Replacement/Reliability

In order to create a loop feed for the 27 Kv system supplying downtown Woodstock, conversion
of overhead to underground 27 Kv was initiated. This project completes an underground
conversion that was started several years ago with the intent of bringing 27 Kv south from

Devonshire Avenue.
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Seagrave-Chandaria Extension Phase 1: $106,496

Driver : Growth/Reliability
The City of Woodstock completed the extension of Seagrave Street, making way for WHSI to
complete a 27 Kv loop through the industrial park to improve system redundancy and

reliability.

Roof Replacement: $97,000

Driver: Replacement

WHSI’s corporate headquarters at 16 Graham Street, Woodstock, houses the office, garage, and
the main warehouse. The office building was constructed in 1961, and the garage and main
warehouse were completed shortly thereafter. Since that time, the roof had undergone regular
maintenance to patch and repair certain areas, but the time had come to replace the original
roof. In 2008, WHSI completed the first phase and replaced the roof in the garage and main
warehouse area. The main office building roof was planned to commence and be completed in

20089.

Interior Renovations: $84,380

Driver: Replacement

The linemen’s main washroom, shower and lunch area required a complete overall to replace

aging fixtures, tiles, and plumbing. This was completed in 2008 at a cost of $52,400.
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The results of testing conducted in 2007 revealed the presence of asbestos in WHSI’s office
building, which was subsequently removed. Removal costs were charged to account 5675,
General Maintenance expense. Following this process, work was required to restore ceilings
and other structural areas affected by the removal process. This was completed at a cost of

$31,975

MS3B — 4 Kv Substation Refurbishing Project: $56,488

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

In 2008, WHSI suffered the catastrophic loss of Municipal Substation number 5. During a 4 Kv to
27 Kv line fault, the main switching unit was damaged beyond repair and was subsequently
removed from service. Following a careful review of options available, the most cost effective
and timely means of replacing this 4 KV transformation asset proved to be the re-furbishing of

an unused 4 KV station located in the downtown core.

WHSI annually invests in the replacement of 4 KV assets through conversion to the more
efficient 27 KV system. Typically these conversions are planned, systematic and require
coordination to ensure adequate redundancy remains available during and after the
conversion. In the case of the MS 5 failure, a significant amount of 4 KV plant required
continued support to ensure adequate redundancy and voltage quality. Eliminate the station
entirely and we would potentially suffer voltage drop issues in the downtown core; convert to
27 KV and planned, necessary capital work would suffer. The decision was made to invest in
MS3B as a short term measure and voltage conversion will continue in this area to ultimately

eliminate 4 KV requirements.
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3 Office Tools, Measure-
Poles, OH UG Furniture Transpor- Shop & ment & Commun-
Towers & Conductors |UG Conductors [Trans- Buildings |& Computer [Computer [tation Stores |Garage Testing ication SCADA [Contributed
Project Description Total Project|Fixtures & Devices |Conduit |& Devices formers Services Meters & Fixtures |Equipment |[HW SW Equip Equp Equip Equip Equip Equip |Capital
1830 1835 1840 1845 1850 1855 1860 1908 1915 1920 1925 1930 1935 1940 1945 1955 1980 1995
Projects Above Materiality
Beards Lane Rebuild 570,690 529,435 20,099 1,572 19,583
Cedar Slopes Residential Rebuild and Conversio 468,196 11,712 13,988| 143,705 91,871 66,451 140,468
Universal Rd -Commerce Way Extension 215,611 150,936 5,307 21,881 37,487
Brock Street Rebuild and Conversion Phase 2 180,594 41,833 16,501 -8,140 75,523 37,041 17,201 636
Automated switching and Restoration 163,749 163,749
Building Roof Replacement 140,825 140,825
Inventory Adjustment 129,660 129,660
Interval Meters 122,767 122,767
Subdivisions and New Services 110,097 6,224 8,682 57,183 98,217 6,076 -66,285
Vehicle Replacement - 4 Pick Up Trucks 105,283 105,283
Danger pole replacements 94,290 46,326 27,824 128 9,968 10,045
LAN/Server hardware 87,737 87,737
Updates to Scada system 75,095 75,095
Generator 68,275 68,275
Seagrave Chandaria Extension Phase 2 66,449 -76 35,832 934 29,069 691
Workstation & printer replacements/additions 63,229 63,229
Finance software upgrades 49,666 49,666
Vehicle Disposal -50,514 -50,514
Contributed Capital adjustment -59,883 1,821 1,105 0 -474 1,842 910 -65,087
Projects Below Materiality

742 Pavey St 47,371 592 82 12,169 12,076 17,903 4,549
Downtown Conversion Phase 3 28,838 219 44 28,576
Billing software upgrades 23,495 23,495
Chairs, tables, blinds 18,231 18,231
CAP 290 - LANSDOWNE Extension 16,927 14,523 2,133 271
Misc shop, garage tools 14,339 14,339
U/G Vault Lid Maint 12,698 9,702 2,996
Garage Doors & Lighting 12,670 12,670
Pole/Duct Cleanup 12,631 231 114 1,584 1,865 8,838
LAN software upgrade 12,600 12,600
PDL Receiver & transmitter 10,878 10,878
Commercial Services 8,927 12,522 3,166 5,258 47,073 34,968 9,320 6,445 -109,825
Mobile reel & 1 Ton Hoist 8,764 8,764
CAP 224 - DELTATO WYE conversion 5,187 4,989 198
Phones & headsets 4,936 4,936
Equipment Replacements and Adjustments 4,088 35,689 6,582 12,714 7,489 -65,665 -26,117 33,397
Miscellaneous software upgrades 3,817 3,817
Total Capital Before CWIP $2,848,213 $1,009,511 $132,732| $205,097 $287,267| $236,918| $269,381| $299,179| $221,770| $18,231| $150,966| $89,577| $54,769| $8,764| $14,339 $10,878| $4,936|575,095| -5241,196
CWIP $87,708
TOTAL $2,935,921
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2009 Capital Projects:

Beards Lane Rebuild: $570,690

Driver: Growth/Replacement/Reliability

This activity completes the Beards Lane 27 Kv overhead, twin circuit rebuild in the Beards land
industrial area. New connection capacity exceeding 15 MW has been installed during 2008 and
2009. This project was required In order to be prepared for the eventual doubling of Toyota
supplier demands and new industrial customer connections, while upgrading end-of-life pole-

line assets in the area.

Cedar Slopes Phase 1 Residential Rebuild and Conversion: $468,196

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

Located in south central Woodstock, this subdivision is one of the oldest remaining 4 Kv
underground installations. Primary, secondary and transformation equipment were all replaced
and connected to the 27 Kv system. This involved primary pole replacement for supply and the
removal of all 4 Kv existing plant. A total of 100 single and duplex type homes were converted,
with an additional 68 homes prepared for the second phase of primary and transformer only

equipment replacement.

Universal Rd-Commerce Way Extension: $215,611

Driver: Customer Demand/Growth/Reliability
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This extension was required for a number of reasons, including the replacement of overhead
primary (existing under the 115 KV transmission lines) to that of underground, preparing a
connection to the new Commerce Way TS, and supporting the Beards Lane project by
completing a loop feed supply from an alternate feeder position. This plant was new 27 Kv

overhead with 1000 MCM underground road crossing supply.

Brock Street Rebuild and Conversion Phase 2: $180,594

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

This section of the downtown core was completed and included new underground 27 Kv

primary, switchgear and transformer replacements.

Automated Switching and Restoration: $163,749

Driver: Customer Demand/Growth

The majority of industrial activity within Woodstock supports the Just-In-Time and Dispatching
supplier requirements of the automotive sector. In order to continually improve our SAIDI
(Outage Duration performance) and meet the needs of manufacturing customers, WHSI
continues to expand on the implementation of an automated restoration program. Four
automated Load Break switching units were installed in 2009 and this program will continue to

be developed once the new Commerce Way TS station is energized by 2012.
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Office Roof Replacement: _ $140,825

Driver: Replacement

WHSI’s corporate headquarters at 16 Graham Street, Woodstock, houses the office, garage, and
the main warehouse. Further to the 2008 additions, the second phase of the roof replacement

for main office building area was completed in 2009.

Inventory Adjustment: $129,660

A year end physical inventory count resulted in the re-allocation of meter capital that was
previously included in account 1330, Inventories. The total amount of this reallocation was

$129,660

Interval Meters: $122,767

Driver: Replacement

WHSI purchased a quantity of interval meters and wireless antennas to support the interval

meter installation and replacement.

Subdivisions and New Services: $110,097

Driver: Customer Demand/Growth

The net subdivision capital additions for $ 110,097 were attributable to the following

residential developments within the WHSI service area



© 00 N oo o b~ W N P

=
o

11
12

13

14
15
16

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.
EB-2010-0145

Exhibit 2

Tab 2

Schedule 3

Page 33 of 57

Filed: October 28, 2010

e Southwood Estates Phase 2, 4
e Trillium Woods Phase 1,2

e Tiffany Homes Phase 1, 2

e lansdowne Phases 2,9, 10,11
e Lansdowne Meadows

e \Woodstock Towers

In 2009, 228 new services were connected among the 12 developments noted above. Of

these 228 new services, 118 are attributable to Woodstock Towers, a 119 unit apartment

building .

Vehicle Replacement : $105,283

Driver: Replacement

A 2000 GMC mini van used exclusively for locating purposes had surpassed its useful life, and in
recent years incurred increasing maintenance and repair costs. Additionally, a 1994 Chevy

pickup, a 1995 GMC van, and a 1999 Mazda pickup, had reached the end of their useful lives.

A tender to replace these vehicles was issued with a multi-purpose application in mind. In the
past, trucks ranged in size from small to full size, to passenger van, with the result of each
having a specific purpose and dedicated user. To streamline and broaden vehicle usage, one
2009 Chevy Express Cargo Van was purchased to replace the locating vehicle, along with three
2009 Chevy full size, extended cab pick-up trucks. As such, all three vehicles will handle the
same payload and can be used interchangeably, while providing a means of use for those who

need to attend out-of-town business related meetings.
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The savings derived by this approach include a reduction in chargeable mileage (personal use of
vehicles for out-of-town meetings reduced), greater availability to fleet inventory and the

avoidance of a dedicated ‘people mover’ type vehicle.

Vehicle Disposals: ($50,514)

Driver: Replacement

In 2009, fully depreciated vehicles consisting of a 1995 GMC Van, 1994 Chevy Pickup, 1999
Mazda Pickup, and 2000 GMC Van were retired from the fleet and the total purchase price of
$50,514 removed from account 1930 Transportation Equipment, and account 2105

Accumulated Amortization.

Danger Pole Replacements: $94,290

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

WHSI continued it’s ongoing replacement of pole assets noted as being in poor condition

during the previous pole testing period.

LAN/Server Hardware: S 87,737

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

WHSI initiated a multi-year virtualization project in 2009 as described further in Tab 3 of this
Exhibit, and included the 2009 purchase of a Storage Area Network (SAN) and switches, a
server class UPS, an enterprise physical server and an IT administration server, at a total cost
of $80,837. A new SPAM filter appliance, ADSL Modem and ISP Router were also purchased for

$6,900 to ensure corporate security and efficiency.
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SCADA System Upgrades: _ $75,095

Driver : Replacement/Reliability

Additions to the SCADA system provided the communication and hardware backbone to
facilitate the 900 Mhz wireless network with the new G&W Viper automated switches. This
includes radio equipment and DNP protocol to allow communication with PLC controllers and
the IED, for design and control capability to create links between remote switches and the

front-end SCADA system.

Rooftop Generator Installation: $68,275

Driver: Reliability

As part of WHSI’s broader efforts in Emergency Preparedness and Disaster Recovery planning,
a natural-gas powered rooftop-generator was installed on WHSI’s office building at 15 Graham
Street. This device was sized to ensure that mission-critical operations could continue in the
event of a long-term electricity outage and to enable WHSI to provide emergency services to
WHSI customers. The generator provides electricity for emergency and task lighting, and
electrical service to the operations control room, IT / server room, main office, and telephone

systems.

Seagrave-Chandaria Extension Phase 2: $66,449

Driver: Growth/Reliability

The City of Woodstock completed the extension of Seagrave Street, making way for WHSI to
complete a 27 Kv loop through the industrial park to provided added redundancy to the service

area.
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Workstation and Printer Replacements, Additions: $63,229

Driver : Replacement
A total of 10 workstations, 4 tablets, and 2 printers were purchased in 2009 as part of WHSI’s
IT asset management and replacement program. The tablet devices were purchased to support

the use of technology applications in the field for meter and line department staff.

Finance Software: $49,666

Driver: Replacement

WHSI purchased a new version of Microsoft Dynamics, its current financial information system,
in order to accommodate future IFRS requirements and to facilitate current and future
integrations with other information systems including the CIS Billing, Work Estimate, and GIS
systems. The move to the newer licensing model provided upgrades not available in the
current version that would also improve internal business processes, reporting and account

reconciliation within existing Microsoft Dynamics financial modules.

Contributed capital adjustment ($59,883)

An adjustment of (559,883) was recorded in 2009 to recognize the portion of contributed
capital for three commercial new commercial services that were added in 2008.

In 2008, the net amount of $248,194 for new commercial services did not recognize these
capital contributions, as the amounts were included in account 2210, Current Portion of

Customer Deposits as a deposit.

Construction Work in Progress: $87,708

Driver: Customer Demand
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Bower Hill Distribution Re-Build:

The Bower Hill project was initiated by the need to temporarily supply north and south
Woodstock during the Transmission re-enforcement project, now underway by Hydro One
Networks. Due to supply constraints from the East (Burlington TS) and the removal of the 115
Kv system from London during transmission tower replacement, WHSI and Hydro One
constructed a double-circuit supply along Bower Hill and extending along Karn Avenue. These
circuits terminated at the temporary Woodstock MUS 115/27 KV substation. Prior to the
conversion Bower Hill was 4kv and is now supplied by 28 kv. The existing Woodstock TS will
eventually be de-commissioned and closed and a new station constructed on the same
property as the Karn Road TS. During planning stages, WHSI and Hydro One agreed that the
long-term advantage of rebuilding Bower Hill with the capacity for three feeders is the ability to
source up to three feeders back into the City. The total estimated cost of this project is
$405,000 and funded through a capital contribution by Hydro One Networks. The net project
cost to December 31, 2009 was $125,052, or gross costs of $ 391,542 less interim payments of

$266,490. This project is expected to be complete in 2010.

Woodstock General Hospital:

As part of their power redundancy strategy for the new Woodstock General Hospital, a request
for dual 27.6 KV supply feeders was made to WHSI. The existing infrastructure included one
only, 27.6 feeder supply and a second point of supply required a significant underground
expansion. The total estimated cost of this project is $505,000 and funded through a capital
contribution by Woodstock General Hospital. The net project cost to December 31, 2009 was
$46,997, or gross costs of S 421,854 less interim payments of $374,857. This project was
completed in September 2010.

Other:
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The total credit offset of $84,341 represents the net amount over-contributed for four smaller

projects that were still in progress as of December 31, 2009:

Capital job # 278 ($6,395)

Capital job # 288 ($9,646)

Capital job # 308 ($30,499)

Capital job # 322 ($37,465)
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Measure- Hydro
Distn Stn |Poles, OH Cond- UG Cond- Tools, Shop |ment & |Commun- One TS-
Total |Equip Pr |Towers & |uctors & (UG uctors & [Trans- Buildings & |Office Furn |Computer |Computer |Stores (& Garage |[Testing |[ication Misc [Contributed|Contribut
Project Description Project |<50kW |Fixtures |Devices |Conduit |Devices |formers |Services |Meters Fixtures & Equip HW SW Equp |[Equip Equip Equip Equip [Capital ed Capital |CWIP
1820 1830 1835 1840 1845 1850 1855 1860 1908 1915 1920 1925 1935 1940 1945 1955 1960 1995 1996 1995
Hydro One Substation - Capital Contribution 2,500,000 2,500,000
Karn Pavey, Bee Conversion 591,390 16,003| 15,254 177,135| 117,762| 136,189| 87,745 41,302
Subdivisions and New Services 373,896 10,441 13,922 313,234| 149,656 208,823| 113,350 -435,531
Lansdowne MS Extension 194,990 99,389 57,508 2,525 1,763| 24,352 9,452
Danger Pole Replacements 187,616 89,270 49,135 6,927 763| 26,881 14,641
MS11 & 4KV - Substation Elimination 157,656 24,902 24,881 22,006 7,427 6,051 33,254 23,281 15,854
Workstations, servers & printers 140,000 140,000
Norwich @ Parkinson Extension 111,343 39,254| 19,454| 5,802 1,825 14,352| 30,656
Cedar Slopes Conversion Phase 2 110,901 13,254 31,827| 58,718 7,102]
Equipment Replacements 100,000 14,000 14,000 14,000 14,000{ 28,000 9,336 6,664
Long Term Load Transfer Elimination on Dundas St 84,486 36,006 31,868 2,525 861 6,814 3,387 3,025
Office Building Renovations 79,000 79,000
Billing, LAN & Misc Software 75,832 75,832
GS>50 Meter Retrofits 75,000 75,000
Woodstock General Hospital - Athlone Ave 67,864 39,281 15,654 6,827 3,051 3,051
Nova Scotia 4 to 28 KV Conversion 39,815 561 1,725 35,003 2,525
Devonshire Extension 35,474 25,254 10,220
Office Furniture & Equipment 34,550 34,550
Underground Vault Lid Betterment 33,849 3,214 25,254 2,631 2,751
Pole / Duct Clean up 25,064 1,825 1,183 2,851 2,951 16,254
Racking & Measuring Tools 25,000 25,000
Shop and Garage Tools 25,000 25,000
Dranetz Equipment 10,000 10,000
Telephone Equipment 1,890 1,890
Lunchroom Appliances 1,420 1,420
CWIP -87,708 -$87,708|
Total 2010 Capital Expenditures $4,994,329] $24,902| $395,605] $250,203] $556,283] $357,489| $575,018] $323,530] $141,845 $79,000]  $34,550] $140,000 $75,832$25,000 $25,0000 $10,000] $1,890$1,420] -$435,531]$2,500,000| -$87,708
*Smart Meter Capital - added to 2010 FA Schedule 1,442,731 $1,384,779 $10,697 $47,255
Total Capital per FA Continuity Schedule $6,437,060| $24,902| $395,605 $250,203($556,283| $357,489|$575,018| $323,530| $1,526,624 $79,000 $34,550 $150,698)  $123,087|$25,000 $25,000,  $10,000 $1,890| $1,420  -$435,531|$2,500,000( -$87,708

2
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2010 Capital Projects

Capital Contribution for Commerce Way TS : $2,500,000

Driver: Reliability/Growth

In 2007, Hydro One Networks Inc. (HONI) and WHSI began discussions surrounding joint
concerns over current and future reliability and capacity issues, and the construction of a new

transformer station to resolve these concerns.

A Letter Agreement between WHSI and HONI regarding a new Transformer Station for WHSI
and HONI was signed in May 2008, and a deposit of $169,500 ($150,000 plus 8%PST and 5%
GST) provided to HONI by WHSI.

The Project Scope

e Hydro One will design, construct, own and operate a new 50/83 MVA, 115/27.6 kV DESN to be
located on Commerce Way in the eastern part of the city of Woodstock

e New double circuit 115 kV line from Woodstock TS to the tapping point for Commerce Way TS
to be built on the existing B8W right-of-way.

e Ready for Service Date: December 31, 2011

HONI conducted an economic evaluation in February, 2009 based on load forecast and
projected transmission and station construction costs. The economic evaluation results
determined that a capital contribution requirement of $4.1 Million, plus taxes, was to be

provided to HONI by WHSI.
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In May 2009, HONI and WHSI completed a Capital Cost Recovery Agreement (CCRA) to

construct a new 27.6 Kv substation, to be known as the “Commerce Way TS”.

In the November 6, 2009 OEB Decision and Order for EB-2009-0079, HONI received OEB
approval to begin construction of the new Commerce Way TS, located in south-east
Woodstock, with a planned commissioning date of December 2011. A detailed description of
the project is attached as Appendix A or can be view at:

http://www.rds.oeb.gov.on.ca/webdrawer/webdrawer.dll/webdrawer/rec/158424/view/dec o

rder Honi Woodstock 20091106.pdf.PDF

HONI and WHSI agreed to payment terms for the Total Capital Contribution of $4.1Million plus

taxes in the following stages:

e $2.5M (plus taxes) on signing the CCRA (Connection Cost Recovery Agreement)

e 50% of the balance of $1.6M (plus taxes) payable when actual work starts on the TS (a
shovel is put in the ground)

e 50% of the balance of $1.6M (plus taxes) payable when the TS is ready to be put in

service

Home Subdivision 4 KV Conversion Phase 1 (Karn, Pavey, Bee Conversion): $591,390

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

This subdivision is the oldest remaining development on 4 KV underground distribution in
WHSI’s service area. Approximately 120 residential lots and several commercial buildings will be
converted in this first phase utilizing directional boring for both primary and secondary

conductors. In addition, WHSI typically replaces meter base equipment during construction.


http://www.rds.oeb.gov.on.ca/webdrawer/webdrawer.dll/webdrawer/rec/158424/view/dec_order_Honi_Woodstock_20091106.pdf.PDF�
http://www.rds.oeb.gov.on.ca/webdrawer/webdrawer.dll/webdrawer/rec/158424/view/dec_order_Honi_Woodstock_20091106.pdf.PDF�
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Older meter base equipment becomes brittle and unpredictable when replacing meters, and

often poses a safety threat to WHSI staff and contractor employees.

Subdivisions and New Services: $373,896

Driver: Customer Demand/Growth

The forecast costs for new subdivision developments have been determined using WHSI
economic evaluation model in accordance with the requirements of the OEB Distribution
System Code. The model encompasses WHSI’s forecasted capital and expenses, the Developers
preliminary costs and forecast connection horizon, and current distribution and tax rates to
determine a net present value, deposit requirement, and relative contributions required by the
developer and by WHSI. Detailed information on WHSI’s procedure for economic evaluations is

available in Tab 3 of this exhibit.

Through discussions with area developers, customers, and municipal representatives, WHSI has
forecast 236 new residential services, and 17 additions or upgrades to commercial services in
2010. Forecast subdivision and residential additions are attributable to the following
residential developments within the WHSI service area

e Southwood Estates Phase 4, 5

e Trillium Woods Phase 1,2,3

e Tiffany Homes Phase 1, 2

e lansdowne Phases 10,11

e Woodstock Towers

e Boot Hill

e Woodstock Apartments

e Others
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Landsdowne M3 Extension: $194,990

Driver: Regulatory

This extension was required to eliminate LTLT customer connections located at the north-
eastern end of the City and to supply power to a new County of Oxford waste pumping station.
This project includes 22 composite type poles and required wet location and flood proof

engineering studies.

Pole Replacement: $187,616

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

WHSI maintains over 4200 primarily wood poles of varying ages and sizes. Pole integrity testing
was completed in 2005/2006 and a second three-year inspection and testing process began in
2010. Based on the initial testing in 2005, WHSI anticipates further pole replacement activity
will be necessary. The older north section of the City in particular will require an aggressive pole

replacement program which will include the conversion of 4 KV distribution to that of 27 KV.

4 kv Substation MS 11 and 4 kv Asset Removal:  $157,656

Driver: Replacement

Enabled ultimately by the conversion of Home Subdivision (noted above) and the Parkinson 4
kv conversion, WHSI plans to to eliminate its 4 kv station MS11 late in 2010 or early 2011. This

station is 10 percent loaded and is nearing end of life.
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Workstations, Servers and Printers: $140,000

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

As part of WHSI’s IT asset management strategy, 11 workstations and 1 tablet and are planned

for replacement in 2010 for the amount of $30,090.

A second SAN is budgeted for 2010 in the amount of $59,100, in addition to three enterprise
physical servers for $29,370 as part of WHSI’s virtualization strategy. A number of legacy
servers will be coming off warranty in 2010 and be converted through a “physical to virtual”

process.

In support of a corporate-wide document management initiative, the purchase of 2
Scanner/Printer/Photocopiers and 1 workstation printer for $ 12,140 will replace aging
photocopier/scanners and printers in two central locations as well as a ten-year old colour

printer.

Norwich at Parkinson Extension: $111,343

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

A four pole extension, secondary service conductor transfer and backyard 4 kv removal are
necessary to complete an earlier 4 kv underground subdivision conversion. In addition, this
extension will complete a 27 KV overhead circuit and connect a loop to a second 27 KV supply

located to the north.

Cedar Slopes Conversion Phase 2 Completion: $110,901
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Driver: Replacement/Reliability

This phase completes the conversion of the Cedar Slopes subdivision from 4 kv to 27 kv. This
section required the replacement of primary duct and conductor and transformer equipment.
Conversion of the final phase triggers the need (in part) of the Norwich/Parkinson extension
project. Aging 4 kv overhead equipment is at end of life, is located in a backyard setting and will

soon pose a safety risk.

Equipment Replacements: $100,000

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

Each year, WHSI identifies equipment that has reached end of life. Examples include LDC owned
transformation equipment or primary/secondary conductors that warrant replacement rather
than repair. This provision for unexpected equipment failure provides the latitude to invest in

the long term replacement of assets as opposed to maintenance of plant that is at end of life.

LTLT Elim-Dundas:  $84,486

Driver: Regulatory

To meet the OEB requirement of Long Term Load Transfer account elimination, WHSI has one
remaining section of the City which continues to be supplied by Hydro One source power.
Located in the central east section of the City, we plan to begin the process of joint use and

infrastructure installation to ensure the 2012 deadline is met.
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Office Building Renovations : $79,000

Driver: Replacement

Refurbishments to WHSI’ office building continue in 2010 with the ceiling tile replacement and
renovations in the meter shop ($20,000) required after the asbestos removal in 2008 ,
replacement of the 2" storey original windows with energy efficient windows ($30,000),
lunchroom renovations($7,000), and final costs for the roof top generator installed in 2009
(57,000). Lastly, the air-conditioner/compressor failed during the summer heatwave in 2010,

requiring complete replacement at a cost of ($15,000).

Billing, LAN, Miscellaneous Software: $75,832

Driver: Replacement, Regulatory

Anticipated billing and telephone call recording software costs of $21,700 are forecast in order

to meet new and proposed regulatory requirements, including customer service amendments.

LAN/Infrastructure upgrades include Network monitoring software, exchange mail, VMWare
and Windows Enterprise Server Operation System, and Backup Exec server upgrades at a total

cost of $32,900.

Customizations for Dynamics GP in conjunction with the rollout of GP 10 are planned including
web-based timesheet entry programs, report-writing and data import programs, which will
improve efficiency, productivity, and the ability to interface with other operating programs.
Other software, including an ESRI import module to support ongoing transfer of ESRI data into
the modeling software, are also planned for 2010. The total cost for these miscellaneous

software items is forecast to be $21,232.
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GS>50 Meter Retrofits $ 75,000

Driver: Replacement

Continuation of Meter Retrofits for the GS>50 rate class continues into 2010.

Hospital Expansion: $67,864

Driver: Customer Demand/Growth

To accommodate a redundant 27 KV feeder request made in 2009, WHSI began construction of
a dual feed, 600 amp supply for the new facility planned in the south section of the City. The
majority of this project was supported through developer capital contribution, however final
connection to the north feeders will be supported by WHSI, including final 1000 MCM

conductor and overhead switching equipment.

Nova Scotia 4 kv to 27 kv Conversion: $39,815

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

The hospital expansion project helped facilitate the conversion of a small 4 KV development to
that of 27 KV. Existing conductors are rated for 27 KV and this project is simply the replacement
of transformation equipment and switchgear. This conversion will help facilitate the elimination

of 4 KV substation MS10 in future years.

Devonshire Extension: $35,474

Driver: Replacement/Reliability
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WHSI service territory on Devonshire east lies about three pole spans beyond the last pole. To
avoid adding new LTLT connections, we need to complete our distribution system to our
licensed demarcation point. This project will also allow connection and a new open point to the

Hydro One M4 feeder.

U/G Vault Lid Replacement: $33,849

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

Primary and secondary conductor running through or terminating at junction boxes located in
public walkways or drives attract damage from plowing equipment and other motorized traffic.
To ensure public safety is maintained, WHSI is investing in the replacement and repair of these

vaults over the next several years.

Pole/Duct Improvements: $25,064

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

Annual pole inspections typically reveal pole guarding and conduit damage that may lead to
public and worker safety risk. Crews annually inspect and replace protective pole mounted
equipment to ensure we keep pace with random and accidental damage resulting from collision

or vandalism.
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Tools, Measure-[Commu Hydro
Poles, OH Cond- UG Cond- Buildings |Office Transpor Shop & ment& |n- Contribut|One TS-
Total |Towers & |uctors & uctors & Trans- & Furn & [Comput [Comput [tation |Stores Garage Testing |ication ed Contribut
Project Description Project |Fixtures [Devices UG Conduit [Devices formers |Services [Meters Fixtures |[Equip |erHW |erSW |Equip Equp Equip Equip Equip SCADA [Capital [ed Capital
1830 1835 1840 1845 1850 1855 1860 1908 1915 1920 1925 1930 1935 1940 1945 1955 1980 1995 1996
Hydro One Substation - Capital Contribution 1,600,000 1,600,000
2009 Smart Meter Capital (add to rate base 2011) 1,442,731 1,384,779 10,697 | 47,255
Parkinson Rd OH 28KV rebuild Baird to Hwy 4 666,153| 349,780 142,868 7,845 71,312 63,824 22,168 8,356
Double bucket truck 450,000 450,000
Karn Pavey, Bee Conversion Phase 2 434,853 16,690 15,112 125,668 113,780 137,692 18,000 7,911
Subdivisions and New Services 380,233 10,618 14,157 318,544 152,193 212,362 115,272 -442,913
Commerce Way TS Wholesale Metering 325,426 228,892 96,534
Commerce Way Universal to County Rd 34 233,787 136,672 80,114 3,578 3,978 7,134 2,311
Danger Pole Replacements 170,730 75,892 44,224 7,656 756 27,668 14,534
Peripherals, servers, printers, workstations 140,000 140,000
Equipment Replacements 100,459 11,464 3,222 3,222 3,222 56,445 8,694 14,190
Fencing, windows, building security 90,000 90,000
Billing, engineering, LAN & Misc Software 60,000 60,000
Forklift 40,000 40,000
UG Vault Lid Refurbishment 33,615 3,178 25,112 2,602 2,722
Ergonomic and other office equipment 25,000 25,000
Pole / Duct Refurbishments 24,844 1,811 1,176 2,822 2,922 16,112
Misc shop & garage tools & equipment 20,000 20,000
Telephone modular replacement 20,000 20,000
2 SCADA radio units 20,000 20,000
Transformer dissipation tester 10,000 10,000
Vehicle Disposal -178,962 -178,962
Total 2010 Capital Expenditures $6,108,869| $602,927| $529,765| $472,513 $373,275| $507,727|$199,814| $1,511,770| $90,000| $25,000($150,697|$107,255| $271,038| $40,000|  $20,000{ $10,000| $20,000|$20,000| -$442,913[$1,600,000
*Smart Meter Capital - added to 2010 FA Schedule -1,442,731 (1,384,779) (10,697)| (47,255)
Total Capital per FA Continuity Schedule $4,666,138| $602,927| $529,765| $472,513 $373,275| $507,727|$199,814| $126,991| $90,000| $25,000{$140,000| $60,000| $271,038| $40,000| $20,000f $10,000| $20,000|$20,000| -$442,913($1,600,000
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2011 Capital Projects

Capital Contribution for Commerce Way TS : $1,600,000

Driver: Reliability/Growth

In accordance with the payment terms agreed to in the Capital Cost Recovery Agreement
between HONI and WHSI, WHSI will pay the last two installments of the total capital

contribution to HONI in 2011, namely,

e 50% of the balance of $1.6M (plus taxes) payable when actual work starts on the TS (a
shovel is put in the ground)
e 50% of the balance of $1.6M (plus taxes) payable when the TS is ready to be put in
service
The expectations are that the first installment of $1.6 million would be paid in May 2011, and

the final installment of $1.6 million would be paid in December 2011.

2009 Smart Meter Capital:  $1,442,731

Driver: Regulatory

As discussed further in Exhibit 9, WHSI is proposing to transfer all smart meter capital as of
December 31, 2009 into the regular asset accounts. This amount includes $1,384,779 for
installed smart meters to be allocated to account 1860, Meters, smart meter computer
hardware for $10,697, to be allocated to account 1920, Computer Hardware, and smart meter

software for $47,255, to be allocated to account 1925, Computer Software.
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County Road 4 Extension: $666,153

Driver: Reliability/Growth

WHSI does not own distribution infrastructure along County road 4 between Parkinson Road
and Dundas Street (highway 2). Hydro One and WHSI are presently in the process of
constructing the new 115/27 kv Commerce Way Transmission Station in 2011. To facilitate
connection to this new station and complete loop supply between the Woodstock M3, M6 and
the new Commerce TS feeders, this section of distribution plant is necessary. In addition, this
section of line will help eliminate LTLT customers located on the north section of county road 4

and will support the Dundas LTLT elimination project.

Transportation Equipment  $450,000

Driver: Replacement

A 1997 International Bucket Truck, fitted with a 2001 International Bucker Aerial Device is at
the end of it’s useful life. Increasing repair costs has created the need to replace this vehicle
with an 85’ Double Bucket truck. This is a replacement of an existing truck which will provide
additional functionality and increased efficiency. No incremental additions to the vehicle fleet

will result from this purchase.

Vehicle Disposal: ($178,692)

Driver: Replacement

The gross cost and accumulated depreciation of $178,692 for the fully depreciated 1997
International Bucket Truck and 2001 International Bucker Aerial Device will be removed from
account 1930 Transportation Equipment, and account 2105 Accumulated Amortization in 2011.
This entry will coincide with the date the vehicle is taken out of service in 2011, either by trade-

in or sale of the vehicle.
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Home Subdivision 4 KV Conversion Phase 2 (Karn, Pavey, Bee Conversion): $434,853

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

Primary voltage conversion of approximately 130 residential and several commercial buildings.
This final phase will involve primary conductor/duct and transformer changes and includes the

removal and restoration of underground transformer equipment.

Subdivisions and New Services: $380,233

Driver: Customer Demand/Growth

The forecast costs for new subdivision developments have been determined using WHSI
economic evaluation model in accordance with the requirements of the OEB Distribution
System Code. Detailed information on WHSI’s procedure for economic evaluations is available

in Tab 3 of this exhibit.

Through discussions with area developers, customers, and municipal representatives, WHSI has
forecast 240 new residential services, and 24 additions or upgrades to commercial services in
2011.  Forecast subdivision and residential additions are attributable to the following
residential developments within the WHSI service area

e Southwood Estates Phase 4, 5

e Trillium Woods Phase 1,2,3

e Tiffany Homes Phase 1, 2

e lansdowne Phases 10,11

e Boot Hill

e Woodstock Apartments

e Earth Park Condo’s

e Others



© 00 N oo 0o b~ W

10
11
12
13
14
15

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24
25
26

Woodstock Hydro Services Inc.
EB-2010-0145

Exhibit 2

Tab 2

Schedule 3

Page 53 of 57

Filed: October 28, 2010

Commerce Way TS Wholesale Metering:  $325,426

Driver: Reliability/Growth

IESO wholesale metering and physical egress from the new Commerce Way TS is not part of the
Commerce Way TS scope with Hydro One Networks. As noted within the CCRA document,
Woodstock Hydro is responsible for primary metering equipment, registration, calibration and
physical duct and conductor installation from the load side of the breaker to the LDC

connection point.

Final metering equipment is yet to be determined, however Woodstock Hydro is committed to

four feeder points from the new station. We hope to install at least three connection points

initially to supply service and back feed to the existing Woodstock TS station.

Commerce Way Universal to County Rd 4: $233,787

Driver: Reliability/Growth

The new Commerce Way TS is located in the Commerce Way development park (located in
south-east Woodstock). Planned industrial and large commercial development is underway,
however distribution plant does not exist on Commerce Way beyond Universal Drive. This
extension will complete the 27 KV overhead line and eventually carry a new circuit from

Commerce Way TS by late 2011.

Pole Replacement: $170,730

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

Woodstock Hydro maintains over 4200 primarily wood poles of varying ages and sizes. Pole

integrity testing was completed in 2005/2006 and a second three year inspection and testing
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process began in 2010. Based on the initial testing in 2005, we anticipate further pole
replacement activity will be necessary. The older north section of the City in particular will
require an aggressive pole replacement program which will include the conversion of 4 KV

distribution to that of 27 KV.

Workstations, Servers and Printers: $140,000

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

As part of WHSI’s IT asset management strategy, 16 workstations and 1 tablet and are planned

for purchase or replacement in 2011 for the amount of $50,500.
Replacement and purchase of LAN/Server equipment includes the replacement of SCADA
servers , switches, and firewall appliance. New purchases for a wireless network hub and tape

devices area also budgeted in the amount of $67,500

Printers and other peripheral devices are budgeted for purchase or replacement in the

amount of $22,000 for 2011.

Equipment Replacements: $100,459

Driver: Replacement/Reliability/Customer Demand

Each year, WHSI identifies equipment that has reached end of life. Examples include LDC owned
transformation equipment or primary/secondary conductors that warrant replacement rather
than repair. This account is invaluable during times of unexpected equipment failure and
provides the latitude to invest in the long term replacement of assets as opposed to

maintenance of plant that is at end of life.
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Building Improvements: $90,000

Driver: Replacement

Parking lot security was identified as an increasing problem after one employee was robbed at
knifepoint during regular hours and several incidents of unauthorized trespassing and parking
after hours resulted in damage to WHSI vehicles and property. Installation of parking lot
security fencing, monitoring equipment, and controlled accessibility will address the identified

security risks.

Renovations to the main office area will provide greater access in accordance with The
Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005 and the Accessibility Standards for
Customer Service, Ontario Regulation 429/07. Planned changes include remodeling the front
counter area to multiple height levels to accommodate customers requiring seating level

height, and the installation of automatic, wheelchair accessible door openers.

Computer Software: $60,000

Driver: Replacement/Reliability

WHSI has made significant investments in software technology resulting in lower forecasted
needs for incremental software purchase in the coming years. Budgeted purchases or upgrades
include LAN/Infrastructure $30,000. Office Productivity software and customizations for

Finance, Billing, and Engineering software have been budgeted for $30,000 for 2011.

Stores Equipment: $40,000

Driver : Replacement
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The 2009 consolidation of 2 offsite storage facilities down to one offsite facility has increased
the need to provide safe, reliable motorized equipment to handle large inventory items. WHSI
has included $40,000 in the 2011 Test Year capital to replace the 1997 Hyster lift-truck

currently in service.

U/G Vault Lid Replacement: $33,615

Driver : Replacement/Reliability

Primary and secondary conductor running through or terminating at junction boxes located in
public walkways or drives attract damage from plowing equipment and other motorized traffic.
To ensure public safety is maintained, WHSI is investing in the replacement and repair of these

vaults over the next several years.

Other Equipment: $30,000

Driver : Replacement

WHSI has budgeted $20,000 to purchase tools, shop and garage equipment and $10,000 for a
transformer dissipation tester.

Office Furniture and Equipment $25,000

Driver: Replacement

A budget of $25,000 has been established to purchase ergonomic equipment, workstations,

chairs, and storage cabinets in 2011.
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Pole/Duct Improvements: $24,844

Driver : Replacement/Reliability

Annual pole inspections typically reveal pole guarding and conduit damage that may lead to
public and worker safety risk. Crews annually inspect and replace protective pole mounted
equipment to ensure we keep pace with random and accidental damage resulting from collision

or vandalism.

Communication Equipment: $20,000

Driver: Replacement/Regulatory

WHSI’s current telephone system is more than ten years old, no longer covered by warranty,
and has reached the end of its useful life. A new telephone system in 2011 will provide a dual
purpose, and that is to ensure reliability of the primary communication system and to
continue to fulfill regulatory requirements for SQIl reporting and accommodate recording of

telephone confirmations as per the OEB customer service amendments.

SCADA: $20,000

Driver : Replacement

WHSI has budgeted $20,000 to purchase 2 SCADA radio units in 2010.
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Table 2-21 - Reconciliation and Variance Analysis on Accumulated Amortization

Variance
Variance 2006 Variance 2010 Bridge Variance
Variance Board Variance Variance 2009 to Year to 2011 Test
2006 Board 2006 2006 Actuals | Approved to 2007 to 2008 to 2009 2008 Bridge Year 2009 Test Year t0 2010
Description Approved [2005 Actuals| Actuals to 2005 2006 Actuals | 2007 Actuals [2006 Actuals|[2008 Actuals |2007 Actuals| Actuals Actuals 2010 Actuals 2011 Bridge
Land & Buildings
1805 Land 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 of 0 of 0 of 0 0
1808 Buildings 25,817 37,013 44,594 7,581 18,777 52,175 7,581 59,756 7581 67,337 7,581 74,919 7,581 82,500 7,581
1810 Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 of 0 of 0 of 0 0
1905 Land 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 of 0 of 0 of 0 0
1906 Land Rights 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 of 0 of 0 of 0 0
25,817 37,013 44,594 7,581 18,777 52,175 7,581 59,756 7,581 67,337 7,581 74,919 7,581 82,500 7,581
Distribution Station Equipment
1815 Transformer Station Equipment >50 kV 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 of 0 of 0 of 0 0
1820 Substation Equipment 119,125 165,842 196,425 30,583 77,300 227,009 30,583 259,475 32,466 r 291,941 32,466 r 324,823 32,881 r 358,119 33,296
1825 Storage Battery Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 of 0 of 0 of 0 0
119,125 165,842 196,425 30,583 77,300 227,009 30,583 259,475 32,466 291,941 32,466 324,823 32,881 358,119 33,296
Poles & Wires
1830 Poles, Towers & Fixtures 1,046,264 1,498,359 1,820,010 321,652 773,746 2,148,193 328,183 2,487,567 339,373 r 2,865,963 378,396 r 3,248,629 382,666 r 3,645,323 396,693
1835 OH Conductors & Devices 505,957 735,223 892,731 157,507 386,774 1,051,372 158,641 1,217,294 165,922 r 1,387,094 169,800 r 1,560,423 173,330 r 1,746,947 186,523
1840 UG Conduit 366,937 549,208 682,150 132,943 315,213 829,918 147,768 1,000,395 170,477 r 1,170,238 169,843 r 1,330,746 160,508 r 1,508,444 177,699
1845 UG Conductors & Devices 659,090 957,241 1,161,565 204,324 502,475 1,376,221 214,655 1,623,042 246,821 r 1,863,562 240,520 r 2,070,042 206,480 r 2,284,323 214,280
2,578,248 3,740,031 4,556,457 816,426 1,978,209 5,405,704 849,247 6,328,297 922,593 7,286,857 958,559 8,209,841 922,984 9,185,037 975,196
Line Transformers
1850 Line Transformers 503,051 762,681 953,641 190,960 450,589 1,169,369 215,728 1,430,019 260,651 r 1,737,080 307,061 r 2,047,745 310,665 r 2,375,464 327,719
503,051 762,681 953,641 190,960 450,589 1,169,369 215,728 1,430,019 260,651 1,737,080 307,061 2,047,745 310,665 2,375,464 327,719
Services and Meters
1855 Services (OH & UG) 49,619 104,733 150,999 46,266 101,380 211,162 60,163 292,180 81,018 r 383,974 91,793 r 482,237 98,264 r 590,968 108,731
1860 Meters 884,720 1,288,576] 1,568,054 279,477 683,334 1,864,153 296,099 2,161,033 296,879 r 2,449,859 288,826 r 2,732,333 282,474 r 3,021,152 288,820
934,339 1,393,310 1,719,053 325,743 784,714 2,075,316 356,262 2,453,213 377,897 2,833,832 380,619 3,214,570 380,738 3,612,121 397,550
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Variance
Variance 2006 Variance 2010 Bridge Variance
Variance Board Variance Variance 2009 to Year to 2011 Test
2006 Board 2006 2006 Actuals | Approved to 2007 to 2008 to 2009 2008 Bridge Year 2009 Test Year to 2010
Description Approved |2005 Actuals| Actuals to 2005 2006 Actuals | 2007 Actuals |2006 Actuals|2008 Actuals |2007 Actuals| Actuals Actuals 2010 Actuals 2011 Bridge
General Plant
1908 Buildings & Fixtures 55,999 81,790 99,630 17,840 43,631 119,594 19,964 146,814 27,219 182,904 36,090 220,574 37,670 261,624 41,050
55,999 81,790 99,630 17,840 43,631 119,594 19,964 146,814 27,219 182,904 36,090 220,574 37,670 261,624 41,050
IT Assets
1920 Computer - Hardware 234,064 382,526 492,534 110,008 258,470 600,889 108,355 690,755 89,866 790,325 99,570 887,646 97,321 995,780 108,134
1925 Computer Software 389,213 518,801 606,630 87,829 217,417 707,124 100,494 835,581 128,457 958,835 123,254 1,076,668 117,833 1,192,402 115,734
623,277 901,327| 1,099,164 197,837 475,887 1,308,013 208,849] 1,526,336 218,323| 1,749,160 222,824 1,964,314 215,154 2,188,182] 223,869
Equipment
1915 Office Furniture & Equipment 10yr 62,095 84,710 97,507 12,797 35,412 110,143 12,636 123,192 13,049 137,434 14,242 152,231 14,797 168,143 15,912
1930 Transportation Equipment 437,202 622,843 708,137 85,294 270,935 819,198 111,061 962,797 143,599 1,034,739 71,942 1,123,933 89,194 1,062,291 -61,643
1935 Stores Equipment 11,737 15,945 20,502 4,557 8,765 24,794 4,292 29,086 4,292 31,988 2,902 36,130 4,141 43,521 7,391
1940 Tools, Shop & Garage Equipment 77,650 107,136 124,708 17,572 47,058 140,287 15,579 157,781 17,494 175,458 17,677 192,118 16,661 208,066 15,948
1945 Measurement & Testing Equipment 42,274 56,900 63,385 6,485 21,111 68,078 4,693 73,108 5,029 78,159 5,051 83,512 5,353 89,867 6,355
1955 Communications Equipment 10 YRS 1,165 2,029 3,341 1,312 2,176 4,729 1,388 7,024 2,295 9,813 2,789 12,672 2,859 16,355 3,684
1960 Graphics Equipment 194 273 326 53 133 379 53 432 53 485 53 556 71 698 142
1980 System Supervisor Equipment 12,955 17,818 29,038 11,220 16,083 46,385 17,347 63,775 17,390 86,172 22,396 108,568 22,396 131,631 23,063
645,273 907,654| 1,046,945 139,290 401,672 1,213,994 167,049| 1,417,195 203,201 1,554,248 137,052 1,709,720 155,473 1,720,572 10,852
Other Distribution Assets
1996 Hydro One S/S Contribution 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 50,000 50,000 182,000 132,000
1995 Contributions & Grants -98,504|  -153,507 -55,003 -153,507 -220,648 67,141 -356,336 -135,688 -492,846] -136,510 -647,260| -154,414 -819,243| -171,983
0 -98,504 -153,507 -55,003 -153,507 -220,648 -67,141 -356,336 -135,688 -492,846 -136,510 -597,260 -104,414 -637,243 -39,983
Total Accumulated Amortization per FA
continuity statements $5,485,129| $7,891,143| $9,562,401|  $1,671,259|  $4,077,272| $11,350,525| $1,788,124| $13,264,770| $1,914,245|$15,210,513| $1,945,743| $17,169,245| $1,958,732| $19,146,375[$1,977,130
Allocate Expense to Overhead
Transportation Equipment Expense -$437,202|  -$622,843| -$708,137 -$85,294 -$270,935 -$819,198| -$111,061 -$962,797| -$143,599| -$1,034,739(  -$71,942| -$1,123,933 -589,194| -$1,062,291 $61,643
Stores Equipment Expense -11,737 -15,945 -20,502 -4,557 -8,765 -24,794 -4,292 -29,086 -4,292 -31,988 -2,902 -36,130 -4,141 -43,521 -7,391
Net Depreciation Expense per Fixed Asset
Continuity Schedules $5,036,190| $7,252,355| $8,833,763 $1,581,407 $3,797,572| $10,506,533| $1,672,770| $12,272,886| $1,766,354[$14,143,785| $1,870,899| $16,009,182| $1,865,397| $18,040,564|$2,031,382
Add: Non-Distribution
1606 Organization Expense 1,726 2,142 2,558 416 832 2,974 416 3,390 416 3,806 416 4,222 416 4,638 416
Expense 2005, 2006 $3,798,404
Net Depreciaton Expense per audited/pro-forma
financial statements $5,037,916| $7,254,497]| $8,836,321 $1,581,823 $10,509,507| $1,673,186| $12,276,277| $1,766,770($14,147,591| $1,871,315| $16,013,404| $1,865,813| $18,045,202]$2,031,798
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ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Reconciliation of Depreciation Expense and Accumulated Amortization:

WHSI allocates depreciation expense for assets in account 1930, Transportation Equipment to
vehicle burdens, which is allocated to various capital, expense, and recoverable accounts based
on the number of vehicle hours spent on each particular job. Vehicle hours are allocated

through timesheet entry at an hourly rate.

WHSI allocates depreciation expense for assets in account 1935, Stores Equipment, to stores
overhead, which is allocated on a percentage basis to materials in inventory. An overhead rate
of 20% is added to the material cost, which is allocated to capital, expense, or recoverable
accounts as it is issued out of inventory.

Table 2-21 below reconciles the depreciation expense and accumulated amortization.

Variance Analysis on Accumulated Amortization:

Changes in accumulated depreciation are directly affected by changes in fixed assets due to
additions, the removal of fully depreciated assets from the grouped asset classes, and the
disposition of identifiable assets. The 2006 Board Approved closing balance for accumulated
depreciation is based on WHSI’'s 2004 year end account balances, plus Tier 1 capital
adjustments approved in WHSI’s 2006 EDR Application. As such, the variance between 2006
Board Approved and 2006 Actual represents the culmination of 2005 and 2005 changes in
depreciation. The variance between the 2006 Actual and 2005 Actual depreciation changes

have also been included in Table 2-21 for information purposes.
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From 2005 Actual to the 2011 Test Year, Table 2-21 below provides the change in accumulated
depreciation from year to year. The change in accumulated depreciation is a result of capital
expenditures over a six year period. For the purposes of this rate application, depreciation
expense has been calculated using the half-year rule for asset additions in 2010 Bridge and
2011 Test Years. Since a detailed analysis of capital expenditures has been provided in this
Exhibit, no further explanation of the changes in accumulated depreciation accounts is

required.
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Ontario Energy Commission de I'Energie m
Board de I'Ontario Z

Ontario

EB-2009-0079

IN THE MATTER OF the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998,
S.0. 1998, c.15 (Schedule B);

AND IN THE MATTER OF an application by Hydro One
Networks Inc. for an Order granting leave to construct new
transmission line facilities in the County of Oxford including
the City of Woodstock and Norwich Township.

BEFORE: Gordon Kaiser
Vice Chair & Presiding Member

Paul Vlahos
Member

Ken Quesnelle
Member

DECISION AND ORDER
1. Application

Hydro One Networks Inc. (“*Hydro One” or the “applicant”) filed an application on
May 31, 2009 with the Ontario Energy Board (the" Board”) pursuant to Section 92 of
the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998 for an order granting leave to construct
transmission line facilities in the County of Oxford and specifically in the City of
Woodstock and in Norwich Township. The proposed transmission line facilities
involved rebuilding approximately 4 km of a single-circuit 115 kV transmission line
on an existing right-of-way (“ROW”) with a double circuit 230 kV line. Hydro One
also proposed to construct a new transformer station (“Commerce Way TS”) at the
request of the local LDCs, to which the rebuilt line will connect. Hydro One asserts
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that this transformer station is not subject to section 92 approval, but that information
about this station was included to provide additional context to the application.

The Board assigned File No. EB-2009-0079 to the application.
There were no intervenors in the proceeding.

The Board proceeded by way of a written hearing as this was requested by the
applicant and there were no requests for an oral hearing.

. Background and Project Overview

Hydro One’s evidence is that the proposed work to be carried out and the line
facilities to be constructed, owned, and operated by Hydro One are as follows:

e approximately 4 km of 230 kV double circuit line would be constructed to replace
the existing B8W single circuit 115kV line on the existing ROW between
Woodstock TS and the proposed Commerce Way TS;

e this rebuilt line would be connected to a new double circuit line, K7/K12, at
Woodstock TS (approved under EB-2007-0027 and scheduled to be in-service in
December 2011) ;

e approximately 0.1.km of double circuit line would be constructed from the BS8W
ROW to the location of the new Commerce Way TS; and

e approximately 4 km of the existing 115 kV single circuit line B8W from
Woodstock TS to Commerce Way TS would be removed.

Hydro One indicates that the new line would initially operate at 115 kV. Hydro One
also states that the new transformer station, Commerce Way TS, is being built at the
request of the local LDCs (Hydro One Distribution and Woodstock Hydro) and it is
proposed that this station be constructed, owned, and operated by Hydro One.

The Woodstock East line upgrade project and the installation of the new Commerce
Way TS would be the third of three projects to upgrade capacity and reliability in the
Woodstock Area. Previously the Board has approved:
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e the new Toyota Transformer Station connection [a line connection from the
former B8W transmission line to Woodstock Toyota TS under EB-2006-0352]

e the Woodstock Area Transmission Reinforcement [a general area
reinforcement including the rebuilding of a 230 kV line from Ingersoll TS,
various transmission rearrangements and the new Karn TS under EB-2007-
0027]

3. Evidence and Submissions on Need and Alternatives

3.1.Project Type and Classification

Hydro One states that area load forecasts indicate that the demand on the B8W line
will be 145 MW when Commerce Way TS and Toyota Woodstock TS are fully
loaded and therefore the line as it currently exists cannot accommodate the
projected load requirements without some type of uprating initiative as its present
rating is only 105 MW. In addition, Hydro One states that the existing single circuit
B8W line is nearing its end of life and the line towers can not accommodate the
replacement of the existing conductors with larger or higher-rated conductors or
accommodate an additional circuit placement due to the lack of tower structural
strength. Hydro One further contends that new connection facilities (Commerce
Way TS and the associated rebuilt transmission connection) are required
immediately to relieve the current overloading situation at Woodstock TS and to
meet the increased load at that location. Since rebuilding the existing line is being
carried out to meet future load requirements and to replace an ageing facility, Hydro
One submits that this aspect of the need is non-discretionary. For the development
aspect (the upgrade to a double circuit 230 kV line), Hydro One states that this need
is discretionary as this work could be done at a later date. Hydro One proposes to
do the work now, however, in order to take advantage of construction synergies with
the current project.

In response to Board staff IR 2, Hydro One stated that according to its latest
forecasts, line loading on B8W would not exceed 105 MW until 2025 and the loading
was not projected to reach 145 MW until 2040. Hydro One also stated in its
response to Board staff IR 3 that the B8W transmission line had been installed in
1910, refurbished in 1994 and also had the transmission tower load reduced in 1994
by the removal of one of the two circuits from the line.
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Hydro One submits that while a single circuit 115 kV line with larger conductors
could supply the customers’ expected future load, it is proposing that a double-circuit
230 kV configuration be constructed in order to meet future reliability guidelines and
address anticipated future system enhancements in the area. Compared to the costs
of rebuilding the line in a like for like manner, Hydro One asserts there is only a
minor additional cost to upgrade this facility to double circuit 230 kV standards and it
makes economic sense to do the work now while other construction work is being
carried out.

Therefore, although Hydro One states there is a discretionary reliability component
to this project, Hydro One asserts that the project is primarily driven by the non-
discretionary needs of meeting additional customer load requirements and dealing
with the potential end of life of an existing asset.

3.2.Relevant Hydro One/IESO Transmission Operating Guidelines

The pre-filed evidence indicates that Hydro One’s preferred solution when rebuilding
the line is to provide a double circuit supply to Commerce Way TS. Hydro One
states that adding a second circuit is based on the IESO'’s four hour Load
Restoration Criteria (contained in IESO’s Ontario Resource Transmission
Assessment Criteria), which specifies that loads greater than 150 MW should be
restorable within an approximate four hour time limit following a contingency.
Typically, this means the line should be restorable through switching to a readily
accessible second circuit. Given that Hydro One states that B8W is projected (over
the planning cycle) to be close to the 150 MW threshold of the Load Restoration
Criteria, Hydro One contends that it is appropriate to install a second circuit at this
time when construction at this location is already taking place.

As previously noted, Hydro One’s response to Board staff IR 2 confirmed that
according to its latest forecasts, B8W line loading was not projected to reach 145
MW until 2040.

In its reply submission, Hydro One references the IESO’s eight hour Load
Restoration Criteria for loads less than 150 MW and indicates that a double circuit is
also required for load delivery of this amount as without it the eight hour restoration
time would be violated. Hydro One submits this would be the case as there are no
other high voltage transmission lines in the area to provide an alternate supply for a
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B8W outage and in addition, Hydro One submits that the Woodstock area
distribution system lacks back-up capability to assist with restoration efforts in the
event of a local high voltage line failure.

3.3. Transformer Station

Woodstock Hydro and Hydro One Distribution are requesting that Hydro One
Networks build a new transformer station to meet their forecast demand. The
proposed station (“Commerce Way TS”) would be located near the anticipated load
center and within close proximity of the existing 115 kV line (B8W) corridor. In order
to supply this station, Hydro One asserts that an upgrade to the transmission line
capacity is required.

Hydro One states in its pre- filed evidence that the proposed transformer station
(Commerce Way TS) is not subject to section 92 approval. Board staff, however in
its submission indicates that the Act states that transformer stations are included in
the definition of an electricity transmission line and that the Act further states that no
person shall construct, expand or reinforce a transmission line without first obtaining
from the Board an order granting leave.

3.4.Capacity Requirements for the Proposed Facilities

The pre-filed evidence indicates that the existing Woodstock TS is over-loaded and
the summer peak demand has exceeded its summer capacity of 82.9 MW for the
past few years. Woodstock Hydro and Hydro One Distribution, in a combined load
forecast, projected load growth over the summer capacity rating at Woodstock TS of
40 MW by 2012 and 60 MW by 2016. Hydro One asserts that the forecast load
growth can not be met through distributed generation in the Woodstock Area or
through conservation and demand management initiatives and so a supply type
initiative is required.

As previously noted, Hydro One also asserts that existing transmission line B8W will
require upgrading over the forecasted planning period and the estimated power
delivery requirement will approach 150 MW over this period.
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3.5. Alternatives Considered and the Preferred Alternative

Hydro One states that the “Do Nothing” alternative was discarded as the loads at the
existing facilities have exceeded the capacity of these facilities and the transmitter
has an obligation under the Transmission System Code to provide new capacity
when requested to do so by customers. Hydro One further states that the alternative
of supplying new loads from the Brant TS/Burlington TS end (to the east of the
Woodstock load center) of the existing B8W 115 kV transmission line was also
discarded because of insufficient capacity in this section of the line. Hydro One also
indicated that the cost of upgrading that section of line would be seven or eight times
higher than the applied for upgrade as an upgrade to the Brant TS/Burlington TS
end is much longer than the applied for upgrade section (30 km vs. 4 km).

Accordingly, Hydro One states the preferred alternative is to upgrade the existing 4
km section of line B8W and install additional transformation capacity close to the
load center anticipated by Woodstock Hydro and Hydro One Distribution.

. Evidence and Submissions on Impacts

4.1Project Economics and Cost Justification
A) General

Hydro One stated in the pre-filled evidence that the estimated cost for the
construction and installation of the proposed 4 km double circuit, 230 kV overhead
transmission line in question is $14.89 M.

Although the cost of this facility is projected to be greater than some recent Hydro
One transmission projects (e.g. Hurontario Project; EB-2006-0013) in the GTA,
Hydro One stated in its response to Board staff IR 4 that there are valid reasons for
this cost differential. Hydro One indicated these cost differences have to do with
different transmission line span lengths, different tower and foundation designs and
different construction traffic management requirements for the two locations.

The proposed reinforcement facilities in Woodstock comprise both line and
transformation assets. Hydro One proposes to include the new 230 kV double circuit
transmission line from Woodstock TS to Commerce Way TS in the Line Connection
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Pool for rate making purposes. Hydro One states that the line assets include
provisions that would require pool funding since the design of the new line is over-
and-above the customer requested facilities to meet system reliability and future
load growth needs as well as the requirement to rebuild an existing end-of-life circuit.
The costs associated with the transformation assets that are not offset by the capital
contributions of Woodstock Hydro and Hydro One distribution will be included in the
transformation pool.

Hydro One states that a Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) calculation has been
completed for each pool consistent with the economic evaluation requirements of the
Transmission System Code to determine whether a capital contribution is required.
For the Line Connection Pool, no capital contribution is required for the main portion
of the transmission line, but a contribution is required for the tap portion from the
main ROW to the proposed transformer station. For the Transformation Connection
Pool, Hydro One states that the TS estimated cost is $29.9 M and it is proposed that
the pool fund $17.3 M of this cost. This would result in, capital contributions totalling
$12.6 million being required from the local LDCs.

B) Cost Responsibility

Line Connection Pool and Network Pool

In determining the capital contribution regarding the line connection assets, Hydro
One states that it has assigned costs to customers for cost responsibility purposes of
$0.7 million. This amount covers the cost of constructing a line tap from the B8W
ROW to the new station location. Hydro One indicates that the remaining $14.2
million of line connection costs covers the cost of rebuilding the existing end-of-life
line to 230 kV standards and installing a second 230 kV circuit from Woodstock TS
to the tap location for Commerce Way TS. Additionally, $6.4 million in
telecommunications work is included in the project (which is primarily network pool-
related), Hydro One has indicated that $5.8 million has been identified to upgrade
telecommunication for the transmission system reliability needs (i.e., the 230 kV
upgrade).

Hydro One indicates that the costs related to the replacement of the existing line and
upgrade to 230 kV standards have been assigned to the pool for cost responsibility
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purposes and excluded from the project economic analysis, in accordance with the
exceptions provided in Sections 6.3.6' and 6.7.22 of the Transmission System Code.

4.2 System Impact Assessment and Customer Impact Assessment Approvals

System Impact Assessment

Under the Market Rules any party planning to construct a new or modified
connection to the IESO-controlled grid must request an IESO System Impact
Assessment (“SIA’) of these facilities. The IESO assessment addresses the impact
of the proposed facilities on system operating voltage, system operating flexibility,
and on the ability of other connections to deliver or withdraw power supply from the
IESO-controlled grid. The IESO has completed an SIA for this project (Final Draft
Report; IESO_REP 0491) and this document was filed with the pre-filed evidence.
The SIA report states that the proposed transmission facilities will improve the
voltage profile and increase supply capability in the Woodstock Area, and will not
adversely impact the reliability of the IESO-controlled grid. The SIA also called for
Hydro One and the local LDCs to work collaboratively on a reactive load
compensation initiative, for Hydro One to provide certain information on its
equipment and for Hydro One to confirm it can carry out certain control actions if
required.

Customer Impact Assessment

A Customer Impact Analysis (“CIA”) is also required and Hydro One filed a CIA as
part of its response to Board staff IR 12. Hydro One’s CIA confirmed that the
proposed Commerce West TS can be incorporated on to the IESO administered grid
without any negative impacts on the IESO grid or on the transmission customers
connected to the IESO system in Woodstock and the surrounding area.

In response to Board staff IR 12, Hydro One has committed to carrying out all of the
recommendations made in both the SIA and CIA reports.

Transmission System Code; clause 6.3.6: A transmitter shall develop and maintain plans to meet load growth and
maintain the reliability and integrity of its transmission system. The transmitter shall not require a customer to
make a capital contribution for a connection facility that was otherwise planned by the transmitter, except for
advancement costs.

Transmission System Code; clause 6.7.2: Where a transmitter’s connection facility is retired, the transmitter shall
not recover a capital contribution from a customer to replace that connection facility.
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4.3 Community and Agency Consultations

Hydro One stated that it has sought and received input on the proposed project from
a broad range of government agencies. Hydro One indicated that the initial step in
its consultation process involved a presentation to the City of Woodstock Council on
February 7, 2008. Because part of the study area falls within the Township of
Norwich, Hydro One advised that in early 2008 it also met with Norwich’s Mayor and
Chief Administrative Officer and with the Chief Administrative Officer from the
County of Oxford. Hydro One also identified and provided project information to
several interest groups in the region.

Hydro One used various methods to notify the local community and stakeholders
about the project and held two Public Information Centres (PICs) as part of the Class
EA process. Hydro One stated that it used local area newspaper ads to advise
individuals of the upcoming public information centres. In addition to these ads,
Hydro One stated that notification for both PICs consisted of approximately 400
personally-addressed notices to property owners within the study area for the new
transformer station, and to property owners within 120 m of the transmission line that
would be upgraded. In addition, approximately 4,200 copies of the newspaper
advertisement were delivered via Canada Post unaddressed AdMail to all
owners/occupants of residential, farm and commercial premises within 500 m of the
existing transmission line Hydro One proposes to upgrade.

4.4 Land and Property Matters

The Commerce Way project’s proposed transmission facilities will include a new
double circuit 230 kV overhead transmission line located within the existing 115 kV
transmission line corridor. Hydro One advises that the existing corridor running from
the Woodstock TS easterly to the proposed Commerce Way TS site, a distance of
approximately 4 kilometers, is a combination of:

e provincially owned property segments held under title to the Ministry of Public
Infrastructure and Renewal, and managed by the Ontario Realty Corporation;

e municipal properties managed by the City of Woodstock, Parks and
Recreation, and the Economic & Development Committee;
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e easement rights on private properties; and

e municipal road corridors.

Hydro One states that the existing transmission line corridor crosses approximately
45 privately owned properties and one municipal park property managed by City of
Woodstock Parks & Recreation. The corridor also crosses a total of 12 city streets
that provide access to residential neighborhoods, numerous commercial and
industrial sites and the City of Woodstock Commerce Way Business Park. Hydro
One states that the proposed transmission line facilities will be partially
accommodated by land rights Hydro One has presently secured along the existing
corridor. These rights consist of an Occupation Agreement with the City of
Woodstock Parks and Recreation Department, easement rights Hydro One
possesses on all of the provincially-owned corridor lands, as well as its existing
permanent easements rights on private property. Hydro One asserts that additional
permanent easement rights will be required to widen a limited number of sections
along the existing 66 feet wide corridor to allow for additional clearances where new
larger angle towers will replace the existing angle towers.

Hydro One plans to use its existing land rights along the corridor from the existing
Woodstock TS to the proposed Commerce Way TS. In all cases where new land
rights are required, Hydro One states it will attempt to secure the rights through
negotiated agreements with affected landowners. Where a negotiated agreement is
not possible within a reasonable time frame, Hydro One indicates it will seek
approval to expropriate the required land rights in accordance with the requirements
of Section 99 of the OEB Act, immediately after a Board approval is received. Hydro
One has also submitted in its pre-filed evidence the form of easement agreement it
proposes to utilize.

4.5 Environmental Issues

The proposed Commerce Way transmission reinforcement facilities fall within the
definition of the projects covered by the Class Environmental Assessment for Minor
Transmission Facilities (“Class EA”), which is approved by the Ontario Ministry of
Environment (“MOE”) under the Ontario Environmental Assessment (“EA”) Act. The
Class EA process for this project includes preparing a Draft Environmental Study
Report and Hydro One has prepared such a report.
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As noted within, a PIC was held in Woodstock on February 21, 2008, where the
public had the opportunity to learn about the project and meet the project team. A
second PIC was held on February 5, 2009, to present the details of the proposed
undertaking, including details of the new transmission line and the location of
Commerce Way TS.

Hydro One stated in the pre-filed evidence that in accordance with the Class EA
process, it made its draft Environmental Study Report available for a 30-day public
review and comment period from March 12 to April 13, 2009. Hydro One stated that
at the conclusion of the public review and comment period, no comments from
members of the public were received, nor were there any requests to elevate the
Class EA to an Individual EA. Hydro One indicated that three comments were
received from government agencies and these were incorporated into the final
Environmental Study Report.

4.6 First Nations and Aboriginal Matters
Hydro One stated that it consulted with the Ontario Ministry of Aboriginal Affairs, and

Indian and Northern Affairs Canada, and has provided information on this project to
the following First Nations:

. Chippewas of the Thames First Nation;

o Oneida Nation of the Thames;

) Munsee-Delaware Nation;

. Mississaugas of the New Credit First Nation;
. Chippewas of Kettle and Stoney Point;

o Walpole Island First Nation; and

. Six Nations of the Grand River.

Hydro One provided extensive documentation through Board staff IR 11 regarding
how it determined the Aboriginal Peoples’ who had an interest in or were affected by
the proceeding, its correspondence history with all groups or communities along with
copies of correspondence sent to these groups/communities. Hydro One also stated
in Board staff IR 11 that no group that was contacted expressed any objection to the
project in question. Hydro One further asserted that it was committed to the
engagement of all these groups/communities throughout the entire extent of this
project.
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5. BOARD FINDINGS

Section 96(2) of the OEB Act provides that for an application under section 92 of the
Act, the Board shall only consider the interests of consumers with respect to prices
and reliability and quality of electricity service when determining if a proposed project
is in the public interest.

In the context of this application the Board considers an approval of the transmission
assets to carry with it the implication of necessitating the associated transformation
assets. Without the transformation assets the transmission assets could not serve
the purpose which forms the basis upon which the leave to construct application is
predicated. The evidence supporting the need for the transmission facilities has the
concomitant function of supporting the transformation station that renders the
transmission facility useful. For these reasons, specific to this application, the Board
considers its approval to be inclusive of both the transmission and transformation
assets as a common project.

The main issues for the Board in consideration of the application are as follows:

> |Is the project needed and is it the best alternative?

» What impact will the project have on transmission rates?

» What impact will the project have on reliability and quality of supply?
» Have the land-use matters been addressed?

> If the project is approved, what are the conditions of approval?

5.1 Is the project needed and is it the best alternative?

The Board accepts the updated forecast of the loading for transmission line B8W
and the overall forecasts for the Woodstock area facilities. The Board also
acknowledges the Hydro One assertion that all available CDM and DR have been
incorporated into the forecasts.

The Board accepts that transmission line B8W requires replacement due to ageing.
Although the line may be within its thermal rating for some time, the Board
acknowledges the applicant’s reasoning to further enhance the line rating at this time
when associated work is being performed. The Board also finds that it is reasonable
for Hydro One to upgrade circuit BBW, a single circuit 115 kV transmission line to a
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double circuit 230 kV facility at this time. The incremental cost to upgrade now
compares favourably against the cost to do so at a later date when viewed in the
context of the probability of the upgrade being required within the expected life span
of the facilities.

5.2 What impact will the project have on transmission rates?

Hydro One states that it has carried out an analysis of the transmission rate impact
on the basis of Hydro One’s transmission revenue requirement for the year 2008,
and the most recently approved Ontario Transmission Rate Schedules. Hydro One
states that the network pool revenue requirement would be unaffected by the new
reinforcement facilities, based on the criteria used to allocate transmission costs to
the three pools as approved by the Board in its EB-2006-0501 decision.

Based on the Line Connection Pool incremental cash flows associated with the cost
of the line facilities, Hydro One contends that there will be only a minor change in the
Line Connection pool revenue requirement once the project’s impacts are reflected
in the transmission rate base at the projected in-service date in December of 2011.
Hydro One states that when the impact caused by the proposed project is reflected
into the calculations for the relevant transmission pools, the impact on a typical
residential customer’s bill is projected to be about 0.01 % and the Board accepts this
evidence.

5.3 What impact will the project have on reliability of supply?

The Board accepts the conclusion in the SIA and CIA reports that the project will not
have any negative affects on the IESO grid or on adjacent transmission customers,
will improve the voltage profile in the area and also improve the area supply
reliability and redundancy.

5.4 Have the land-use matters been addressed?

The Board notes that a significant part of the project will be located on public land
and that agreements are being negotiated with the municipalities for the construction
of these facilities. Where private land is involved, the Applicant has secured or is in
the process of securing the necessary land rights and has filed in evidence a form of
easement agreement that is acceptable to the Board.
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5.5 What are the conditions of approval?

The Board approves the project, as described in the Application of Hydro One
subject to the conditions of approval appended to this Decision and Order, which are
in keeping with the Board'’s practice for establishing certain general conditions for
projects of this type.

Conclusion

Based on these findings the Board has determined that the construction of the
proposed facilities is in the public interest and that an Order granting leave to
construct should be made.

IT IS ORDERED THAT:

1. Hydro One Networks Inc. is granted leave, pursuant to section 92, to
construct approximately 4.0 kilometres double-circuit 230 kV transmission
facilities on an existing right-of-way in Oxford County and the associated
transformation and connecting assets described in its application as
Commerce Way TS subject to the Conditions of Approval attached as
Appendix A to this Order.

2. Hydro One Networks Inc. shall pay the Board’s costs incidental to this
proceeding upon receipt of the Board’s invoice.

DATED at Toronto, November 6, 2009
ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD

Original Signed By

Kirsten Walli
Board Secretary
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1.2

1.3

1.4
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2.1

2.2

2.3

Hydro One Networks Inc. — Woodstock East Transmission Line
Reinforcement Project

General Requirements

Hydro One Networks Inc (“Hydro One”). shall construct the facilities and restore
the land in accordance with its application and evidence, except as modified by
this Order and these Conditions of Approval.

Unless otherwise ordered by the Board, authorization for Leave to Construct
shall terminate December 31, 2011, unless construction has commenced prior to
then.

Except as modified by this Order, Hydro One shall implement all the
recommendations of the Environmental Study Report filed in the pre filed
evidence, and all the recommendations identified in the System Impact and the
Customer Impact Assessments which were prepared for this project.

Hydro One shall advise the Board's designated representative of any proposed
material change in the project, including but not limited to changes in: the
proposed route; construction techniques; construction schedule; restoration
procedures; or any other impacts of construction. Hydro One shall not make such
change without prior approval of the Board or its designated representative. In
the event of an emergency, the Board shall be informed immediately after the
fact.

Hydro One shall obtain all necessary approvals, permits, licences, certificates
and easement rights required to construct, operate and maintain the proposed
project and shall provide copies of all such written approvals, permits, licences
and certificates upon the Board'’s request.

Project and Communications Requirements

The Board's designated representative for the purpose of these Conditions of
Approval shall be the Manager, Electricity Facilities and Infrastructure
Applications.

Hydro One shall designate a person as project engineer and shall provide the
name of the individual to the Board’s designated representative. The project
engineer will be responsible for the fulfilment of the Conditions of Approval on the
construction site. Hydro One shall provide a copy of the Order and Conditions of
Approval to the project engineer, within ten (10) days of the Board’s Order being
issued.

Hydro One shall give the Board's designated representative ten (10) days written
notice, in advance of the commencement of the construction.



2.4

2.5

2.6

3.1

3.2

3.3

Ontario Energy Board

2.

Hydro One shall furnish the Board's designated representative with all
reasonable assistance for ascertaining whether the work is being or has been
performed in accordance with the Board's Order.

Hydro One shall develop, as soon as possible and prior to the start of
construction, a detailed construction plan. The detailed construction plan shall
cover all activities and associated outages and also include proposed outage
management plans. These plans should be discussed with affected transmission
customers before being finalized. Upon completion of the detailed plans, Hydro
One shall provide five (5) copies to the Boards designated representative.

Hydro One shall furnish the Board’s designated representative with five (5)
copies of written confirmation of the completion of construction. This written
confirmation shall be provide within one (1) month of the completion of
construction.

Monitoring and Reporting Requirements

Both during and after construction, Hydro One shall monitor the impacts of
construction, and shall file four (4) copies of both an interim and a final
monitoring report with the Board. The interim monitoring report shall be filed
within six months of the in-service date, and the final monitoring report shall be
filed within eighteen months of the in-service date. Hydro One shall attach to the
final monitoring report a log of all complaints related to construction that have
been received. The log shall record the times of all complaints received, the
substance of each complaint, the actions taken in response, and the reasons
underlying such actions.

The monitoring report shall confirm Hydro One’s adherence to Condition 1.1 and
shall include a description of the impacts noted during construction and the
actions taken or to be taken to prevent or mitigate the long-term effects of the
impacts of construction. This report shall describe any outstanding concerns
identified during construction and the condition of any rehabilitated land and the
effectiveness of any mitigation measures undertaken. The results of the
monitoring programs and analysis shall be included and recommendations made
as appropriate. Any deficiency in compliance with any of the Conditions of
Approval shall be explained.

Within fifteen (15) months of the in-service date, Hydro One shall file with the
Board a written Post Construction Financial Report. The Report shall indicate
the actual capital costs of the project and shall explain all significant variances
from the estimates filed with the Board.
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Other Approvals

Hydro One shall obtain all other approvals, permits, licences, and certificates
required to construct, operate and maintain the proposed project, shall provide a
list thereof, and shall provide copies of all such written approvals, permits,
licences, and certificates upon the Board’s request.
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Filed: October 28, 2010

OVERALL BUDGET PROCESS

On an annual basis, WHSI management prepares a capital and operating budget in the last
quarter of the fiscal year preceding the budget year. A five-year capital plan is also included as
part of the budget process to enable long term planning for capital requirements. Operating
expenses are based on a combination of historical costs and projects planned and required for
regulatory purposes for the upcoming fiscal year. WHSI’s Asset Management program helps

assess the need for preventative maintenance and capital planning.

WHSI Procedure 1220 below describes the budgeting responsibilities and approval process for

WHSI:

Procedure: 1220
Revised: November 16, 2009
Reference: President

SUBJECT: BUDGETING RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL PROCESS

Purpose:

Outlined in this procedure are the manager’s roles in managing operating and capital budgets.
Role of Managers

1. Managers of Departments are responsible for submitting annual operating and capital
budgets to the Manager of Accounting & Regulatory Affairs for consolidation.

2. On a monthly basis, managers update their budget projections as well as check budget reports
for proper allocations and costing.

3. The President mu